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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
53] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012
OR
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number_132225

HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaet)

Delaware 20-0833098

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)

2828 N. Harwood, Suite 1300
Dallas, Texas 75201-1507
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(214) 871-3555
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefAct:
Common Limited Partner Units

Securities registered pursuant to 12(g) of the Act:
None.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vikelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edBéturities Act.

Yes ® No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5 (d) of the Act.

Yes O No ®

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by Seati8 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act d4L8uring the preceding 12 months (or for suchtsingreriod that the registrant was required todileh reports), and (2) has b
subject to such filing requirements for the pasti@gs. YesX No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant nésnitted electronically and posted on its corporeg® site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rueod®egulation SF (§232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grbnths (c
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Y& No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i¢ oontained herein, and will not be containedh®ltest of registrant's knowledge, in definitivexyror information statements incorporated by rerfiee in Part Il of this Form 18-
or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting compawe the definitions of “large accelerated filéagcelerated filer” and “smaller reporting compary'Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer 53] Accelerated filer [m] Non-accelerated filer [m] Smaller reporting company [m]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Bxrgje Act). YesO No &

The aggregate market value of common limited paninés held by non-affiliates of the registrantsapproximately $900 million on June 29, 2012 |#s¢ day of the registrant's most recently complstecond fiscal quarter, based on the last sales @s quoted on the New York
Stock Exchange on such date.

The number of the registrant's outstanding comnimitéd partners units at February 15, 2013 was&6(#48.
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PART |

FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaioriffard-looking statements” within the meaning of federal securities laws. All statements, othantbtatements of historical fact included in thisrr 10K, including
but not limited to, those under “Business”, “Riskckors” and “Properties” in Items 1, 1A and 2 aibhagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdtion and Results of Operations” in Item 7, fmevard{ooking
statements. Forward looking statements use worcls as “anticipate,” “project,” “expect,” “plan,” ‘@al,” “forecast,” “intend,” "should," "would," “cdd,” “believe,” “may,” and similar expressions and statements rege
our plans and objectives for future operations.sEhstatements are based on our beliefs and assasptnd those of our general partner using cugremviilable information and expectations as ofdage hereof, are r
guarantees of future performance and involve aeriaks and uncertainties. Although we and our garngartner believe that such expectations refttatesuch forwardeoking statements are reasonable, neither we
general partner can give assurance that our exjeeavill prove to be correct. All statements ceming our expectations for future results of opieres are based on forecasts for our existing dgjper®and do not include t
potential impact of any future acquisitions. Ounfard{ooking statements are subject to a variety ofsiiskncertainties and assumptions. If one or motbede risks or uncertainties materialize, or ifienlying assumptior
prove incorrect, our actual results may vary matrifrom those anticipated, estimated, projectedexpected. Certain factors could cause actuallteesu differ materially from results anticipaten the forwardiooking
statements. These factors include, but are notdib:

« risks and uncertainties with respect to the aajuahtities of petroleum products and crude oil gagbon our pipelines and/or terminalled, storethomyughput in our terminal

+ the economic viability of HollyFrontier CorporatipAlon USA, Inc. and our other custom«

+ the demand for refined petroleum products in market serve

« our ability to successfully purchase and integeateitional operations in the futu

« our ability to complete previously announced orteamplated acquisition

« the availability and cost of additional debt andiggfinancing

« the possibility of reductions in production or sthavns at refineries utilizing our pipeline and térai facilities

« the effects of current and future government retgria and policie:

« our operational efficiency in carrying out routioperations and capital construction proje

« the possibility of terrorist attacks and the consatges of any such attac

+ general economic conditions; ¢

« other financial, operational and legal risks andartainties detailed from time to time in our Séties and Exchange Commission filin
Cautionary statements identifying important factivat could cause actual results to differ matiyrilsbm our expectations are set forth in this FdtK, including without limitation, the forwartboking statements that ¢
referred to above. When considering forward-lookstgtements, you should keep in mind the known niztesk factors and other cautionary statemeetsferth in this Form 10-K under “Risk Factorst Item 1A. All
forward-looking statements included in this FormKL@nd all subsequent written or oral forwdotking statements attributable to us or personisg@on our behalf are expressly qualified in theitirety by these caution:

statements. The forward-looking statements spefkamof the date made and, other than as reqbirddw, we undertake no obligation to publicly upzar revise any forwartboking statements, whether as a result of
information, future events or otherwise.
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The following terms and names that appear in this1f10-K are defined on the following pages:
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FERC.... 7

GAAP....
Guarantor subsidiaries

LIBOR...

Long-term Incentive Plan.. 70
LPG... 6
Maintenance capital expenditures. 7

mbbls.
mbpd..
MMSCFD
Mid-America...
Non-Guarantor..
NuStar
Omnibus Agreement
OSHA....
Parent.
Plains....

Senior Notes.. 12
SLC Pipeline.. 5
UNEYV Pipeline 5




Item 1. Busines:
OVERVIEW

Holly Energy Partners, L.P. (‘HEPT a Delaware limited partnership engaged pringipal the business of operating a system of petirolgroduct and crude pipelines, storage tanksiildigion terminals and loading re
facilities in west Texas, New Mexico, Utah, Neva@&Jahoma, Wyoming, Kansas, Arizona, Idaho and Wagbn. We were formed in Delaware in 2004 and ta@mour principal corporate offices at 2828 N. Waod, Suit:
1300, Dallas, Texas 75201-1507. Our telephone nuist#14-871-3555 and our internet website addiessvw.hollyenergy.com The information contained on our website doesaoaistitute part of this Annual Report
Form 10-K. A copy of this Annual Report on Form K@il be provided without charge upon written restito the Vice President, Investor Relations atathove address. A direct link to our filings a th.S. Securities a
Exchange Commission (“SEC#ebsite is available on our website on the Invespaige. Also available on our website are copiesuofGovernance Guidelines, Audit Committee Cha@ampensation Committee Char
and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, all otlhiill be provided without charge upon written uegt to the Vice President, Investor Relationdhatabove address. In this document, the words “beeif,” “ours” anc
“us” refer to HEP and its consolidated subsidiadeso HEP or an individual subsidiary and not by ather person. “HFCtefers to HollyFrontier Corporation and its subarés, other than HEP and its subsidiaries and
than Holly Logistic Services, L.L.C. (“HLS"), a ssidiary of HollyFrontier Corporation that is thergeal partner of the general partner of HEP andages HEP.

We own and operate petroleum product and cruddipgseand terminal, tankage and loading rack faedithat support HFC's refining and marketing apiens in the Mid€ontinent, Southwest and Rocky Mountain reg
of the United States and Alon USA, Inc.’s (“Alomgfinery in Big Spring, Texas. HFC currently own44®s interest in us, including the 2% general garinterest. Additionally, we own a 75#terest in UNEV Pipeline, LL
(“UNEV”), which owns a 400 -mile, 12 -inch refing@toducts pipeline running from Woods Cross, UtalLas Vegas, Nevada (the “UNEV Pipelineproduct terminals near Cedar City, Utah and LasagedfNevada ar
related assets, and a 25% joint venture interes9is-mile intrastate crude oil pipeline systene ({8LC Pipeline”) that serves refineries in thet$alke City, Utah area.

We generate revenues by charging tariffs for trartg8py petroleum products and crude oil through pipelines, by charging fees for terminalling andrisig refined products and other hydrocarbons, amdéiding othe
services at our storage tanks and terminals. Weotltake ownership of products that we transperminal or store, and therefore, we are not diyestposed to changes in commodity prices.

Our assets include:

Pipelines:

« approximately 810 miles of refined product pipes, including 340 miles of leased pipelines, thamsport gasoline, diesel and jet fuel principélbm HFC's Navajo refinery in New Mexico to its customerstie
metropolitan and rural areas of Texas, New Mexfaizona, Utah and northern Mexico;

« approximately 510 miles of refined product pipe$ that transport refined products from A®Big Spring refinery in Texas to its customer§axas and Oklahorr

« three 65-mile intermediate pipelines that tramsintermediate feedstocks and crude oil from HF®avajo refinery crude oil distillation and vacudatilities in Lovington, New Mexico to its petralm refinery
facilities in Artesia, New Mexico;

« approximately 960 miles of crude oil trunk, gathg and connection pipelines located in west $ekiew Mexico and Oklahoma that deliver crude@iHFC’s Navajo refinen
« approximately 10 miles of refined product pipel that support HF€'Woods Cross refinery located near Salt Lake Cltgh

« gasoline and diesel connecting pipelines locatddFC5 Tulsa east refinery facilit

« five intermediate product and gas pipelines leetwHFC$ Tulsa east and west refinery facilit

« crude receiving assets located at HF-Cheyenne refiner

« a75% interestin the UNEV Pipeline, a 4@dle refined products pipeline running from Wood®$€3, Utah to Las Vegas, Nevada;

* a25% joint venture interest in the SLC pipelia®5mile intrastate crude oil pipeline system that $ggorts crude oil into the Salt Lake City, Utah afrean the Utah terminus of the Frontier Pipeling veell as cruc
oil flowing from Wyoming and Utah via Plains All Aenican Pipeline, L. P.’s (“Plains”) Rocky Mountdfipeline.




Refined Product Terminals and Refinery Tankage:

« four refined product terminals located in El PaBexas; Moriarty and Bloomfield, New Mexico; and Foa, Arizona, with an aggregate capacity of appnately 1,300,000 barrels, that are integrated withrefine(
product pipeline system that serves HFC’s Navdjoeey;

« three refined product terminals (two of whicle 0% owned), located in Burley and Boise, |dahh &pokane, Washington, with an aggregate capat#ppmroximately 500,000 barrels, that serve tipadty commo
carrier pipelines;
« one refined product terminal near Mountain Homehtlwith a capacity of 120,000 barrels, that seavasarby United States Air Force Bi

« two refined product terminals, located in Wichitalls and Abilene, Texas, and one tank farm in OFkeas with aggregate capacity of approximately,B00 barrels, that are integrated with our refipeoduc
pipelines that serve Alon’s Big Spring refinery;

+ a refined product loading rack facility at eawhHFC'’s refineries, heavy product / asphalt logdiack facilities at HFG Navajo refinery Lovington facility, Tulsa refineeast facility and the Cheyenne refin
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") loading rack fatiés at HFC's Tulsa refinery west facility, Cheyemefinery and El Dorado refinery, lube oil loadiregks at HFGS Tulsa refinery west facility and crude oil Lee
Automatic Custody Transfer (“LACT”) units locatetitdFC’s Cheyenne refinery;

+ aleased jet fuel terminal in Roswell, New Mex

+ on-site crude oil tankage at HENavajo, Woods Cross, Tulsa and Cheyenne refsbdeging an aggregate storage capacity of appragiyna, 100,000 barrel

« on-site refined and intermediate product tankaige¢FC's Tulsa, Cheyenne and El Dorado refineries havingggregate storage capacity of approximately 80@@barrels; ar
* a75%interestin UNEV Pipeline's product terminals n€adar City, Utah and Las Vegas, Nevada with aneagde capacity of approximately 460,000 bar

We have a longerm strategic relationship with HFC. Our growtlplis to continue to pursue purchases of logisets at HFC's existing refining locations in Newx\¢o, Utah, Oklahoma, Kansas and Wyoming. We
will work with HFC on logistic asset acquisitions ¢onjunction with HFC's refinery acquisition stgies. Furthermore, we will continue to pursuedHpiarty logistic asset acquisitions that are acceetvour unitholders ai
increase the diversity of our revenues.

On November 29, 2012, we announced a twosfoe-unit split, payable in the form of a commontulistribution for each issued and outstanding coammnit. The unit distribution was paid January 2813 to all unitholde
of record on January 7, 2013. All references ta and per unit amounts in this document and reldteclosures have been adjusted to reflect thetedfethe unit split for all periods presented.

2012 Acquisition

UNEYV Pipeline Interest Acquisition

On July 12, 2012, we acquired from HFC a 75% irgieie UNEV which owns a 400 -mile, 1iheh refined products pipeline running from Wood®s3, Utah to Las Vegas, Nevada, product termineds Cedar City, Ut:
and Las Vegas, Nevada and related assets. We @asitleration consisting of $260.9 million in casid 2,059,80®f our common units (adjusted to reflect the uplits As a result of the common units issued tadHHFC'«
ownership interest in us increased from 42% to 4#%luding the 2% general partner interest). Alsaler the terms of the transaction, we issued to ldRClass B unit comprising an equity interest iwkolly-ownec
subsidiary that entitles HFC to an interest in share of annual UNEV earnings before interest,imetaxes, depreciation, and amortization aboveriiidn beginning July 1, 2016 and ending in June 2032jestito certai
limitations. Contemporaneously with this transattiel FC (our general partner) agreed to foregoigfstito incentive distributions of up to $1.25 rith per quarter over the next twelve consecutive qugirperiods and up

an additional four quarters in certain circumstante connection with the transaction, we entengd 15-year throughput agreements with shippersaiming minimum annual revenue commitments to U82 million .

2011 Acquisition

Legacy Frontier Tankage and Terminal Transactic

On November 9, 2011, we acquired from HFC certainkage, loading rack and crude receiving assetédéddat HFC's El Dorado and Cheyenne refineries pdid noneash consideration consisting of promissory notitls
an aggregate principal amount of $150 million an6i18,230 of our common units. In connection witle thansaction, we entered into f&ar throughput agreements with HFC containing mimh annual reven
commitments to us of $48.3 million .
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2010 Acquisitions

Tulsa East / Lovington Storage Asset Transaction
On March 31, 2010, we acquired from HFC certaimagie assets for $88.6 million consisting of hydrboa storage tanks having approximately 2 milli@mrbls of storage capacity, a rail loading rack artdick unloadin
rack located at HFC's Tulsa refinery east facilayso, as part of this same transaction, we acqut#EC's asphalt loading rack facility located atitavajo refinery facility in Lovington, New Mexidor $4.4 million.

Agreements with HFC and Alon

We serve HFC's refineries under loterm pipeline and terminal, tankage and througlagueements expiring in 2019 through 2026. Undesetegreements, HFC agreed to transport, storehamdghput volumes of refin:
product and crude oil on our pipelines and termiteaikage and loading rack facilities that resultninimum annual payments to us. These minimum ainpayments or revenues are subject to annudl taté adjustments «
July 1, based on the Producer Price Index (“PPi'the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERi@tex. Additionally, such agreements require HB@eimburse us for certain costs. As of Decembe2812, thes:
agreements with HFC will result in minimum annuatizpayments to us of $217.2 million .

If HFC fails to meet its minimum volume commitmentsder the agreements in any quarter, it will lpuieed to pay us in cash the amount of any shotifathe last day of the month following the endtleé quarter. Und
certain of the agreements, a shortfall payment beagpplied as a credit in the following four questafter minimum obligations are met.

We also have a pipelines and terminals agreemetht Alon expiring in 2020 under which Alon has agtde transport on our pipelines and throughputufroour terminals volumes of refined products tresult in
minimum level of annual revenue that also is sultie@annual tariff rate adjustments. In additior, have a capacity lease agreement with Alon unttéchmve lease Alon space on our Orla to El Paselisip for the shipme
of up to 15,000 barrels of refined product per déye terms under this agreement expire beginnirgDit8 through 2022. As of December 31, 201f&ese agreements with Alon will result in minimamualized payments
us of $31.4 million .

A significant reduction in revenues under theseagrents would have a material adverse effect omesuits of operations.

Furthermore, if new laws or regulations that affecminals or pipelines are enacted that requirousake substantial and unanticipated capital ediperes at the pipelines or terminals, we will dadkie right after we ha
made efforts to mitigate their effects to negotetmonthly surcharge on HFC for the use of the iteaits or to file for an increased tariff rate faeuof the pipelines to cover HEJro rata portion of the cost of complying v
these laws or regulations including a reasonatieatrreturn. In such instances, we will negotiatgood faith with HFC to agree on the level of thenthly surcharge or increased tariff rate.

For additional information regarding our signifitaustomers, see Note 10 to the Consolidated FiabBtatements included in Item 8 of Part Il ofstRiorm 10-K.

Omnibus Agreement

Under certain provisions of an omnibus agreemetit WFC (the “Omnibus Agreement'\ye pay HFC an annual administrative fee for thesigion by HFC or its affiliates of various geneaald administrative services to
currently $2.3 million. This fee includes expenses incurred by HFC amdffiliates to perform centralized corporate fums, such as executive management, legal, acemyriteasury, information technology and o
corporate services, including the administratioemwiployee benefit plans. This fee does not incthdesalaries of personnel employed by HLS who perfeervices for us or the cost of their employeeefies, such as 401(l
pension and health insurance benefits, which gvaragely charged to us by HFC. We also reimburs€ ldfd its affiliates for direct expenses they inearour behalf. In addition, we also pay for oumoglirect general ar
administrative costs, including costs relating perating as a separate publicly held entity, siechasts for preparation of partners’ K-1 tax infatian, SEC filings, investor relations, directocempensation, directorsinc
officers’ insurance and registrar and transfer afgss.

CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Our pipeline and terminalling operations are capiteensive, requiring investments to maintain, &xg, upgrade or enhance existing operations ante&t environmental and operational regulations. €pital requiremen
consist of maintenance capital expenditures andresipn capital expenditures. “Maintenance capitpkaditures’represent capital expenditures to replace part@lifplly depreciated assets to maintain the opeyatapacit
of existing assets. Maintenance capital expenditunelude expenditures required to maintain equipmeliability, tankage and pipeline integrity, ebf and to address environmental regulatioisxpansion capit
expenditurestepresent capital expenditures to expand the dpgreapacity of existing or new assets, whethesugh construction or acquisition. Expansion camtgienditures include expenditures to acquire sassegrov
our business and to expand existing facilitieshaag projects that increase throughput capacityuspipelines and in our
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terminals. Repair and maintenance expenses assbeiith existing assets that do not extend thesfuldife are charged to operating expenses agiiadu

Each year the HLS board of directors approves onual capital budget, which specifies capital prgehat our management is authorized to undertadtditionally, at times when conditions warrantas new opportuniti¢
arise, additional projects may be approved. Thelsuallocated for a particular capital project mayelxpended over a period in excess of a year, dapggon the time required to complete the projéberefore, our plann
capital expenditures for a given year consist gfesditures approved for capital projects includethie current year's capital budget as well aseitain cases, expenditures approved for capitgégts in capital budgets |
prior years. The 2013 regular capital budget is mosed of $10.1 million for maintenance capital engitures and $2.0 million for expansion capitgbenditures exclusive of the projects discussedvielio addition to oL
capital budget, we may spend funds periodicallgdacapital upgrades of our assets where a custmimeburses us for such costs. These reimbursementkl be required under contractual agreementsaandd generall
benefit the customer over the remaining life ofrsagreements.

We recently have made certain modifications to @ude oil gathering and trunk line system that@ffely have increased our ability to gather arahsport an additional 10,000 barrels per day (“ppdDelaware Basi
crude oil in response to increased drilling acyivit southeast New Mexico. We have a second progsently approved which consists of the reactra@nd conversion to crude oil service of a 70-n8knch petroleur
products pipeline owned by us. This project alsiudes the expansion and extension of several oEruge gathering systems and crude mainlines.e@nservice, this system will be capable of tramspg crude oil fror
southeast New Mexico to thipgarty common carrier pipelines in west Texas fothfer transport to major crude oil markets. Thisjgct is estimated to cost approximately $38.5iarilland could be fully operational in |.
2013.

We are also performing preliminary engineering tirguand cost estimates for two proposed new pipsli The first proposed pipeline would be a nevagtate crude oil pipeline between Cushing, Okladnamd HFC's Tuls
Oklahoma refinery. The 5fnile line would provide safe and reliable transpmfrCushing sourced domestic and Canadian crud® ¢ilFC's 125,000 BPD Tulsa facility. The pipeliweuld allow for a significant portion
crude oil transported to be heavy Canadian and souie oil. Crude oil processed at HFC's Tulsdifgds currently transported on pipelines owned3wynoco Logistics and Magellan Pipeline Companye Jécond propos
pipeline would be a new 10@ile interstate petroleum products pipeline betwinenHFC's Cheyenne, Wyoming refinery and Denvetp@do. The 52,000 BPD refinery, with its abilityprocess up to 35,000 BPD of he
Canadian crude and its close proximity to growingnestic crude production, is a significant supptiepetroleum products to the Denver market. Thageat also will evaluate the construction of a n@stroleum produc
terminal in North Denver or, alternatively, the tiag of the new pipeline to existing thighrty product terminals in the Denver area. Thisastructure addition would ensure safe and refiatinsport of petroleum produ
from HFC's location-advantaged refinery to its &sgmarket. Petroleum products produced at HFCéy€&ine, Wyoming refinery are currently transpotte®enver on the Rocky Mountain Pipelisgiroducts line owned
Plains All-American. We anticipate that we will be in a pasitto decide whether to proceed with these projedise second quarter of 2013 when preliminaryiregring and detailed project cost estimates angpbeted an
if necessary shipper commitments can be secured.

We expect that our currently planned sustainingraathtenance capital expenditures, as well as elpers for acquisitions and capital developmenjguts will be funded with existing cash generdigdperations, the s¢
of additional limited partner common units, theussce of debt securities and advances under o@ $iion senior secured revolving credit faciligxpiring in June 2017 (the “Credit Agreementij,a combination there«
With volatility and uncertainty at times in the ditand equity markets, there may be limits on ahitity to issue new debt or equity financing. Ailaally, due to pricing movements in the debt andity markets, we may r
be able to issue new debt and equity securitias@ptable pricing. Without additional capital beg@mounts available under the Credit Agreementability to obtain funds for some of these capjadjects may be limited.

SAFETY AND MAINTENANCE

We perform preventive and normal maintenance owfatlur pipeline systems and make repairs and cepi@nts when necessary or appropriate. We alsauconoutine and required inspections of our pipsdimnd oth¢
assets as required by code or regulation. We igf@eosion inhibitors into our mainlines to helmtwl internal corrosion. External coatings and iegsed current cathodic protection systems aretogetect against exter
corrosion. We conduct all cathodic protection wisrlaccordance with National Association of CorrosiEngineers standards. We regularly monitor, tedtracord the effectiveness of these corrosiorbitihg systems.

We monitor the structural integrity of selectedrsegts of our pipeline systems through a programeoibdic internal inspections using both “dent pigsd electronic “smart pigs’as well as hydrostatic testing that confa
to federal standards. We follow
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these inspections with a review of the data andnake repairs as necessary to ensure the intedrihe@ipeline. We have initiated a rilased approach to prioritizing the pipeline segmémnt future smart pig runs or otl
approved integrity testing methods. We believe #iproach will ensure that the pipelines that hieegreatest risk potential receive the highesirityi in being scheduled for inspections or presdests for integrity. O!
inspection process complies with all Departmentrainsportation (“DOT”) and Code of Federal Regwolasi (‘CFR”) 49 CFR Part 195 requirements.

Maintenance facilities containing equipment forepippairs, spare parts, and trained response peisare located along the pipelines. Employeesqigate in simulated spill deployment exercisesaaegular basis. Also th
participate in actual spill response boom deployinesercises in planned spill scenarios in accordawith Oil Pollution Act of 1990 requirements. Welibve that all of our pipelines have been consgdi@and are maintain
in all material respects in accordance with appliedederal, state, and local laws; the regulatems standards prescribed by the American Petrolestitute, the DOT; and accepted industry practice

At our terminals, tanks designed for gasoline gferare equipped with internal or external floatingfs that minimize emissions and prevent potegtifdmmable vapor accumulation between fluid levahd the roof of tt
tank. Our terminal facilities have facility resperglans, spill prevention and control plans, arfeoplans and programs to respond to emergencies.

Many of our terminal loading racks are protectethwiater deluge systems activated by either hewtase or an emergency switch. Several of our taatwialso are protected by foam systems that aieated in case of fir
All of our terminals are subject to participationd comprehensive environmental management prograssure compliance with applicable air, solidteagnd wastewater regulations.

COMPETITION

As a result of our physical integration with HBG¥efineries, our contractual relationship with H&@er the Omnibus Agreement and the HFC pipelmesterminals, tankage and throughput agreemesetfehieve that w
will not face significant competition for barrel$ eefined products transported from HFC'’s refinsri@articularly during the terms of our lorgrm transportation agreements with HFC expirin2@19 through 202
Additionally, under our throughput agreement witloexpiring in 2020, we believe that we will nace significant competition for those barrels difved products we transport from Alon’s Big Sprirgfinery.

However, we do face competition from other pipeditieat may be able to supply the end-user marketf=€ or Alon with refined products on a more coripee basis. Additionally, if HFGS wholesale customers redu
their purchases of refined products due to theelmeed availability of cheaper product from otheapdiers or for other reasons, the volumes transgotttirough our pipelines could be reduced, whigbjest to the minimui
revenue commitments, could cause a decrease iracalstevenues generated from our operations.

The petroleum refining business is highly compegitiAmong HFC’s competitors are some of the warldrgest integrated petroleum companies, whicle tlagir own crude oil supplies and distribution amarketing system
HFC competes with independent refiners as well. @atition in particular geographic areas is affeqietharily by the amounts of refined products preelth by refineries located in such areas and byvadability of refinet
products and the cost of transportation to suchsaim refineries located outside those areas.

In addition, we face competition from trucks thatider product in a number of areas we serve. Aiiotheir costs may not be competitive for longauls or large volume shipments, trucks competectiely for incrementz
and marginal volumes in many areas we serve. Taiadility of truck transportation places some ceaitifve constraints on us.

Historically, the significant majority of the thrghput at our terminal facilities has come from HR(@h the exception of thirgharty receipts at the Spokane terminal, Alon volsmeEl Paso, and the Abilene and Wichita |
terminals that serve Alon’s Big Springs refinery.

Our twelve refined product terminals compete witheo independent terminal operators as well agiated oil companies based on terminal locatioiceprersatility and services provided. Our contjeti primarily come
from integrated petroleum companies, refining ardketing companies, independent terminal compamedistribution companies with marketing and ingdirms.

RATE REGULATION

Some of our existing pipelines are subject to ragulation by the FERC under the Interstate Comeért. The Interstate Commerce Act requires thaff teates for oil pipelines, a category that indés crude oil ar
petroleum product pipelines, be just and reasorafdenon-discriminatory. The Interstate Commercep&emits challenges to rates that are alreadylemnd
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in effect by complaint. A successful challenge uraleomplaint may result in the complainant obtagndamages or reparations for up to two years poidne date the complaint was filed. The Inteest@ommerce Act al
permits challenges to a proposed new or changedbsat protest. A successful challenge under @gtohay result in the protestant obtaining refunrdeeparations from the date the proposed new angbd rate becomr
effective. In either challenge process, the thiadtyp must be able to show it has a substantial @@aninterest in those rates to proceed. The FER@@lly has not investigated interstate rategonwn initiative but wil
likely become a party to any proceedings when éltesrreceive either a complaint or a protest. Hewahe FERC is not prohibited from bringing arenstate rate under investigation without a thirdypantervention.

While the FERC regulates the rates for interstatprsents on our refined product pipelines, the Ndexico Public Regulation Commission regulates tates for intrastate shipments in New Mexico, theaBeRailroa
Commission regulates the rates for intrastate séipsnin Texas, the Oklahoma Corporation Commissegulates the rates for intrastate shipments imikha and the Idaho Public Utilities Commissiorutatgs the rates f
intrastate shipments in Idaho. State commissione lg&nerally not been aggressive in regulating comparrier pipelines and generally have not ingeséd the rates or practices of petroleum pipelingbe absence
shipper complaints, and we do not believe the state tariffs now in effect are likely to be chaljed. However, a state regulatory commission cowestigate our rates if such a challenge werel file

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND REMEDIATION

Our operation of pipelines, terminals, and assedidcilities in connection with the storage arahsiportation of refined products is subject tmgent and complex federal, state, and local lavésragulations governing t
discharge of materials into the environment, oeotlise relating to the protection of the environméys with the industry generally, compliance wétkisting and anticipated laws and regulations iases our overall cost
business, including our capital costs to constmntintain, and upgrade equipment and facilitiesh@ugh these laws and regulations affect our maantee capital expenditures and net income, we\eetigat they do n
affect our competitive position in that the opevas of our competitors are similarly affected. Wdidwe that our operations are in substantial caanpe with applicable environmental laws and regjois. However, the:
laws and regulations, and the interpretation ooe@ment thereof, are subject to frequent changedpylatory authorities, and we are unable to jotetie ongoing cost to us of complying with thesed and regulations or 1
future impact of these laws and regulations onaperations. Violation of environmental laws, regiaias, and permits can result in the impositiorsigiificant administrative, civil and criminal péties, injunctions, ar
construction bans or delays. A discharge of hydimmas or hazardous substances into the environowerd, to the extent the event is not insured, estthjis to substantial expense, including both te © comply wit
applicable laws and regulations and claims madenbgloyees, neighboring landowners and other thartigs for personal injury and property damage.

Under the Omnibus Agreement and certain transpontaigreements and purchase agreements with HFC,HdE agreed to indemnify us, subject to certainetary and time limitations, for environmental nompliance an
remediation liabilities associated with certaineasdransferred to us from HFC and occurring osténg prior to the date of such transfers.

We have an environmental agreement with Alon wétspect to prelosing environmental costs and liabilities relgtio the pipelines and terminals acquired from Alo2005, under which Alon will indemnify us subjgo
certain monetary and time limitations.

Contamination resulting from spills of refined puots and crude oil is not unusual within the pemah pipeline industry. Historic spills along ouiigtig pipelines and terminals as a result of pastrations have resultec
contamination of the environment, including soitsl@roundwater. Site conditions, including soilsl @moundwater, are being evaluated at a few ofooperties where operations may have resultedéases of hydrocarbo
and other wastes, none of which we believe willehasignificant effect on our operations sincerémediation of such releases would be covered usmléronmental indemnification agreements.

There are environmental remediation projects ctiyrén progress that relate to certain assets aeduirom HFC. Certain of these projects were undgrprior to our purchase and represent liabilioé$1FC for future
remediation activities retained by HFC. Additiopaths of December 31, 2012 , we have an accrudBaf million that relates to environmental clagnprojects for which we have assumed liabilityfarwhich the indemnit
provided for by HFC has expired or will expire. Tremaining projects, including assessment and rong activities, are covered under the HFC envitental indemnification discussed above and reptdibilities of
HFC.

We may experience future releases into the enviemirfrom our pipelines and terminals or discovatdrical releases that were previously unidentifiediot assessed. Although we maintain an exterissgection and auc
program designed, as applicable, to prevent, defettaddress these releases promptly, damageshiliti¢s incurred due to any future environmerleases from our assets, nevertheless, haveothatial to substantial
affect our business.
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EMPLOYEES

Neither we nor our general partner has employegscDsupport for our operations is provided by KHufich employs 232 people. We reimburse HFC foealiexpenses that HFC or its affiliates incursoanbehalf for th
employees of HLS. HLS considers its employee mfatito be good.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

Investing in us involves a degree of risk, inclglthe risks described below. You should considerftilowing risk factors carefully together withl af the other information included in this AnnuRéport on Form 16,
including the financial statements and related siothen deciding to invest in us. Additional rigkel uncertainties not currently known to us or thatcurrently deem to be immaterial may also maligrand adversely affe
our business operations. If any of the followingks were to actually occur, our business, finareoaldition, results of operations or treatmentmitholders could be materially and adversely a#fdct

The headings provided in this Item 1A. are for eamience and reference purposes only and shalfffect @r limit the extent or interpretation of thek factors.
RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow, our abilit to pay quarterly distributions to our common unitholders at current levels or to increase our quartdy distributions in the future could be impaired
materially.

Our ability to pay quarterly distributions deperpigmarily on cash flow, including cash flow from enations, financial reserves and credit facilitisd not solely on profitability, which is affectég noneash items. As
result, we may pay cash distributions during pesiotilosses and may be unable to pay cash disbitsutluring periods of income. Our ability to geatersufficient cash from operations is largely defeat on our ability 1
manage our business successfully which may betetfediso by economic, financial, competitive, aegulatory factors that are beyond our control. Beeahe cash we generate from operations will dltet from quarter
quarter, we may not be able to pay quarterly distions at the current level for each quarter antoease our quarterly distributions in the future

We depend on HFC and particularly its Navajo refiney for a majority of our revenues; if those revenus were significantly reduced or if HFC's financialcondition materially deteriorated, there would be amaterial
adverse effect on our results of operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, HFC accotfioté®% of the revenues of our petroleum product erude pipelines and 9266 the revenues of our terminals, tankage, andctioeding racks. We expect to continu
derive a majority of our revenues from HFC for foeeseeable future. If HFC satisfies only its minimobligations under the lortgrm pipeline and terminal, tankage and througlagméements that it has with us or is un
to meet its minimum annual payment commitment for @ason, including due to prolonged downtime shatdown at HFC's refineries, our revenues and ftas would decline.

Any significant curtailing of production at the Nge refinery could, by reducing throughput in oupglines and terminals, result in our realizing enelly lower levels of revenues and cash flow tiee duration of th
shutdown. For the year ended December 31, 2018uption from the Navajo refinery accounted for 88%4he throughput volumes transported by our refipeoduct and crude pipelines. The Navajo refirsp receive
100% of the petroleum products shipped on our Neaxiltb intermediate pipelines. Operations at aniie€'s refineries could be partially or completeiyisdown, temporarily or permanently, as the resfilt

« competition from other refineries and pipelitieat may be able to supply the refinery's end-ussikets on a more cosffective basit

« operational problems such as catastrophic eventeaefinery, labor difficulties or environmengbceedings or other litigation that compel theseéisn of all or a portion of the operations atténery

+ planned maintenance or capital proje

« increasingly stringent environmental laws and ratiahs, such as the U.S. Environmental Protectiganty's gasoline and diesel sulfur control requénets that limit the concentration of sulfur in mogasoline an
diesel fuel for both on-road and non-road usageedisas various state and federal emission requergmthat may affect the refinery itself and pagrititure climate change regulations;

+ an inability to obtain crude oil for the refinery@mpetitive prices; «

+ ageneral reduction in demand for refined prodircthe area due t
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> alocal or national recession or other adverse @oémcondition that results in lower spending bgibesses and consumers on gasoline and diest

> higher gasoline prices due to higher crude oils;dsgher taxes or stricter environmental lawsegutations; ¢

> a shift by consumers to more fiedficient or alternative fuel vehicles or an inssean fuel economy, whether as a result of techyicdd advances by manufacturers, legislation eithandating ¢
encouraging higher fuel economy or the use of rétive fuel or otherwise.

The magnitude of the effect on us of any shutdownld/depend on the length of the shutdown and xteneof the refinery operations affected by thetdbwn. We have no control over the factors thay fead to a shutdov
or the measures HFC may take in response to ashntdHFC makes all decisions at each of its ref@seconcerning levels of production, regulatory ptiance, refinery turnarounds (planned shutdownisdifzidual proces
units within the refinery to perform major mainteca activities), labor relations, environmental eeliation, emission control and capital expendituiesesponsible for all related costs; and is umaecontractual obligatic
to us to maintain operations at its refineries.

Furthermore, HFC's obligations under the I¢agn pipeline and terminal, tankage and througloueements with us would be temporarily suspendeitigl the occurrence of a force majeure eventriwaders performan
impossible with respect to an asset for at leaste86. If such an event were to continue for a,y@aror HFC could terminate the agreements. Tharoeoce of any of these events could reduce ownges and cash flows.

We depend on Alon and particularly its Big Spring efinery for a substantial portion of our revenues;if those revenues were significantly reduced, thereould be a material adverse effect on our resultef
operations.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, Alon accduntel1%of the combined revenues of our petroleum prododt@ude pipelines and of our terminals and treelding racks, including revenues we received frdon
under a capacity lease agreement.

A decline in production at Alon's Big Spring refigevould reduce materially the volume of refinedgucts we transport and terminal for Alon and, assailt, our revenues would be materially adverségcted. The Bi
Spring refinery could partially or completely stidawn its operations, temporarily or permanentlye thufactors affecting its ability to produce refthproducts or for planned maintenance or capitgépts. Such factors wot
include the factors discussed above under the sksmu of risk factors for the Navajo refinery.

The magnitude of the effect on us of any shutdoepetids on the length of the shutdown and the egfehe refinery operations affected. We have nutrad over the factors that may lead to a shutdowthe measures Al
may take in response to a shutdown. Alon makedeglisions and is responsible for all costs at ttgeSpring refinery concerning levels of productioegulatory compliance, refinery turnarounds, latedations, environment
remediation, emission control and capital expemegu

In addition, under our throughput agreement withrAlif we are unable to transport or terminal refirproducts that Alon is prepared to ship, themAias the right to reduce its minimum volume commeitt to us during tt
period of interruption. If a force majeure eventwars, we or Alon could terminate the Alon pipelirresl terminals agreement after the expiration daaetime periods. The occurrence of any of thesents could reduce ¢
revenues and cash flows.

Due to our lack of asset diversification, adverseavelopments in our businesses could materially arativersely affect our financial condition, results boperations, or cash flows.

We rely exclusively on the revenues generated foombusiness. Due to our lack of asset diversificatespecially a large concentration of pipelissets serving the Navajo refinery, an adverse dpwent in our busine
could have a significantly greater impact on onaficial condition and results of operations thameéfmaintained more diverse assets.

Our leverage may limit our ability to borrow additi onal funds, comply with the terms of our indebtednss or capitalize on business opportunities.
As of December 31, 2012, the principal amount af total outstanding debt was $871 million. Our t&sof operations, cash flows and financial positamuld be adversely affected by significant inse=ain interest rat

above current levels. Various limitations in oue@it Agreement and the indentures for our 8.25%oseTotes due 2018 and our 6.50% senior notes 6@8 geollectively, the “Senior Notesihay reduce our ability to inc
additional debt, to engage in some transactiong@népitalize on business opportunities. Any sghsat refinancing of our current indebtedness grreaw indebtedness could have similar or greasgrictions.
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Our leverage could have important consequencestédygre substantial cash flow to meet our paymétigations with respect to our indebtedness. Oiiitatto make scheduled payments, to refinance ahligations witt
respect to our indebtedness or our ability to ebgéaiditional financing in the future will depend our financial and operating performance, whichtuim, is subject to prevailing economic conditiamsl to financial, busine
and other factors. We believe that we will havdisigit cash flow from operations and availablerbaings under our Credit Agreement to service adebtedness. However, a significant downturn inlusiness or oth
development adversely affecting our cash flow canmigair materially our ability to service our indetiness. If our cash flow and capital resourcesremefficient to fund our debt service obligationge may be forced
refinance all or a portion of our debt or sell ass@/e cannot assure you that we would be ablefioamce our existing indebtedness at maturitytbemvise or sell assets on terms that are comnilgrog@sonable.

The instruments governing our debt contain resteéctovenants that may prevent us from engagirgeitain beneficial transactions. The agreementemvg our debt generally require us to comply wigiious affirmativ
and negative covenants including the maintenanceedfin financial ratios and restrictions on iming additional debt, entering into mergers, coiustlons and sales of assets, making investmentsgaanting liens
Additionally, our purchase and contribution agreateevith HFC with respect to the intermediate gipesd acquired in 2005 and the crude pipelines anklaige assets acquired in 2008, restrict us frdimgéehese pipeline
and terminals acquired from HFC. Under these ageesnwe are restricted from prepaying borrowings langterm debt to outstanding balances below $206 milfidor to 2015 and $171 million prior to 2018, jdb tc
certain limited exceptions. Our leverage may aféebtersely our ability to fund future working cagbitcapital expenditures and other general pariigrequirements, future acquisitions, constructiolevelopment activitie
or to otherwise realize fully the value of our assend opportunities because of the need to dedécatibstantial portion of our cash flow from ofieres to payments on our indebtedness or to comviity any restrictive tern
of our indebtedness. Our leverage also may makeesults of operations more susceptible to advecsaomic and industry conditions by limiting owxibility in planning for, or reacting to, changesour business and t
industry in which we operate and may place usctrapetitive disadvantage as compared to our cotopgthat have less debt.

We may not be able to obtain funding on acceptablerms or at all because of volatility and uncertaity in the credit and capital markets. This may hincer or prevent us from meeting our future capital neds.

The domestic and global financial markets and esoaconditions are disrupted and volatile from titodime due to a variety of factors, including leansumer confidence, high unemployment, geoeconamd geopolitic:
issues, weak economic conditions and uncertaintigérfinancial services sector. In addition, thefilincome markets have experienced periods of extreiaility, which negatively impacted market liqitiglconditions. As
result, the cost of raising money in the debt auity capital markets has increased substantiafimees while the availability of funds from theserkets diminished significantly. In particular,asesult of concerns about
stability of financial markets generally and théveacy of lending counterparties specifically, ttest of obtaining money from the credit markets rimeyease as many lenders and institutional investzrease interest rat
enact tighter lending standards, refuse to refieandsting debt on similar terms or at all and BEgwr in some cases cease, to provide fundingraWwers. In addition, lending counterparties unebasting revolving crec
facilities and other debt instruments may be urnmglior unable to meet their funding obligations.

Due to these factors, we cannot be certain thatdew or equity financing will be available on agble terms. If funding is not available when rescbr is available only on unfavorable terms, way e unable to meet ¢
obligations as they come due. Moreover, withoutqadte funding, we may be unable to execute our tretrategy, complete future acquisitions or cargion projects, take advantage of other businggmmunities ¢
respond to competitive pressures, any of whichc¢balve a material adverse effect on our revenuésesults of operations.

We may not be able to fully execute our growth striegy if we encounter illiquid capital markets or ircreased competition for investment opportunities.

Our strategy contemplates growth through the dgreént and acquisition of crude, intermediate arfthed products transportation and storage assetke winaintaining a strong balance sheet. This gisaieclude:
constructing and acquiring additional assets arginesses to enhance our ability to compete effelgtimnd diversifying our asset portfolio, therebyyding more stable cash flow. We regularly coesidnd enter in
discussions regarding, and are currently conterimgiatnd/or pursuing, potential joint ventures, stafone projects or other transactions that weebelwill present opportunities to realize synergegand our role in o
chosen businesses and increase our market position.

We will require substantial new capital to finarthe future development and acquisition of assetdisbarsinesses. Any limitations on our access totakill impair our ability to execute this stratedf the cost of such capi
becomes too expensive, our ability to develop guae accretive assets will be limited. We may betable to raise the necessary funds on satisfat#ams, if at all. The primary factors that infiwe our cost of equi
include market conditions, fees we pay to undeessiind other offering
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costs, which include amounts we pay for legal armbanting services. The primary factors influencing cost of borrowing include interest rates, érsdreads, covenants, underwriting or loan origgmafees and simili
charges we pay to lenders.

In addition, we experience competition for the typé assets and businesses we have historicalthpsed or acquired. High competition, particuléolya limited pool of assets, may result in highess attractive asset pric
and therefore, we may lose to more competitive drisldSuch occurrences limit our ability to exeaute growth strategy. Our inability to execute ownwth strategy may materially, adversely affect ability to maintain c
pay higher distributions in the future.

We are exposed to the credit risks, and certain o#r risks, of our key customers, vendors, and othesounterparties.

We are subject to risks of loss resulting from reynpent or nonperformance by our customers, vermloogher counterparties. We derive a significartipo of our revenues from contracts with key costos, including HF!
and Alon under their respective pipelines and teaisi tankage and throughput agreements. To tlenetttat these and other customers may be unalfeéd the specifications of their customers, we ld/dne adverse
affected unless we were able to make comparablijtaite arrangements with other customers.

Mergers among our existing customers could prosideng economic incentives for the combined emstiteeutilize systems other than ours, and we cexfrerience difficulty in replacing lost volumes aedenues. Becaus
significant portion of our operating costs are fixa reduction in volumes would result not onlyaireduction of revenues, but also a decline inmeme and cash flow of a similar magnitude, whiguld reduce our ability
meet our financial obligations and make distribngido unitholders.

If any of our key customers default on their obfigas to us, our financial results could be advgraéfected. Furthermore, some of our customers heftighly leveraged and subject to their own ojiegeand regulatory risk
In addition, nonperformance by vendors who haverodted to provide us with products or services daesult in higher costs or interfere with our @pito successfully conduct our business.

Any substantial increase in the nonpayment anddaparformance by our customers or vendors coule aawaterial adverse effect on our results of djggrand cash flows.

In addition, in connection with the acquisitiona#rtain of our assets, we have entered into agnesnpeirsuant to which various counterparties hayee to indemnify us, subject to certain limitagpfor (1) certain pre-
closing environmental liabilities discovered withsipecified time periods after the date of the ajblie acquisition, (2) certain matters arising frii® preelosing ownership and operation of assets, andr{ping remediatic
related to the assets. Our results of operaticsh aws and our ability to make cash distributibmsur unitholders could be adversely affectethanfuture if third parties fail to satisfy an imdgification obligation owed to u

Competition from other pipelines that may be able® supply our shippers' customers with refined prodets at a lower price could cause us to reduce ouates or could reduce our revenues.

We and our shippers could face increased compeititiother pipelines are able to supply our shigpenduser markets competitively with refined producter Example, increased supplies of refined prodetivered b
Kinder Morgan's El Paso to Phoenix pipeline cowsluit in additional downward pressure on wholesefied product prices and refined product margngl Paso and related markets. Additionally, fertincreases
products from Gulf Coast refiners entering the Bs®and Arizona markets on this pipeline and altirglincrease in the demand for shipping producttee interconnecting common carrier pipelines damause a decline
the demand for refined product from HFC and/or ABhis could reduce our opportunity to earn reverfoem HFC and Alon in excess of their minimum vokicommitment obligations.

An additional factor that could affect some of H&@hd Alon's markets is excess pipeline capadaity fthe West Coast into our shippers' Arizona marketthe pipeline from the West Coast to Phoenddi#tonal increases
shipments of refined products from the West Coagt bur shippers' Arizona markets could result didigional downward pressure on refined productgwithat, if sustained over the long term, coulduarice produ
shipments by HFC and Alon to these markets.

A material decrease in the supply, or a material iorease in the price, of crude oil available to HFG and Alon's refineries and a corresponding decreasn demand for refined products in the markets sered by our
pipelines and terminals, could reduce our revenuematerially.

The volume of refined products we transport in mfined product pipelines depends on the levelrofipction of refined products from HFC's and Alor@fineries, which, in turn, depends on the avdlitstof attractively-
priced crude oil produced in the areas accessibledse refineries. In order to maintain or inceepsoduction levels at their refineries, our shigpmust continually contract for new crude oil sigg A material decrease
crude oil production from the fields that supplgittrefineries, as a
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result of depressed commodity prices, decreaseduténiack of drilling activity, natural productiateclines or otherwise, could result in a declinghie volume of crude oil our shippers refine, absha availability o
transported crude oil to offset such declines. Sarclevent would result in an overall decline inwoes of refined products transported through opelpies and therefore a corresponding reducti@uircash flow. In additio
the future growth of our shippers' operations @épend in part upon whether our shippers can attrfsaadditional supplies of crude oil at a greatge than the rate of natural decline in theirently connected supplies.

Fluctuations in crude oil prices can greatly affeiduction rates and investments by third paitiethe development of new oil reserves. Drillingivity generally decreases as crude oil prices efese. We and our shipp
have no control over the level of drilling activity the areas of operations, the amount of resamdsrlying the wells and the rate at which proitucfrom a well will decline, or producers or theiduction decisions, whi
are affected by, among other things, prevailing prajected energy prices, demand for hydrocarbgeslogical considerations, governmental regulatind the availability and cost of capital. Similadymaterial increase
the price of crude oil supplied to our shipperfhezies without an increase in the market valu¢hef products produced by the refineries, eithemparary or permanent, which causes a reductiohemptoduction of refine
products at the refineries, would cause a redudtidghe volumes of refined products we transpart| aur cash flow could be adversely affected.

Finally, our business depends in large part ordémeand for the various petroleum products we gathersport and store in the markets we serve. ®hs in that demand adversely affect our busindssket demand vari
based upon the different end uses of the petroletatucts we gather, transport and store. We cameatict the impact of future fuel conservation meas, alternate fuel requirements, government egigu, technologici
advances in fuel economy and energy-generatiorcesyexploration and production activities, andoastby foreign nations, any of which could redtioe demand for the petroleum products in the aneaserve.

We may not be able to retain existing customers @cquire new customers.

The renewal or replacement of existing contracth wur customers at rates sufficient to maintairment revenues and cash flows depends on a numifectors outside our control, including competitifiom other pipeline
and the demand for refined products in the martketswe serve. Our long-term pipeline and termitaikage and throughput agreements with HFC and &kpire beginning in 2019 through 2026.

Meeting the requirements of evolving environmentalhealth and safety laws and regulations, includinghose related to climate change, could adverselyfatt our performance.

Environmental laws and regulations have raised aijygy costs for the oil and refined products indusind compliance with such laws and regulationy mweuse us, HFC and Alon to incur potentially matecapita
expenditures associated with the construction, teaance, and upgrading of equipment and facilitiée. may also be required to address conditionsodesed in the future that require environmentapoese actions
remediation. Future environmental, health and gafequirements or changed interpretations of exgstequirements, may impose more stringent requangsnon our assets and operations and require insup potentiall’
material expenditures to ensure our continued ciampé. Future developments in federal laws andlatigns governing environmental, health and saéety energy matters are especially difficult to pred

Currently, various legislative and regulatory measuo address greenhouse gas emissions (incladibgn dioxide, methane and other gases) are inusaphases of discussion or implementation. Thedade requiremen
that require HFC's and Alon's refineries to repartissions of greenhouse gases to the EPA, and ggdpederal, state, and regional initiatives tlegfuire, or could require, us, HFC and Alon to redgeeenhouse g
emissions from our facilities. Requiring reductiansgreenhouse gas emissions could cause us to suhstantial costs to (i) operate and maintain fawilities, (ii) install new emission controls atr facilities an
(iii) administer and manage any greenhouse gass@nis programs, including the acquisition or maiatece of emission credits or allowances. Theseirmgents may affect HFC's and Alon's refinery opens and have ¢
indirect adverse effect on our business, finarmaldition and results of our operations.

Requiring a reduction in greenhouse gas emissinddtge increased use of renewable fuels couldddscease demand for refined products, which coale fan indirect, but material, adverse effect onbausiness, financi
condition and results of operations. For exampi€d10, the EPA promulgated a rule establishingmieuse gas emission standards for new-model ppesears, light-duty trucks, and mediututy passenger vehicles. A
in 2010, the EPA promulgated a rule establishirgeghouse gas emission thresholds for the permittirgertain stationary sources, which could reqgireenhouse emission controls for those sourcesselhequiremer
could have an indirect adverse effect on our bissimiele to reduced demand for crude oil and refimeducts, and a direct adverse effect on our basifrem increased regulation of our facilities.
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The Pipeline Safety, Regulatory Certainty, and Gobation Act of 2011 increases penalties for safediations, establishes additional safety requiata for newly constructed pipelines, and requsteslies of certain safe
issues and potentially the adoption of new regwatequirements for existing pipelines. In additidhe Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Adstration of the U.S. Department of Transportati@s published ¢
advanced notice of proposed rulemaking to solimihments on the need for changes to its safety aégnk, including whether to revise the integritgmagement requirements and add new regulationsmjogethe safety «
gathering lines. Such legislative and regulatorgngfes could have a material effect on our operatiorough more stringent and comprehensive saégfylations and higher penalties for the violatibthose regulations.

Increases in interest rates could adversely affecur business.

We use both fixed and variable rate debt, and weeaposed to market risk due to the floating irserates on our credit facility. From time to tinve use interest rate derivatives to hedge inteigiggations on specific del
In addition, interest rates on future debt offesimgpuld be higher, causing our financing coststwease accordingly. Our results of operationsh dlmsvs and financial position could be adverseffeeted by significar
increases in interest rates above current levels.

We may be subject to information technology systerfailures, network disruptions and breaches in datasecurity.

Information technology system failures, networkrdggions (whether intentional by a third party aedo natural disaster), breaches of network a glaturity, or disruption or failure of the netwsgistem used to monitor &
control pipeline operations could disrupt our ofierss by impeding our processing of transactions,ability to protect customer or company informatand our financial reporting. Our computer systeimcluding our back-
up systems, could be damaged or interrupted by powtages, computer and telecommunications faiJuresiputer viruses, internal or external securityabhes, events such as fires, earthquakes, fléma®does ar
hurricanes, and/or errors by our employees. Altihowg have taken steps to address these conceinpmenting sophisticated network security andrimal control measures, there can be no assuraata system failu
or data security breach will not have a materiaeaske effect on our financial condition and resafteperations.

Our operations are subject to federal, state, andotal laws and regulations relating to product quatly specifications, environmental protection and opetional safety that could require us to make subsntial
expenditures.

Our pipelines and terminals, tankage and loadilf mperations are subject to increasingly strictirmmmental and safety laws and regulations. Atke, transportation and storage of refined prodpotsluces a risk th
refined products and other hydrocarbons may beesgar gradually rel d into the environmenteptially causing substantial expenditures forspomse action, significant government penaltiedility to governmer
agencies for natural resources damages, persgoa} ior property damages to private parties andifigant business interruption. We own or leaseumber of properties that have been used to stodistibute refine
products for many years. Many of these propertiss have been operated by third parties whose mandlisposal, or release of hydrocarbons and otfzestes were not under our control. If we werentui a significar
liability pursuant to environmental laws or regidas, it could have a material adverse effect onAlso we are subject to the requirements of thdeFal Occupational Safety and Health Administrafft@SHA"), anc
comparable state statutes. Any violation of OSHAlIdempose substantial costs on us.

Petroleum products that we store and transporsalceby our customers for consumption into the joutnlarket. Various federal, state and local agenhive the authority to prescribe specific produelity specifications «
refined products. Changes in product quality speatibns or blending requirements could reducetbtwughput volume, require us to incur additionahdiling costs or require capital expenditures. &ample, differer
product specifications for different markets impén fungibility of the products in our system armlild require the construction of additional steral§we are unable to recover these costs thrangyeased revenues, our ¢
flows and ability to pay cash distributions coulel &dversely affected. In addition, changes in tteelyct quality of the products we receive on ourgleum products pipeline system could reduce ionigate our ability t
blend products.

Our operations are subject to operational hazards iad unforeseen interruptions for which we may not beadequately insured.
Our operations are subject to operational hazardsiaforeseen interruptions such as natural disasidverse weather, accidents, fires, explosimm=ardous materials releases, mechanical failumeé®ther events beyond

control. These events might result in a loss ofiggent or life or destruction of property, injurgr extensive property damage, as well as a curgaitnor interruption in our operations. In additidghird-party damag
mechanical malfunctions, undetected leaks in pislj faulty measurement or other errors may r@ssignificant costs or lost revenues.
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We may not be able to maintain or obtain insurasfcthe type and amount we desire at reasonable aaté exclusions from coverage may limit our apbiiit recover the amount of the full loss in alusitions. As a result
market conditions, premiums and deductibles fotaderof our insurance policies could increase.dms instances, certain insurance could become ilableaor available only for reduced amounts of@age. If we were
incur a significant liability for which we were ndully insured, it could have a material adverste&fon our financial position. With our distribomi policy, we do not have the same flexibility abev legal entities -
accumulate cash to protect against underinsurediosured losses.

There can be no assurance that insurance will cai’elamages and losses resulting from these typbazards. We are not fully insured against aksiincident to our business. We are not insuredhagall environment
accidents that might occur, other than those censiito be sudden and accidental. Our businesstipt®n insurance covers only certain lost revanagsing from physical damage to our facilitiesl afFC and Alo
facilities. If a significant accident or event ocsthat is not fully insured, our operations cobédtemporarily or permanently impaired, and ousiliies and expenses could be significant.

Any reduction in the capacity of, or the allocatiors to, our shippers on interconnecting, third-partypipelines could cause a reduction of volumes transpted in our pipelines and through our terminals.

HFC, Alon and the other users of our pipelines tmthinals are dependent upon connections to {artly pipelines to receive and deliver crude oil aefined products. Any reduction of capacitiedtafse interconnectil
pipelines due to testing, line repair, reduced afieg pressures, or other causes could resultdince volumes transported in our pipelines or thhoaur terminals. Similarly, if additional shippdsegin transporting volum
of refined products over interconnecting pipelirtes, allocations to existing shippers in these Ipips would be reduced, which could also reducemels transported in our pipelines or through ouniteals.

We could be subject to damages based on claims bgit against us by our customers or lose customers a result of the failure of products we distributeto meet certain quality specifications.

A significant portion of our operating responsityilon refined product pipelines is to insure thaligy and purity of the products loaded at our logdracks. If our quality control measures werdsati off specification produt
could be sent out to public gasoline stations. Ty of incident could result in liability claimegarding damages caused by the off specificatiehdr could impact our ability to retain existingstomers or to acquire n
customers, any of which could have a material ab/enpact on our results of operations and castsflo

If our assumptions concerning population growth areinaccurate or if HFC's growth strategy is not sucessful, our ability to grow may be adversely affeed.

Our growth strategy is dependent upon:

+ the accuracy of our assumption that many ofntlagkets that we currently serve or have plans tees the Southwestern, Rocky Mountain and Midrtinent regions of the United States will expecie populatio
growth that is higher than the national average; an

« the willingness and ability of HFC to captursheare of this additional demand in its existing ket and to identify and penetrate new marketsénSouthwestern, Rocky Mountain and Midntinent regions of tt
United States.

If our assumptions about growth in market demamd@incorrect, HFC may not have any incentive toéase refinery capacity and production or shititamhal throughput to our pipelines, which wouldvarsely affect ot
growth strategy. Furthermore, HFC is under no @ian to pursue a growth strategy. If HFC choosastm gain, or is unable to gain additional custesria new or existing markets, our growth strategyuld be adverse
affected. Moreover, HFC may not make acquisitidrat tvould provide acquisition opportunities to as; if those opportunities arise, they may not beterms attractive to us or on terms that allowausbtain appropria
financing.

Growing our business by constructing new pipelineand terminals, or expanding existing ones, subjectss to construction risks.
One of the ways we may grow our business is thrahghconstruction of new pipelines and terminalsher expansion of existing ones. The constructioa new pipeline or the expansion of an existingepine, by addin
horsepower or pump stations or by adding a secgraipe along an existing pipeline, involves numereegulatory, environmental, political, and legatertainties, most of which are beyond our conffakse projects m

not be completed on schedule or at all or at thigbted cost. In addition, our revenues may noe@se immediately upon the expenditure of funds paréicular project. For instance, if we
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build a new pipeline, the construction will occweo an extended period of time and we will not ree@ny material increases in revenues until aftenpletion of the project. Moreover, we may constffacilities to captur
anticipated future growth in demand for refineddurets in a region in which such growth does notemalize. As a result, new facilities may not béeaio attract enough throughput to achieve our etqueinvestment retur
which could adversely affect our results of operadiand financial condition.

Rate regulation, changes to rate-making rules, or auccessful challenge to the rates we charge maytee our revenues and the amount of cash we genegat

The FERC regulates the tariff rates for interstatvements and state regulatory authorities regtt@t¢ariff rates for intrastate movements on dpefine systems. The regulatory agencies that eeguur systems periodice
implement new rules, regulations and terms anditiond of services subject to their jurisdictioreW initiatives or orders may adversely affect thies charged for our services.

The primary rate-making methodology of the FER@rise indexing. We use this methodology in all of interstate markets. If the FERC's petroleum Ipiperatemaking methodology changes, the new methodologid
result in tariffs that generate lower revenues eah flow. The indexing method allows a pipelinénrease its rates based on a percentage charlge producer price index for finished goods. ¥ thdex falls, we will b
required to reduce our rates that are based oREIRC's price indexing methodology if they exceesltlew maximum allowable rate. In addition, charigese index might not be large enough to fulljieef actual increas
in our costs. The FERC's rateaking methodologies may limit our ability to sates based on our true costs or may delay thefusges that reflect increased costs. Any of thedoing would adversely affect our rever
and cash flow.

If a party with an economic interest were to filther a protest of our proposal for increased rates complaint against our existing tariff ratesthe FERC were to initiate an investigation of existing rates, then our ra
could be subject to detailed review. If our progbsate increases were found to be in excess ofslgustified by our cost of service, the FERC coatder us to reduce our rates, and to refund theuatmby which the ra
increases were determined to be excessive, plesestt If our existing rates were found to be iness of our cost of services, we could be ordevedfuind the excess we collected for as far badkvasyears prior to the d¢
of the filing of the complaint challenging the rsit@nd we could be ordered to reduce our ratepectisely. In addition, a state commission alsol¢dmvestigate our intrastate rates or our ternts@nditions of service on
own initiative or at the urging of a shipper or ethnterested party. If a state commission fourad thur rates exceeded levels justified by our cbservice, the state commission could order ugtluce our rates. Any st
reductions may result in lower revenues and cashsflif additional volumes and / or capacity arevailable to offset such rate reductions.

HFC and Alon have agreed not to challenge, or tse@thers to challenge or assist others in ctgifignour tariff rates in effect during the ternfdlweir respective pipelines and terminals agreéméfhese agreements do
prevent other current or future shippers from @raing our tariff rates.

Terrorist attacks, and the threat of terrorist attacks or domestic vandalism, have resulted in increas costs to our business. Continued global hostiks or other sustained military campaigns may advesely impac
our results of operations.

The longterm impact of terrorist attacks, such as the kstdleat occurred on September 11, 2001, and tleattlof future terrorist attacks, on the energydpamtation industry in general, and on us in pafég is not known i
this time. Increased security measures taken bgsus precaution against possible terrorist attacksindalism have resulted in increased costs tdasiness. Uncertainty surrounding continued dldlostilities or othe
sustained military campaigns may affect our openstin unpredictable ways, including disruptiongrfde oil supplies and markets for refined prosluahd the possibility that infrastructure faaéigticould be direct targets
or indirect casualties of, an act of terror.

Changes in the insurance markets attributablertortst attacks could make certain types of insaeamore difficult for us to obtain. Moreover, tmsirance that may be available to us may be stgmifiy more expensive th
our existing insurance coverage. Instability in financial markets as a result of terrorism or wanld also affect our ability to raise capital inding our ability to repay or refinance debt.

Adverse changes in our credit ratings and risk prdfe, and that of our general partner, may negativel affect us.
Our ability to access capital markets is importanbur ability to operate our business. Regional aational economic conditions, increased scrutihthe energy industry and regulatory changes, elsag changes in o
economic performance, could result in credit agesiceexamining our credit rating. While creditmgs reflect the opinions of the credit agenciesifgs such ratings and may not necessarily refletizd performance,

downgrade in our credit rating could restrict asatintinue our ability to

-18 -




access capital markets at attractive rates, anid cesult in an increase in our borrowing costeduced level of capital expenditures and an impaduture earnings and cash flows.

We are in compliance with all covenants or otheunreements set forth in our Credit Agreement. Femttwe do not have any rating downgrade triggeas Would automatically accelerate the maturity sateany deb
However, a downgrade in our credit rating couleetffadversely our ability to borrow on, renew erigt or obtain access to new financing arrangememiisivould increase the cost of such financingngeeents.

The credit and business risk profiles of our gelngaetner, and of HFC as the indirect owner of general partner, may be factors in credit evaluatiof us as a master limited partnership due tsith@ficant influence of ot
general partner and its indirect owner over oulinmss activities, including our cash distributiargaisition strategy and business risk profile. Amotfactor that may be considered is the finanmialdition of our gener
partner and its owners, including the degree df fireancial leverage and their dependence on 8ashfrom the partnership to service their indelrtess.

We may be unsuccessful in integrating the operatianof the assets we have acquired or of any futurecquisitions with our operations, and in realizing d or any part of the anticipated benefits of any sch
acquisitions.

From time to time, we evaluate and acquire assedsbasinesses that we believe complement our egistssets and businesses. For example, in 2012mpleted the UNEV pipeline asset acquisition. Asijigns ma:
require substantial capital or the incurrence dissantial indebtedness. Our capitalization andltef operations may change significantly as ailtesf the acquisitions we recently completed oraasesult of futur
acquisitions. Acquisitions and business expansiowslve numerous risks, including difficulties ihet assimilation of the assets and operations oatuiired businesses, inefficiencies and diffiesltthat arise because
unfamiliarity with new assets and the businessesdated with them and new geographic areas anditleesion of management's attention from otheiinmss concerns. Further, unexpected costs ancenigat may arit
whenever businesses with different operations aragament are combined, and we may experience oigatéd delays in realizing the benefits of an &itian, including the assets we acquired in 204Rp, following ar
acquisition, we may discover previously unknowiliies associated with the acquired businesssee®s for which we have no recourse under appéaablemnification provisions.

If we are unable to complete capital projects at thir expected costs or in a timely manner, or if thenarket conditions assumed in our project economicdeteriorate, our financial condition, results of perations, or
cash flows could be affected materially and adverge

Delays or cost increases related to capital spgnpingrams involving construction of new facilitie® improvements and repairs to our existing faedl) could affect adversely our ability to acteeforecasted operati
results. Although we evaluate and monitor eachtabkgpending project and try to anticipate diffies that may arise, such delays or cost increasgsarise as a result of numerous factors, such as:

« denial or delay in issuing requisite regulatory mppls and/or permit

+ unplanned increases in the cost of constructiorerzs or labol

« disruptions in transportation of modular componemid/or construction materie

« severe adverse weather conditions, natural disasteother events (such as equipment malfunceapsions, fires or spills) affecting our fac#isi, or those of vendors and suppli
« shortages of sufficiently skilled labor, or labasagreements resulting in unplanned work stopp

+ marketrelated increases in a project's debt or equigrfiing costs; and/

+ nonperformance by, or disputes with, vendorppiars, contractors, or sutsntractors involved with a proje

If we are unable to complete capital projects airtxpected costs or in a timely manner our fimgrmndition, results of operations, or cash flaesild be materially and adversely affected.

We do not own all of the land on which our pipelinesystems and facilities are located. Our operationsould be disrupted if we were to lose or were unadb to renew existing rights-of-way.

We do not own all of the land on which our pipelsystems and facilities are located, and we aezethre, subject to the risk of increased costaaintain necessary land use. We obtain the riglebtwstruct and opere
pipelines on land owned by third parties and gowemt agencies for specified periods. If we weréose these rights through an inability to renevhrigf-way contracts or otherwise, we may be requirecetocate o

pipelines and our business could be adverselytaffeédditionally, it may become more expensiveusrito obtain new rights-of-way or to renew exigtilghts-of-way. If the cost of obtaining new
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rights-of-way or renewing existing rights-of-waycieases, it may adversely affect our operationscast flows available for distribution to unitholde

Our business may suffer due to a change in the coragition of our Board of Directors, or if any of our key senior executives or other key employees distmue employment with HLS, who provide services tais
Furthermore, a shortage of skilled labor or disrupions in HLS's labor force may make it difficult for us to maintain labor productivity.

Our future success depends to a large extent osetivices of HLS's Board of Directors, key senixeautives and key senior employees who provideiseswo us. Our business depends on the contirabiligy to recruit
train and retain highly qualified employees inaias of our operations, including accounting, ess operations, finance and other key back-oéfiwd mideffice personnel. The competition for these empésyis intens:
and the loss of these executives or employees dwrith our business. If any of these executivesthierdkey personnel resign or become unable to moetin their present roles and are not adequagglaced, our busine
operations could be materially adversely affect#d.do not maintain any “key man” life insurance &ory executives. Furthermore, our operations recgkilled and experienced laborers with proficieircynultiple tasks.

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 17% of HLStsployees were represented by labor unions unmctive bargaining agreements with various exradates. We may not be able to renegotiate dfieative
bargaining agreements when they expire on sat@facerms or at all. A failure to do so may increaar costs. In addition, existing labor agreememtyg not prevent a strike or work stoppage in titere, and any wo
stoppage could negatively affect our results ofrapens and financial condition.

Many of our officers also allocate time to our gemal partner and its affiliates.

Our general partner shares officers and adminiggraersonnel with HFC to operate both our busiressHFC's business. Our general partners' offiseseral of whom also are officers of HFC, wilbahte the time they a
the other employees of HFC spend on our behalfoanbehalf of HFC. These officers face conflictsareing the allocation of their and other employ¢iese, which may affect adversely our results oémations, cash flov
and financial condition.

RISKS TO COMMON UNITHOLDERS
HFC and its affiliates may have conflicts of interst and limited fiduciary duties, which may permit them to favor their own interests.

Currently, HFC indirectly owns the 2% general partimterest and a 42% limited partner interestsrand owns and controls the general partner ogeneral partner, HEP Logistics Holdings, L.P (“HE®yistics”). Conflicts
of interest may arise between HFC and its affiiatacluding our general partner, on the one hand,us, on the other hand. As a result of thes#lictsnthe general partner may favor its own iests and the interests of
other affiliates over our interests. These cordlioclude, among others, the following situations:

*« HFC, as a shipper on our pipelines, has an economéntive not to cause us to seek higher tartégar terminalling fees, even if such higher rateterminalling fees would reflect rates that ebbk obtained |
arm's-length, third-party transactions;

« neither our partnership agreement nor any othezeagent requires HFC to pursue a business strategyavors us or utilizes our assets, including tveeto increase or decrease refinery productidretier to shi
down or reconfigure a refinery, or what marketpuiesue or grow. HFC's directors and officers hafidueciary duty to make these decisions in the bestests of the stockholders of HFC;

« our general partner is allowed to take into acctl@tinterests of parties other than us, such &, lifFresolving conflicts of intere

« our general partner determines which costs incunged FC and its affiliates are reimbursable by

« our partnership agreement does not restrict overggépartner from causing us to pay it or its &ffés for any services rendered to us or enteritgydadditional contractual arrangements with angheke entities on o
behalf;

« our general partner determines the amount and gimfirour asset purchases and sales, capital expessland borrowings, each of which can affecttineunt of cash available to us;

« our general partner controls the enforcement dfjalibns owed to us by our general partner andfftéates, including the pipelines and terminaigeement with HF(

Cost reimbursements, which will be determined by ougeneral partner, and fees due to our general parter and its affiliates for services provided, are @bstantial.
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Under our Omnibus Agreement, we are currently aitéid to pay HFC an administrative fee of $2.3 onillper year for the provision by HFC or its affiéia of various general and administrative servioesur benefit. W
can provide no assurance that HFC will continuertavide us the officers and employees that are sseeyg for the conduct of our business nor that guokision will be on terms that are acceptableigolf HFC fails t
provide us with adequate personnel, our operatoni be adversely impacted.

The administrative fee is subject to annual revéew may increase if we make an acquisition thatireg an increase in the level of general and aidtnative services that we receive from HFC oraitfiliates. Our gener
partner will determine the amount of general anchiadstrative expenses that properly will be allezhto us in accordance with the terms of our pastip agreement. In addition, our general partmet its affiliates ar
entitled to reimbursement for all other expensey ihcur on our behalf, including the salaries iofl zhe cost of employee benefits for employeesafyH. ogistic Services, L.L.C. who provide servidesus. Prior to makir
any distribution on the common units, we will reimnbe our general partner and its affiliates, inzigdofficers and directors of the general partrier,all expenses incurred on our behalf, plus tlmiaistrative fee. Tt
reimbursement of expenses and the payment of feed adversely affect our ability to make distrilbus. The general partner has sole discretion teraene the amount of these expenses. Our genarilep and its affiliate
also may provide us other services for which wechi@ged fees as determined by our general partner.

Increases in interest rates could adversely impactur unit price and our ability to issue additional equity to make acquisitions, for expansion capitaéxpenditures or for other purposes.

As with other yield-oriented securities, our uniicg is impacted by the level of our cash distiii$ and implied distribution yield. The distribari yield is often used by investors to compare ramé related yieldbrientec
securities for investment decisiomaking purposes. Therefore, changes in interess raither positive or negative, may affect thédyrequirements of investors who invest in our sigind a rising interest rate environn
could have an adverse impact on our unit price@andability to issue additional equity to make asgions, for expansion capital expenditures ordthver purposes. If we then issue additional eqaiitst significantly lowe
price, material dilution to our existing unitholderould result.

Even if unitholders are dissatisfied, they cannotemove our general partner without its consent.

Unlike the holders of common stock in a corporationitholders have only limited voting rights ontieas affecting our business and, therefore, lichiability to influence management's decisions reigar our busines
Unitholders did not elect our general partner er tloard of directors of our general partner's garmartner and have no right to elect our geneaeingr or the board of directors of our generatrgats general partner on
annual or other continuing basis. The board ofotines of our general partner's general partneh@sen by the members of our general partner's gepartner. Furthermore, if unitholders are dissetil with the performan
of our general partner, they will have little atyilto remove our general partner. As a result eséhlimitations, the price at which the commonsutriade could be diminished because of the absemeluction of a takeov
premium in the trading price.

The vote of the holders of at least 66 2/3% obalistanding units voting together as a single dssquired to remove the general partner. Unitéid will be unable to remove the general partriitont its consent becat
the general partner and its affiliates own suffitienits to prevent its removal. Unitholders' vgtights are further restricted by the partnerstgpeement provision providing that any units hefdatperson that owns 20%
more of any class of units then outstanding, othan the general partner, its affiliates, theinsferees, and persons who acquired such unitsthatiprior approval of the board of directors of general partner's gene
partner, cannot vote on any matter; however, nb gacson currently exists. Our partnership agre¢misp contains provisions limiting the ability wifitholders to call meetings or to acquire inforimatabout our operatior
as well as other provisions limiting the unitholslebility to influence the manner or directionnednagement.

The control of our general partner may be transfered to a third party without unitholder consent.
Our general partner may transfer its general paititerest to a third party in a merger or in aesafl all or substantially all of its assets with¢ié consent of the unitholders. Furthermore, @utrership agreement does
restrict the ability of the partners of our gengraitner from transferring their respective parsh@y interests in our general partner to a thindyp&he new partners of our general partner waoldth be in a position to reple

the board of directors and officers of the genpeaitner of our general partner with their own cksiand to control the decisions taken by the bofdirectors and officers.

We may issue additional common units without unithtder approval, which would dilute an existing unitholder's ownership interests.
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Under our partnership agreement, provided themmisignificant decrease in our operating perforrrame may issue an unlimited number of limited partinterests of any type without the approval wf onitholders, ar
HEP currently has a shelf registration on file witte SEC pursuant to which it may issue up to $2li@dn in additional common units.

The issuance by us of additional common units bewoequity securities of equal or senior rank e the following effects:

e our unitholders' proportionate ownership interasis will decreas

« the amount of cash available for distribution onteanit may decreas

+ because a lower percentage of total outstandirtg will be subordinated units, the risk that a sfadirin the payment of the minimum quarterly distition will be borne by our common unitholdershinicrease
« the relative voting strength of each previouslystariding unit may be diminished; ¢

« the market price of the common units may dec

Our partnership agreement does not give our urd#hsithe right to approve our issuance of equityistes ranking junior to the common units at dinye.

In establishing cash reserves, our general partnenay reduce the amount of cash available for distribtion to unitholders.

Our partnership agreement requires our generahgrard deduct from operating surplus cash resehagst establishes are necessary to fund ourdutperating expenditures. In addition, our partnigragreement permits ¢
general partner to reduce available cash by eskabij cash reserves for the proper conduct of asimiess, to comply with applicable law or agreeméatwhich we are a party, or to provide fundsftdure distributions t
partners. These cash reserves will affect the atmafuzash available to make the required paymentait debt holders or to pay the minimum quartdiggribution on our common units every quarter.

HFC and its affiliates may engage in limited compétion with us.

HFC and its affiliates may engage in limited conitjmt with us. Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreementmrgnus, HFC and our general partner, HFC and filgatds agreed not to engage in the business efaijng intermedia
or refined product pipelines or terminals, crudep@elines or terminals, truck racks or crudegzthering systems in the continental United Statks.Omnibus Agreement, however, does not apply to:

* any business operated by HFC or any of its subédiat the closing of our initial public offerir
« any business or asset that HFC or any of its sigyi#d acquires or constructs that has a fair ntaskdeie or construction cost of less than $5 miljfianc
« any business or asset that HFC or any of itsididries acquires or constructs that has a faiketaalue or construction cost of $5 million or mdf we have been offered the opportunity to pasghthe business or
asset at fair market value, and we decline to do so
In the event that HFC or its affiliates no longentrol our partnership or there is a change ofrmbf HFC, the non-competition provisions of then@ibus Agreement will terminate.
Our general partner may cause us to borrow funds irorder to make cash distributions, even where theyrpose or effect of the borrowing benefits our gerral partner or its affiliates.

In some instances, our general partner may causeherow funds from affiliates of HFC or from tHiparties in order to permit the payment of castridutions. These borrowings are permitted e¥ehe purpose and effe
of the borrowing is to enable us to make incendiiggributions.

Our general partner has a limited call right that may require a unitholder to sell its common units aen undesirable time or price.
If at any time our general partner and its affdmbwn more than 80% of the common units (whicloés not presently), our general partner will higneeright, but not the obligation, which it may igssto any of its affiliates ¢

to us, to acquire all, but not less than all, & tommon units held by unaffiliated persons atieepnot less than their thenwrent market price. As a result, a holder of cammnits may be required to sell its units at getim
price that is undesirable to it and may not receivg return on its investment. A common unitholeery also incur a tax liability upon a sale of itsts.
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A unitholder may not have limited liability if a court finds that unitholder actions constitute contra of our business or that we have not complied witlstate partnership law.

Under Delaware law, a unitholder could be heldlé&br our obligations to the same extent as a ggmpartner if a court determined that the rightioftholders to remove our general partner or ke t@ther action under ¢
partnership agreement constituted participatiotién“control” of our business. Our general partner generallyunéimited liability for our obligations, such asrodebts and environmental liabilities, except fuvge contractu
obligations that are expressly made without reatwsour general partner.

In addition, Section 17-607 and 804 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Parshgp Act provides that under some circumstancesitholder may be liable to us for the amount afistribution for a period of thr
years from the date of the distributic

Further, we conduct business in a number of stitesome of those states the limitations on thieiliigt of limited partners for the obligations oflianited partnership have not been clearly establis The unitholders might
held liable for the partnership's obligations athéy were a general partner if a court or govemiragency determined that we were conducting basiirethe state but had not complied with the Stgi@rtnership statute.

HFC may sell units in the public or private markets and such sales could have an adverse impact orettrading price of the common units.

HFC currently holds 24,255,030 of our common unitich is approximately 42% of our outstanding commnunits. Additionally, we agreed to provide HF@istration rights with respect to our common uiist it holds
The sale of these units in the public or privatekets could have an adverse impact on the tradiicg pf our common units.

TAX RISKS TO COMMON UNITHOLDERS

Our tax treatment depends on our status as a partmehip for federal income tax purposes as well as ownot being subject to a material amount of entitylevel taxation by individual states. If the U.S. Iternal
Revenue Service (the “IRS") were to treat us as acporation for federal income tax purposes or, as aesult of legislative changes, we were to becomebgect to additional amounts of entitydevel taxation for federal
or state tax purposes, then our cash available fatistribution to unitholders would be substantially reduced.

The anticipated after-tax economic benefit of aregiment in our common units depends largely obeirsg treated as a partnership for federal incametrposes.

Despite the fact that we are organized as a linpathership under Delaware law, it is possibleertain circumstances for a partnership such as toupe treated as a corporation for federal inctameourposes. Although \
do not believe, based upon our current operatitwas,we will be so treated, a change in our busifesa change in current law) could cause us tivdaged as a corporation for federal income tap@ses or otherwise subj
us to taxation as an entity.

If we were treated as a corporation for federabine tax purposes, we would pay federal income tagw taxable income at the corporate tax ratechvis currently a maximum of 35%. Under current,lagtributions t:
unitholders would generally be taxed again as aateadistributions, and no income, gains, lossedeductions would flow through to unitholders. Besa a tax would be imposed upon us as a corporatiorcash availab
for distribution to unitholders would be substaltyiaeduced. Therefore, treatment of us as a camm would result in a material reduction in theieipated cash flow and aftéax return to unitholders, likely causin
substantial reduction in the value of our commoitsun

Our partnership agreement provides that if a laeniacted or existing law is modified or interpretecé manner that subjects us to taxation as aocatipn or otherwise subjects us to entéyel taxation for federal, state
local income tax purposes, the minimum quarterfyriiution amount and the target distribution anteumay be adjusted to reflect the impact of thatda us.

The tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships @ an investment in our units could be subject to ptential legislative, judicial or administrative changes and differing interpretations, possibly on a etroactive
basis.

The present U.S. federal income tax treatment bfigly traded partnerships, including us, or aneistment in our common units may be modified by adstriative, legislative or judicial changes or difhg interpretations
any time. For example, from time to time, membédr€angress propose and consider substantive changdles existing federal income tax laws that affadlicly
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traded partnerships. Currently, one such legigapioposal would eliminate the qualifying incomeeption upon which we rely for our treatment asagrership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.aiéeunable to pred
whether any of these changes or other proposalgevileintroduced or will ultimately be enacted.yfsuch changes could negatively impact the valenahvestment in our common units. Any modificatto the U.S. feder
income tax laws may be applied retroactively andl@anake it more difficult or impossible to meeetbxpectation for certain publicly traded partngrsho be treated as partnerships for U.S. fedecaime tax purposes.

If the IRS contests the federal income tax positicnwe take, the market for our common units may bedversely impacted and the cost of any IRS contestiwreduce our cash available for distribution to air
unitholders.

The IRS may adopt positions that differ from theipions we have taken or may take on tax mattersaly be necessary to resort to administrativeoartgproceedings to sustain some or all of thetjpos we take. A cou
may not agree with some or all of the positionstake. Any contest with the IRS may materially addersely impact the market for our common units tredprice at which they trade. In addition, oustsof any contest wi
the IRS will be borne indirectly by our unitholdensd our general partner because the costs wiliceedur cash available for distribution.

Unitholders will be required to pay taxes on theirshare of our income even if they do not receive argash distributions from us.

Because our unitholders will generally be treategartners to whom we allocate taxable income, bauld be different in amount than the cash wéitliste, they will be required to pay any federatome taxes and,
some cases, state and local income taxes on tiegie sf our taxable income even if they receiveash distributions from us. Unitholders may noeree cash distributions from us equal to their stafrour taxable income
even equal to the actual tax liability resultingrfr that income.

Tax gain or loss on the disposition of our commonnits could be more or less than expected.

If a unitholder disposes of common units, it wétpgnize gain or loss equal to the difference betvthe amount realized and its tax basis in thos@mon units. Because distributions in excess afithalder's allocable she
of our net taxable income result in a decreaséefunitholder's tax basis in its common units,aheunt, if any, of such prior excess distributiovith respect to the units sold will, in effect, bere taxable income to t
unitholder if it sells such units at a price gredtean its tax basis in those units, even if theethe unitholder receives is less than its odbitbst. Moreover, a substantial portion of the amaealized, whether or r
representing gain, may be taxed as ordinary incdogeto potential recapture of depreciation and deolus and certain other items. In addition, beeahe amount realized includes a unitholder's sha@r nonrecours
liabilities, if unitholders sell their units, thegay incur a tax liability in excess of the amouhtash they receive from the sale.

Tax-exempt entities and non-U.S. persons face uniguax issues from owning our common units that magesult in adverse tax consequences to them.

An investment in common units by tax-exempt ergjtiuch as employee benefit plans and individuaereent accounts (known as IRAs), Keogh Plansathdr retirement plans, regulated investment conegaand norid.S
persons raises issues unique to them. For exawipieally all of our income allocated to organizats that are exempt from federal income tax, inolgdRAs and other retirement plans, will benfelated business taxa
income” and will be taxable to them. Distributictesnon-U.S. persons will be reduced by withholdiages at the highest applicable effective tax raiel nont.S. persons will be required to file U.S. fedeed returns ar
pay tax on their share of our taxable income. Tee@®pt entities and non-U.S. persons should cotiseilt tax adviser before investing in our commoitaun

We treat each purchaser of common units as havindié same tax benefits without regard to the actualoenmon units purchased. The IRS may challenge thisegatment, which could adversely affect the value dhe
common units.

Because we cannot match transferors and transfefesnmon units we will adopt depreciation and aimation positions that may not conform to all esgs of existing Treasury Regulations. A succed$t@l challenge 1
those positions could adversely affect the amotitéo benefits available to our unitholders. Itaatould affect the timing of these tax benefitdter amount of gain from unitholders' sale of commaits and could have
negative impact on the value of our common unitesult in audit adjustments to their tax returns.

We prorate our items of income, gain, loss and dedtion between transferors and transferees of our uts each month based upon the ownership of our ursiton the first day of each month, instead of on thieasis o

the date a particular unit is transferred. The IRSmay challenge this treatment, which could change thallocation of items of income, gain, loss and dection among our unitholders.
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We generally prorate our items of income, gains lasd deduction between transferors and transfefems units each month based upon the ownershiiounits on the first day of each month, insteadn the basis of tl
date a particular unit is transferred. The usénisf proration method may not be permitted undesteng treasury regulations, and although the Depamt of the Treasury issued proposed treasury aégnos that provide a s¢
harbor pursuant to which a publicly traded parthigrsnay use a similar monthly simplifying convemtito allocate tax items, the proposed regulatiarsnat final and do not specifically authorize tee of the proratic
method we have adopted. If the IRS were to chadlemgr proration method or new treasury regulatiwese issued, we may be required to change theagitot of items of income, gain, loss and deductomong ou
unitholders.

A unitholder whose units are the subject of a secities loan (e.g., a loan to a “short sellerto cover a short sale of units) may be considereddaving disposed of those units. If so, it wouldanlonger be treated fo
tax purposes as a partner with respect to those utsi during the period of the loan and may recognizgain or loss from the disposition.

Because there is no tax concept of loaning a pasttigeinterest, a unitholder whose units are thgesu of a securities loan may be considered ambalisposed of the loaned units, such unitholday mo longer be treated
tax purposes as a partner with respect to thogs duiing the period of the loan to the short selled the unitholder may recognize gain or losmfsuch disposition. Moreover, during the periodhef loan, any of our inconr
gain, loss or deduction with respect to those unidy not be reportable by the unitholder and armsh alistributions received by the unitholder ashimse units could be fully taxable as ordinary ineotdnitholders desiring
assure their status as partners and avoid thefigéin recognition from a loan to a short seller arged to modify any applicable brokerage accagntements to prohibit their brokers from borrayineir units.

We have adopted certain valuation methodologies thanay result in a shift of income, gain, loss andebuction between the general partner and the unitHders. The IRS may challenge this treatment, whicleould
adversely affect the value of the common units.

When we issue units or engage in certain othes&etions, we determine the fair market value ofassets and allocate any unrealized gain or lagbuatble to our assets to the capital accountsuofunitholders and o
general partner. Our methodology may be viewednaenstating the value of our assets. In that dasee may be a shift of income, gain, loss and dealu between certain unitholders and the genexethpr, which may t
unfavorable to such unitholders. Moreover, undenaluation methods, subsequent purchasers of commits may have a greater portion of their Intefd@venue Code Section 743(b) adjustment allocttemiir tangibl
assets and a lesser portion allocated to our iitiEngssets. The IRS may challenge our valuatiothaus, or our allocation of the Section 743(b) atfient attributable to our tangible and intangéssets, and allocations
income, gain, loss and deduction between the gepareer and certain of our unitholders.

A successful IRS challenge to these methods ocatilans could adversely affect the amount of texdbtome or loss being allocated to our unitholdgralso could affect the amount of gain from omitholders' sale
common units and could have a negative impact ewafue of the common units or result in audit atipents to our unitholders' tax returns withoutlibaefit of additional deductions.

The sale or exchange of 50% or more of our capitand profits interests during any twelve-month peria will result in the termination of our partnership for federal income tax purposes.

We will be considered to have terminated our pastme for federal income tax purposes if theresaies or exchanges which, in the aggregate, cotes60% or more of the total interests in our @pnd profits within
twelve-month period. For purposes of determining whether30% threshold has been met, multiple saleseof@ime interest will be counted only once. Our iation would, among other things, result in thesatg of ou
taxable year for all unitholders, which would resnlus filing two tax returns (and our unitholdensy receive two SchedulesK-for one fiscal year and may result in a sigaifitdeferral of depreciation deductions allow
in computing our taxable income. In the case ohiholder reporting on a taxable year other thdis@al year ending December 31, the closing oftamable year may also result in more than twelvettmo of our taxab
income or loss being includable in its taxable medor the year of termination. Our terminationreatly would not affect our classification as atparship for federal income tax purposes, but adteve would be treated &
new partnership for tax purposes. If treated asva partnership for federal tax purposes, we mustenmew tax elections and could be subject to piesaftwe are unable to determine that a termimatiocurred. The IRS h
announced a relief procedure whereby if a publichged partnership that has technically terminaégpliests and the IRS grants special relief, amaher dhings, the partnership may be permitted tvige only a sing!
Schedule K-1 to unitholders for the tax years irichtthe termination occurs.

Unitholders likely will be subject to state and loal taxes and return filing requirements as a resulbf investing in our common units.
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In addition to federal income taxes, unitholdekelly will be subject to other taxes, such as st local income taxes, unincorporated businesstard estate, inheritance, or intangible taxesatitaimposed by the varic
jurisdictions in which we do business or own praperow or in the future. Unitholders likely will beequired to file state and local income tax resuamd pay state and local income taxes in soméd of these variou
jurisdictions, even if they do not live in theseigdlictions. Further, unitholders may be subjeqbenalties for failure to comply with those requients. We currently own property and conduct bissirie Texas, New Mexic
Arizona, Utah, Idaho, Oklahoma, Washington, Kan¥dgoming and Nevada. We may own property or condiustiness in other states or foreign countriehénftiture. It is the unitholder's responsibilityfile all federal
state, local and foreign tax returns.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment
We do not have any unresolved SEC staff comments.

Item 2. Properties

PIPELINES

Our refined product pipelines transport light refinproducts from HFC's Navajo refinery in New Mexiand Alons Big Spring refinery in Texas to their customershie metropolitan and rural areas of Texas, Newibte
Arizona, Utah, Oklahoma and northern Mexico ananfidFC's Woods Cross refinery in Utah to Las Veddevada and Cedar City, Utah. The refined produetssported in these pipelines include conventigiaablines
federal, state and local specification reformulagadoline, low-octane gasoline for oxygenate biegddistillates that include high- and low-sulfiese! and jet fuel and LPGs (such as propane, buiad isobutane).

Our intermediate product pipelines consist prinkjpaf three parallel pipelines that originate la¢ tNavajo refinery Lovington facilities and termieat its Artesia facilities. These pipelines tggors intermediate feedstocks ¢
crude oil for HFC's refining operations in New Megi

Our crude pipelines consist of crude oil trunk hgaing and connection pipelines located in westaEeNew Mexico and Oklahoma that deliver crudamthe Navajo refinery and crude oil and refineddurct pipelines th
support HFC’s Woods Cross refinery.

Our pipelines are regularly inspected, are wellntzned and we believe, are in good repair. Gelyerather than as may be provided in certain pipdi and terminal agreements, substantially allusfmpelines ar
unrestricted as to the direction in which prodieté and the types of refined products that wetcansport on them. The FERC regulates the transtiant tariffs for interstate shipments on our refirproduct pipelines a
state regulatory agencies regulate the transpontéiiffs for intrastate shipments on our pipedine

The following table details the average aggregatly ciumber of barrels of petroleum products tramsgd on our pipelines in each of the periods eehfbelow for HFC and for third parties.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Volumes transported for (bpd):
HFC 405,71¢ 345,99( 324,38 295,03¢ 253,48:
Third parties® 63,15 52,36 38,91( 43,70¢ 22,75¢
Total 468,87( 398,35! 363,29: 338,74t 276,24(
Total barrels in thousands (“mbbl$?) 171,60t 145,39¢ 132,60: 123,64: 101,10

(1) We sold our 70% interest in Rio Grande on Decemb@009, therefore the Rio Grande volumes have breludec

The following table sets forth certain operatingadfor each of our refined product, intermediatd arude pipelines. Throughput is the total avenagmber of barrels per day transported on a pipddirtedoes not aggreg:
barrels moved between different points on the spipeline. Revenues reflect tariff revenues gendragebarrels shipped from an origin to a deliveoynp on a pipeline. Revenues also include paymeratde by Alon und:
capacity lease arrangements on our Orla to El Pamline. Under these arrangements, we provideespacour pipeline for the shipment of up to 15,@@0rels of refined product per day. Alon pays usthbr or not
actually ships the full volumes of refined produitts entitled to ship. To the extent Alon doeg nse its capacity; we are entitled to use it. \Wlewate the capacity of our pipelines based orthiteughput capacity for barr
of gasoline equivalent that may be transportedhéneixisting configuration; in some cases, thistidek the use of drag reducing agents.
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Diameter Length Capacity
Origin and Destination (inches) (miles) (bpd)
Refined Product Pipelines:
Artesia, NM to El Paso, TX 6 15€ 19,00(
Artesia, NM to Orla, TX to El Paso, TX 8/12/¢ 214 70,00(
Artesia, NM to Moriarty, NM® 12/¢ 21F 27,00¢
Moriarty, NM to Bloomfield, NM® 8 191 14,40(
Big Spring, TX to Abilene, TX 6/8 10& 20,00(
Big Spring, TX to Wichita Falls, TX 6/8 227 23,00(
Wichita Falls, TX to Duncan, OK 6 47 21,00(
Midland, TX to Orla, TX 8/1C 13t 25,000
Artesia, NM to Roswell, NM 4 36 5,30(
Woods Cross, UT 10/¢€ 8 70,00¢
Woods Cross, UT to Las Vegas, NV 12 40C 62,00(
Tulsa, OK®
Intermediate Product Pipelines:
Lovington, NM to Artesia, NM 8 65 48,00(
Lovington, NM to Artesia, NM 10 65 72,00(
Lovington, NM to Artesia, NM 16 65 96,00(
Tulsa, OK® 8/10/1: 10
Crude Pipelines:
Lovington / Artesia, New Mexico Various 861 31,00(
Roadrunner Pipeline 16 65 62,40(
Beeson Pipeline 8 37 35,00(
Woods Cross, Utah 12 4 40,00(

(1) Includes 15,000 bpd of capacity on the Orla to &dsegment of this pipeline that is leased to Aioder capacity lease agreeme

(2) The White Lakes Junction to Moriarty segmehbuor Artesia to Moriarty pipeline and the Moriartty Bloomfield pipeline is leased from Mid-Ameri€apeline Company, LLC (“Mid-America”) under a longrm

lease agreement.
(3) Capacity for this pipeline is reflected in the infation for the Artesia to Moriarty pipelir
(4) Tulsa gasoline and diesel fuel connectiondagellan’s pipeline of less than one m

(5) The pipe capacities with 3 gas pipes with c#jgs of 10 million standard cubic feet per dayifISCFD"), 22MMSCFD, and 10MMSCFD and 2 liquid pipes with cafies of 45,000 BPD and 60,000 B}

HFC shipped an aggregate of 63% of the petrolewdyuts transported on our refined product pipeliawed 100% of the petroleum products transportedwnntermediate pipelines and crude oil pipelime2012. Thes

pipelines transported 90% of the light refined pratd produced by HFC'’s Navajo refinery in 2012.

Artesia, New Mexico to El Paso, Tex

The Artesia to El Paso refined product pipelineeigulated by the FERC. It was constructed in 19%®@nsists of 156 miles ofifieh pipeline. This pipeline is used primarily five shipment of refined products produce
the Navajo refinery to our El Paso terminal, wheredeliver to common carrier pipelines for transation to Arizona, northern New Mexico, northern¥m® and to the termina’tank farm for truck rack loading for lo

delivery by tanker truck. Refined products produaethe Navajo refinery destined for El Paso aaegported on either this pipeline or our Artesi®tta to El Paso pipeline.

Artesia, New Mexico to Orla, Texas to El Paso, Te:
The Artesia to Orla to El Paso refined product figeis a common-carrier pipeline regulated by B#RC and consists of three segments:

+ an 8-inch and a 12-inch, 8&ile segment from the Navajo refinery to Orla, T&

* al2-inch, 124nile segment from Orla to outside El Paso, Texa€
* an 8-inch, &nile segment from outside El Paso to our El Pasuitel.
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There are two shippers on this pipeline, HFC anthAAs mentioned above, refined products destinezlit EI Paso terminal are delivered to commoni@apipelines for transportation to Arizona, norihnélew Mexico an
northern Mexico and to the terminal’s truck racklfmal delivery by tanker truck.

Artesia, New Mexico to Moriarty, New Mexic

The Artesia to Moriarty refined product pipelinenststs of a 60-mile, 1&ch pipeline that was constructed in 1999 andredgerom the Navajo refinery Artesia facility to WihLakes Junction, New Mexico, and 155 mile
8-inch pipeline that was constructed in 1973 aneéreds from White Lakes Junction to our Moriartyméral, where it also connects to our Moriarty t@@&field pipeline. We own the liBch pipeline from Artesia to Whi
Lakes Junction. We lease the White Lakes Junctidvidriarty segment of this pipeline and the Mowax Bloomfield pipeline described below, from Midnerica Pipeline Company, LLC under a loregm lease agreemt
entered into in 1996, which expires in 2017 andthastenyear extensions at our option. At our Moriarty terah, volumes shipped on this pipeline can be parted to other markets in the area, including Alerque, San
Fe and west Texas, via tanker truck. The 155-mikét&\Lakes Junction to Moriarty segment of thisgtiipe is operated by Miémerica (or its designee). HFC is the only shippethis pipeline. Currently, we pay a moni
fee (which is subject to adjustments based on afmitgthe PPI) of $556,000 to Mid-America to leds=White Lakes Junction to Moriarty and MoriaryBloomfield pipelines.

Moriarty, New Mexico to Bloomfield, New Mexic
The Moriarty to Bloomfield refined product pipelineas constructed in 1973 and consists of 191 noilésinch pipeline leased from Midmerica. This pipeline serves our terminal in Bldimid. At our Bloomfield termina
volumes shipped on this pipeline are transporteatfier markets in the Four Corners area via tattkek. This pipeline is operated by Mid-America {srdesignee). HFC is the only shipper on this{iie.

Big Spring, Texas to Abilene, Tex:
The Big Spring to Abilene refined product pipeliwas constructed in 1957 and consists of 100 milésinch pipeline and 5 miles of i&eh pipeline. This pipeline is used for the shipmef refined products produced at
Big Spring refinery to the Abilene terminal. Alomthe only shipper on this pipeline.

Big Spring, Texas to Wichita Falls, Texe
Segments of the Big Spring to Wichita Falls refirperdduct pipeline were constructed in 1969 and 1@8@ consist of 95 miles of 6-inch pipeline an@ hiiles of 8inch pipeline. This pipeline is used for the shimmnel
refined products produced at the Big Spring refirterthe Wichita Falls terminal. Alon is the onlyigper on this pipeline.

Wichita Falls, Texas to Duncan, Oklahoma
The Wichita Falls to Duncan refined product pipelis a common carrier and is regulated by the FER@as constructed in 1958 and consists of 47 syilie6inch pipeline. This pipeline is used for the shimmef refinec
products from the Wichita Falls terminal to Alosincan terminal, which we do not own. Alon is thyoshipper on this pipeline.

Midland, Texas to Orla, Texa
Segments of the Midland to Orla refined producepipe were constructed in 1928 and 1998, and cbasED miles of 10-inch pipeline and 85 miles eih8h pipeline. This pipeline is used for the shipmnef refined produc
produced at the Big Spring refinery from Midlandotar tank farm at Orla. Alon is the only shippertbis pipeline.

Artesia, New Mexico to Roswell, New Mexi
The 36-mile, 4-inch diameter Artesia to Roswellredl product pipeline delivers jet fuel only to kardocated at our jet fuel terminal in Roswell. HEGhe only shipper on this pipeline.

Woods Cross, Utah refined product pipelines

The Woods Cross refined product pipelines consittiree pipeline segments. The Woods Cross to Rioteeminal segment consists of 2 miles ofiéh pipeline, which is used for product shipmentand through the Pione
terminal. The Woods Cross to Pioneer segment repte® miles of 10-inch pipeline that is also ut®dproduct shipments to and through the Pioneeniteal. The Woods Cross to Chevron Pipelin®alt Lake Produc
Pipeline segment consists of 4 miles of 8-inch lpigeand is used for product shipments from HFC'sdds Cross refinery to Chevron’s North Salt Lakeping station. HFC is the only shipper on theselfies.

UNEYV refined product pipeline
The 400-mile, 12-inch refined products pipeline wampleted in early 2012. This pipeline is usedtf@shipment of refined products from Woods Cross, Utaterminals in Las Vegas, Nevada and Cedar Citgh. HFC
and Sinclair Transportation Company (“Sinclair"gdhe primary shippers on this pipeline.
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8" Pipeline from Lovington, New Mexico to Artesi®ew Mexico
The 65-mile, 8inch diameter pipeline was constructed in 1981sHipeline is used for the shipment of intermedfa&zistocks, crude oil and LPGs from the Navajmeej Lovington facility to its Artesia facility. AC is the
primary shipper on this pipeline.

10” Pipeline from Lovington, New Mexico to Artesi&New Mexico
The 65-mile, 10nch diameter pipeline was constructed in 1999sHipeline is used for the shipment of intermedfagzistocks and crude oil from the Navajo refinlewyington facility to its Artesia facility. HFC ithe only
shipper on this pipeline.

16" Pipeline from Lovington, New Mexico to Artesi&New Mexico
The 65-mile, 16nch diameter pipeline was constructed in 2009s Hipeline is used for the shipment of intermedfagzistocks and crude oil from the Navajo refinlewyington facility to its Artesia facility. HFC ithe only
shipper on this pipeline.

Lovington / Artesia, New Mexico crude oil pipelint
The crude oil gathering and trunk pipelines delimerde oil to HFC's Navajo refinery and consis880 miles of 4-inch, 6-inch andiBeh diameter pipeline. The crude oil trunk pipebrconsist of five pipeline segments
deliver crude oil to the Navajo refinery Lovingttactility and seven pipeline segments that delivade oil to the Navajo refinery Artesia facility.

The Lovington system crude oil mainlines includeefpipeline segments consisting of a 23-mile, Ivipipeline from Russell to Lovington, a 20-milein@h pipeline from Russell to Hobbs, an 11-milénéh and 8inch
pipeline from Crouch to Lovington, a 20-mile, 84ngipeline from Hobbs to Lovington and a 6-milen6h pipeline from Gaines to Hobbs.

The Artesia system crude oil mainlines include sepipeline segments consisting of an 11-mile, Gripipeline from Beeson to North Artesia, a 7-mdlench and 6-inch pipeline from Barnsdall to NoAttesia, a 2-mile, 8-
inch pipeline from the Barnsdall jumper line to limgton, a 4-mile, 4-inch pipeline from the ArteSgation to North Artesia, a 6-mile, 8-inch pipelimem North Artesia to Evans Junction and a 1-miénch pipeline fron
Abo to Evans Junction.

We operate a 12-mile, 8-inch pipeline from Evanscfion to Artesia, New Mexico that supplies natwas to the Navajo refinery Artesia facility.

Roadrunner Pipeline
The Roadrunner crude oil pipeline connects the [enedinery Lovington facility to a west Texas tamal of the Centurion Pipeline that extends to @ughOklahoma. It was constructed in 2009 and aisgif 65 miles of 16-
inch pipeline. This pipeline is used for the shipnef crude oil from Cushing to the Navajo refinervington facility.

Beeson Pipeline
The Beeson crude oil pipeline delivers crude othte Navajo refinery Lovington facility. It was catnucted in 2009 and consists of 37 miles @fié pipeline. This pipeline ships crude oil fromr@rude oil gathering syste
to the Navajo refinery Lovington facility for prossing.

Woods Cross, Utah crude oil pipeline
This 4-mile, 12-inch pipeline is used for the shgmof crude oil from Chevron Pipeline’s North Sadike City station to the Woods Cross refinery.

REFINED PRODUCT TERMINALS, LOADING RACKS AND REFINE RY TANKAGE

Refined Product Terminals and Loading Rac

Our refined product terminals receive products figipelines connected to HFC's refineries and AldBig Spring refinery. We then distribute them to®1&nd third parties, who in turn deliver them tal-eisers and ret:
outlets. Our terminals are generally complementaryur pipeline assets and serve HFC’s and Alorasketing activities and other customers. Termipédy a key role in moving product to the emser market by providir
the following services:

« distribution

+ blending to achieve specified grades of gasc

« other ancillary services that include the injectidradditives and filtering of jet fuel; a
+ storage and inventory managem
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Typically, our refined product terminal facilitie®nsist of multiple storage tanks and are equippiétl automated truck loading equipment that oper@# hours a day. This automated system providesofutrol of security
allocations, and credit and carrier certificationremote input of data by our customers. In addijtioearly all of our terminals are equipped withcke loading racks capable of providing automatezhding to individue

customer specifications.

Our refined product terminals derive most of threwenues from terminalling fees paid by custom#fe.charge a fee for transferring refined produnisnfthe terminal to trucks or to pipelines connddtthe terminal. |
addition to terminalling fees, we generate revermesharging our customers fees for blending, imecadditives, and filtering jet fuel. HFC currBnticcounts for the substantial majority of ourimeti product termin

revenues.

The table below sets forth the total average thinpugfor our refined product terminals in eachhsf periods presented:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2008

Refined products terminalled for (bpd):
HFC 271,54¢ 193,64! 178,90: 114,43: 109,53¢
Third parties 53,45¢ 44,45¢ 39,56¢ 42,20¢ 32,737

Total 325,00! 238,09¢ 218,47: 156,63 142,27¢

Total (mbbls) 118,95: 86,90¢ 79,74 57,17:¢ 52,07¢
The following table outlines the locations of oerrhinals and their storage capacities, numberdfsiasupply source, and mode of delivery:

Storage Number
Capacity of

Terminal Location (barrels) Tanks Supply Source Mode of Delivery
El Paso, TX 747,00( 20 Pipeline/rail Truck/Pipeline
Moriarty, NM 189,00( 9 Pipeline Truck
Bloomfield, NM 193,00( 7 Pipeline Truck
Tucson, AZY 176,00( 9 Pipeline Truck
Mountain Home, ID? 120,00( 3 Pipeline Pipeline
Boise, ID® 111,00( 9 Pipeline Pipeline
Burley, ID® 70,00( 7 Pipeline Truck
Spokane, WA 333,00t 32 Pipeline/Rail Truck
Abilene, TX 156,10( 6 Pipeline Truck/Pipeline
Wichita Falls, TX 220,00( 11 Pipeline Truck/Pipeline
Las Vegas, NV 267,00( 9 Pipeline/Truck Truck
Cedar City, UT 194,00( 7 Pipeline/Rail/Truck Truck
Roswell, NM®@ 25,00( 1 Pipeline Truck
Orla tank farm 135,00 5 Pipeline Pipeline
Artesia facility truck rack N/A N/A Refinery Truck
Lovington facility asphalt truck rack N/A N/A Refinery Truck
Woods Cross facility truck rack N/A N/A Refinery Truck/Pipeline
Tulsa west facility truck and rail rack N/A N/A Refinery Truck/Rail/Pipeline
Tulsa east facility truck and rail racks 25,00( N/A Refinery Truck/Rail/Pipeline
Cheyenne facility truck and rail racks N/A N/A Refinery Truck/Rail
El Dorado facility truck racks N/A N/A Refinery Truck
Total 2,961,101

(1) The underlying ground at the Tucson terminal iséet

(2) Handles only jet fue

(3) We have a 50% ownership interest in these termifi&le capacity and throughput information represémt proportionate share of capacity and throughfpubutable to our ownership intert
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El Paso Terminal

We receive light refined products at this termiftam the Navajo refinery Artesia facility througlimArtesia to El Paso and Artesia to Orla to EldPpipelines and by rail that account for 90% of vioumes at this termini
We also receive product from the Big Spring refinirat accounted for 10% of the volumes at thimieal in 2012. Refined products received at thisitral are sold locally via the truck rack or trposed to our Tucsc
terminal and other terminals in Phoenix on Kindesrlyans East System pipeline. Competition in this maikeludes a refinery and terminal owned by Westeefirfing, Inc., a joint venture pipeline and ternlioaned by
ConocoPhillips and NuStar Energy, L.P. (“NuStar”).

Moriarty Terminal
We receive light refined products at this termifram the Navajo refinery Artesia facility througluropipelines. Refined products received at thimieal are sold locally, via the truck rack. HFCoisr only customer at tt
terminal. There are no competing terminals in Mdyia

Bloomfield Terminal
We receive light refined products at this termifram the Navajo refinery Artesia facility througluropipelines. Refined products received at thimieal are sold locally, via the truck rack. HFCoisr only customer at tt
terminal.

Tucson Terminal
We own 100% of the improvements and lease the Wyidgrground at this terminal. The Tucson termiredeives light refined products from Kinder MorgafEast System pipeline, which transports refinexipets from th
Navajo refinery Artesia facility that it receivesaur El Paso terminal. Refined products receivigtlia terminal are sold locally, via the truck ka€ompetition in this market includes terminalsnaa by Kinder Morgar

Mountain Home Terminal

We receive jet fuel from third parties at this térai that is transported on Chevron’s Salt Lakey @tBoise, Idaho pipeline. We then transport #tefyel from the Mountain Home terminal through @@rmile, 4inch pipeline
to the United States Air Force base outside of MaimnHome. Our pipeline associated with this temhis the only pipeline that supplies jet fuel ke tair base. We are paid a single fee, from theeisef Energy Supp:
Center, for injecting, storing, testing and trarsipg jet fuel at this terminal.

Boise Terminal

We and Sinclair each own a 50% interest in the &tésminal. Sinclair is the operator of the terrhifide Boise terminal receives light refined protuttom HFC and Sinclair shipped through Chevsapipeline originating i
Salt Lake City, Utah. The Woods Cross refinerywadl as other refineries in the Salt Lake City a@d Pioneer Pipeline Ce.terminal in Salt Lake City are connected to thewon pipeline. All loading of products out
the Boise terminal is conducted at Chevron's logdack, which is connected to the Boise terminapipgline. HFC and Sinclair are the only custonathis terminal.

Burley Terminal
We and Sinclair each own a 50% interest in the 8utérminal. Sinclair is the operator of the teratifThe Burley terminal receives product from HR@ &inclair shipped through Chevrerpipeline originating in Salt La
City, Utah. Refined products received at this terhiare sold locally, via the truck rack. HFC arndc&ir are the only customers at this terminal.

Spokane Termina
This terminal is connected to the Woods Cross egfitvia a Chevron common carrier pipeline. The $pekterminal also is supplied by Chevron and Yedtowe pipelines and by rail and truck. Refined potsl received
this terminal are sold locally, via the truck ra%e have several major customers at this termiier terminals in the Spokane area include tersimaned by ExxonMobil and ConocoPhillips.

Abilene Terminal
This terminal receives refined products from AloBlg Spring refinery, which accounted for all of wolumes in 2012. Refined products received &t tiiminal are sold locally via a truck rack or ped over a 2wile
pipeline to Dyess Air Force Base. Alon is the otigtomer at this terminal.

Wichita Falls Terminal

This terminal receives refined products from ther$ Big Spring refinery, which accounted for dlits volumes in 2012. Refined products receivethit terminal are sold via a truck rack or shipp&dpipeline connectiol
to Alon’s terminal in Duncan, Oklahoma and alsdteStar’s Southlake Pipeline. Alon is the only cuséo at this terminal.
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Las Vegas Termina
This terminal is owned by UNEV and receives produmtn HFC and Sinclair shipped through the UNEVefipe originating in Woods Cross, Utah. Refineddurtts received at this terminal are sold locallffGHand Sincla
are the only customers at this terminal.

Cedar City Terminal
This terminal is owned by UNEV and receives produmtn HFC and Sinclair shipped through the UNEVefipe originating in Woods Cross, Utah. Refineddurtts received at this terminal are sold locallffGHand Sincla
are the only customers at this terminal.

Roswell Terminal
This terminal receives jet fuel from the Navajamefy for further transport to Cannon Air Force Basd to Albuquerque, New Mexico. We lease thisiteal under an agreement that expires in Septe2MmEs.

Orla Tank Farm
The Orla tank farm was constructed in 1998. It irexrefined products from Alon's Big Spring refipéhat accounted for all of its volumes in 2012fiRed products received at the tank farm are dediat into our Orla to |
Paso pipeline. Alon is the only customer at thigttarm.

Artesia Facility Truck Rack
The truck rack at the Navajo refinery Artesia figiloads light refined products produced at thev&ja refinery, onto tanker trucks for delivery t@rkets in the surrounding area. HFC is the onlyarusr of this truck rack.

Lovington Facility Asphalt Truck Rack
The asphalt loading rack facility at the Lovingtetfinery loads asphalt produced at the Lovingtanilifst onto tanker trucks. HFC is the only custaroéthis truck rack.

Woods Cross Facility Truck Rack
The truck rack at the Woods Cross facility loadsiirefined products produced at the refinery datiker trucks for delivery to markets in the sundimg area. HFC is the only customer of this trumék. HFC also mak
transfers to a common carrier pipeline at thislitgci

Tulsa Facilities Truck and Rail Racks

The Tulsa truck and rail loading rack facilitiemsest of loading racks located at HECTulsa refinery west and east facilities. Loadiagks at the Tulsa refinery west facility consitail racks that load refined products
lube oil produced at the refinery onto rail car anttuck rack that loads lube oil onto tanker tsidkoading racks at the Tulsa refinery east faciitnsist of truck and rail racks at which we leafined products and off lo
crude. The truck racks also load asphalt and LPG.

Cheyenne Facility Truck and Rail Racks
The Cheyenne loading rack facilities consist ofifigefined products, heavy products and LPG truuk ril racks. These racks load refined productsm@opane onto tanker trucks for delivery to maketsurrounding are:
Additionally, these facilities include four crudé bACT units that unload crude oil from tanker ¢ks.

El Dorado Facility Truck Racks
The El Dorado loading rack facilities consist digdnt refined products truck rack and a propanekmack. These racks load refined products andagvemnto tanker trucks for delivery to marketsumeunding areas.

Refinery Tankage
Our refinery tankage consists of on-site tankageRt’s refineries. Our refinery tankage deriveségenues from fixed fees or throughput charggsaviding HFC's refining facilities with 9,300,008arrels of storage.
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The following table outlines the locations of ogfinery tankage, storage capacity, tankage typenantber of tanks

Storage Number

Capacity of
Refinery Location (barrels) Tankage Type Tanks
Artesia , NM 166,00( Crude oil 2
Lovington, NM 267,00( Crude oil 2
Woods Cross, UT 180,00( Crude oil 8
Tulsa, OK 3,171,601 Crude oil and refined product 57
Cheyenne, WY 1,842,001 Refined and intermediate product 58
El Dorado, KS 3,702,401 Refined and intermediate product 89
Total 9,329,00!

PIPELINE AND TERMINAL CONTROL OPERATIONS

All of our pipelines are operated via geosynchransatellite, microwave, radio and frame relay comization systems from our central control room tedain Artesia, New Mexico. We also monitor acijvétt our terminal
from this control room.The control center operatgth state-of-theart System Control and Data Acquisition, or SCAD¥stems. Our control center is equipped with compaystems designed to continuously moi
operational data, including refined product andderoil throughput, flow rates, and pressures. Witamh, the control center monitors alarms and tigitgput balances. The control center operates repustgs, motors, engin
and valves associated with the delivery of refipeaducts and crude oil. The computer systems asiged to enhance leak-detection capabilities, d@utomatic alarms if operational conditions owsid preestablishe
parameters occur, and provide for remote-contradleakdown of pump stations on the pipelines. Putapiosis and metemeasurement points on the pipelines are linkedabgllge or telephone communication systems
remote monitoring and control, which reduces oguinement for full-time on-site personnel at mofsthese locations.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding
We are a party to various legal and regulatory @edings, which we believe will not have a mateaterse impact on our financial condition, resafteperations or cash flows.

Iltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Units, Related Unitholder Matters and Isser Purchases of Common Unit

Our common limited partner units are traded onNleev York Stock Exchange under the symbol “HEPHE following table sets forth the range of thelydhigh and low sales prices per common unit, dadistributions pe
common unit and the trading volume of common uivitshe periods indicated.

Cash Trading
Years Ended December 31, High Low Distributions Volume
2012
Fourth quarter $ 34.41 $ 30.1¢ $ 0.47( 6,938,001
Third quarter $ 36.9¢ $ 28.5¢ $ 0.46: 6,420,201
Second quarter $ 31.4¢ $ 26.12 $ 0.45¢ 5,298,00!
First quarter $ 318 $ 26.6¢ $ 0.44¢ 6,704,401
2011
Fourth quarter $ 29.9¢ 3% 23.6¢ $ 0.44: 6,609,801
Third quarter $ 27.51 $ 22.7( $ 0.43¢ 4,050,801
Second quarter $ 29.4¢ $ 24.2¢ $ 0.43: 5,781,80
First quarter $ 30.5¢% $ 25.0¢ $ 0.42¢ 4,675,201

On November 29, 2012, we announced a twosfoe-unit split, payable in the form of a commontulistribution for each issued and outstanding coammnit. The unit distribution was paid January 2813 to all unitholde
of record on January 7, 2013. All references ta and per unit amounts in this document and reldteclosures have been adjusted to reflect thetedfethe unit split for all periods presented.

The cash distribution for the fourth quarter of 2@das declared on January 24, 2013 and is payalfebruary 14, 2013 to all unitholders of recordreiruary 4, 2013.
As of February 13, 2013, we had approximately D9 do mmon unitholders, including beneficial ownefsommon units held in street name.

We consider regular cash distributions to unithcdden a quarterly basis, although there is no asseras to the future cash distributions since #neydependent upon future earnings, cash flovtat@equirements, financ
condition and other factors. See “Liquidity and {apResources” under Item 7, “Management’s Distus@nd Analysis of Financial Condition and ResufsOperationsfor a discussion of conditions and limitati
prohibiting distributions under the Credit Agreerhand indentures relating to our senior notes.

Within 45 days after the end of each quarter, vegribute all of our available cash (as defined um partnership agreement) to unitholders of reasrdhe applicable record date. The amount of avigilaash generally is

cash on hand at the end of the quarter; less tlwiaof cash reserves established by our generaigrao provide for the proper conduct of our bess, comply with applicable laws, any of our daktruments, or oth
agreements; or provide funds for distributions tw onitholders and to our general partner for ang or more of the next four quarters; plus all casthand on the date of determination of availaaigh for the quart
resulting from working capital borrowings made aftee end of the quarter.

We make distributions in the following manner: 98&our common unitholders, pro rata, and 2% togheeral partner, until we distribute for each anding common unit an amount equal to the minimurartgrly
distribution for that quarter and any arrearaggsayment of the minimum quarterly distributions &y prior quarters, thereafter.

Our general partner, HEP Logistics, is entitleéhtentive distributions if the amount we distributh respect to any quarter exceeds specifiecetdeyels presented below:

Marginal Percentage Interest in

Total Quarterly Distribution Distributions

Target Amount Unitholders General Partner
Minimum quarterly distribution $0.25 98% 2%
First target distribution Up to $0.275 98% 2%
Second target distribution above $0.275 up to $0.3125 85% 15%
Third target distribution above $0.3125 up to $0.375 75% 25%
Thereafter Above $0.375 50% 50%
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat
The following table shows selected financial infation for HEP. This table should be read in confiamcwith Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Assé of Financial Condition and Results of Openagioand th
consolidated financial statements of HEP and rélatees thereto included elsewhere in this Fornk10-
Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011® 2010® 2009® 2008®
(In thousands, except per unit data)

Statement of Income Data:

Revenues $ 292,56( $ 214,26t $ 182,13 $ 146,610 $ 109,16¢
Operating costs and expenses
Operations (exclusive of depreciation and amoitizgt 89,24 64,52: 54,94¢ 44,66¢ 39,09t
Depreciation and amortization 57,46: 36,95¢ 31,36: 27,98: 22,61¢
General and administrative 7,594 6,57¢ 7,71¢ 7,58¢ 6,38(
154,29 108,05! 94,02¢ 80,23¢ 68,09(
Operating income 138,260 106,21< 88,10¢ 66,37¢ 41,07¢
Equity in earnings of SLC Pipeline 3,36¢ 2,552 2,392 1,91¢ —
SLC Pipeline acquisition costs — — — (2,500 —
Interest income — — 7 11 11¢
Interest expense (47,18) (35,959 (34,00) (21,50) (21,769
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (2,979 = — — —
Other income 10 17 17 67 1,02¢
(46,78)) (33,390 (31,58 (22,009 (20,619
Income from continuing operations before incomesax 91,47¢ 72,82¢ 56,52t 44,37. 20,46(
State income tax (371) (234) (29€) (20) (270)
Income from continuing operations 91,10¢ 72,58¢ 56,22¢ 44,35; 20,19(
Add net loss attributable to Predecessor 4,200 6,351 70 1,411 37¢
Noncontrolling interest (1,157 85¢ 24 471 127
Income from continuing operations attributable twllf Energy Partners 94,15:; 79,79¢ 56,32: 46,23« 20,69¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of nonadimg interest® — — — 19,78( 4,671
Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partners 94,15: 79,79¢ 56,32 66,01« 25,367
Less general partner interest in net income, inotyéhcentive distribution§’ 22,45( 16,80¢ 12,08« 7,947 3,91
Limited partners’ interest in net income $ 71,70: $ 62,99: $ 44,23¢ $ 58,067 $ 21,45¢
Limited partners’ per unit interest in net incombasic and dilute $ 1.2¢ $ 1.3¢ $ 1.0C $ 1.5¢ $ 0.6€
Distributions per limited partner unit $ 1.84 $ 1.74 $ 1.6€ $ 1.5¢ $ 1.5C

Other Financial Data:

Cash flows from operating activities $ 161,41: $ 99,04: $ 104,73t $ 68,50¢ $ 64,01¢
Cash flows from investing activities $ (42,86) $ (206,309 $ (142,05) % (198,68) $ (298,55)
Cash flows from financing activities $ (119,687 $ 105,58¢ $ 35,85¢ $ 131,02¢ $ 218,56«
EBITDA @ $ 194,24; $ 149,76¢ $ 122,08¢ $ 100,70° $ 70,19t
Distributable cash flow? $ 153,12¢ $ 100,29¢ $ 91,05« $ 72,21% $ 60,36
Maintenance capital expenditurés $ 5,64¢ $ 5,41¢ $ 4,487 $ 3,59¢ $ 3,13¢
Expansion capital expenditures 37,21: 200,89: 137,44. 201,45: 295,46(
Total capital expenditures $ 42,86! $ 206,30¢ $ 141,92¢ $ 205,04¢ $ 298,59:
Balance Sheet Data (at period end):

Net property, plant and equipment $ 960,53! $ 960,49¢ $ 683,79 $ 553,23 $ 363,03t
Total assets $ 1,394,111 $ 1,399,191 $ 913,26! $ 779,03 $ 549,76:
Long-term debt? $ 864,67: $ 605,88t $ 491,64¢ $ 390,82 $ 355,79
Total liabilities $ 927,35: $ 661,51t $ 548,40: $ 425,630 $ 434,82:
Total equity™ $ 452,85t $ 737,67t $ 364,86: $ 353,40: $ 114,94;

(1) The amounts presented have been restated fromwepeeviously reported for the respective peri®kse Note 2 in Notes to Consolidated Financiak®tants included in Item 8 for a discussion of thresgsions
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(2) On December 1, 2009, we sold our 70% interest m@ande. Results of operations of Rio Grande had14.5 million gain on the sale are presentetiscontinued operatior

(3) Net income is allocated between limited partnerd #re general partner interest in accordance vhieh grovisions of the partnership agreement. Neorive allocated to the general partner includes e
distributions declared subsequent to quarter ertlifdome attributable to the limited partnersiisded by the weighted average limited partner sipintstanding in computing the limited partngyst unit interest i

netincome.

(4) Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciasinod amortization (“EBITDA")is calculated as net income plus (i) interest ezpemet of interest income, (ii) state income ta® &ii) depreciation and amortizatic
EBITDA is not a calculation based upon GAAP. Howetke amounts included in the EBITDA calculatioe derived from amounts included in our consoliddteancial statements, with the exception of EBA
from discontinued operations. EBITDA should notdmmsidered as an alternative to net income or tipgrancome, as an indication of our operating perfance or as an alternative to operating cash ésw
measure of liquidity. EBITDA is not necessarily quamable to similarly titled measures of other conmigs. EBITDA is presented here because it is alwidsed financial indicator used by investors anelgsts t(
measure performance. EBITDA is also used by ouragement for internal analysis and as a basis fimptiance with financial covenants.

Set forth below is our calculation of EBITDA.
Years Ended December 31,
2010™ presented
have been
restated from
those we
previously
reported for the
respective
periods. See Note
2 in Notes to
Consolidated
Financial
Statements
included in Item 8
for a discussion of
2012 2011® these revisions. 2009% 2008%
(In thousands)
Income from continuing operations attributable to HEP $ 94,15: $ 79,79¢ $ 56,32! $ 46,23¢ $ 20,69¢
Add (subtract):

Interest expense 40,14: 34,70¢ 30,45: 20,62( 18,47¢

Amortization of discount and deferred debt issuasusts 1,94¢ 1,212 1,00¢ 70€ 1,002

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 2,97¢ — — — —

Increase in interest expense — non-cash chargésutdble to interest rate swaps and swap settlecosts 5,09t 41 2,54( 17t 2,28

Interest income — — ) (13) (11¢)

State income tax 371 234 29¢€ 20 27C

Depreciation and amortization 57,46: 36,95¢ 31,36: 27,98: 22,61t

Predecessor depreciation and amortization (7,909 (3,189 11z (1,26%) (67¢€)

EBITDA from discontinued operations (excludes gainsale of Rio Grande in 2009) — — — 6,24¢ 5,641
EBITDA $ 194,24; $ 149,76t $ 122,08¢ $ 100,70 $ 70,19¢

(5) Distributable cash flow is not a calculation baspdn GAAP. However, the amounts included in thewation are derived from amounts presented inconsolidated financial statements, with the genexaéption
of maintenance capital expenditures and distridatash flow from discontinued operations. Disttéie cash flow should not be considered in isotatir as an alternative to net income or operatiogme as &
indication of our operating performance or as derahtive to operating cash flow as a measurequfidity. Distributable cash flow is not necessagdlymparable to similarly tited measures of othempanies
Distributable cash flow is presented here becausea widely accepted financial indicator usedifwestors to compare partnership performance.sib @ used by management for internal analysisfandur
performance units. We believe that this measureiges investors an enhanced perspective of theatpgrperformance of our assets and the cash inéss is generating.
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Set forth below is our calculation of distributabkesh flow.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011® 2010® 2009% 2008®
(In thousands)
Income from continuing operations attributable to HEP $ 94,15: $ 79,79¢ $ 56,32! $ 46,23¢ $ 20,69¢
Add (subtract):
Depreciation and amortization 57,46 36,95¢ 31,36: 27,98: 22,61°F
Predecessor depreciation and amortization (7,909 (3,189 11z (1,26%) (67¢€)
Amortization of discount and deferred debt issuasusts 1,94¢ 1,212 1,00¢ 70€ 1,002
Increase in interest expense — non-cash chargésugdble to interest rate swaps 5,09t 41 2,54( 17¢ 2,28:
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 2,97¢ — — — —
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 462 (6,405) 2,03t (7,25¢) 11,95¢
Maintenance capital expenditures* (5,649 (5,41%) (4,487) (3,595 (3,139
Crude revenue settlement 3,67C (4,58%) — — —
Distributable cash flow from discontinued operati¢gexcludes gain on sale of Rio Grande in 2009) — — — 6,182 5,622
SLC Pipeline acquisition costs** — — — 2,50(C —
Other non-cash adjustments 912 1,877 2,15¢ 552 —
Distributable cash flow $ 153,12! $ 100,29! $ 91,05« $ 72,21% $ 60,36¢

*  Maintenance capital expenditures are capital expenes made to replace partially or fully depreethssets in order to maintain the existing opeyatapacity of our assets and to extend their leés. Maintenanc
capital expenditures include expenditures requivadaintain equipment reliability, tankage and pipeintegrity, safety and to address environmerggulations.

kil Under accounting standards, we were required terese rather than capitalize certain acquisitioriscos$2.5 million associated with our joint vergiagreement with Plains that closed in March 200se cost
directly relate to our interest in the new joinntiere pipeline and are similar to expansion capixplenditures; accordingly, we have added baclethests to arrive at distributable cash flow.

(6) Includes $421 million , $200 million, $159 iwh, $206 million and $171 million in Credit Agneeent advances that were classified as lw1g: debt at December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2062868, respectivel

(7) As a master limited partnership, we distribotie available cash, which historically has excelenlgr net income because depreciation and amaaiizekpense represents a nmash charge against income. The res
a decline in partnergquity since our regular quarterly distributionséaxceeded our quarterly net income. Additionafithe assets contributed and acquired from HF@enimder common control of HFC had b
acquired from third parties, our acquisition cosekcess of HFC's basis in the transferred as$&t8a5.6 millionwould have been recorded in our financial statemastincreases to our properties and equipmel
intangible assets instead of decreases to partegusty.
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Iltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operation:

This Item 7, including but not limited to the sects on “Liquidity and Capital Resources,” contdimsvard-looking statements. See “Forward-Lookingt&ments'at the beginning of Part | and Item 1A. "Risk Fastoln this
document, the words “we,” “our,” “ours” and “us’fez to HEP and its consolidated subsidiaries di® or an individual subsidiary and not to any oherson.

OVERVIEW

HEP is a Delaware limited partnership. We own apdrate petroleum product and crude oil pipelines tenminal, tankage and loading rack facilitiest thapport the refining and marketing operation$i6C in the Mid-
Continent, Southwest and Rocky Mountain regionthefUnited States. At December 31, 2012 , HFC ovendd% interest in us including the 29éneral partnership interest. We also own and ¢peedined product pipelin
and terminals, located primarily in Texas, thavier Alon's refinery in Big Spring, Texas. Additalty, we own a 75% interest in UNEV, the owner giipeline running from Utah to Las Vegas, Nevadd esiated produc
terminals and a 25% joint venture interest in th€ Pipeline, a 95-mile intrastate crude oil pipelystem that serves refineries in the Salt Lake &ea.

We generate revenues by charging tariffs for trartsm petroleum products and crude oil through pipelines, by charging fees for terminalling andrisig refined products and other hydrocarbons mmiding othe
services at our storage tanks and terminals. Weotltake ownership of products that we transpertinal or store, and therefore we are not direetlyosed to changes in commodity prices.

On November 29, 2012, we announced a twosfue-unit split, payable in the form of a commontwlistribution for each issued and outstanding commnit. The unit distribution was paid January 2®13 to all unitholde
of record on January 7, 2013. All references ta and per unit amounts in this document and reldisdosures have been adjusted to reflect thetedfethe unit split for all periods presented.

UNEYV Pipeline Interest Acquisition

On July 12, 2012, we acquired HFC's 75% intere&INEV. We paid consideration consisting of $260.@liam in cash and 2,059,806f our common units (adjusted to reflect the uplits As a result of the common ur
issued to HFC, HFC's ownership interest in us msed from 42% to 44% (including the 2$¢neral partner interest). Also under the termtheftransaction, we issued to HFC a Class B umitprsing an equity interest ir
wholly-owned subsidiary that entitles HFC to arefest in our share of annual UNEV earnings befoterést, income taxes, depreciation, and amorizatbove $30 milliobeginning July 1, 2016 and ending in June 2
subject to certain limitations. Contemporaneousiththis transaction, HFC (our general partner)eadrto forego its right to incentive distributioofsup to $1.25 milliorper quarter over the next twelve consecutive qug
periods and up to an additional four quarters imade circumstances.

Legacy Frontier Pipeline and Tankage Asset Transaat

On November 9, 2011, we acquired from HFC certaitkége, loading rack and crude receiving assetgddat HFC'’s El Dorado and Cheyenne refineries péid noneash consideration consisting of promissory notitis
an aggregate principal amount of $150 million ané13,230 of our common units. In connection witle thansaction, we entered into y&ar throughput agreements with HFC containing mim annual reven!
commitments to us of $48.3 million.

Agreements with HFC and Alol

We serve HFC's refineries under lotegm pipeline and terminal, tankage and througlgmueements expiring from 2019 to 2026. Under tleegeements, HFC agreed to transport, store andghput volumes of refine
product and crude oil on our pipelines and termitsaikage and loading rack facilities that resuliminimum annual payments to us. These minimum anpayments or revenues are subject to annual taré adjustments
July 1, based on the PPI or FERC index. As of Ddmmr81, 2012 , these agreements with HFC will tdsuhinimum annualized payments to us of $217.fioni.

If HFC fails to meet its minimum volume commitmenisder the agreements in any quarter, it will mpiieed to pay us in cash the amount of any shotifathe last day of the month following the endtloé quarter. Und
certain of the agreements, a shortfall payment beagpplied as a credit in the following four questafter minimum obligations are met.

We also have a pipelines and terminals agreemett Alon expiring in 2020 under which Alon has agtde transport on our pipelines and throughputufoour terminals volumes of refined products tresult in
minimum level of annual revenue that also is sutfe@annual tariff rate adjustments. The terms uticis agreement expire beginning in 2018 throug222 We also
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have a capacity lease agreement under which we llas space on our Orla to El Paso pipeline fershipment of refined product. As of December 3,2, these agreements with Alon will result in minimamnualize
payments to us of $31.4 million .

A significant reduction in revenues under theseagrents could have a material adverse effect onesuits of operations.

Under certain provisions of the Omnibus Agreeméat tve have with HFC, we pay HFC an annual admatise fee, currently $2.3 millionfor the provision by HFC or its affiliates of wams general and administrat
services to us. This fee does not include the isslaf personnel employed by HLS who perform sewifor us or the cost of their employee benefitsichvare separately charged to us by HFC. We aisoburse HFC and i
affiliates for direct expenses they incur on oundie
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Income, Distributable Cash Flow and Volume

The following tables present income, distributatdsh flow and volume information for the years ehBecember 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 .

Revenues

Pipelines:
Affiliates—refined product pipelines
Affiliates—intermediate pipelines
Affiliates—crude pipelines

Third parties—refined product pipelines

Terminals, tanks and loading racks:
Affiliates
Third parties

Total revenues

Operating costs and expenses
Operations (exclusive of depreciation and amoitizat
Depreciation and amortization
General and administrative

Operating income

Equity in earnings of SLC Pipeline
Interest expense, including amortization
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Other

Income before income taxes

State income tax

Net income

Allocation of net loss attributable to Predecessors

Allocation of net loss (income) attributable to gontrolling interests
Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partners

General partner interest in net income, includimgentive distribution§
Limited partners’ interest in net income

Limited partners’ earnings per unit—basic and diluted @
Weighted average limited partners’ units outstandiry

EBITDA ©

Distributable cash flow ©

Volumes (bpd)

Pipelines:
Affiliates—refined product pipelines
Affiliates—intermediate pipelines
Affiliates—crude pipelines

Third parties—refined product pipelines
Terminals and loading racks:
Affiliates

Third parties

Total for pipelines and terminal assets (bpd)
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Year Ended December 31,

Change from

(In thousands, except per unit data)

67,68 46,64¢ 21,03
28,54( 21,94¢ 6,59
45,88¢ 47,54 (1,659
142,11( 116,13 25,97
37,52 38,21¢ (695)
179,63 154,35t 25,27¢
103,47: 52,12 51,35(
9,451 7,791 1,66¢
112,92¢ 59,91¢ 53,01¢
292 56( 214,26t 78,29.
89,24. 64,52: 24,72:
57,46 36,95¢ 20,50:
7,59 6,57¢ 1,01€
154,29 108,05t 46,24
138,26 106,21 32,05(
3,36¢ 2,55; 812
(47,18 (35,95¢) (11,229
(2,979 — (2,979
10 17 @
(46,78) (33,390 (13,39)
91,47¢ 72,82¢ 18,65¢
(371) (234) (137)
91,10¢ 72,58¢ 18,51¢
4,20 6,351 (2,159
(1,159 85¢ (2,019)
94,15. 79,79¢ 14,35¢
(22,450 (16,806 (5,649
71,70. 62,99: 8,70¢
1.2¢ 1.3¢ (0.09
55,69¢ 45,67: 10,02¢
194,24; 149,76 44,47¢
153,12t 100,29 52,83(
107,50¢ 90,78. 16,72
127,16¢ 93,41¢ 33,75(
171,04( 161,78 9,251
405,71¢ 345,99( 59,72¢
63,15. 52,36 10,79:
468,87( 398,35: 70,51¢
271,54¢ 193,64t 77,90¢
53,45¢ 44,45: 9,00
325,00¢ 238,00¢ 86,90¢
793,87t 636,45( 157,42t




Years Ended December 31, Change from
2011® 2010 2010

(In thousands, except per unit data)

Revenues
Pipelines:
Affiliates—refined product pipelines $ 46,64¢ $ 48,45¢ $ (1,809
Affiliates—intermediate pipelines 21,94¢ 20,99¢ 95C
Affiliates—crude pipelines 47,54 38,93. 8,61(
116,13¢ 108,38¢ 7,751
Third parties—refined product pipelines 38,21¢ 27,96: 10,25¢
154,35! 136,35( 18,00¢
Terminals, tanks and loading racks:
Affiliates 52,12; 37,97¢ 14,14:
Third parties 7,791 7,80¢ (17)
59,91¢ 45,787 14,12¢
Total revenues 214,26¢ 182,13 32,13!
Operating costs and expenses
Operations (exclusive of depreciation and amoitzat 64,52 54,94¢ 9,57¢
Depreciation and amortization 36,95¢ 31,36: 5,59¢
General and administrative 6,57¢ 7,71¢ (1,143
108,05! 94,02¢ 14,027
Operating income 106,21: 88,10¢ 18,10«
Equity in earnings of SLC Pipeline 2,552 2,39% 15¢
Interest expense, including amortization (35,959 (33,999 (1,96¢)
Other expense 17 17 —
(33,390 (31,589 (1,806)
Income before income taxes 72,82 56,52 16,29¢
State income tax (234) (29€) 62
Net income 72,58¢ 56,22¢ 16,36(
Allocation of net loss attributable to Predecessors 6,351 70 6,281
Allocation of net loss attributable to noncontnogiinterests 85¢ 24 83¢
Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partners 79,79¢ 56,32¢ 23,47¢
General partner interest in net income, includimgentive distribution§ (16,806 (12,089 (4,722
Limited partners’ interest in net income $ 62,99! $ 44,23¢ $ 18,75«
Limited partners’ earnings per unit—basic and diluted @ $ 13  $ 100  $ 0.3¢
Weighted average limited partners’ units outstandiry 45,67 44,157 1,518
EBITDA @ $ 149,76t $ 122,08¢ $ 27,677
Distributable cash flow © $ 100,29t  $ 91,05«  $ 9,241
Volumes (bpd)
Pipelines:
Affiliates—refined product pipelines 90,78: 96,09« (5,319
Affiliates—intermediate pipelines 93,41¢ 84,277 9,142
Affiliates—crude pipelines 161,78¢ 144,01: 17,77¢
345,99( 324,38: 21,60¢
Third parties—refined product pipelines 52,36! 38,91( 13,45!
398,35: 363,29: 35,05¢
Terminals and loading racks:
Affiliates 193,64! 178,90¢ 14,74;
Third parties 44,45¢ 39,56¢ 4,88¢€
238,09¢ 218,47: 19,62¢
Total for pipelines and terminal assets (bpd) 636,45( 581,76: 54,681

(1) The amounts presented above have been restatedHom® we previously reported for the respectivéops. See Note 2 in Notes to Consolidated Findr®&tiatements included in Item 8 for a discussiorhess:
revisions.
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(2) Net income is allocated between limited partnerd #re general partner interest in accordance vhieh grovisions of the partnership agreement. Neorive allocated to the general partner includes e
distributions declared subsequent to quarter ertlifdome attributable to the limited partnersiisded by the weighted average limited partner sipintstanding in computing the limited partngyst unit interest i
netincome.

(3) EBITDA is calculated as net income plus (i) intéregpense, net of interest income, (i) state inedax and (iii) depreciation and amortization. EBE is not a calculation based upon GAAP. Howeviee, amouni
included in the EBITDA calculation are derived framounts included in our consolidated financialesteents, with the exception of EBITDA from discontéd operations. EBITDA should not be consideredr
alternative to net income or operating income,ramédication of our operating performance or asti@rnative to operating cash flow as a measutiguitlity. EBITDA is not necessarily comparabledimilarly titled
measures of other companies. EBITDA is presentee because it is a widely used financial indicatsed by investors and analysts to measure perfaen&BITDA is also used by our management for il
analysis and as a basis for compliance with firerenvenants. See our calculation of EBITDA undeml 6, “Selected Financial Data.”

4

N

Distributable cash flow is not a calculation baspdn GAAP. However, the amounts included in thewdation are derived from amounts presented inconsolidated financial statements, with the genexaéption
of maintenance capital expenditures and distridatash flow from discontinued operations. Disttéie cash flow should not be considered in isotatir as an alternative to net income or operatiogme as &
indication of our operating performance or as derahtive to operating cash flow as a measurequfidity. Distributable cash flow is not necessaglymparable to similarly tited measures of othempanies
Distributable cash flow is presented here becausea widely accepted financial indicator usedifwestors to compare partnership performance. #l$e used by management for internal analysisfandur
performance units. We believe that this measureiges investors an enhanced perspective of theatipgrperformance of our assets and the cash ainédss is generating. See our calculation of 8istable cas
flow under Item 6, “Selected Financial Data.”

Results of Operations — Year Ended December 31, 2DCompared with Year Ended December 31, 2011

Summary

Net income attributable to HEP for tyear ended December 31, 2012 was $94.2 milliol$144 million increase compared to the year endedefhber 31, 2011This increase in earnings is due principallyrtoréase
pipeline shipments, earnings attributable to ouvédpber 2011 acquisition and annual tariff increa$éese factors were offset partially by increasperating costs and expenses, higher interest sgpard a loss on the e:
extinguishment of debt. Although net income atttétile to HEP increased, limited partners' per imtérest in earnings decreased from $1.38 perimi@011 to $1.29 per unit in 2012. The principaitéas causing the decre.
in limited partners' per unit interest, relativethe overall net income attributable to HEP incesagere higher incentive distributions to the gahpartner and the UNEV acquisition not yet beingrative to earnings, althou
it was accretive to distributable cash flow.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012dim¢he recognition of $4.0 million of prior sholitfabilled to shippers in 2011. Deficiency paymeofs$7.8 millionassociated with certain guaranteed shipping cots
were deferred during the year ended December 312 2Buch deferred revenue will be recognized in egskither as payment for shipments in excess afagiieed levels, if and to the extent the pipediystem will not hav
necessary capacity to provide for shipments in &xoé guaranteed levels, or when shipping righggrexunused.

Revenue:

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, @@t@ $292.6 million , a $78.3 million increase qared to the year ended December 31, 200His is due principally to increased pipelinepshénts, revenues attributa
to our recent acquisitions and the effect of antasddf increases partially offset by a $4.6 mitlidecrease in previously deferred revenue realiretér our guaranteed shipping contracts. Overpélivie volumes were up8%
compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 .

Revenues from our refined product pipelines wer85%1 million , an increase of $20.3 million comparte the year ended December 31, 20Tmhis includes $15.0 million in revenues attritnieato UNEV pipelin:
throughputs which commenced initial stap-activities in December 2011 partially offsetdy$5.4 million decrease in previously deferred nexerealized under our guaranteed shipping costraftlumes shipped on ¢
refined product pipelines averaged 170.7 thousanckls per day (“mbpd“) compared to 143.1 mbpd2f@t1 .

Revenues from our intermediate pipelines were $&8lon , an increase of $6.6 million comparedtte year ended December 31, 20This includes $3.4 million of increased revenattsbutable to the Tulsa interconn
pipelines, which were placed in
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service in September 2011, and a $0.8 million iaseein previously deferred revenue realized undemgoaranteed shipping contracts. Volumes shippedu intermediate pipelines averaged 127.2 mbmapesed t93.4
mbpd for 2011 .

Revenues from our crude pipelines were $45.9 millia decrease of $1.7 million compared to the geded December 31, 201Revenues for the year ended December 31, 201idedt $5.5 million attributable to a crt
pipeline revenue settlement with HFC. Volumes sképn our crude pipelines increased to an averafjélo0 mbpd compared to 161.8 mbpd for 2011 .

Revenues from terminal, tankage and loading raek feere $112.9 million , an increase of $53.0 onllcompared to year ended December 31, 200His increase is due principally to $45.4 milliohincreased revenu
attributable to our terminal, tankage and loadiacks serving HFC's El Dorado and Cheyenne refiseRefined products terminalled in our facilitiesrieased to an average of 325.0 mbpd comparedta &#pd for 2011 .

Operations Expense

Operations expense for the year ended Decemb@032,increased by $24.7 million compared to the geded December 31, 2011 . This increase is dneipally to increased operating costs of $9.6 iprilland$5.2 millior
attributable to our recently acquired UNEV pipelared assets serving HFC's El Dorado and Cheyeffinenies, respectively, higher throughput levelswedl as year-oveyear increases in property taxes, maintenancecg
and payroll costs.

Depreciation and Amortizatiot
Depreciation and amortization for the year endedebwber 31, 2012 increased by $20.5 million compaoethe year ended December 31, 20IThis increase is due principally to depreciatatributable to our rece
acquisitions from HFC and capital projects. Alsatributing were increases in asset abandonmengebaelated to tankage no longer in service.

General and Administrative
General and administrative costs for the year eftiszember 31, 2012 increased by $1.0 million coexpén the year ended December 31, 2011 due togdinfiprofessional fees related to recent acquisstio

Equity in Earnings of SLC Pipeline
Our equity in earnings of the SLC Pipeline was $8ilion and $2.6 million for the years ended Det®em31, 2012 and 2011 .

Interest Expense¢
Interest expense for the year ended December 3R, @faled $47.2 million , an increase of $11.2lionl compared to the year ended December 31, 20His.increase reflects interest on a year-oear increase in de
levels. Our aggregate effective interest rate wa%oand 6.7% for the years ended December 31, 2042011 , respectively.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Det
We recognized a charge of $3.0 million upon thédyeaxtinguishment of our 6.25% senior notes forykar ended December 31, 2QIPhis charge relates to the premium paid to ndthte upon their tender of an aggre:
principal amount of $185.0 million and related ficing costs that were previously deferred.

State Income Ta

We recorded state income tax expense of $371,006284,000 for the years ended December 31, 2042@h1 which is solely attributable to the Texasgimatax.

Results of Operations— Year Ended December 31, 20Cbompared with Year Ended December 31, 2010

Summary

Net income attributable to HEP for tyear ended December 31, 2011 was $79.8 milliofi23a5 million increase compared to the year endecehber 31, 2010This increase in overall earnings is due prinéypa increase
pipeline shipments, earnings attributable to ouvédober 2011 asset acquisition and an increaseewiqusly deferred revenue realized under our gueeshshipping contracts. Also contributing to eagsiwas a settleme
with HFC relating to a clarification of the appré@ie charges for certain past deliveries into sude pipeline system. These factors were offséigligrby an overall increase in operating costd arpenses.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, #xldde the recognition of $12.4 million of prionartfalls billed to shippers in 2010. Deficiencyypzents of $4.0 million associated with certain guaeed shipping contra

were deferred during the year ended December 31, 20
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Revenue:

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, @@té $214.3 million , a $32.1 million increase @ared to the year ended December 31, 20Mids is due principally to an overall increasepipeline shipments, revent
attributable to our November 2011 asset acquistiarfs4 million increase in previously deferrederave realized under our guaranteed shipping cdatriae effect of annual tariff increases and ti#CHrude pipeline reven
settlement. Overall pipeline volumes were up 10%hpared to the year ended December 31, 2010 .

Certain related-party pipeline volumes were downirdu2011 as a result of downtime at HFC's Navajinery following a planwide power outage in late January 2011 and theesulent delay in restoring productior
planned levels.

Revenues from our refined product pipelines werg$&nillion , an increase of $8.4 million compatedhe year ended December 31, 20Tis is due to a $4.3 million increase in presigudeferred revenue realized ur
our guaranteed shipping contracts and an increathérd-party refined product pipeline shipmentslivmes shipped on our refined product pipelinesayed 143.1 mbpd compared to 135.0 mbpd for thee gmariod in 2010.

Revenues from our intermediate pipelines were $&ilion , an increase of $1.0 million comparedhe year ended December 31, 20Tis includes $0.8 million in revenues attribuéato the Tulsa interconnect pipelir
and a $0.3 million decrease in previously defemagnue realized under our guaranteed shippingattst Volumes shipped on our intermediate pipslimeeraged 93.4 mbpd compared to 84tfd for the same period
2010.

Revenues from our crude pipelines were $47.5 millian increase of $8.6 million compared to the yealed December 31, 201This includes $5.5 million in revenues attribuéato a crude pipeline revenue settlement
HFC. Volumes shipped on our crude pipelines in@das an average of 161.8 mbpd compared to 144p@irfds the same period in 2010.

Revenues from terminal, tankage and loading raek feere $59.9 million , an increase of $14.1 milllmmpared to the year ended December 31, 2Tk increase is due principally to $7.1 millimnrevenues attributable
our terminal, tankage and loading racks serving WM Dorado and Cheyenne refineries. Refined prtsdierminalled in our facilities increased to aerage of 238.1 mbpd compared to 2185pd for the same period |
year.

Operations Expense

Operations expense for the year ended Decembe2@1, increased by $9.6 million compared to the yeated December 31, 2010This increase is due principally to operatingtsaxf $2.0 million and $3.8 millic
attributable to our recently acquired UNEV pipelared assets serving HFC's El Dorado and Cheyefiinenies, respectively, as well as year-oyess increases in maintenance services and payosts. Additionally, in th
year ended December 31, 2010, we recognized ael@argnvironmental remediation of $1.7 millic

Depreciation and Amortizatior
Depreciation and amortization for the year endedebwer 31, 2011 increased by $5.6 million compéoettie year ended December 31, 20Tis increase is due principally to depreciat@tributable to our acquisitio
from HFC and capital projects.

General and Administrative
General and administrative costs for the year eftiszember 31, 2011 decreased by $1.1 million coetbtr the year ended December 31, 2010 due to lpreéessional fees and services.

Equity in Earnings of SLC Pipeline
Our equity in earnings of the SLC Pipeline was $8ifion and $2.4 million for the years ended Detem31, 2011 and 2010 .

Interest Expense¢

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, ®aled $36.0 million , an increase of $2.0 imillcompared to the year ended December 31, 20Hs increase reflects interest on increased ksfels during 201
partially offset by prior year costs of $1.1 millithat relate to the partial settlement of an egerate swap. Excluding the effects of fair vadd@ustments to this swap in 2010, our aggregaget¥e interest rate was 6.7/r
the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to ®@B2010.

State Income Ta
We recorded state income taxes of $234,000 and,$298or the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2@kpectively, which are solely attributablehie Texas margin tax.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview

In June 2012, we amended the Credit Agreementasing the size of the credit facility from $375 lioit to $550 million . Our $550 milliosenior secured revolving credit facility expireslime 2017 and is available to fi
capital expenditures, investments, acquisitionstrithution payments and working capital and foregahpartnership purposes. It also is availableital letters of credit up to a $50 million sliimit and to fund distributions
unitholders up to a $60 million sub-limit. In Felry 2012 we amended our credit agreement incrediséngize of the credit facility from $275 milliaa $375 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , we redeadvances totaling $587.0 million and repaid $3@6illion , resulting in net advances of $221.0lioi under the Credit Agreement and an outstandiaignce of6421.(
million at December 31, 2012 .

If any particular lender under the Credit Agreememtild not honor its commitment, we believe the sgtlicapacity that would be available from the remailenders would be sufficient to meet our borirmvneed:
Additionally, we review publicly available informan on the lenders in order to monitor their finmhstability and assess their ongoing ability tmbr their commitments under the Credit Agreemeve. do not expect
experience any difficulty in the lenders’ ability honor their respective commitments, and if itevier become necessary, we believe there wouldtémative lenders or options available.

Under our registration statement filed with the SEIhg a “shelf” registration process, we curreffithve the ability to raise up to $2.0 billiby offering securities, through one or more prospesupplements that woi
describe, among other things, the specific amoumises and terms of any securities offered and tieyproceeds would be used. Any proceeds fronsake of securities would be used for general bssipeirposes, whi
may include, among other things, funding acquisiiof assets or businesses, working capital, dapifenditures, investments in subsidiaries, thieeraent of existing debt and/or the repurchaseashmon units or oth
securities.

We believe our current cash balances, future iatBrmenerated funds and funds available underCireslit Agreement will provide sufficient resourdesmeet our working capital liquidity needs for tfueeseeable futur
Additionally, we funded $260.0 million of the caghrtion of our UNEV Pipeline interest acquisitiaor HFC on July 12, 2012 with advances under thei€Agreement.

In February, May, August and November 2012, we pagllar quarterly cash distributions of $0.4430,448 , $0.455 and $0.463, respectively, on altsuim an aggregate amount of $122.8 milliomcluded in thes
distributions were $20.6 million of incentive distition payments to the general partner.

Contemporaneously with our UNEV Pipeline interesudsition on July 12, 2012, HFC (our general panrtragreed to forego its right to incentive digitibns of $1.25 milliorper quarter over the next twelve consect
quarterly periods and up to an additional four tgrarin certain circumstances.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $1.1 milliaing the year ended December 31, 2012 . The ftmsh provided by operating activities of $161.4limn were less than the cash flows used for financiryiamesting
activities of $119.7 million and $42.9 million ,smectively. Working capital increased by $5.2 miilito $11.8 million at December 31, 2012 from $®i8ion at December 31, 2011 .

Cash Flows—Operating Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with Year Eed December 31, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities increased b2.8 million from $99.0 million for the year end&&cember 31, 2011 to $161.4 million for the yeadleshDecember 31, 2012 . This increase is due paiigito $63.C
million in additional cash collections from our toiers, partially offset by payments attributaloléncreased operating expenses.

Our major shippers are obligated to make deficigmyments to us if they do not meet their minimwtume shipping obligations. Under certain agreemeuith these shippers, they have the right to recaghese amounts

future volumes exceed minimum levels. We billed6$aillion during the year ended December 31, 2Gated to shortfalls that subsequently expired suittrecapture and were recognized as revenue dthégear ende
December 31, 2012 . Another $7.8 million is inclddie our accounts receivable at December 31, 26lb2ed to shortfalls that occurred during the yerated December 31, 2012 .
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Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared with Year Eed December 31, 2010
Cash flows from operating activities decreased By $nillion from $104.7 million for the year end&#cember 31, 2010 to $99.0 millidor the year ended December 31, 2011. This dectisahige principally to paymer
attributable to increased interest and operatimeeges, net of $11.1 million in additional cashemions from our customers.

We billed $10.4 million during the year ended Debem31, 2010 related to shortfalls that subsequentpired without recapture and were recognizeteasnue during the year ended December 31, 2011lredgnized &
additional $2 million related to shortfalls billéd 2011 as a result of an amendment to our throughgreement with Alon in June 2011 that limits daeryover term of credits attributable to suchrefad billings to the
calendar year end in which the shortfalls occurfetbther $0.8 million was included in our accourgseivable at December 31, 2011 related to shisrttat occurred in the fourth quarter of 2011.

Cash Flows—Investing Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with Year Eed December 31, 2011

Cash flows used for investing activities decredsg®$163.4 million from $206.3 million for the yeanded December 31, 2011 to $42.9 million for tharyended December 31, 2012 . During years ended December
2012 and 2011 , we invested $42.9 million and $20dillion in additions to properties and equipment, respeltivihe decrease is attributable to lower expemeltin 2012 as a result of the completion of tINEW pipeline
in 2011.

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared with Year Eed December 31, 2010

Cash flows used for investing activities increasg®64.3 million from $142.1 million for the yeanded December 31, 2010 to $206.3 millfonthe year ended December 31, 2011. During tlae gaded December 31, 20
we invested $206.3 million in additions to propestand equipment. During the year ended Decembet@®D, we paid $35.5 million in cash with respecbur asset acquisitions from HFC and investeds$g tnillion in
additions to properties and equipment. Capital edjiares for UNEV were $176.9 million and $84.4lioit for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2@spectively.

Cash Flows—Financing Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared with Year Eed December 31, 2011

Cash flows used for financing activities were $¥1®illion for the year ended December 31, 2012 careqh to cash provided of $105.6 million for theryeaded December 31, 2011 , a decrease of $228i8rmiDuring the
year ended December 31, 2C, we received $587.0 million and repaid $366.0ipnillin advances under the Credit Agreement, redene proceeds of $294.8 millidrom the issuance of our 6.5% senior notes andida
$260.2 million of our promissory notes. As partiainsideration for the acquisition of HFC's 75% iieg in UNEV on July 12, 2012, we paid HFC $260.@lion in cash (after a customary padbsing working capit:
adjustment). Additionally, we paid $122.8 million iegular quarterly cash distributions to our gahand limited partners, paid $3.2 million in ficamg costs to amend our Credit Agreement and p4i€l #illion for the
purchase of common units for recipients of our imise grants. We also received contributions of 81Sillion from UNEV's joint venture partners. Dug the year ended December 31, 2011 , we receil/&8.@ millionanc
repaid $77.0 million in advances under the Credjte®ment, received proceeds of $75.8 million framissuance of our common units, and repaid $71libmof our promissory notes. Additionally, weige$91.5 millionin
regular quarterly cash distributions to our general limited partners, we received $156.5 milliconf UNEV's joint venture partners, received $5.8iam from our general partner, incurred $3.2 roifliin financing cost
upon the issuance of the 8.25% senior notes, aiddbiab million for the purchase of common units ffecipients of our incentive grants.

Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared with Year Eed December 31, 2010

Cash flows used for financing activities were $80Billion for the year ended December 31, 2011jremease of $69.7 million compared to $35.9 million the year ended December 31, 2010. During the gade
December 31, 2011, we received $118.0 million amhid $77.0 million in advances under the Creditegnent, repaid $77.1 million on our promissoryesassued to HFC, received $75.8 millionproceeds from tt
issuance of our common units, received $5.9 milifooapital contributions from our general partmeaid $91.5 million in regular quarterly cash disstions to our general and limited partners, weeieed $156.5 milliorfrom
UNEV's joint venture partners, paid $1.6 milliorr the purchase of common units for recipients afingentive grants and paid $3.2 milliemfinancing costs to amend our previous credieagrent. During the year enc
December 31, 2010, we received $66.0 million ampaice$113.0 million in advances under the Credite®gnent. Additionally, we received $147.5 millionriet proceeds and incurred $0.5 milliarfinancing costs upon t
issuance of our 8.25% senior notes. Also in the geded December 31, 2010, we paid $84.4 millioregular quarterly cash distributions to our geharal limited partners, received $80.5 millisam UNEV's joint ventur
partners, paid $57.6 million in excess of HFC'sigferred basis in the storage assets acquired ioHvE010 and paid $2.7 million for the purchaseahmon units for recipients of our incentive grants

Capital Requirements
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Our pipeline and terminalling operations are capitgensive, requiring investments to maintain, &xg, upgrade or enhance existing operations ante& environmental and operational regulations. cpital requiremen
have consisted of, and are expected to continwersist of, maintenance capital expenditures apamrsion capital expenditures. “Maintenance capitplenditures’tepresent capital expenditures to replace part@ilfully
depreciated assets to maintain the operating dgpafcexisting assets. Maintenance capital expenelit include expenditures required to maintain ggent reliability, tankage and pipeline integrisafety and to addre
environmental regulations. “Expansion capital expiemes”represent capital expenditures to expand the dpgreapacity of existing or new assets, whethesugh construction or acquisition. Expansion capgtqienditure
include expenditures to acquire assets, to growbasiness and to expand existing facilities, sucprajects that increase throughput capacity orpgelines and in our terminals. Repair and maiabee expenses associ:
with existing assets that are minor in nature amdat extend the useful life of existing assetsci@rged to operating expenses as incurred.

Each year the HLS board of directors approves onual capital budget, which specifies capital prtgehat our management is authorized to undertdtditionally, at times when conditions warrantas new opportuniti¢
arise, additional projects may be approved. Thelduallocated for a particular capital project mayelxpended over a period in excess of a year, dapgeon the time required to complete the projéberefore, our planni
capital expenditures for a given year consist gfeexitures approved for capital projects includethie current year's capital budget as well asgitain cases, expenditures approved for capitgégts in capital budgets
prior years. The 2013 regular capital budget is mased of $10.1 million for maintenance capital enditures and $2.0 million for expansion capitgbenditures exclusive of the projects discussedvhello addition to o
capital budget, we may spend funds periodicallgdccapital upgrades of our assets where a custeimeburses us for such costs. These reimbursementtl be required under contractual agreementsaandd generall
benefit the customer over the remaining life ofrsegreements.

We recently have made certain modifications to @ude oil gathering and trunk line system that@ffely have increased our ability to gather arhsport an additional 10,000 barrels per day (“ppdDelaware Basi
crude oil in response to increased drilling acyivit southeast New Mexico. We have a second progszntly approved which consists of the reactra@ind conversion to crude oil service of a 70-n8knch petroleur
products pipeline owned by us. This project alstudes the expansion and extension of several otude gathering systems and crude mainline pi@sce in service, this system will be capablerafisporting crude ¢
from southeast New Mexico to thigarty common carrier pipelines in west Texas fothfer transport to major crude oil markets. Thisjgct is estimated to cost approximately $38.5iamilland could be fully operational
late 2013.

We also are performing preliminary engineering tirmuand cost estimates for two proposed new pigsli The first proposed pipeline would be a nevastate crude oil pipeline between Cushing, Okladamd HFC's Tuls
Oklahoma refinery. The 56tle line would provide safe and reliable transpafrCushing sourced domestic and Canadian crude ¢iFC's 125,000 BPD Tulsa facility. The pipeliweuld allow for a significant portion
crude oil transported to be heavy Canadian and @ouie oil. Crude oil processed at HFC's Tulsdifgaiurrently is transported on pipelines owned3wynoco Logistics and Magellan Pipeline Companye 3écond propos
pipeline would be a new 10@ile interstate petroleum products pipeline betwel&C's Cheyenne, Wyoming refinery and Denver, Galor The 52,000 BPD refinery, with its ability tcopess up to 35,000 BPD of he:
Canadian crude and its close proximity to growingnestic crude production, is a significant supptiepetroleum products to the Denver market. Thgent also will evaluate the construction of a n@stroleum produc
terminal in North Denver or, alternatively, the tiog of the new pipeline to existing thigghrty product terminals in the Denver area. Thimstructure addition would ensure safe and rediatdnsport of petroleum produ
from HFC's location-advantaged refinery to its &sgmarket. Petroleum products produced at HFCéy&ine, Wyoming refinery are currently transpote®enver on the Rocky Mountain Pipelisgiroducts line owned
Plains All-American. We anticipate that we will be in a pasitto decide whether to proceed with these projedise second quarter of 2013 when preliminaryiregying and detailed project cost estimates angpbeted an
if necessary shipper commitments can be secured.

We expect that our currently planned sustainingraathtenance capital expenditures, as well as elpers for acquisitions and capital developmenjguts will be funded with existing cash generdigaperations, the s¢
of additional limited partner common units, theussce of debt securities and advances under oulit@Gxgreement, or a combination thereof. With vibilgtand uncertainty at times in the credit andiigg markets, there m;
be limits on our ability to issue new debt or egdihancing. Additionally, due to pricing movemeritsthe debt and equity markets, we may not be tiblesue new debt and equity securities at acbépfaricing. Withou
additional capital beyond amounts available unterGredit Agreement, our ability to obtain funds$ome of these capital projects may be limited.

On July 12, 2012, we acquired HFC's 75% interestNEV. We paid consideration consisting of $260illiam in cash and 2,059,800 of our common unitdj{ated to reflect the unit split). We paid an aiddial $0.9 millior
to HFC for a post-closing working capital adjustrnas provided for by the acquisition agreementaAssult of the common units issued to HFC, HF@Besship interest in us increased from 42% to 4#%l{ding the2%
general partner interest). Also under the termbef
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transaction, we issued to HFC a Class B unit casimgia noncontrolling equity interest in a wholiyned subsidiary subject to redemption to the extiest HFC is entitled to a 50% interest in ourrshaf annual UNE'
earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciatind amortization above $30 millitreginning July 1, 2016 and ending in June 2032jestito certain limitations. Such contingent redéop payments are limited tc
maximum payment amount calculated as describedvbélowever, to the extent earnings thresholds ateachieved, no redemption payments are requiredtéinporaneously with this transaction, HFC (ouregel partne!
agreed to forego its right to incentive distribngoof up to $1.25 million per quarter over the rigvetlve consecutive quarterly periods and up tacditional fourquarters in certain circumstances. The Class Bhastan initie
value of $12.2 million which will increase with daforegone incentive distribution as described a&band by a 7%actor compounded annually on the outstanding weeetkd balance through its expiration date. At qioa,
we may redeem, in whole or in part, the Class B anihe current unredeemed value based on thelataén described. Noncontrolling interests repaitethe Consolidated Statements of Income incthéeminority partner
25% interest in UNEV and income attributable to @lass B unit representing foregone incentive itistion rights and the 7% accretion factor, whidtlectively amounted to $1.2 milliofor the period July 12, 2012
December 31, 2012.

Credit Agreement

In June 2012, we amended our credit agreementasicrg the size of the credit facility from $375 linih to $550 million . Our $550 million senior seed revolving credit facility expires in June 20{tfe “Credit Agreemen}”
and is available to fund capital expenditures, §tweents, acquisitions, distribution payments andking capital and for general partnership purpo#ds.available also to fund letters of credittopa $50 million subimit anc
to fund distributions to unitholders up to a $60liom sub-limit. In February 2012 we amended owedit agreement increasing the size of the crediliiafrom $275 million to $375 million.

Our obligations under the Credit Agreement areatethblized by substantially all of our assets. btdéness under the Credit Agreement is recourste® Logistics Holdings, L.P. (“HEP Logisticsur general partner, a
guaranteed by our material wholbyvned subsidiaries. Any recourse to HEP Logisticsily be limited to the extent of its assets, whother than its investment in us, are not significivie may prepay all loans at any ti
without penalty, except for payment of certain legge and related costs.

Indebtedness under the Credit Agreement bearsestteat our option, at either (a) the reference aatannounced by the administrative agent pluspplicable margin (ranging from 0.75% to 1.75%]lorat a rate equal
LIBOR plus an applicable margin (ranging from 1.782.75%). In each case, the applicable margbaged upon the ratio of our funded debt (as defin¢be Credit Agreement) to EBITDA (earnings befamterest, taxe
depreciation and amortization, as defined in thed@rAgreement). We incur a commitment fee on thesed portion of the Credit Agreement at an anratal ranging from 0.30% to 0.50% based upon the cdtour funde:
debt to EBITDA for the four most recently complefestal quarters.

The Credit Agreement imposes certain requirememtssothat we are currently in compliance with, unithg: a prohibition against distribution to uniltlers if, before or after the distribution, a pdtehdefault or an event
default as defined in the agreement would occmnitditions on our ability to incur debt, make loaasguire other companies, change the nature obasiness, enter a merger or consolidation, orasskts; and covenants
require maintenance of a specified EBITDA to ing¢rexpense ratio, total debt to EBITDA ratio andisedebt to EBITDA ratio. If an event of defaukists under the Credit Agreement, the lenders bellable to acceler:
the maturity of the debt and exercise other rigind remedies.

Senior Notes

In March 2012, we issued $300 million in aggregaiacipal amount outstanding of 6.5% senior notesumng March 1, 2020 (the “6.5% Senior Notedpt Proceeds of $294.8 million were used to red&&6v.8 millior
aggregate principal amount of 6.25% senior notesirimgy March 1, 2015 (the “6.25 Senior Noteg#hdered pursuant to a cash tender offer and cosséditation, to repay $72.9 million in promisganotes due to HFC
discussed below, to pay related fees, expenses@rded interest in connection with these transastand to repay borrowings under the Credit Ageremin April 2012, we redeemed $27.2 million aggte principe
amount of 6.25% Senior Notes that remained outstgrfdllowing the cash tender offer and consenicgation.

We also have $150 million in aggregate principabant outstanding of 8.25% senior notes maturingddd5s, 2018 (the “8.25 Senior Notes”).
Our 6.5% Senior Notes and 8.25% Senior Notes (ctbhely, the “Senior Notes™are unsecured and impose certain restrictive cawsnehich we are currently in compliance with, irdihg limitations on our ability to inc
additional indebtedness, make investments, seditgsimcur certain liens, pay distributions, erniéo transactions with affiliates, and enter intergers. At any time when the Senior Notes are riaweslstment grade by bc

Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s and no default om¢wé default
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exists, we will not be subject to many of the faieg covenants. Additionally, we have certain redéan rights under the Senior Notes.

Indebtedness under the Senior Notes is recoursfE® Logistics, and guaranteed by our whaliyned subsidiaries. However, any recourse to HEgsties would be limited to the extent of its assethich other than i

investment in us, are not significant.

Our purchase and contribution agreements with HRE mespect to the intermediate pipelines acquine2005 and the crude pipelines and tankage aasgtsred in 2008, restrict us from selling theggephes and termine
acquired from HFC. Under these agreements, weeateiated from prepaying borrowings and ladegn debt to outstanding balances below $206 milfidor to 2015 and $171 million prior to 2018, fdb to certain limite

exceptions.

Promissory Note:

In November 2011, we issued senior unsecured psamisotes to HFC (the “Promissory Notebgving an aggregate principal amount of $150.0ionilto finance a portion of our November 9, 201dasition of asse
located at HFC's El Dorado and Cheyenne refinehieBecember 2011, we repaid $77.1 million of catsting principal using proceeds received in ourddgier 2011 common unit offering and existing c&¥b.repaid th
remaining $72.9 million balance in March 2012.

Long-term Debt

The carrying amounts of our long-term debt areollews:

Credit Agreement

6.5% Senior Notes
Principal
Unamortized discount

6.25% Senior Notes

Principal

Unamortized net discount
8.25% Senior Notes

Principal

Unamortized discount

Promissory Notes

Total long-term debt

See “Risk Management” for a discussion of our iegérate swaps.

Long-term Contractual Obligations
The following table presents our long-term contnatbbligations as of December 31, 2012.

Long-term debt — principal
Long-term debt - interest
Pipeline operating lease
Right-of-way leases
Other

Total

December 31,

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)
$ 421,00( $ 200,00(
300,00( —
(4,725 —
295,27! —
— 185,00(
— (105)
— 184,89!
150,00( 150,00(
(1,60]) (1,907)
148,39¢ 148,09:
— 72,90(
$ 864,67 $ 605,88¢
Payments Due by Period
Less than Over 5
Total 1 Year 1-3Years 3-5Years Years
(In thousands)
$ 871,00( — $ — $ 421,000 $ 450,00(
260,95: 42,23¢ 84,47¢ 79,29¢ 54,93¢
36,69¢ 6,672 13,34 13,34 [BR38H
1,34( 237 35¢€ 32t 42z
16,21( 1,51¢ 2,961 2,72 8,99¢
$1,186,19 50,667 $ 101,14: $ 516,68' $ 517,69:
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Long-term debt consists of outstanding principalemthe Credit Agreement, Senior Notes and Promjs§¥otes. Interest on the credit agreement is ¢aed using the rate in effect at December 31, 2012

The pipeline operating lease amounts above refhecexercise of the first of three ¥8ar extensions, expiring in 2017, on our leaseemgent for the refined products pipeline betweerité\llakes Junction and Kuntz Stat
in New Mexico. However, these amounts exclude éw®sd and third 10-year lease extensions, whicadbas the current outlook, are likely to be exexdis

Most of our right-of-way agreements are renewable annual basis, and the right-of-way lease pagsrebove include only obligations under the remgimoncancelable terms of these agreements at Decemp2032
For the foreseeable future, we intend to contimmewing these agreements and expect to incur oigviey expenses in addition to the payments listed.

Other contractual obligations consist of site senagreements with HFC expiring in 2024 through720@r the provision of certain maintenance antityttosts that relate to our assets located at 'slFinery facilities.

Impact of Inflation
Inflation in the United States has been relativelgderate in recent years and did not have a mhtengact on our results of operations for the yesmded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20Historically, the PPI h:
increased an average of 3.1% annually over thepeatendar years.

The substantial majority of our revenues are geadrander longerm contracts that provide for increases in otesand minimum revenue guarantees annually foeases in the PPI. Certain of these contracts
provisions that limit the level of annual PPI perizgye rate increases. Although the recent PPl aserenay not be indicative of additional increasebe realized in the future, a significant and @ngled period of inflatic
could adversely affect our cash flows and restulgperations if costs increase at a rate greater the fees we charge our shippers.

Environmental Matters

Our operation of pipelines, terminals, and assedidiacilities in connection with the transportatamd storage of refined products and crude oili§est to stringent and complex federal, state, landl laws and regulatio
governing the discharge of materials into the emuinent, or otherwise relating to the protectiorihaf environment. As with the industry generallympliance with existing and anticipated laws andutetions increases c
overall cost of business, including our capitaltsds construct, maintain, and upgrade equipmedatfacilities. While these laws and regulations effeur maintenance capital expenditures and netirec we believe that th
do not affect our competitive position given thaé toperations of our competitors are similarly etiéd. We believe that our operations are in subisfacompliance with applicable environmental laarsd regulation
However, these laws and regulations, and the irg&afion or enforcement thereof, are subject tqueat change by regulatory authorities, and weuaeble to predict the ongoing cost to us of conmgyivith these laws al
regulations or the future impact of these laws meglilations on our operations. Violation of envimemtal laws, regulations, and permits can resulh@imposition of significant administrative, diand criminal penaltie
injunctions, and construction bans or delays. Allisge of hydrocarbons or hazardous substanceshiatenvironment could, to the extent the evemisinsured, subject us to substantial expensé&dimg both the cost
comply with applicable laws and regulations andnetamade by employees, neighboring landowners #mef third parties for personal injury and propetamage.

Under the Omnibus Agreement and certain transpontaigreements and purchase agreements with HFC,HdBE agreed to indemnify us, subject to certainetary and time limitations, for environmental nompliance an
remediation liabilities associated with certaineasdransferred to us from HFC and occurring ostéxg prior to the date of such transfers.

We have an environmental agreement with Alon wétspect to prelosing environmental costs and liabilities relgtio the pipelines and terminals acquired from Aloi2005, under which Alon will indemnify us subjeo
certain monetary and time limitations.

There are environmental remediation projects thatcarrently in progress that relate to certairetsacquired from HFC. Certain of these projectsewmderway prior to our purchase and represebiitias of HFC as th
obligation for future remediation activities wasaieed by HFC. At December 31, 2012 , we have anuat of $3.0 million that relates to environmentdanup projects for which we have assumed liabilityf@rwhich the
indemnity provided for by HFC has expired or wilpé&re. The remaining projects, including assessnagit monitoring activities, are covered under tHeCHenvironmental indemnification discussed above @preser
liabilities of HFC.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadiind results of operations are based upon msatidated financial statements, which have beepared in accordance with accounting principlesgaly accepted in tf
United States. The preparation of these finant¢&kments requires us to make estimates and judgrtfeat affect the reported amounts of assetsiitiab, revenues and expenses, and related disglasf contingent asst
and liabilities as of the date of the financialtsments. Actual results may differ from these eatem under different assumptions or conditions.céesider the following policies to be the mostical to understanding t
judgments that are involved and the uncertaintias ¢ould impact our results of operations, finahcondition and cash flow

Revenue Recognitio
Revenues are recognized as products are shippeagthour pipelines and terminals. Additional pipelitransportation revenues result from an operdéage by Alon USA, L.P. of an interest in the adfyaof one of ou
pipelines.

Billings to customers for their obligations undeeir quarterly minimum revenue commitments are méed as deferred revenue liabilities if the custohees the right to receive future services for ¢hieitlings. The revenue
recognized at the earlier of:

« the customer receiving the future services proviggthese billing:
« the period in which the customer is contractualllgveed to receive the services expires
« our determination that we will not be required toyide services within the allowed peri

We determine that we will not be required to previkrvices within the allowed period when, basedwment and projected shipping levels, our pigeliystems will not have the necessary capacityable a customer
exceed its minimum volume levels to such a degsee atilize the shortfall credit within its respige contractual shortfall make-up period.

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of our cost of ajuiaed business over the fair value of the assmigieed, less liabilities assumed. Goodwill is aotortized and is tested for impairment annuallynore frequently if events
changes in circumstances indicate goodwill mayniygaired. We test goodwill at the reporting unitdefor impairment annually and between annual tésgents or changes in circumstances indicate#ing/ing amount me
exceed fair value. Recoverability is determinedtbsnparing the estimated fair value of a reporting to the carrying value, including the relatedbdwill, of that reporting unit. We use the presealue of the expected futt
net cash flows and market multiple analyses tordete the estimated fair values of the reportingsurThe impairment test requires the use of ptajes, estimates and assumptions as to the futem®@rmmance of ot
operations. Actual results could differ from prdjens resulting in revisions to our assumptions| &mequired, recognizing an impairment loss.

We evaluate long-lived assets, including definited intangible assets, for potential impairmentidigntifying whether indicators of impairment exastd, if so, assessing whether the ltinge assets are recoverable fi
estimated future undiscounted cash flows. The damaunt of impairment loss, if any, to be recoré@edqual to the amount by which a long-lived dsseirrying value exceeds its fair value.

There have been no impairments to goodwill or ongtlived assets as of December 31, 2012.

Contingencies

It is common in our industry to be subject to priegs, lawsuits and other claims related to emwirental, labor, product and other matters. We egeired to assess the likelihood of any adversgmhts or outcomes
these types of matters as well as potential ranfjpsobable losses. A determination of the amotimeserves required, if any, for these types oftiogencies is made after careful analysis of eadividual issue. The requir
reserves may change in the future due to developnerach matter or changes in approach sucltharae in settlement strategy in dealing with thpestential matters.

RISK MANAGEMENT

We use interest rate swaps (derivative instrumeats)anage our exposure to interest rate risk.

As of December 31, 2012 , we have three interdetsaaps, designated as a cash flow hedge, thaehma exposure to the cash flow risk caused byeffexts of LIBOR changes on $305.0 milliofi Credit Agreeme
advances. Our first interest rate swap effectivelgverts $155.0 million of our LIBOR based debfixed rate debt having an interest rate of 0.99%s @n applicable margin of 2.25% as of DecembeR812, which equale

an effective interest rate of 3.24% . This swaptiaa matures in
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February 2016. In August 2012, we entered into $imailar interest rate swaps with identical termdahieffectively convert $150.0 million of our LIBORased debt to fixed rate debt having an integst of 0.74%plus at
applicable margin of 2.25% as of December 31, 204Rich equaled an effective interest rate of 2.9®B6th of these swap contracts mature in July 2017

We review publicly available information on our eerparties in order to review and monitor theiraficial stability and assess their ongoing abibtyionor their commitments under the interest satap contracts. The
counterparties are large financial institutionsrtRermore, we have not experienced, nor do we éxpeexperience, any difficulty in the counterpasthonoring their respective commitments.

The market risk inherent in our debt positionshis potential change arising from increases or @sein interest rates as discussed below.

At December 31, 2012 , we had an outstanding graidialance on our 6.5% Senior Notes and 8.25%o88tes of $300 million and $150 milligrespectively. A change in interest rates genewadluld affect the fair valt
of the Senior Notes, but not our earnings or cashs. At December 31, 2012 , the fair values of ®%% Senior Notes and 8.25% Senior Notes were.$38illion and $163.1 millior) respectively. We estimate a hypothe:
10% change in the yield-to-maturity applicablehie 6.5% Senior Notes and 8.25% Senior Notes atrbeee31, 2012 would result in a change of approteiyes9.9 million and $4.4 million respectively, in the fair value
the underlying notes.

For the variable rate Credit Agreement, changéstérest rates would affect cash flows, but notfdievalue. At December 31, 2012 , borrowings tartding under the Credit Agreement were $421.0anill By means of ot
cash flow hedges, we have effectively convertedvireable rate on $305.0 million of outstandingroarings to a fixed rate. For the remaining unhed@eedit Agreement borrowings of $116.0 millipa hypothetical 10'
change in interest rates applicable to the CredieAment would not materially affect our cash flows

Our operations are subject to normal hazards ofadipes, including fire, explosion and weathiefated perils. We maintain various insurance cages, including business interruption insuranckjest to certain deductible
We are not fully insured against certain risks liseasuch risks are not fully insurable, coveragmavailable, or premium costs, in our judgmentndbjustify such expenditures.

We have a risk management oversight committeeishatide up of members from our senior manageniBmis committee monitors our risk environment andvites direction for activities to mitigate, to acceptable leve
identified risks that may adversely affect the agkiment of our goals.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adweishanges in market rates and prices. See “Rislalyjament” under “Management’s Discussion and Anslg§iFinancial Condition and Results of Operatioalbve for
discussion of market risk exposures that we havie respect to our long-term debt. We utilize deffixainstruments to hedge our interest rate exgsalso discussed under “Risk Management.”

Since we do not own products shipped on our pipslor terminalled at our terminal facilities, werdut have direct market risks associated with coditggrices.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dal
MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON ITS ASSESSMENT OF THE PARTNE RSHIP’S INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Management of Holly Energy Partners, L.P. (the tianship”) is responsible for establishing and rteiting adequate internal control over financigaing.

All internal control systems, no matter how welsidmed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, etherse systems determined to be effective can peowidy reasonable assurance with respect to finhstEtement preparati
and presentation.

Management assessed the Partnership’s internabtaner financial reporting as of December 31, 2@i&ing the criteria for effective control overdircial reporting established in “Internal Contrdintegrated Framework”
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission. Based on this assegsmanagement concluded that, as of December@®D, 2he Partnership maintained effective inteouaitrol ove
financial reporting.

The Partnership’s independent registered publiowtting firm has issued an attestation report eneftiectiveness of the Partnerskijnternal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2012. That report appeal
page 54.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors of Holly Logistic Services|-.L.C. and
Unitholders of Holly Energy Partners, L.P.

We have audited Holly Energy Partners, L.P.’s imaécontrol over financial reporting as of DecemBgy 2012, based on criteria established in InteBoatrol—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpon¢
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the CQ&i€@ria). Holly Energy Partners, L.B.management is responsible for maintaining effeciiternal control over financial reporting, arat fts assessment of 1
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting included in the accompanying Managemengpdit on its Assessment of the Partnershipternal Control over Financial Reporting. Ouspensibility is to express
opinion on the Partnership’s internal control ofreancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedelof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lo@nited States). Those standards require thaplese and perform the audit to obtain reasonakderasce abo
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respectsr &@udit included obtaining an understanding oéiinal control over financial reporting, assessimg fisk that a materi
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the desigroperating effectiveness of internal controleblasn the assessed risk, and performing such ptheedures as we considered necessary in the ctanoes. We believe tl
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assurancelirggghe reliability of financial reporting andetpreparation of financial statements for extemaposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfi; A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdénose policies and procedures that (1) pertaihéamaintenance of records that, in reasonabkil
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions digpositions of the assets of the company; (2)ipdeveasonable assurance that transactions anglegtas necessary to permit preparation of finaisté@ements in accordar
with generally accepted accounting principles, tinad receipts and expenditures of the company eirggbmade only in accordance with authorizationmiahagement and directors of the company; andr(®)ge reasonab
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteaifamauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositionhef company’s assets that could have a matefedtedn the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any evatratf effectiveness to future periods are subjectheé risk that controls m
become inadequate because of changes in conditiptisat the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Holly Energy Partners, L.P. maing, in all material respects, effective interraitcol over financial reporting as of December 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited States), the consolidated balance slééislly Energy Partners, L.P. as of December 3, 2and 2011, ai
the related consolidated statements of income, celemsive income, cash flows, and partnerglity for each of the three years in the periodeenDecember 31, 2012, and our report dated FgbR7ar2013, expressed
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 27, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors of Holly Logistic ServicesL.L.C. and

Unitholders of Holly Energy Partners, L.P.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Holly Energy Partners, L.P. (the ‘fRaship”)as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the relatesbtidated statements of income, comprehensiwanie
cash flows, and partners’ equity for each of theatyears in the period ended December 31, 20JkseTfinancial statements are the responsibilithefPartnershig’ management. Our responsibility is to expresspamian or
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBio{United States). Those standards require tegplan and perform the audit to obtain reasonasderance abo
whether the financial statements are free of naltenisstatement. An audit includes examining, desa basis, evidence supporting the amounts amtbdiges in the financial statements. An audit atstudes assessing
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfisancial statement presentation. We beliéwa bur audits provide a reasonable basis for piman.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredtove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of Holly Enef@grtners, L.P. at December 31, 2012 and 2011, hendansolidated results of
operations and its cash flows, for each of theettyears in the period ended December 31, 2012yrifoomity with U.S. generally accepted accountimggiples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Holly Energy Partners, LsRriternal control over financial reporting as cfd@mber 31, 2012, bas
on criteria established in Internal Contintegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissioth @mr report dated February 27, 2013 expressechgnallified opiniol
thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 27, 2013
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
Trade
Affiliates

Prepaid and other current assets
Total current assets

Properties and equipment, net
Transportation agreements, net
Goodwill
Investment in SLC Pipeline
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable:
Trade
Affiliates

Accrued interest

Deferred revenue

Accrued property taxes

Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred revenue

Class B unit

Equity:
Partners’ equity:
Common unitholders (56,782,048 and 54,722,248 issteed and outstanding
at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively)

General partner interest (2% interest)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total partners’ equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

M Restated as described in Note 2.

See accompanying notes.

HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
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December 31, 2012

December 31, 2018

(In thousands, except unit data)

5,237 6,36¢
7,12¢ 6,13(
31,50 31,92
38,72( 38,05:
3,61¢ 3,72¢
47 57¢ 48,15(
960,53t 960,49¢
94,59¢ 101,54:
256,49t 256,49t
25,047 25,30%
9,86¢ 7,20¢
1,394,111 1,399,191
7,048 18,37¢
4,98¢ 6,47¢
12,03 24,84¢
10,22¢ 8,28(
8,901 4,447
2,68¢ 2,19€
1,908 1,777
35,75( 41,54¢
864,67 605,88t
15,43 8,65¢
11,49¢ 5,42¢
13,90: =
502,80¢ 481,43¢
(145,87) 163,70:
(4,279 (6,462
352,65: 638,67
100,20: 99,00:
452,85¢ 737,67t
1,394,111 1,399,191




Revenues:
Affiliates
Third parties

Operating costs and expenses:
Operations (exclusive of depreciation and amoiitzgt
Depreciation and amortization
General and administrative

Operating income

Other income (expense):
Equity in earnings of SLC Pipeline
Interest expense
Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Other (income) expense

Income before income taxes

State income tax expense

Net income

Allocation of net loss attributable to Predecessors

Allocation of net loss (income) attributable to wontrolling interests
Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partners

General partner interest in net income, includimgehtive distributions
Limited partners’ interest in net income

Limited partners’ per unit interest in earnings—basic and diluted
Weighted average limited partners’ units outstanding

(M Restated as described in Note 2.

See accompanying notes.

HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
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Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011® 2010®
(In thousands, except per unit data)

245,58: $ 168,26: $ 146,36
46,97¢ 46,007 35,77(
292,56( 214,26t 182,13
89,24: 64,52: 54,94¢
57,46: 36,95¢ 31,36
7,59¢ 6,57¢ 7,71¢
154,29 108,05! 94,02¢
138,26: 106,21: 88,10¢
3,36¢ 2,552 2,39%
(47,187 (35,959 (33,999
(2,979 — —
10 17 17
(46,78) (33,39() (31,589
91,47¢ 72,82: 56,52t
(371) (234 (296€)
91,10¢ 72,58¢ 56,22¢
4,20( 6,351 70
(1,159 85¢ 24
94,15; 79,79¢ 56,32¢
(22,45() (16,80€) (12,089)
71,70: $ 62,99! $ 44,23¢
1.2¢ $ 1.3¢ $ 1.0C
55,69¢ 45,67 44,157




HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net income
Allocation of net loss attributable to Predecessors
Net income before noncontrolling interests

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Change in fair value of cash flow hedge

Amortization of unrealized loss attributable toadistinued cash flow hedge
Reclassification adjustment to net income on plestitlement of cash flow hedge
Other comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income before noncontrolling interest

Allocation of comprehensive (income) loss to nortomliing interests

Comprehensive income
MRestated as described in Note 2.

See accompanying notes.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011® 2010%
(In thousands)

$ 91,10¢ $ 72,58¢ $ 56,22¢
4,200 6,351 70
95,30¢ 78,94( 56,29¢
(2,910 3,521 (1,96
5,098 41 —
— — 1,07¢
2,18¢ 3,562 (885)
97,49( 82,50: 55,41«
(1,159 85¢ 24
$ 96,337 $ 83,36 $ 55,43¢
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HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011® 20100

(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $ 91,10¢ $ 72,58¢ $ 56,22¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashidesl by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 57,46 36,95¢ 31,36¢
Amortization of deferred charges 7,55¢€ 1,252 1,00¢
Equity in earnings of SLC Pipeline, net of disttibas 262 13t 482
Change in fair value - interest rate swaps — — 1,464
Amortization of restricted and performance units 2,85¢ 2,04¢ 2,214
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable—trade (3,997 48¢ 1,14¢
Accounts receivable—affiliates (13¢) (13,039 (4,88¢)
Prepaid and other current assets 11C (2,497 (36)
Current assets of discontinued operations — — 2,19¢

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable—trade (9,009 3,89« 2,684
Accounts payable—affiliates (1,81) 2,137 1,487
Accrued interest 1,94¢ 762 4,65¢
Deferred revenue 11,33 (2,127 3,66¢
Accrued property taxes 492 20€ 91€
Other current liabilities 112 51¢ 5
Other, net 3,12: (4,29 144
Net cash provided by operating activities 161,41: 99,04: 104,73¢

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to properties and equipment (42,86 (206,309 (106,52%)

Acquisition of assets from HFC (35,526
Net cash used for investing activities (42,86)) (206,309 (142,05)
Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings under credit agreement 587,00( 118,00( 66,00(
Repayments of credit agreement borrowings (366,00() (77,000 (113,000
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 294,75( 147,54
Proceeds from issuance of common units — 75,81% -
Cash distribution to HFC for UNEV Acquisition (260,92) —
Repayment of notes (260,23 (77,100 -
Contributions from UNEV joint venture partners 15,00( 156,50( 80,50(
Contributions from general partner 1,74¢ 5,881 -
Distributions to HEP unitholders (122,77) (91,506 (84,426
Purchase price in excess of transferred basissetaacquired from HFC — — (57,560
Purchase of units for incentive grants (4,919 (1,647 (2,704
Deferred financing costs (3,23¢) (3,150 (494
Other (89) (221) —
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (119,687 105,58¢ 35,85¢
Cash and cash equivalents

Increase (decrease) for the period (1,139 (1,687) (1,459
Beginning of year 6,36¢ 8,052 9,511
End of year $ 5,231 $ 6,36¢ $ 8,052

(MRestated as described in Note 2.
See accompanying notes.
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Balance December 31, 2009
Conversion of Class B subordinated units
Capital contribution
Distributions to unitholders
Purchase price in excess of transferred basissetaacquired from HollyFrontier
Purchase of units for incentive grants
Amortization of restricted and performance units
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Net loss - Predecessor
Other comprehensive loss
Balance December 31, 2010
Issuance of common units
Cost of issuing common units
Capital contribution
Distributions to unitholders
Tankage and terminal assets acquired from HFC:
Transferred basis in properties and goodwill
Operating costs prior to acquisition
Promissory notes issued
Purchase of units for incentive grants
Amortization of restricted and performance units
Other
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Net loss - Predecessor
Other comprehensive income
Balance December 31, 2011
Capital contribution
Distributions to HEP unitholders
Purchase of 75% interest in UNEV from HFC:
Cash distribution
Issuance of common units
Issuance of Class B unit
Purchase of units for restricted grants
Amortization of restricted and performance units
Class B unit accretion
Tankage and terminal assets acquired from HFC:
Transferred basis in properties
Other
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Net loss - Predecessor
Other comprehensive income
Balance December 31, 2012

“Restated as described in Note 2.
See accompanying notes.

HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PARTNERS' EQUITY

Holly Energy Partners, L.P. Partners’ Equity (Deficit):

Accumulated

Class B General Other
Common Subordinated Partner Comprehensive Noncontrolling
Units (1) Units (1) Interest (1) Loss (1) Interest (1) Total (1)
(In thousands)
$ 275,55¢ 21,42¢ $ 25,67¢ $ (9,141 $ 39,88¢ 353,40:
20,58¢ (20,589 — — — —
75,09! 23,50( 98,59
(70,88¢) (1,519 (12,02) — — (84,426
— — (57,560 — — (57,560
(2,709 — — — — (2,709
2,21« — — — — 2,21«
44,38¢ 681 11,25¢ — (24) 56,29¢
— — (79 — — (79
— — — (885) — (885)
269,15! — 42,37 (10,026 63,36 364,86:
75,81¢ - - - - 75,81¢%
(30€) — — — — (30€)
- - 127,94° - 36,50( 164,44°
(75,95) — (15,559 — — (91,506
295,11( — — — — 295,11(
2,34¢ — — — — 2,34¢
(150,000 — — — — (150,000
(2,16¥) — — — — (2,16¥)
2,04¢ — — — — 2,04¢
64C — 242 — — 882
64,754 - 15,04¢ - (860) 78,94(
— — (6,35]) — — (6,35])
— — — 3,562 — 3,562
481,43¢ — 163,70: (6,462 99,00z 737,67¢
- - 10,28¢ - 3,00C 13,28¢
(99,749 — (23,039 — — (122,77)
— — (260,927 — — (260,927
45,83¢ — (45,839 — — —
— — (12,200 — — (12,200
(4,719 — — — — (4,719
2,85¢ — — — — 2,85¢
(1,699 — (©)] — — (1,709
7,940 - - - - 7,940
— — 11z — — 11z
70,871 — 26,22, — (1,799 95,30¢
— — (4,200 = — (4,200
— — — 2,18¢ — 2,18¢
$ 502,80¢ = $ (145,87) $ (4,279 $ 100,20¢ 452,85t
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

Note 1: Description of Business and Summary of SignificanAccounting Policie:

Holly Energy Partners, L.P. (“HEP”) together witls iconsolidated subsidiaries, is a publicly heldstealimited partnership which is 44% owned (inahgdthe 2%general partner interest) by HollyFrontier Corpima
(“HFC") and its subsidiaries.

We commenced operations on July 13, 2004 upon @hgpletion of our initial public offering. In thesmnsolidated financial statements, the words “weur,” “ours” and “us” refer to HEP unless the context othen
indicates.

We operate in one reportable segment which repre#e@ aggregation of our petroleum product andepipelines business and terminals, tankage atirlg rack facilities operations.

We own and operate petroleum product and crudeipdlines and terminal, tankage and loading racKities that support HFC's refining and marketiogerations in the MidGontinent, Southwest and Rocky Moun
regions of the United States and Alon USA, InciAlgn”) refinery in Big Spring, Texas. Additionallywe own a 75% interest in the UNEV Pipeline, LLONEV”), which owns a recently constructed 400 -@ill2 inch
refined products pipeline running from Woods Crddth to Las Vegas, Nevada (the “UNEV Pipeline'pguct terminals near Cedar City, Utah and Las ¥ebkevada and related assets, and we own aj@ibffoventure
interest in a 95 -mile intrastate crude oil pipelsystem (the “SLC Pipeline”) that serves refireirethe Salt Lake City area.

We generate revenues by charging tariffs for trartspy petroleum products and crude oil through pipelines, by charging fees for terminalling andrisig refined products and other hydrocarbons mmiding othe
services at our storage tanks and terminals. Weotltake ownership of products that we transperminal or store, and therefore, we are not expdgedtly to changes in commodity prices.

On November 29, 2012, we announced a twosfue-unit split, payable in the form of a commontwlistribution for each issued and outstanding commnit. The unit distribution was paid January 2®13 to all unitholde
of record on January 7, 2013. All references ta and per unit amounts in this document and reldteclosures have been adjusted to reflect thetedfethe unit split for all periods presented.

Principles of Consolidation and Common Control Traactions
The consolidated financial statements include @meoants and those of subsidiaries and joint vestthat we control through a 50% or more ownershiprest. All significant intecompany transactions and balances
been eliminated.

Most of our asset acquisitions from HFC occurredewve were a consolidated variable interest ertftiiFC. Therefore, as an entity under common @bntith HFC, we recorded these assets on our balaheets at HFC
historical basis instead of our purchase priceadnfalue. If these assets had been acquired fninth parties, our acquisition cost in excess of HHgsis in the transferred assets of $305.6 miliould have been recordec
increases to our properties and equipment andgitiEnassets instead of reductions to our parteeusty.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accoedanith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirsipgt‘GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assusptiat affect the amounts reported in the find
statements and accompanying notes. Actual resulis differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, wesider all highly liquid investments with maturgief three months or less at the time of purchasetcash equivalents. The carrying amounts repanethe balance she
approximate fair value due to the short-term matwf these instruments.

Accounts Receivabl
The majority of the accounts receivable are duenfadfiliates of HFC, Alon or independent companireshe petroleum industry. Credit is extended basedvaluation of the customer's financial conditand, in certai
circumstances, collateral such as letters of cadijjuarantees, may be required. Credit lossestemged to income when accounts are deemed ungléeand historically have been minimal.
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Inventories
Inventories consisting of materials and suppliesduf®r operations are stated at the lower of agshg the average cost method, or market and angrshinder “Prepaid and other current assetsjur consolidated balan
sheets.

Properties and Equipmer

Properties and equipment are stated at cost. Riegpand equipment acquired from HFC while undenmmn control of HFC are stated at HFC's historixzadis. Depreciation is provided by the strailyint-method over tt
estimated useful lives of the assets, primarilytd 25 years for terminal facilities and tankage,t@32 years for pipelines and 5 to y€ars for corporate and other assets. Maintenaepajrs and minor replacements
expensed as incurred. Costs of replacements adtitggiimprovements are capitalized.

Transportation Agreements
The transportation agreement assets are statedjaisaion date fair value and are being amortiaeer the periods of the agreements using the striiige method. See Note 6 for additional informat@mnour transportatic
agreements.

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of our cost of ajuiaed business over the fair value of the assmtsieed, less liabilities assumed. Goodwill is aotortized and is tested for impairment annuallynore frequently if events
changes in circumstances indicate goodwill mayniygaired. We test goodwill at the reporting unitdefor impairment annually and between annual tésteents or changes in circumstances indicate#ing/ing amount me
exceed fair value. Recoverability is determinectbsnparing the estimated fair value of a reporting to the carrying value, including the relateddwill, of that reporting unit. We use the preseaiue of the expected futt
net cash flows and market multiple analyses tordete the estimated fair values of the reportingsurThe impairment test requires the use of ptaes, estimates and assumptions as to the futer@nmance of ot
operations. Actual results could differ from prdjens resulting in revisions to our assumptions| &mequired, recognizing an impairment loss.

We evaluate long-lived assets, including definited intangible assets, for potential impairmentidigntifying whether indicators of impairment existd, if so, assessing whether the Itinge assets are recoverable fi
estimated future undiscounted cash flows. The detmaunt of impairment loss, if any, to be recoréedqual to the amount by which a long-lived dsserrying value exceeds its fair value.

There have been no impairments to goodwill or ongtlived assets as of December 31, 2012.

Investment in SLC Pipelinc

We account for our 25% SLC Pipeline joint ventureeiest using the equity method of accounting, eiwemwe record our proata share of earnings of the SLC Pipeline, andritmrtions to and distributions from the S
Pipeline as adjustments to our investment balafseof December 31, 2012, our underlying equitytie SLC Pipeline was $60.0 million compared to @eorded investment balance of $25.0 million , &edifnce 0f$35.(
million . We are amortizing this difference as aljuatment to our pro-rata share of earnings ovenseful lives of the underlying assets of SLC Ripe

Asset Retirement Obligatior

We record legal obligations associated with theeetent of our long-lived assets that result frdva &cquisition, construction, development and/errtbrmal operation of our loriiyed assets. The fair value of the estim
cost to retire a tangible lorliyed asset is recorded in the period in whichliakility is incurred and when a reasonable estentdtthe fair value of the liability can be made.December 31, 2012 and 2011, we have retire
obligations of $5.6 million and $3.6 million , resgively, that are recorded under “Other long-téiehilities” in our consolidated balance sheetsribg 2012 we increased our asset retirement oligaty an additiona$2.<
million as a result of a change in our previousnestes.

Revenue Recognitio

Revenues are recognized as products are shippeagthour pipelines and terminals or other serviwese been rendered. Billings to customers for thkligations under their quarterly minimum revemeenmitments ai
recorded as deferred revenue liabilities if thet@mer has the right to receive future servicegtese billings. The revenue is recognized at thieeaf:

« the customer receiving the future services proviggthese billing:
« the period in which the customer is contractuallgveed to receive the services expires

-63-




« our determination that we will not be required toyide services within the allowed peri

We determine that we will not be required to previkrvices within the allowed period when, basedwment and projected shipping levels, our pigelystems will not have the necessary capacityable a customer
exceed its minimum volume levels to such a degsee atilize the shortfall credit within its respiee contractual shortfall make-up period.

We have additional pipeline transportation revenueder an operating lease to a third party of &r@st in the capacity of one of our pipelines.

As of December 31, 2012 , billings to customerseurttieir minimum revenue commitments per the teofniengterm throughput agreements expiring in 2019 thro2@26 and the third party operating lease will les
minimum annualized payments to us of $256.7 milfiameach of the next five years. These agreementdge for increases in the minimum revenue guassinnually for increases in the Producer Pridexi("PPI") or th
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") indeith certain contracts having provisions thatitithe level of the rate increases.

We have other cost reimbursement provisions intergughput / storage agreements providing thatoooets (including HFC) reimburse us for certain soSuch reimbursement receipts are recorded asueva deferre
revenue depending on the nature of the cost. Defesvenue is recognized over the contractual térine related throughput agreement.

Taxes billed and collected from our pipeline andnieal customers are recorded on a net basis witsfiect on net income.

Environmental Costs

Environmental costs are expensed if they rela@ntexisting condition caused by past operationsdandot contribute to current or future revenueegation. Liabilities are recorded when site redtoraand environment
remediation, cleanup and other obligations areseikmown or considered probable and can be realoesatimated. Such estimates require judgment wigipect to costs, time frame and extent of requieetedial and clean-
up activities and are subject to periodic adjustiméased on currently available information. At Baber 31, 2012 and 2011, we had net accruals faroemental remediation obligations of $3.0 milliand $2.7 million,
respectively, measured on an undiscounted basis.

Under the Omnibus Agreement and certain transpontaigreements and purchase agreements with HFC,HdE agreed to indemnify us, subject to certainetary and time limitations, for environmental nompliance an
remediation liabilities associated with certaineissransferred to us from HFC occurring or exgtmior to the date of such transfers. We haverarenmental agreement with Alon with respect te-plosing environment
costs and liabilities relating to the pipelines a@edninals acquired from Alon in 2005, under whidion will indemnify us subject to certain monetagd time limitations. Environmental costs recovégghrough insuranc
indemnification agreements or other sources afeded in other assets to the extent such recovareesonsidered probable.

Income Tax
We are subject to the Texas margin tax that iscbaseour Texas sourced taxable margin. The taalmutated by applying a tax rate to a base thasidens both revenues and expenses and therefothénebaracteristics of
income tax.

We are organized as a pass-through entity for &decome tax purposes. As a result, our partnersesponsible for federal income taxes based @ thspective share of taxable income.

Net income for financial statement purposes mafedgignificantly from taxable income reportableunitholders as a result of differences betweentdkebases and financial reporting bases of assetdiabilities and tF
taxable income allocation requirements under thitnpeship agreement.

Net Income per Limited Partners' Uni

We use the two-class method when calculating théneeme per unit applicable to limited partnerfieh is based on the weightesterage number of common and subordinated unigtanding during the year. Net inco
per unit applicable to limited partners is compubgddividing limited partners' interest in net imee, after adjusting for the allocation of net in@or loss attributable to previous owners ("Predsa#), the allocation of n
income or loss attributable to noncontrolling ietes and the general partner's 2% interest andtimeedistributions, by the weighted-average numifesutstanding common and subordinated units.
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Note 2: Reuvisions to Prior Period Financial Statement

We have revised our previously reported consolitidireancial statements. The revisions were duectmanting rules that require retrospective restat@nof previously reported results in cases of iess combinatiol
between entities under common control. Additioraisions for the years ended December 31, 20128h@ were done in order to correct items in cenpa@viously reported amounts.

Our retrospective restatements for two acquisitfoms HFC are described below. See Note 3 belovaffiitional information on both acquisitions.

« OnJuly 12, 2012, we acquired a 7%#erest in UNEV. We have retrospectively adjusted historical financial results for all periodsitwlude UNEV for the periods we were under commontrol of HFC. Resul
of operations of UNEV prior to the acquisition aryJ12, 2012 are herein referred to as the resiltgerations attributable to the Predecessor.

« In 2011, our operating results included $3.8iotilof operating costs and depreciation incurrgddb-C prior to our November 9, 2011 acquisitiorceftain assets located at HEEI Dorado and Cheyenne refiner
This loss was allocated in the originally reportéstorical financial statements included in FormKL@or the year ended December 31, 2011 princip@lithe limited partners. The pegquisition loss should have b
reported as a loss attributable to the Predece®#mhave revised the 2011 presentation which reduit an increase in limited partners' interesteénincome of $3.8 milliorand limited partners' per unit interes
earnings - basic and diluted of $0.08 from the am®originally reported.

During 2012, we identified the following additiorig#ms requiring revisions to our previously repdrfinancial statements for the years ended DeceBihe2011 and 2010, which have been correctedd&@¥ermined that tt
effects of these corrections in each of the periadehich the related items originated, as describelow, were not material. We have concluded thatamounts, if corrected in 2012, would have beerterial to th
consolidated financial statements as of and foy&s ended December 31, 2012.

+ Depreciation expense was understated related fpepsoand equipment in both 2010 and 2011 due apgropriate depreciable lives for certain propemyl equipment and untimely recording of accelenatit
depreciation for tankage placed permanently oseofice in prior periods.

+ An environmental remediation liability and certaisset retirement obligations were identified tihatgd have been recorded in 2010 and 2
+ Reimbursement payments from HFC under contractuaingements previously recognized as an offsetnagahe related costs have been recorded as revenuteferred revenue in cases of capital
reimbursements which are then amortized over timéractual term of the related throughput agreemidditionally, we have revised our cash flow preaéinn for capital cost reimbursements to reflexeipts ii

cash flows provided by operating activities as gabto netting the receipts in cash flows usednfegsting activities.

The tables below outline the impact of such coioast on individual financial statement line items.
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December 31,
2011

Increase (Decrease)

(In thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Properties and equipment, net $ 5,63

Deferred revenue - current portion $ 41t

Other long-term liabilities $ 4,652

Deferred revenue - long-term $ 5,42¢

Total equity $ (4,86

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010
Increase (Decrease)
(In thousands)

Consolidated Statements of Income:

Revenues $ 97€ $ 55

Operating expenses $ 896 $ 1,80¢

Depreciation and amortization $ 2,05( $ 794

Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partnerd aamprehensive income $ 1979 $ (2,547)

Limited partners' per unit interest in earningssib and diluted $ (0.09 $ (0.0€)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4278  $ 1,62¢

Net cash used for investing activities $ 4279 $ (1,629

Note 3: Acquisitions

2012 UNEV Acquisition

On July 12, 2012, we acquired HFC's 75% intere$tNEV. We paid consideration consisting of $260i0iom in cash and 2,059,800 of our common unitfjdated to reflect the unit split). We paid an aiddial $0.9 millior
to HFC for a post-closing working capital adjustinas provided for by the acquisition agreementaAssult of the common units issued to HFC, HF@Bsegship interest in us increased from 42% to 4#tdlyding the2%
general partner interest). Also under the termhefransaction, we issued to HFC a Class B umitprsing a noncontrolling equity interest in a wigabwned subsidiary subject to redemption to the ebtteat HFC is entitle
to a 50% interest in our share of annual UNEV edymibefore interest, income taxes, depreciatiod,amortization above $30 milliobeginning July 1, 2016 and ending in June 2032jestito certain limitations. Su
contingent redemption payments are limited to aimam payment amount calculated as described bétmwever, to the extent earnings thresholds arecdoieved, no redemption payments are required.edgmiraneous
with this transaction, HFC (our general partnemead to forego its right to incentive distributioosup to $1.25 million per quarter over the nexelve consecutive quarterly periods and up to afitiachal fourquarters i
certain circumstances. The Class B unit has amlinialue of $12.2 million which will increase witach foregone incentive distribution as descriakdve and by a 7%actor compounded annually on the outstan
unredeemed balance through its expiration dat@uftoption, we may redeem, in whole or in part, @ass B unit at the current unredeemed value basetie calculation described. Noncontrolling iets reported in tl
Consolidated Statements of Income include the niingartner's 25% interest in UNEV and income htitable to the Class B unit representing foregaomeritive distribution rights and the 7&cretion factor, whic
collectively amounted to $1.2 million for the petiduly 12, 2012 to December 31, 2012.

We are a consolidated variable interest entity BCHTherefore, this transaction was recorded aarsfer between entities under common control afidats HFC's carrying basis in UNEV's assets atillities. We hav
retrospectively adjusted our financial position aperating results as if UNEV were a consolidatgasgliary for all periods while we were under conmuontrol of HFC. For the year ended December 8122and 2011, o
consolidated statement of income includes revefroes UNEV of $18.7 million and $0.3 million , resgiévely, net losses of $7.2 million and $3.4 mifliprespectively. Predecessor revenues for the yeated December &
2012 and 2011 are $8.1 million and $0.3 millioespectively, and Predecessor net losses are $#i@naind $2.6 million, respectively. For the year ended December 310 20ere were no Predecessor revenues as |
was
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not yet operational and Predecessor net losses$@etemillion . At December 31, 2012 , UNEV hachsportation agreements with shippers that provideémum annualized revenues of $25.0 million , ofiettf16.9 millior
relates to a transportation agreement with HFC.

The following table provides HFC's carrying bagikated to UNEV on July 12, 2012, immediately ptmthe acquisition, and at December 31, 2011.

July 12, 2012 December 31, 2018
(In thousands)
Current assets $ 7,08 $ 8,26t
Properties and equipment, net 418,76 418,43¢
Total assets $ 425,84 $ 426,70«
Current liabilities $ 7040 % 13,54:
General partner interest related to Predecessor 318,31( 314,16(
Noncontrolling interest 100,49 99,00:
Total liabilities and equity $ 42584  $ 426,70

®QOur previously reported balance sheet as of DeceBe2011 has been recast to include such balances

2011 Legacy Frontier Pipeline and Tankage Asset fisaction

On November 9, 2011, we acquired from HFC certaitkage, loading rack and crude receiving assetgddat HFC's El Dorado and Cheyenne refineries pid noneash consideration consisting of promissory notitls
an aggregate principal amount of $150.0 million &®iL5,2300f our common units. As an entity under common edwith HFC, we recorded this transfer at HFC'syiag basis. We recorded properties and equiprot
$88.1 million , goodwill of $207.4 million and a neash capital contribution of $295.5 million , repenting HFC's cost basis in the acquired as®etdNovember 9, 2011, we recorded a $150.0 milliaility representin
the promissory notes issued to HFC at the timéefclosing of this transaction. In 2012, we recdrddditional properties and equipment of $7.6 miilli and a related non-cash capital contributio%6 millionfor newly
constructed tankage conveyed in 2012 as part dfitvember 9, 2011 transaction.

Summary Pro Forma Informatior
Assuming both acquisitions had occurred on JanuiaPp10 and our throughput agreements with HFC weedfect at that time, pro forma revenues, nebime and earnings per unit are presented below:

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Revenues $ 214,26t  $ 182,13
Net income 71,14¢ 47,66¢
Earnings per unit $ 11¢ % 0.81

2010 Tulsa East / Lovington Storage Asset Transauwti

On March 31, 2010, we acquired from HFC certaimagie assets for $88.6 million consisting of hydrboa storage tanks having approximatelsniflion barrels of storage capacity, a rail loadiiagk and a truck unloadi
rack located at HFC's Tulsa refinery east facilijso, as part of this same transaction, we acquitEC's asphalt loading rack facility located atMavajo refinery facility in Lovington, New Mexidor $4.4 million. In
accounting for the 2010 acquisition from HFC, weoreled total property and equipment at HFC's histbbasis of $35.5 million and the purchase piicexcess of HFC's basis in the assets of $57 lfomiés a decrease
our partners' equity.
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Note 4: Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist of cash and eaglivalents, accounts receivable, accounts paydels,and interest rate swaps. The carrying amafrtash and cash equivalents, accounts receiattleaccounts payal
approximate fair value due to the shtmtm maturity of these instruments. Debt consi$teutstanding principal under our revolving crea@reement (which approximates fair value as intemes are reset frequently
current interest rates) and our fixed interest sat@or notes.

Fair value measurements are derived using inpssiaptions that market participants would use icipg an asset or liability) including assumptiaimut risk. GAAP categorizes inputs used in faluganeasurements ir
three broad levels as follows:
* (Level 1) Quoted prices in active markets for idesitessets or liabilitie

* (Level 2) Observable inputs other than quoted prinelided in Level 1, such as quoted prices forilsinassets and liabilities in active markets, fmassets and liabilities in markets that areawtive or can k
corroborated by observable market data.

+ (Level 3) Unobservable inputs that are supporteditthy or no market activity and that are signifitao the fair value of the assets or liabiliti€his includes valuation techniques that involvenifigant unobservab
inputs.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair valuesiofenior notes and interest rate swaps were asvial

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Carrying
Financial Instrument Fair Value Input Level Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
(In thousands)
Liabilities:
Senior notes:
6.25% senior notes Level 2 $ — $ — $ 184,89! $ 186,85(
6.5% senior notes Level 2 295,27¢ 321,00( — —
8.25% senior notes Level 2 148,39¢ 163,12! 148,09: 157,50(
443,67 484,12! 332,98¢ 344,35(
Interest rate swaps Level 2 3,43( 3,43( 52( 52(
$ 447,100  $ 487,55! $ 33350¢ $ 344,87(

Level 2 Financial Instrumen

Our senior notes and interest rate swaps are megzhand recorded at fair value using Level 2 inplite fair value of the senior notes is based orketaralues provided by a thigghrty bank, which were derived using ma
quotes for similar type debt instruments. The faitue of our interest rate swaps is based on themsent value of expected future cash flows eelab both variable and fixed rate legs of the swgppeement. Th
measurement is computed using the forward Londterdank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) yield curve, a marmsed observable input.

See Note 8 for additional information on theserinsients.
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Note 5: Properties and Equipment

The carrying amounts of our properties and equigratar restatement as per Note 2 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(In thousands)

Pipelines, terminals and tankage 1,049,53. 886,16
Land and right of way 63,24¢ 43,90¢
Construction in progress 27,15( 172,48!
Other 24,46: 17,55¢
1,164,39. 1,120,110

Less accumulated depreciation 203,85t 159,61:
$ 960,53! $ 960,49¢

We capitalized $0.3 million and $0.9 million inémest related to construction projects during tsery ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respgctivel

Depreciation expense was $50.1 million , $30.0iamill, and $24.5 million for the years ended Deceangife 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Includedépreciation expense were asset abandonmenteshafg4.¢
million , $1.2 million and $0.4 million for the yemended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, reselyctior assets permanently removed from service.

Note 6: Transportation Agreements

Our transportation agreements represent a porfitinectotal purchase price of certain assets aeduiom Alon in 2005 and from HFC in 2008 . The Alagreement is being amortized over 30 years erzi3g (the initiall5
-year term of the agreement plus an expected 1& gxdension period) and the HFC agreement is barimgrtized over 15 years ending 2023 (the ternh@HFC agreement).

The carrying amounts of our transportation agreesare as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(In thousands)

Alon transportation agreement $ 59,93t $ 59,93t
HFC transportation agreement 74,23 74,231
134,16 134,16

Less accumulated amortization 39,56¢ 32,62!
$ 94,59¢ $ 101,54

Amortization expense was $6.9 million , $6.9 miflipand $6.9 million for the years ended Decemiie2812, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

We have additional transportation agreements wRIC ithat relate to assets contributed to us or aeddfom HFC consisting of pipeline, terminal andkage assets. These transactions occurred whileeneea consolidat
variable interest entity of HFC, therefore, ouribas these agreements is zero and does not reflstp-up in basis to fair value.

Note 7: Employees, Retirement and Incentive Plar

Employees who provide direct services to us areleyeg by Holly Logistic Services, L.L.C., an HFChsidiary. Their costs, including salaries, bonupegyoll taxes, benefits and other direct costs,cliarged to us montt
in accordance with an omnibus agreement that we hath HFC. These employees participate in theeetent and benefit plans of HFC. Our share ofertént and benefit plan costs was $6.9 million 6 $8illion and$2.<

million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 201d 2010 ,

-69 -




respectively. These costs include retirement cofsgt.3 million , $2.2 million and $1.5 million fdhe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and , 2@5pectively. Our accounting policy for the regitign of compensatic
expense for awards with pro-rata vesting (a sigaift proportion of our awards) is to expense thetscatably over the vesting periods.

We have an incentive plan (“Long-Term IncentiverPJdor employees and non-employee directors whidope services for us. The Long-Term Incentive Rtansists of foucomponents: restricted units, performance
unit options and unit appreciation rights.

As of December 31, 2012 , we have two types ofritice-based awards which are described below. Bhepensation cost charged against income was $idmi$2.1 million and $2.2 million for thgears ended Deceml
31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 , respectively. We culygmiichase units in the open market instead ofirigsnew units for settlement of all unit awards endur LongTerm Incentive Plan. Effective February 2012, tiés
authorized to be granted under our Long-Term IricerRlan were increased from 700,000 to 2,500,006 uof which 1,833,02fave not yet been granted, assuming no forfeitoirése unvested units and full achievemer
goals for the performance units already granted.

Restricted Units

Under our Long-Term Incentive Plan, we grant regd units to selected employees and non-emploireetars who perform services for us, with most elsavesting over a period of one to thgemrs. Although fu
ownership of the units does not transfer to théprents until the units vest, the recipients haistribution and voting rights on these units frame tate of grant. The fair value of each restricteid award is measured at
market price as of the date of grant and is anexitzver the vesting period.

A summary of restricted unit activity and changasm the year ended December 31, 2012 is presémried:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic

Grant-Date Contractual Value
Restricted Units Units Fair Value Term ($000)
Outstanding at January 1, 2012 (nonvested) 59,07: $ 25.2¢
Granted 90,52¢ 31.01
Vesting and transfer of full ownership to recipent (89,039) 27.1(
Forfeited (2,099 28.6¢€
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 (nonvested) 58,47: $ 31.21 llyear $ 1,92:

The fair values of restricted units that were véstad transferred to recipients during the yeadedrDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $2.4omill$1.4 million and $1.6 million respectivelys/f December 3:
2012, there was $1.0 million of total unrecognizedhpensation expense related to nonvested restrictit grants which is expected to be recognizent a weighted-average period of ydars. For the years ended Decer
31, 2011 and 2010, the grant date closing uniepejaplied to the number of units ultimately awarded $29.05 and 21.57 respectively.

Performance Units
Under our LongFerm Incentive Plan, we grant performance unitseiected executives who perform services for usoReance units granted are payable based upogrdveth in our distributable cash flow per commoiit
over the performance period, and vest over a parfi@years. As of December 31, 2012 , estimatédparyouts for outstanding nonvested performandeawards were 110% .

We granted 11,436 performance units to certaircefi in March 2012 . These units will vest over-g&ar performance period ending December 31, 20it4are payable in HEP common units. The numbenit$ actuall:
earned will be based on the growth of our distabig cash flow per common unit over the performgmeéod, and can range from 50% to 156%4he number of performance units granted. AltHoagmmon units are r
transferred to the recipients until the performanoés vest, the recipients have distribution rightith respect to the common units from the datgraft. For the year ended December 31, 2012, dinevélue of thes
performance units is based on the grant date clasiit price of $30.6and will apply to the number of units ultimately ated. For the years ended December 31, 2011 d@ #& grant date closing unit price applied &
number of units ultimately awarded was $29.83 a2t 30 respectively.
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A summary of performance unit activity and chandesng the twelve months ended December 31, 20p2eisented below:

Performance Units Units

Outstanding at January 1, 2012 (nonvested) 85,98
Granted 11,43¢
Vesting and transfer of common units to recipients (42,92()
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 (nonvested) 54,49¢

The grant-date fair value of performance unitsegsind transferred to recipients during the yeadeé December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $0.Bmjl$0.9 million and $0.6 millionrespectively. Based on the weigt
average fair value at December 31, 2012 of $26tbére was $0.5 million of total unrecognized congagion expense related to nonvested performarite which is expected to be recognized over a teijaverage peric
of 0.6 years.

During the year ended December 31, 2012 , we p&i@l @illion for the purchase of our common unitshie open market for the issuance and settlemeatt ohit awards under our Long-Term Incentive Plan

Note 8: Debt

Credit Agreement

In June 2012, we amended our credit agreementasicig the size of the credit facility from $375 linit to $550 million . Our $550 million senior seed revolving credit facility expires in June 20{tfe “Credit Agreemeny’
and is available to fund capital expenditures, §tweents, acquisitions, distribution payments andking capital and for general partnership purpo#tds.available also to fund letters of credittopa $50 million subimit anc
to fund distributions to unitholders up to a $6dliom sub-limit. In February 2012, we amended otedit agreement increasing the size of the creatitlify from $275 million to $375 million During the year end:
December 31, 2012 , we received advances totab8g $nillion and repaid $366 million , resultingriet borrowings of $221 million under the Credit Agment and an outstanding balance of $421 millidbegember 3:
2012 .

Our obligations under the Credit Agreement areatetblized by substantially all of our assets. bidéness under the Credit Agreement is recourstE® Logistics Holdings, L.P. (“HEP Logistics'§ur general partner, a
guaranteed by our material wholbyvned subsidiaries. Any recourse to HEP Logisticsill be limited to the extent of its assets, wtother than its investment in us, are not significiie may prepay all loans at any ti
without penalty, except for payment of certain legge and related costs.

Indebtedness under the Credit Agreement bearsesttaat our option, at either (a) the reference aatannounced by the administrative agent plupplicable margin (ranging from 0.75% to 1.7%%r (b) at a rate equal
LIBOR plus an applicable margin (ranging from 1.7882.75%). In each case, the applicable margin is based tipratio of our funded debt (as defined in thed® Agreement) to EBITDA (earnings before intérésxes
depreciation and amortization, as defined in thed@rAgreement). We incur a commitment fee on thesed portion of the Credit Agreement at an anratal ranging from 0.30% to 0.50B&sed upon the ratio of our funt
debt to EBITDA for the four most recently complefestal quarters.

The Credit Agreement imposes certain requirememtssowvhich we are currently in compliance with luiing: a prohibition against distribution to urottlers if, before or after the distribution, a putel default or an event
default as defined in the agreement would occmnitditions on our ability to incur debt, make loaasguire other companies, change the nature obasiness, enter a merger or consolidation, orasskts; and covenants
require maintenance of a specified EBITDA to ing¢rexpense ratio, total debt to EBITDA ratio andisedebt to EBITDA ratio. If an event of defaukists under the Credit Agreement, the lenders bellable to acceler:
the maturity of the debt and exercise other rigind remedies.

Senior Notes

In March 2012, we issued $300 million in aggregaiecipal amount outstanding of 6.5% senior notesuming March 1, 2020 (the “ 6.5% Senior Notes"gti¥roceeds of $294.8 million were used to red&&sv.8 millior
aggregate principal amount of our 6.25% seniorsotaturing March 1, 2015 (the “ 6.25% Senior Noxéshdered pursuant to a cash tender offer ancecosslicitation, to repay $72.9 million promissory notes due to H
as discussed below, to pay related fees, expenseacarued interest in connection with these tretitsas and to repay borrowings under the Crediteggrent.
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In April 2012, we redeemed $27.2 million aggregatacipal amount of 6.25% Senior Notes that rem@ioetstanding following the cash tender offer aodsent solicitation.
We also have $150 million in aggregate principabant outstanding of 8.25% senior notes maturingdidd5, 2018 (the “8.25% Senior Notes”).

The 6.5% Senior Notes and 8.25% Senior Notes (@oligy, the “Senior Notes"are unsecured and impose certain restrictive catenevhich we are currently in compliance with,liming limitations on our ability to inc
additional indebtedness, make investments, seditgsiscur certain liens, pay distributions, ertéo transactions with affiliates, and enter intergers. At any time when the Senior Notes are rateelstment grade by bc
Moody's and Standard & Poor’s and no default omewé default exists, we will not be subject to mani the foregoing covenants. Additionally, we haegtain redemption rights under the Senior Notes.

Indebtedness under the Senior Notes is recourbiER Logistics, our general partner, and guaranbgedur whollyowned subsidiaries. However, any recourse to HEfstios would be limited to the extent of its ast
which other than its investment in us, are notigicant.

Our purchase and contribution agreements with HRE mespect to the intermediate pipelines acquine2005 and the crude pipelines and tankage aasgtsred in 2008, restrict us from selling theggephes and termine
acquired from HFC. Under these agreements, weeateiated from prepaying borrowings and long-tembtdo outstanding balances below $206 million pro2015 and $171 millioprior to 2018, subject to certain limit
exceptions.

Promissory Note:

In November 2011, we issued senior unsecured peamisiotes to HFC (the “Promissory Notes”) havingaggregate principal amount of $150 millkenfinance a portion of our November 9, 2011 adtjois of assets locat:
at HFC's El Dorado and Cheyenne refineries (see RBptin December 2011, we repaid $77.1 millidroutstanding principal using proceeds receiveduinDecember 2011 common unit offering and exjstiash. We repa
the remaining $72.9 million balance in March 2012.

Long-term Debt
The carrying amounts of our long-term debt areollews:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(In thousands)
Credit Agreement $ 421,00( $ 200,00t
6.5% Senior Notes
Principal 300,00( —
Unamortized discount (4,725 —
295,27! —
6.25% Senior Notes
Principal — 185,00(
Unamortized net discount — (10%)
— 184,89!
8.25% Senior Notes
Principal 150,00( 150,00(
Unamortized discount (1,60)) (1,907
148,39¢ 148,09:
Promissory Notes — 72,90(
Total long-term debt $ 864,67 $ 605,88¢

-72 -




Maturities of our long-term debt are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)

2013 $ =
2014 —
2015 —
2016 —
2017 421,00(
Thereafter 450,00(
Total $ 871,00(

Interest Rate Risk Managemel
We use interest rate swaps (derivative instrumeats)anage our exposure to interest rate risk.

As of December 31, 2012 , we have three interdstswaps that hedge our exposure to the cash faucaused by the effects of LIBOR changes on $8@Bon of Credit Agreement advances. Our first interest sava|
entered into in December 2011, effectively conv8@S§5 million of our LIBOR based debt to fixed ratebt having an interest rate of 0.99% plus aniegiple margin of 2.25% as of December 31, 20thich equaled ¢
effective interest rate of 3.24% . This swap caritraatures in February 2016. In August 2012, werewt into two similar interest rate swaps with titsi terms which effectively convert $150 milliari our LIBOR base
debt to fixed rate debt having an interest rat@.@4% plus an applicable margin of 2.25% as of by 31, 2012 , which equaled an effective intenatst of 2.99% . Both of these swap contracts readtuduly 2017.

We have designated these interest rate swaps ladloashedges. Based on our assessment of effeesgeusing the change in variable cash flows methechave determined that these interest rate seapsffective i
offsetting the variability in interest payments $805 millionof our variable rate debt resulting from changekIBOR. Under hedge accounting, we adjust our dishk hedges on a quarterly basis to their fair ealwith thi
offsetting fair value adjustments to accumulatdteotomprehensive loss. Also on a quarterly bagismeasure hedge effectiveness by comparing tlseprealue of the cumulative change in the expefttiedle interest to t
paid or received on the variable leg of our swagsrest the expected future interest payments o8 $30ion of our variable rate debt. Any ineffeativess is recorded directly to interest expenseaf/Aecember 31, 2012we
had no ineffectiveness on our cash flow hedges.

Prior to entering into our swap contract in Decenft 1 (discussed above), we terminated our previlierest rate swap that prior to settlement a¢gswed to hedge our exposure to the effects of RBBanges on the sa
$155 million Credit Agreement advance. We termidatés swap at a cost of $6 million , to lock ioaver effective interest rate on this $155 milliadvance, which by means of the previous swap conivas effectivel
fixed at 6.24% at the time of termination.

At December 31, 2012 , we have an accumulated attreprehensive loss of $4.3 million that relatesuo current and previous cash flow hedging insemts. Of this amount, $0.8 milliarepresents an unrecognized

attributable to a cash flow hedge terminated inébatzer 2011 and relates to the application of heageunting prior to termination. This amount isngeamortized as a charge to interest expense thrBagruary 2013, tl
remaining term of the terminated swap contract.tt@f remaining $3.4 million , approximately $1.0 lioit will be transferred from accumulated other compneiiee loss into interest expense as interest id paithe
underlying swap agreement over the next twelve-mpetiod, assuming interest rates remain unchanged.
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Additional information on our interest rate swapss follows:

Balance Sheet Location of Offsetting Offsetting
Derivative Instrument Location Fair Value Balance Amount

(In thousands)

December 31, 2012
Interest rate swap designated as cash flow hedgirggrument:

Variable-to-fixed interest rate swap contract ($80%illion of LIBOR based debt interest) Other long-term Accumulated other
liabilities $ 3,43( comprehensive loss $ 3,43(

December 31, 2011
Interest rate swap designated as cash flow hedgirggrument:

Variable-to-fixed interest rate swap contract ($05%illion of LIBOR based debt interest) Other long-term Accumulated other
liabilities $ 52C comprehensive loss $ 52C

We previously had interest rate swap contracts ¢hated as economic hedges on interest attributabbeitstanding debt. For the year ended DecembeP@®10, we recognized $1.5 million in noash charges to inter
expense as a result of fair value adjustmentsesetiswap contracts.

We have a deferred hedge premium that relatestagplication of hedge accounting to a variable-satap associated with our 6.25%nior notes prior to its hedge dedesignation D820 his deferred hedge premium ha»
a balance of $1.1 million at December 31, 2011 arasrtized in 2012 and the unamortized balance alentas a reduction to interest expense duringakk tender offer and consent solicitation of a@6% Senior Notes.

Interest Expense and Other Debt Informatic
Interest expense consists of the following compsien

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Interest on outstanding debt:

Credit Agreement, net of interest on interest sataps $ 8,73¢ $ 10,477 $ 9,10¢
6.5% Senior Notes 15,71¢ — —
6.25% Senior Notes 2,422 11,56¢ 11,40¢
8.25% Senior Notes 12,38( 12,38( 10,29¢
Promissory Notes 542 74E —
Partial settlement of interest rate swap - cash fledge — — 1,07¢
Net fair value adjustments to interest rate swaps — — 1,46¢
Amortization of unrealized loss attributable toadisnted cash flow hedge 5,09t 41 —
Amortization of discount and deferred debt issuarasts 1,94¢ 1,212 71¢
Commitment fees 621 43C 392
Total interest incurred 47,45¢ 36,85( 34,45¢
Less capitalized interest 271 891 462
Net interest expense $ 47,18: $ 35,95¢ $ 33,99¢
Cash paid for intere§t $ 38,47¢ $ 34,82¢ $ 31,30¢

(1) Includes fair value adjustments to previous interate swap contracts settled during the first tpraosf 201C
(2) Presented net of cash received under previvesest rate swap contract of $1.9 millifon the year ended December 31, 2!

We recognized a charge of $3.0 million upon thdyeextinguishment of debt for the year ended Decen®d, 2012 . This charge represents the premilith tpaour 6.25%Senior Note holders upon their tender o
aggregate principal amount of $185.0 million arldtesl net discount.
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Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies
We lease certain facilities, pipelines and rightaray under operating leases, most of which contairewal options. The right of way agreements harmus termination dates through 2053 .

As of December 31, 2012 , the minimum future reatahmitments under operating leases having nonetable lease terms in excess of one year are lasviol

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)

2013 $ 6,90¢
2014 6,852
2015 6,84¢
2016 6,841
2017 6,821

Thereafter 3,75¢

Total $ 38,03¢

Rental expense charged to operations was $8.Jomil$7.5 million and $7.1 million for the yearsded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively

We are a party to various legal and regulatory @edings, none of which we believe will have a materdverse impact on our financial condition, tesaf operations or cash flows.

Note 10: Significant Customers
All revenues are domestic revenues, of which 95&4carrently generated from our two largest custemeFC and Alon. The vast majority of our revenaesderived from activities conducted in the so@sinited States.

The following table presents the percentage of tetzenues generated by each of these customers:

2012 2011 2010
HFC 84% 7<% 8C%
Alon 11% 1&% 15%

Note 11: Related Party Transaction:

We serve HFC's refineries under loregm pipeline and terminal, tankage and througlggueements expiring from 2019 to 2026. Under tleegeements, HFC agreed to transport, store andghput volumes of refin¢
product and crude oil on our pipelines and termiteaikage and loading rack facilities that resultninimum annual payments to us. These minimum ainpayments or revenues are subject to annud taté adjustments «
July 1, based on the Producer Price Index (“PPi"federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC")erdAdditionally such agreements require HFC tenimirse us for certain costs. As of December 3122Ghes:
agreements with HFC will result in minimum annuatizoayments to us of $217.2 million .

If HFC fails to meet its minimum volume commitmentsder the agreements in any quarter, it will lpuieed to pay us in cash the amount of any shotifathe last day of the month following the endtloé quarter. Und
certain of these agreements, a shortfall paymegtheapplied as a credit in the following four deas after its minimum obligations are met.

In November 2011, we reached an agreement with tHia€clarifies certain terms of a crude pipelinad gankage throughput agreement, whereby HFC adrepdy us $5.5 milliofior certain past deliveries on our cri
pipeline system. We recognized this settlemeneasnue in the fourth quarter of 2011 that will ieet in six equal quarterly installments througlaidh 2013.
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Under certain provisions of an omnibus agreementiasee with HFC (the “Omnibus Agreementfle pay HFC an annual administrative fee for thevigion by HFC or its affiliates of various geneeaid administrativ
services to us, currently $2.3 milliofThis fee does not include the salaries of persbeamployed by HLS who perform services for usher ¢ost of their employee benefits, which are chaitg us separately by HFC. Also,
reimburse HFC and its affiliates for direct expendeey incur on our behalf.
Related party transactions with HFC are as follows:

+ Revenues received from HFC were $245.6 milli$268.3 million and $146.4 million for the yearsled December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20féspectively

+ HFC charged us general and administrative sesuimder the Omnibus Agreement of $2.3 millionefach of the three years ended December 31, 2012,&t 2010

«  We reimbursed HFC for costs of employees supmpdur operations of $31.1 million , $21.4 milliand $18.6 million for the years ended Decembe®812, 2011 and 201,0espectively

* HFC reimbursed us $13.4 million , $11.9 milliand $3.7 million for the years ended December 81222011 and 2010respectively, for certain reimbursable costs eayuital project:

*  We distributed $64.0 million , $40.6 million a885.9 million , for the years ended December 3122 2011 and 2010respectively, to HFC as regular distributionsitsncommon units and general partner inte
including general partner incentive distributions.

«  Accounts receivable from HFC were $31.6 millaond $31.9 million at December 31, 2012 and 20Ebpectively
« Accounts payable to HFC were $5.0 million ancb®illion at December 31, 2012 and 2Q¥#&spectively

+ Revenues for the years ended December 31, ZWMA, and 2010 include $7.8 million , $3.3 millionda$3.6 millionof shortfall payments billed in 2011, 2010 and 20@pectively, as HFC did not exceec
minimum volume commitment in any of the subseqdient quarters in 2012, 2011 and 2010. Additionatlyenues for the year ended December 31, 2012ded8.8 milliondue to capacity constraints on our UN
pipeline system. Deferred revenue in the consdiliatalance sheets at December 31, 2012 and 26tLidés $5.1 million and $4.0 millionrespectively, relating to certain shortfall billis. It is possible that HF
may not exceed its minimum obligations to receireglit for any of the $5.1 million deferred at Dedeen31, 2012 .

* We acquired from HFC a 75Miterest in the UNEV Pipeline in July 2012 and agrtankage and terminal assets in November 20d March 2010. See Note 3 for a description of thesesaction:

Note 12: Partners’ Equity, Income Allocations and Cash Distribution:
As of December 31, 2012 , HFC held 24,255,030 ofcommon units and the 2% general partner intevdsith together constituted a 44% ownership intereas.

On November 29, 2012, we announced a twosfoe-unit split, payable in the form of a commontwlistribution for each issued and outstanding commnit. The unit distribution was paid January 2813 to all unitholde
of record on January 7, 2013. All references ta and per unit amounts in this document and reldiecosures have been adjusted to reflect thetedfethe unit split for all periods presented.

Common Unit Issuances

2012 Issuances
On July 12, 2012, we issued HFC 2,059,800 of oumroon units as partial consideration for our acdjoisiof its 75% interest in UNEV.

We received aggregate capital contributions of $illfon from our general partner to maintain i 2yeneral partner interest concurrent with the 28irimon unit issuance described above.
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2011 Issuances
We issued in a public offering 2,950,000 of our coom units priced at $26.75 per unit in Decemberl2@bgregate net proceeds of $75.8 million weralusepay a portion of outstanding principal of ti®missory Notes.

We issued 7,615,230 of our common units to HFC aveénber 2011 as partial consideration for the pasetof certain tankage, loading rack and crudeviegeassets located at HFC's El Dorado and Cheyeafineries.
We received aggregate capital contributions of $illon from our general partner to maintain i& 2yeneral partner interest concurrent with the 28rhmon unit issuances described above.

Under our registration statement filed with the S&ng a “shelf” registration process, we currerityve the ability to raise up to $2 billidoy offering securities, through one or more prospesupplements that woi
describe, among other things, the specific amoumitses and terms of any securities offered and tiewproceeds would be used. Any proceeds fronsahe of securities would be used for general bssipeirposes, whi
may include, among other things, funding acquisiiof assets or businesses, working capital, dapifenditures, investments in subsidiaries, thieeraent of existing debt and/or the repurchaseashmon units or oth
securities.

Allocations of Net Income
Net income attributable to HEP is allocated betwimited partners and the general partner inteiresiccordance with the provisions of the partngrgtareement. HEP net income allocated to the gepartner include

incentive distributions that are declared subsegteequarter end. After the amount of incentivetritisitions is allocated to the general partner,réreaining net income attributable to HEP is altedato the partners based
their weighted-average ownership percentage duhiegeriod.

The following table presents the allocation of gemeral partner interest in net income for thequiripresented below:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(in thousands)
General partner interest in net income $ 1,464 $ 1,287 $ 903
General partner incentive distribution 20,98¢ 15,51¢ 11,18:
Total general partner interest in net income $ 22,45( $ 16,80¢ $ 12,08«

Cash Distributions
We consider regular cash distributions to unithrdd®n a quarterly basis, although there is no asseras to the future cash distributions since #neydependent upon future earnings, cash flovpstataequirements, financ
condition and other factors.

Within 45days after the end of each quarter, we distriblitefaur available cash (as defined in our parshg agreement) to unitholders of record on thdieqiple record date. The amount of available casteelly is a
cash on hand at the end of the quarter; less tlwiaof cash reserves established by our generaigrao provide for the proper conduct of our bess, comply with applicable laws, any of our daktruments, or oth
agreements; or provide funds for distributions tw onitholders and to our general partner for ang or more of the next four quarters; plus all casthand on the date of determination of availaalsh for the quart
resulting from working capital borrowings made aftee end of the quarter.

We make distributions in the following manner: 988our common unitholders, pro rata, an@?2to the general partner, until we distribute facke outstanding common unit an amount equal tarttmmum quarterl
distribution for that quarter and any arrearagegaypment of the minimum quarterly distributions &y prior quarters, thereafter. Cash in excegsh®minimum quarterly distributions is distributedthe unitholders and t
general partner based on certain percentages peeldagiow.

Our general partner, HEP Logistics, is entitlethzentive distributions if the amount we distributith respect to any quarter exceeds specifiecetdeyels.
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Total Quarterly Distribution Marginal Percentage Interest in Distributions

Target Amount Unitholders General Partner
Minimum quarterly distribution $0.25 98% 2%
First target distribution Up to $0.275 98% 2%
Second target distribution above $0.275 up to $0.3125 85% 15%
Third target distribution above $0.3125 up to $0.375 75% 25%
Thereafter Above $0.375 50% 50%

On January 24, 2013 we announced our cash distibfdr the fourth quarter of 2012 of $0.47 pertufihe distribution is payable on all common andegel partner units and will be paid February 181, 2o all unitholder
of record on February 4, 2013 .

The following table presents the allocation of cegular quarterly cash distributions to the genaral limited partners for the periods in which tiagply. Our distributions are declared subsequequarter end; therefore, the
amounts presented do not reflect distributions paiihg the periods presented below.

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per unit data)
General partner interest $ 2,56¢ $ 1,981 $ 1,724
General partner incentive distribution 20,98¢ 15,51¢ 11,18
Total general partner distribution 23,55: 17,50( 12,90¢
Limited partner distribution 102,22; 81,50¢ 73,227
Total regular quarterly cash distribution $ 125,77 $ 99,00¢ $ 86,12¢
Cash distribution per unit applicable to limitedtpars $ 1.83¢ $ 1.74C $ 1.66(

As a master limited partnership, we distribute awailable cash, which historically has exceedednmtiincome attributable to HEP because depreciaiml amortization expense represents agash-charge against incol
The result is a decline in our partnees{uity since our regular quarterly distributionsyéa@xceeded our quarterly net income attributabldEP. Additionally, if the asset contributions awtjuisitions from HFC had occur
while we were not a consolidated variable inteesgity of HFC, our acquisition cost, in excess &G historical basis in the transferred asset83@5.6 million, exclusive of depreciation and amortization, wohdt/e bee
recorded in our financial statements, as incretsesr properties and equipment and intangibletassstead of decreases to our partners’ equity.

-78 -




Note 13: Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Summarized quarterly financial data is as follows:

First Second Third Fourth Total
(In thousands, except per unit data)

Year Ended December 31, 2019

Revenues $ 68,41% $ 68,66( $ 74,054 $ 81,431 $ 292,56(
Operating income $ 31,60: $ 30,11¢ $ 35,57: $ 40,97 $ 138,26:
Income before income taxes $ 19,43: $ 19,20« $ 23,90¢ $ 28,93: $ 91,47¢
Net income $ 19,35 % 19,12¢ $ 23,77 $ 28,84t 3% 91,10%
Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partners $ 21,77« $ 22,00: $ 23,33¢ $ 27,03¢ $ 94,15
Limited partners’ per unit interest in net incombasic and diluted $ 03C $ 03C $ 03z $ 037 $ 1.2¢
Distributions per limited partner unit $ 0.44¢ $ 0.45¢ $ 0.462 $ 0.47(¢ $ 1.83¢
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Revenues $ 45,12 $ 50,90¢ $ 49,15 $ 69,087 $ 214,26¢
Operating income $ 22,26: $ 26,64¢ $ 20,59¢ $ 36,70¢ $ 106,21:
Income before income taxes $ 14,44: $ 18,39: $ 12,43: $ 27,56( $ 72,828
Net income $ 1421 $ 1837 % 1250¢  $ 27,49 3% 72,58¢
Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partners $ 14,60( $ 18,67¢ $ 15,63 $ 30,89« $ 79,79¢
Limited partners’ per unit interest in net incombasic and diluted $ 0.2t $ 0.3¢4 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.51 $ 1.3¢
Distributions per limited partner unit $ 0.42¢ $ 0.43¢ $ 0.43¢ $ 0.44: $ 1.74C

(1) Prior period amounts have been revised. See N&e &lditional information. The table below outlinthe impact of such corrections on quarterly Emipartners' interest in net income. Other diffeesnin amoun
previously reported relate to the acquisitionsiasussed in Notes 2 and 3.

First Second Third Fourth Total
Increase (Decrease)
(In thousands, except per unit data)

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partners $ (205 % (1,159 $ (1,157) $ — $ —

Limited partners’ per unit interest in net incombasic and diluted $ — $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ — $ —
Year Ended December 31, 2011

Net income attributable to Holly Energy Partners $ (569 % 33 % (111 % 48 $ (1,972)

Limited partners’ per unit interest in net incombasic and diluted $ 0.0) $ — 3 0.09) $ — 3 (0.09

Note 14: Supplemental Guarantor/Non-Guarantor Financial Information

Obligations of HEP (“Parent”) under the Senior Noteave been jointly and severally guaranteed by edidts direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiar (‘Guarantor Subsidiaries”lhese guarantees are full :
unconditional, subject to certain customary relgas®visions. These circumstances include (i) wheBuarantor Subsidiary is sold or sells all or sabgally all of its assets, (ii) when a GuarantabSidiary is declare
“unrestricted”for covenant purposes, (iii) when a Guarantor Slibsj's guarantee of other indebtedness is termihat released and (iv) when the requirementsefgalldefeasance or covenant defeasance or to disctia
Senior Notes have been satisfied.

The following financial information presents conded consolidating balance sheets, statements giretinsive income, and statements of cash flowiseoParent and the Guarantor Subsidiaries. Thenr#tion has be¢
presented as if the Parent accounted for its owigens the Guarantor Subsidiaries using the equigghod of accounting.
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Prior period amounts have been recast to includ&WNperations acquired July 12, 2012, as if it baén acquired March 1, 2008, the date we were wmiemon control with HFC. The tankage, loading raokl crud
receiving assets located at HB@EI Dorado and Cheyenne refineries acquired oreNtber 9, 2011 were recast as if they had been rechjonh July 1, 2011, the date upon which HFC obtaicontrol of such assets. T
treatment is required under GAAP as the transastiggre between entities under common control. Aafusily, we corrected certain amounts previousfyoréed in 2011 and 2010. See Note 2 for additiorfarmation.

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Non-
December 31, 2012 Parent Restricted Subsidiaries Restricted Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2 822 4,412 $ — 5,231
Accounts receivable — 32,31¢ 6,401 — 38,72(
Intercompany accounts receivable (payable) 42,19¢ (42,199 — — —
Prepaid and other current assets 224 2,39¢ 1,00 — 3,61¢
Total current assets 42,42( (6,657) 11,81 — 47,57¢
Properties and equipment, net — 563,70: 396,83: — 960,53
Investment in subsidiaries 777,47 300,60° — (1,078,07) —
Transportation agreements, net — 94,59¢ — — 94,59¢
Goodwill — 256,49t — — 256,49t
Investment in SLC Pipeline — 25,04: — — 25,04:
Other assets 1,15¢ 8,71( — — 9,86¢
Total assets 821,04¢ 1,242,491 408,64° $ (1,078,07) 1,394,111
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable — 10,74 1,28¢ $ — 12,03(
Accrued interest 10,19¢ 28 — — 10,22¢
Deferred revenue — 3,31¢ 5,582 —_ 8,901
Accrued property taxes — 1,92t 765 = 2,68¢
Other current liabilities 562 1,27¢ 68 — 1,90¢
Total current liabilities 10,76: 17,28¢ 7,70C — 35,75(
Long-term debt 443,67 421,000 — — 864,67:
Other long-term liabilities 55 15,24: 137 — 15,43
Deferred revenue — 11,49 — — 11,49«
Class B unit 13,90¢ — — — 13,90¢
Equity - partners 352,65: 777,47: 400,81( (1,178,28) 352,65!
Equity - noncontrolling interest — — — 100,20: 100,20:
Total liabilities and partners’ equity 821,04¢ 1,242,491 408,64" $ (1,078,079 1,394,111
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Non-
December 31, 2011 Parent Restricted Subsidiaries Restricted Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2 $ 3,267 $ 3,10C $ - 6,36¢
Accounts receivable — 33,97: 4,08 — 38,05:
Intercompany accounts receivable (payable) 17,74% (17,749 = = =
Prepaid and other current assets 26€ 2,37¢ 1,08 — 3,72¢
Total current assets 18,01% 21,87: 8,26¢ — 48,15(
Properties and equipment, net — 559,21: 401,28 — 960,49¢
Investment in subsidiaries 960,51¢ 297,00¢ — (1,257,52) —
Transportation agreements, net — 101,54¢ — — 101,54
Goodwill — 256,49t — — 256,49t
Investment in SLC Pipeline — 25,302 — — 25,302
Other assets 1,322 5,882 — — 7,20¢
Total assets 979,85: $ 1,267,31 $ 409,55: $ (1,257,52) 1,399,191
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable — $ 11,307 $ 13,54 $ — 24,84¢
Accrued interest 7,49¢ 782 — — 8,28(
Deferred revenue — 4,447 — — 4,447
Accrued property taxes — 2,19¢ — = 2,19¢
Other current liabilities 68¢ 1,08¢ — — 1,771
Total current liabilities 8,187 19,82( 13,54% — 41,54¢
Long-term debt 332,98t 272,90( — — 605,88t
Other long-term liabilities — 8,652 — — 8,65:%
Deferred revenue — 5,42¢ — — 5,42¢
Equity - partners 638,67¢ 960,51¢ 396,01( (1,356,52i) 638,67¢
Equity - noncontrolling interest — — — 99,00z 99,002
Total liabilities and partners’ equity 979,85: $ 1,267,31 $ 409,55: $ (1,257,52) 1,399,191
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensivecome

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Non-
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Parent Restricted Subsidiaries Restricted Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Revenues:
Affiliates $ — $ 232,98t $ 13,75« (1,15¢) 245,58:
Third parties — 41,98« 4,99¢ — 46,97¢
— 274,97( 18,74¢ (1,15¢) 292,56(
Operating costs and expenses:
Operations (exclusive of depreciation and amoitzét — 78,76¢ 11,63« (1,15¢) 89,24
Depreciation and amortization — 43,147 14,31« — 57,46:
General and administrative 3,33¢ 4,25¢ — — 7,594
3,33¢ 126,17: 25,94¢ (1,15¥) 154,29
Operating income (loss) (3,33¢) 148,79¢ (7,200 — 138,26¢
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries 130,74¢ (5,400 - (125,34) -
Equity in earnings of SLC Pipeline — 3,36¢ — — 3,36¢
Interest (expense) income (31,529 (15,659 — — (47,189
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (2,979 — — — (2,979
Other — 10 — = 10
96,24! (17,68Y) — (125,34 (46,78))
Income (loss) before income taxes 92,90¢ 131,11« (7,200 (125,34) 91,47¢
State income tax expense — (37) — — (371)
Net income (loss) 92,90¢ 130,74: (7,200 (125,349 91,10¢
Allocation of net loss attributable to Predecessors 4,20( —_ — — 4,20(
Allocation of net (income) attributable to noncatling interests (2,959 — — 1,80C (1,15%)
Net income (loss) attributable to Holly Energy Rars 94,15 130,74¢ (7,200) (123,54 94,15:
Other comprehensive (loss) 2,18¢ — — — 2,18¢
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 96,337 $ 130,74¢ $ (7,200 (123,54)) 96,337
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensivecome

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Non-
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Parent Restricted Subsidiaries Restricted Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Revenues:
Affiliates — 168,51¢ 31z (57)) 168,26:
Third parties — 46,00¢ 2 — 46,007
— 214,52 31t (57)) 214,26t
Operating costs and expenses:
Operations (exclusive of depreciation and amoitzat — 63,10( 1,99- (571) 64,52
Depreciation and amortization — 35,20( 1,75¢ — 36,95¢
General and administrative 3,902 2,674 — — 6,57¢
3,902 100,97 3,75C (571) 108,05!
Operating income (loss) (3,902 113,55( (3,43%) — 106,21:
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries 101,84« (2,57¢) - (99,26¢) -
Equity in earnings of SLC Pipeline — 2,552 — — 2,552
Interest (expense) income (24,499 (11,469 — - (35,959
Other — 17 — — 17
77,35( (11,479 = (99,26¢) (33,390
Income (loss) before income taxes 73,44¢ 102,07¢ (3,43%) (99,269 72,82¢
State income tax expense — (239 — = (234
Net income (loss) 73,44¢ 101,84« (3,43%) (99,269 72,58¢
Allocation of net loss attributable to Predecessors 6,351 — — — 6,351
Allocation of net loss attributable to noncontmfiinterests — — — 85¢ 85¢
Net income (loss)attributable to Holly Energy Part 79,79¢ 101,84« (3,43Y) (98,409 79,79¢
Other comprehensive income 3,562 — — — 3,562
Comprehensive income (loss) 83,36 101,84« (3,43%) (98,409 83,36
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Comprehensivecome

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Non-
Year Ended December 31, 2010 Parent Restricted Subsidiaries Restricted Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Revenues:
Affiliates — 146,39: — (24 146,36°
Third parties — 35,76 8 — 35,77(
— 182,150 8 (24 182,13°
Operating costs and expenses:
Operations (exclusive of depreciation and amoitzét — 54,75¢ 21E (24 54,94¢
Depreciation and amortization — 31,47¢ (113 = 31,36
General and administrative 5,052 2,66¢€ — — 7,71¢
5,05 88,897 10z (24) 94,02¢
Operating income (loss) (5,05%) 93,25¢ (94) — 88,10¢
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiaries 84,66« (70) - (84,599 -
Equity in earnings of SLC Pipeline — 2,39: — — 2,39%
Interest (expense) income (23,359 (10,636 - - (33,999
Other — 17 — — 17
61,30¢ (8,296 = (84,59 (31,58
Income (loss) before income taxes 56,25% 84,96( (94) (84,599 56,52¢
State income tax expense — (29€) — = (29€)
Net income (loss) 56,25! 84,66¢ (94) (84,599 56,22¢
Allocation of net loss attributable to Predecessors 70 — — — 70
Allocation of net loss attributable to noncontmfiinterests — — — 24 24
Net income (loss) attributable to Holly Energy Rars 56,32¢ 84,66¢ (94) (84,570 56,32¢
Other comprehensive (loss) (88E) — — — (885)
Comprehensive income (loss) 55,43t 84,66« (94) (84,570 55,43¢

-84-




Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Non-
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Parent Restricted Subsidiaries Restricted Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities 17,43. 142,94( 1,03¢ $ 161,41:
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to properties and equipment — (28,139 (14,72) (42,867)
Cash flows from financing activities
Net borrowings under credit agreement — 221,00( — 221,00(
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 294,75( — — 294,75(
Cash distribution to HFC for UNEV acquisition — (260,929 — (260,92)
Repayments of promissory notes (185,000 (75,23%) — (260,23
Contributions from partners 1,74¢ — 15,00( 16,74¢
Distributions to HEP unitholders (122,77) — — (122,77)
Purchase of units for incentive grants (5,240 321 — (4,919
Deferred financing costs (919 (2,32¢) — (3,23¢)
Other = (89 = (89)
(17,43)) (117,25() 15,00( (119,68
Cash and cash equivalents
Decrease for the period — (2,449 1,312 (1,139
Beginning of period 2 3,267 3,10C 6,36¢
End of period 2 82z 4,412 $ 5,231
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Guarantor Non-Guarantor Non-
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Parent Restricted Subsidiaries Restricted Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities 11,66¢ 85,73( 1,64¢ $ 99,042
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to properties and equipment — (43,619 (162,69Y) (206,309
Cash flows from financing activities
Net borrowings under credit agreement — 41,00( — 41,00(
Repayments of promissory notes — (77,100 — (77,100
Proceeds from issuance of common units 75,81¢ — — 75,81¢
Contributions from partners 5,887 — 156,50( 162,38°
Distributions to HEP unitholders (91,506 — — (91,506
Purchase of units for restricted grants (1,641 —_ — (1,647
Deferred financing costs — (3,150 — (3,150)
Other (221 — — (221)
(11,666 (39,25() 156,50( 105,58«
Cash and cash equivalents
Increase for the period — 2,86€ (4,549 (1,687
Beginning of period 2 401 7,64¢ 8,052
End of period 2 3,267 3,10C $ 6,36¢
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Non-
Year Ended December 31, 2010 Parent Restricted Subsidiaries Restricted Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities (59,910 178,210 $ (1356) $ 104,73t
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of assets from HFC — (35,52¢) — (35,526
Additions to properties and equipment — (26,737) (79,799 (106,529
— (62,25¢) (79,799 (142,05))
Cash flows from financing activities
Net repayments under credit agreement — (47,000 — (47,000
Repayments of promissory notes = = = —
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 147,54( — — 147,54(
Contributions from partners — (13,500 94,00( 80,50(
Distributions to HEP unitholders (84,420 — — (84,429
Purchase price in excess of transferred basissetaacquired from HFC = (57,560 = (57,560
Purchase of units for restricted grants (2,709 — — (2,709
Deferred financing costs (494) — — (494)
Other — — — —
59,91¢ (118,060 94,00( 35,85¢
Cash and cash equivalents
Increase for the period — (2,105 64€ (1,459
Beginning of period 2 2,50€ 7,002 9,511
End of period 2 401 $ 7,64¢ $ 8,052
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosur
We have had no change in, or disagreement withinol@pendent registered public accounting firm aiters involving accounting and financial disclasur

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedure:

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

Our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer have evaluated, as required by Rula-18(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 {Exchange Act”)pur disclosure controls and procedures (as defir
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchangeahcof the end of the period covered by this ahneport on Form 16&. Our disclosure controls and procedures are desigo provide reasonable assurance th:
information we are required to disclose in the repthat we file or submit under the Exchange Aadcumulated and communicated to our managenmehiding our principal executive officer and pripai financial officer
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardieguired disclosure and is recorded, processedmsuized and reported within the time periods djetin the Securities and Exchange Commissionles and forms. Bas
upon the evaluation, our principal executive offiaad principal financial officer have concludedttbur disclosure controls and procedures wereffeas of December 31, 2012 at a reasonable té\adsurance.

(b) Changes in internal control over financial nimm
There have been no changes in our internal coawri financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13{) under the Exchange Act) that occurred dudng last fiscal quarter that have materially aféecor are reasonably like
to materially affect our internal control over fir@al reporting.

See Item 8 for “Management’s Report on its Assessmiethe Partnership’s Internal Control Over FiciahReporting” and “Report of Independent RegistePublic Accounting Firm.”

Item 9B.  Other Information
There have been no events that occurred in théhfourarter of 2012 that would need to be reporte@farm 8-K that have not been previously reported.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

Holly Logistic Services, L.L.C. (“HLS"), the gendrpartner of HEP Logistics Holdings, L.P. (“‘HEP Listics”), our general partner, manages our operations ardtiast Neither our general partner nor our dicgstar
elected by our unitholders. Unitholders are nottledt to directly or indirectly participate in ounanagement or operations. The sole member of Hb&hwis a subsidiary of HFC, appoints the direcwir$iLS to serve uni
their death, resignation or removal.

Certain executive officers of HLS are also officefHFC. During 2012, Mark Cunningham, Senior VResident, Operations of HLS, was the only HLS eatiee officer who spent all of his professional &managing ot
business and affairs. The rest of HLS's executifieess devoted as much of their professional tiasewas necessary to oversee the management ofusimebs and affairs. As of January 1, 2013, intamddio Mr.
Cunningham, Matthew Clifton, Chairman of the Boarl Chief Executive Officer of HLS, and Bruce Sh&sesident of HLS, also spend all of their profesal time managing our business and affairs anidmger provid:
services to HFC. The rest of HLS's executive ofiaentinue devote as much of their professioma tas is necessary to oversee the management bfisimess and affairs.

Our general partner owes a fiduciary duty to outhatders. Our general partner is liable, as gergaetner, for all of our debts (to the extent patd from our assets), except for indebtednesstmr mbligations that are me
specifically non-recourse to it. Whenever possible, general partner intends to incur indebtednessher obligations that are non-recourse.

Board Leadership Structure
The Board of Directors of HLS (the “Boardiglieves that HLS's Chief Executive Officer is basited to serve as Chairman of the Board becagise the director most familiar with HLS and HEBUsiness and industry, &
most capable of effectively identifying strategigopities and leading the discussion and executbstrategy. Independent directors and managemave kifferent perspectives and roles in strategyeld@ment. Th
independent directors on the Board bring experieauersight and expertise from outside HLS, HEP #redindustry, while the Chief Executive Officelitgs HLS and HERpecific experience and expertise. The B
believes that the combined role of Chairman ofBbard and Chief Executive Officer promotes stratdgyelopment and execution and facilitates inforometiow between management and the Board, allltitivare essenti
to effective governance of HLS and HEP.
Presiding Director
Charles M. Darling, IV was appointed by the non-agement directors of HLS to serve as the lead iexégnt director (the “Presiding Director”) of thedd. The Presiding Director has the following mspbilities:

« presiding at all executive sessions of the mamagement directors of the Boi

« consulting with management on Board and committeeting agendz

* acting as a liaison in appropriate instancesvéeh management and the noanagement directors, including advising the Chairrof the Board and Chief Executive Officer on dfiiciency of the Board meeting
and

« facilitating teamwork and communication betweéle®m nonmanagement directors and manager
Persons wishing to communicate with the mearagement directors are invited to email the BimgiDirector at presiding.director. HEP@hollyeneogyn or write to: Charles M. Darling, 1V, PresidiBirector, c/o Secretar

Holly Logistic Services, L.L.C., 2828 N. Harwoodyit® 1300, Dallas, Texas 7520507. The Secretary will review the communication forward all communication to the appropriateedior or directors, other than th
communications that are merely solicitations fardarcts or services or relate to matters that aeetppe that are clearly improper or irrelevanthte functioning of the Board or the business affairafof HLS and HEP.
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Risk Management

The Board has an active role in overseeing manageaiehe risks affecting HLS and HEP. The Boargularly reviews information regarding HLS and HE&sdit, liquidity and business and operationsyel as the risk
associated with each. The Board committees areemigaged in overseeing risk associated with HLSHiBE.

+ The Compensation Committee oversees the managemesits relating to HLS's executive compensatitanp and arrangemer
* The Audit Committee oversees management of finanegrting and controls rist
* The Conflicts Committee oversees specific matteas the Board or the Conflicts Committee believesimvolve conflicts of interest with HF

While each committee is responsible for evaluatisgain risks and overseeing the management of ssks, the entire Board is ultimately responsitiie the risk management of HLS and HEP and is metyuinformec
through committee reports about such risks.

The sole member of HLS manages risks associatddthét independence of the Board. The Audit Commisted the Board also receive input and reports #u8's risk management oversight committee on memagt'
views of the risks facing HLS and HEP. The risk agement oversight committee is made up of managepegsonnel, none of whom serve on the Board anaf athom have a range of different backgroundsd)ssknc
experiences with regard to the operational, finalnend strategic risk profile of HLS and HEP. Thekmanagement oversight committee monitors tHeeis/ironment for HLS and HEP as a whole, and resithe activitie
that mitigate risks to an achievable and acceptabis.

Director Qualifications

The Board believes that it is necessary for eadiL@'s directors to possess a variety of qualiied skills. When searching for new candidatesstie member of HLS considers the evolving needb®Board and searct
for candidates that fill any current or anticipafeture needs. The Board also believes that aloflirs must possess a considerable amount of lsssmanagement, business leadership and educatixpatience. Whe
considering director candidates, the sole membéti. first considers a candidate's management ey and then considers issues of judgment, baakgr stature, conflicts of interest, integrityhies and commitment
the goal of maximizing unitholder value. The solemiber of HLS also focuses on issues of diversitghsas diversity of education, professional expeegeand differences in viewpoints and skills. Toke snember of HL
does not have a formal policy with respect to diitgr however, the Board and the sole member of Heleve that it is essential that the Board membepresent diverse viewpoints. In considering itfatds for the Boar
the sole member of HLS considers the entirety ohezandidate's credentials in the context of tisémedards. All our directors bring to the Boardaive leadership experience derived from theiviserin many areas.

Director Independence
The Board has determined that Messrs. Darling, G?@mkerton, Ridenour and Stengel meet the appioatiteria for independence under the currentlgliapble rules of the New York Stock Exchange.

Audit CommitteeThe Audit Committee of HLS is composed of threesdiors, Messrs. Pinkerton, Ridenour and Darlinge Bioard has determined that each member of thet Qahmittee is “independents
defined by the New York Stock Exchange listing d&nds and Rule 10A-3 of the Securities Exchangeofd934 (the “Exchange Act”). The Board also defieed that Mr. Stengel was “independeas’ defined by the Ne
York Stock Exchange listing standards and Rule B0#-the Exchange Act during the time he servetherAudit Committee.

Conflicts CommitteeThe Conflicts Committee of HLS is composed of thd@ectors, Messrs. Stengel, Pinkerton and Grag. Bbard has determined that each member of theli©@sn€ommittee is “independend
defined by the New York Stock Exchange listing gtamas and Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act, as requily the Conflicts Committee Charter. The Boasw aletermined that Mr. Darling was “independeas’defined by tt
New York Stock Exchange listing standards and R0&-3 of the Exchange Act during the time he servethenConflicts Committee.

Compensation Committeelhe Compensation Committee of HLS is composefivefdirectors, Messrs. Jennings, Darling, Gragngel and Townsend. The Board has determined Hudt @ Messrs. Darling, Gr
and Stengel is “independent” as defined by the Nevk Stock Exchange listing standards. Becausere@anaster limited partnership, Rule 303A.05 ef th
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New York Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual, Wwhiequires a publicly traded company to have a @rsation committee composed entirely of independeattors, does not apply to us. The Board algerdenec
that Mr. Pinkerton was “independent” as definedhs/New York Stock Exchange listing standards dytire time he served on the Compensation Committee.

Independence Determinatioria. making its independence determinations, the @cansidered certain transactions, relationshipsaarangements. In determining Mr. Ridenour's irtefence, the Board conside
that Mr. Ridenour has not been employed by HFC b& l&ince 2008 and has not received compensati@xdess of $120,000 since 2009. The Board has detednthat these historical relationships do notamg/r.
Ridenour's independence.

Code of Ethics
HLS has adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsEtiat applies to all of its officers, directorsleemployees, including HLS's principal executiviécer, principal financial officer, and principalccounting officer. Tt

purpose of the Code of Business Conduct and Eihims among other things, affirm HLS and HEP's odtment to a high standard of integrity and ethidse Code sets forth a common set of values amdiates to which &
of HLS's officers, directors and employees museaehWe will post information regarding an amendnienor a waiver from, the Code of Business Conduncl Ethics on our website.

Copies of our Governance Guidelines, Audit ComnaitBharter, Compensation Committee Charter, and ©b8esiness Conduct and Ethics are available smabsite atvww.hollyenergy.com Copies of these docume
may also be obtained free of charge upon writtemest to Holly Energy Partners, L.P., Attentionc&President, Investor Relations, 2828 N. Harw&aite 1300, Dallas, TX, 75201-1507.

The Board, Its Committees and Director Compensation
Directors

The following individuals serve as directors of HLS

Matthew P. Clifton Director since July 2004. Age 61.

Principal Occupatior:  Chairman of the Board and Chief Executiveic2if

Business Experienc: Mr. Clifton was appointed as Chairman of the Boand Chief Executive Officer in March 2004 and wapainted as President in July 2011. Mr. Cliftonigaed as President in November 2(
Mr. Clifton joined HFC in 1980 and served as thes€ixive Chairman of HFC from July 2011 through Deber 2012. Mr. Clifton previously served as ChiefeButive Officer of Holl
Corporation from 2006 until the merger in July 2044 Chairman of the Board of Holly Corporatiomfrépril 2007 until the merger in July 2011 and asstlent of Holly Corporation from 19
until 2006.

Additional Directorships Mr. Clifton served as a director of HFC from 1988%ugh December 201

Qualifications: Mr. Clifton has extensive knowledge of operasi@f HLS and HEP, the refining industry and maeoconomic conditions, as well as valuable induséfgtionships throughout the country.
Clifton brings a unique and valuable perspectivevaels as an understanding of the HLS and HEP'styistulture, vision and strategy to the Board.
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Charles M. Darling, IV
Principal Occupatior:

Business Experienc:

Qualifications:

Director since July 2004. Age 64.
President of DQ Holdings, L.L.C.

Mr. Darling has served as President of DQ Holdirigk,C., a venture capital investment and consglfiinm focused primarily on opportunities in theeegy industry, since August 1998. |
Darling was previously the General Manager of DeBewer, LP and of its General Partner, Desert PoleC, which was an indirect affiliate of DQ Hofdis, LLC. In late 2006, Desert Pow
LLC and Desert Power, LP, along with certain ofitlseibsidiaries, filed for bankruptcy in Nevada.late 2007, the bankruptcy court approved the plareorganization, which became fina
accordance with its terms in early 2008. Mr. Daylaiso previously practiced law at the law firmBatker Botts, L.L.P. for over 20 years.

Mr. Darling has significant experience addregsinancial, legal, regulatory and risk matterseafing HLS and HEP due to his $8ar legal practice at a large, national law fitis service &
President and General Counsel of a publicly trazfestgy company with a publicly traded pipelines texakmited partnership and his subsequent endsandhe energy industry provide him w
valuable insight into our industry. Mr. Darling&saldership skills, management and legal experierate him particularly well suited to be our Presglirector.

William J. Gray Director since April 2008. Age 72.

Principal Occupatior:

Business Experienc:

Qualifications:

Private Consultant and Member of the New Mexilouse of Representatives

Mr. Gray is a private consultant and has servea m&mber of the New Mexico House of Representasiuge November 2006. Mr. Gray has served as argmantal affairs consultant for HI
since January 2003. He also served as a constitatdlly Corporation from October 1999 through Sepber 2001. Mr. Gray served as a director of HBlyporation from September 1996 u
May 2008. Mr. Gray was employed by Holly Corpasatfor over 30 years and retired in October 1998Hth time Mr. Gray was Senior Vice President, kiing and Supply.

Mr. Gray brings to the Board forty years of expece in pipeline, refining, and marketing and suppy. Gray also brings business and managementés@and extensive knowledge of, ar
unique perspective on, regulatory matters affeadimgindustry as a result of his government expege

Michael C. Jennings  Director since October 2011. Age 47.

Principal Occupatior:

Business Experienc:

Additional Directorships

Qualifications:

Chief Executive Officer and President of HFC

Mr. Jennings has served as the Chief Executivec@ffand President of HFC since the merger of Hotlyporation and Frontier Oil Corporation in Julyl20and as Chairman of the Board of +
since January 2013. Mr. Jennings previously seagethe President and Chief Executive Officer ofnfies Oil Corporation from 2009 until the mergerJaly 2011 and as the Executive \
President and Chief Financial Officer of Frontigt Corporation from 2005 until 2009.

Mr. Jennings currently serves as the Chairman efBbard and a director of HFC and a director of IGBophysical Corporation. Mr. Jennings served aairBtan of the board of directors
Frontier Oil Corporation from 2010 until the mergetduly 2011 and as a director of Frontier Oil @mation from 2008 until the merger in July 2011.

Mr. Jennings provides valuable and extensiveistiy knowledge and experience. His knowledge efday-today operations of HFC provides a significant reseupr the Board and facilitat
discussions between the Board and HFC management.

Jerry W. Pinkerton Director since July 2004. Age 72.
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Principal Occupatior:

Business Experienc:

Additional Directorships

Qualifications:

Retired

Mr. Pinkerton retired in December 2003. From Decen000 to December 2003, Mr. Pinkerton served @maultant to TXU Corp. (now Energy Future Holdir@orp.) and from August 1997
December 2000, Mr. Pinkerton served as ControfeFXU Corp. and its U.S. subsidiaries. Mr. Pinkertpreviously served as the Vice President and Chgebunting Officer of ENSERC
Corporation and was employed for 26 years as aitaaury Deloitte Haskins & Sells, a predecessanfof Deloitte & Touche, LLP, including 15 yearsasaudit partner.

Since April 2012, Mr. Pinkerton serves on the baafrdirectors of Southcross Energy Partners GP, ,th€ general partner of Southcross Energy Parthef?s, and serves as the chair of the ¢
and conflicts committees of the board of direcwirSouthcross Energy Partners GP, LLC. Mr. Pinkegerved on the board of directors of Animal Heéttiernational, Inc., and served as cha
its audit committee, from May 2008 to June 2011.

Mr. Pinkerton brings to the Board his audit, acamgand financial reporting expertise and a lesefinancial sophistication that qualifies him as @udit committee financial expert. Due to
executive managerial experience with public comggmind public accounting firms, Mr. Pinkerton pssss business and management expertise that p@vitghaluable insight into HLS a
HEP's business.

P. Dean Ridenour  Director since August 2004. Age 71.

Principal Occupatior:

Business Experienc:

Qualifications:

Retired

Mr. Ridenour retired in February 2010. Mr. Ridenpuovided consulting services to Holly Corporatioom January 2008 until February 2010, and sereediee President and Chief Account
Officer of Holly Corporation and HLS from Januar§5 to January 2008. Mr. Ridenour served as ViesiBent,Special Projects of Holly Corporation from Augu8i02 to December 2004 &
prior to becoming a full-time employee, provided-fime consulting services to Holly Corporation beding in October 2002. Mr. Ridenour was employedJdryears by Ernst & Young LL
including 20 years as an audit partner, prior toing from such position in 1997.

Mr. Ridenour's management experience and his atioguand financial reporting expertise qualify has an audit committee financial expert and make divaluable member of the Board
addition, Mr. Ridenour's prior experience at HL$ &folly Corporation provide him with a deep undansting of our business and industry.

William P. Stengel  Director since July 2004. Age 64.

Principal Occupatior:
Business Experienc:

Qualifications:

Retired

Mr. Stengel retired in May 2003. From 1997 to M&p32, Mr. Stengel served as Managing Director ofgflodal energy and mining group at Citigroup/CitikaN.A.

Mr. Stengel's executive management experience btigpoompanies, banking and financial expertisel general business and management expertise psokioewith significant insight into o
operations, management and finance.
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James G. Townsend Director since January 2012. Age 58.

Principal Occupatior:  Retired

Business Experienc: Mr. Townsend retired from HFC in December 2011 vt employed by Holly Corporation (and HFC) andtS for more than 25 years. From 2008 until higeetent, Mr. Townsend served
Senior Vice President of UNEV Pipeline, LLC, a joirenture between Sinclair Oil Corporation and lsstiary of HEP. Mr. Townsend served as Vice PessidOperations for HLS from 2004
2007 and was responsible for all pipeline and teaibperations for Holly Corporation prior to tt@rhation of HEP. Prior to such time, Mr. Townserdved in positions of increasing seniorit
Holly Corporation.

Qualifications: Mr. Townsend brings to the Board his knowled§jthe operations of HFC, HLS and their subsidiariés 25 years of experience in the industry, asdhsiness expertise

None of our directors reported any litigation foe period from 2003 to 2013 that is required todported in this Annual Report on Form-K.
The Board

Under the Company's Governance Guidelines, Boantilrees are expected to prepare for, attend andcipate in all meetings of the Board and Board cotte®s on which they serve. During 2012, the Boaid leigh
meetings. Each director attended at least 75%eofdtal number of meetings of the Board and conemstton which he served.

Board Committee!
The Board currently has four standing committees:
« an Audit Committe¢
+ a Compensation Committt
« aConflicts Committee; al
« an Executive Committe
Other than the Executive Committee, each of thesenuittees operates under a written charter addptetde Board.

During 2012, the Audit Committee held seven mestitige Conflicts Committee held twenty-one meetiagd the Compensation Committee held eight meetings

The Board appoints committee members annually.fdlt@wving table sets forth the current compositafrour committees:

Executive Audit Compensation Conflicts
Name Committee Committee Committee Committee
Matthew P. Clifton X (Chair)
Charles M. Darling, IV X x (1)
William J. Gray X X
Michael C. Jennings X x (Chair)
Jerry W. Pinkerton X X (Chair) X
P. Dean Ridenour X
William P. Stengel X X x (Chair)
James G. Townsend X

(1) Mr. Darling serves as the chairman of the subcotemiof the Compensation Commit
Audit Committes

The functions of the Audit Committee include thédwing:
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« selecting our independent registered public acdogriirm and reviewing the professional servicesytprovide

* reviewing the scope of the audit performed by tidependent registered public accounting 1

« overseeing matters related to the internal audittion

* reviewing the audit report issued by the independaditor

* reviewing HEP's annual and quarterly financialestants

* reviewing any material comments contained in thaitads letters to manageme

* reviewing HEP's internal accounting controls;

« reviewing the type and extent of any rewmdit work to be performed by the independent teggsl public accounting firm and its compatibilitjth their continued objectivity and independel

Each member of the Audit Committee has the abitityead and understand fundamental financial stésnand the Board has determined that Mr. Piakeahd Mr. Ridenour meet the requirements of ardit committe
financial expert” as defined by the rules of theCSE

Conflicts Committee
The functions of the Conflicts Committee includeiesving specific matters that the Board or the diotsf Committee believes may involve conflicts ofarest with HFC. The Conflicts Committee deterrsiifehe resolutio
of the conflict of interest is fair and reasonatileHEP. Any matters approved by the Conflicts Cottesiwill be conclusively deemed to be fair ancsceable to us, approved by all of our partners, rastca breach by o
general partner of any duties it may owe us orumitholders.
Compensation Committee
The functions of the Compensation Committee include

* reviewing, evaluating and approving the agreemgiasis, policies and programs of H

« discharging the Board's responsibilities relatmga@mpensation of HLS's officers and direct

+ overseeing the preparation of the Compensationudgon and Analysis to be included in the Annugddteand preparing the Compensation Committee Répdre included in the Annual Report;

+ administering HEP's equity plan and HLS's annuaéiive plar

The Compensation Committee has appointed a subdbeenciomprised of three directors, all of whom “@mdependent’as defined by the New York Stock Exchange listitamdards, for purposes of approving equity aw.
including performance goals applicable to such dwaf applicable, and any other matters that atkimthe responsibilities of the Committee requiriapproval solely by independent members of theréo

Executive Committe

The Executive Committee has such authority as tter®may delegate to it from time to time.

Director Compensation

Members of the Board who also serve as officengployees of HLS or HFC do not receive additiomahpensation in their capacity as directors or cheir of committees.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, directorswete not officers or employees of HLS or HFC (“remployee directors”) were compensated as follows:
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Annual cash retainer (payable in four quarterlyatiments) $ 50,00(

Board meeting or committee meeting attended inquefalso paid to non-members of committees wharasiged to attend by such committee's chairman) (1) $ 1,50C

Telephonic special board or committee meeting (2) $ 1,00C

Each attended strategy meeting with HLS management $ 1,50C

Annual grant of restricted units under the Longsiiéncentive Plan $ 75,00(

Special cash retainer for chairmen of committeessaibcommittees (payable in four quarterly instalits) $ 10,00(
1) Upon submission of appropriate documentation, nopteyee directors also are reimbursed for reasenabt-ofpocket expenses in connection with attending Bazn

committee meetings.

() Prior to August 1, 2012, the fee for telephonicciglemeetings over 30 minutes was $1,000, and eonas paid for telephonic special meetings thaevd&r minutes or les
Effective August 1, 2012, the Chairman of the Boand the chairman of each committee has autharigxercise his discretion as to whether the togissussed at a telephol
special meeting of the Board or committee, as apple, that lasts 30 minutes or less warrants @ffé4,000. Noremployee directors continue to receive $1,000édtephonic
special meetings that last over 30 minutes.

Equity Awards

Each August 1, non-employee directors receive amargrant under the Holly Energy Partners, L.Phd-Germ Incentive Plan (“Long-Term Incentive Plaof)restricted units having a fair market value @600 on the da
of grant, with the number of restricted units roeddo the nearest whole unit in the case of fraefinits. The fair market value of the restrictetit grants is calculated based upon the marksirgjoprice of our commc
units on the day of grant (or the last trading @apr to August 1 if August 1 is not a trading dayhe restricted units fully vest one year follogithe date of grant, subject to the director's iooetd service on the Boa
Accelerated vesting of all unvested units will ocapon a change in control of HFC, HLS, HEP or HERistics. In addition, accelerated vesting of wsted units will occur on a pnata basis upon the director's death,
and permanent disability or retirement. Directaes entitled to receive all distributions paid wittspect to outstanding restricted units. The distibns are not subject to forfeiture. The direstalso have a right to vote w
respect to the restricted units.

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation

In 2012, the non-employee directors of HLS firstdmae eligible to participate in the HollyFrontieor@oration Executive Nonqualified Deferred CompéiasaPlan, which plan is not tegualified under Section 401 of
Internal Revenue Code and allows participants ferdeceipt of certain compensation (the “ NODCrPa For 2012, the NQDC Plan provided nemployee director participants with the potentiatiefer up to 50% of the
cash retainers and meeting fees for the calendar . Pinkerton was the only n@mployee director that participated in the NQDOnhRta2012. Participating directors have full digme over how their contributions to 1
NQDC Plan are invested among the offered investroptibns, and earnings on amounts contributed¢d\DC Plan are calculated in the same manner tatheé ame rate as earnings on actual investmigaither HLS no
HFC subsidizes directly or indirectly a participargarnings under the NQDC Plan. During 2012, egson Mr. Pinkerton's account under the NQDC Eldmot exceed 120% of the applicable Idrgm federal rate (2.63%
As a result, no above market or preferential eginere paid to Mr. Pinkerton under the NQDC Plaah, aherefore, none of the earnings received byRikerton during 2012 are included in the Dire€@@mpensation Tak
below. For additional information on the NQDC Plaage “Compensation Discussion and Analysis-Ovena&®012 Executive Compensation Components andsizexs-Retirement and Benefit Plabseferred Compensati
Plan” and the narrative preceding the “Nonqualifizferred Compensation Table.”
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Director Compensation Tabl

The table below sets forth the compensation eam&612 by each of the non-employee directors oSHL

Fees Earned or Paid in

Name (1) Cash Unit Awards (2) All Other Compensation Total
Charles M. Darling, IV $110,50(C $75,02¢8 — $185,52E
William J. Gray 92,50( 75,028 32,156 (3 199,68:
Jerry W. Pinkerton 110,50( 75,02t — 185,52!
P. Dean Ridenour 71,50( 75,02¢ — 146,52
William P. Stengel 110,50( 75,028 — 185,52!
James G. Townsend 70,50( 75,02t — 145,52!

(1) Mr. Clifton and Mr. Jennings are not included iiisttable because they receive no additional congimmsfor their services as directors of HLS sindaring 2012, Mr. Clifton and Mr. Jennings were leac
officer of HFC and Mr. Clifton was also an officef HLS. The compensation paid by us to Mr. Clifiar2012 is shown under “Summary Compensation Tabédw and the compensation paid by HFC to
Clifton and Mr. Jennings in 2012 will be shown ifF€fs 2013 Proxy Statement.

(2) Reflects the aggregate grant date fair vafuestricted units granted to the nemployee directors on August 1, 2012, computeccgomance with Financial Accounting Standards Baszdounting Standar
Caodification Topic 718 (“FASB ASC Topic 718"letermined without regard to forfeitures. See Note our consolidated financial statements forfibeal year ended December 31, 2012, for a disonssf the
assumptions used in determining the FASB ASC Ta@pR grant date fair value of these awards. Eacheohon-employee directors received an award @2Bstricted units (as adjusted to reflect the-fore
one common unit split that occurred on January2083) under the Longerm Incentive Plan on August 1, 2012 that willtvets August 1, 2013. As of December 31, 2012, tlaesehe only restricted units h
by our non-employee directors.

(3) Represents fees for consulting services providedbyGray to HFC during 2012. None of the consujtfaes were paid by t
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires directerecutive officers and persons who beneficiali;n more than 10% of HEP's units to file certaipores with the SEC and New York Stock Exchange eamiag thei
beneficial ownership of HEP's equity securitiess@&hon a review of these reports, other informasieailable to us and written representations freporting persons indicating that no other reporsearequired, all sur
reports concerning beneficial ownership were filed timely manner by reporting persons duringytear ended December 31, 2012. In July 2012, then&ahip became aware that, due to administratiees (a) a Form
was not timely filed for HFC in November 2011 whHeRC was issued 7,615,230 common units of HEP (pstedl for the unit split that occurred on Janue8y2013) as partial consideration for transactimrsemplated by
LLC Interest Purchase Agreement, dated Novemb&09®1, and (b) a Form 3 was not timely filed for Kdlogistics Limited LLC in December 2010 when HEBgistics Holdings, L.P. transferred all of the HE®mmor
units it held to Holly Logistics Limited LLC.

Report of the Audit Committee for the Year Ended Deember 31, 2012

Management of Holly Logistic Services, L.L.C. ispensible for Holly Energy Partners, L.P.'s intéountrols and the financial reporting process. Fuelit Committee selected, and the Board approfiedselection of, Ern
& Young LLP as Holly Energy Partners, L.P.'s indegent registered public accounting firm to audé ooks, records and accounts of Holly Energy Restri.P. for the year ended December 31, 2Bti#st & Young LLP i
responsible for performing an independent auditiofly Energy Partners, L.P.'s consolidated finahstatements in accordance with the standardseoPtliblic Company Accounting Oversight Board andssoe a repa
thereon as well as to issue a report on the effeéiss of Holly Energy Partners, L.P.'s internattied over financial reporting. The Audit Committe®nitors and oversees these processes.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussedyHsaflergy Partners, L.P.'s audited consolidatechfife statements with management and Ernst & Ydur. The Audit Committee has discussed with ErnsY@&unc
LLP the matters required to be
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discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards NoC6inmunications with Audit Committees, as amendsdadopted by the Public Company Accounting Oghtdoard in Rule 3200T. The Audit Committee ha=eheec
the written disclosures and a letter from Ernst &u¥ig LLP pursuant to applicable requirements ofRbblic Company Accounting Oversight Board regagdiinst & Young LLP's communications with the Au@ommitte
concerning independence and has discussed with &Msung LLP that firm's independence.

The Audit Committee charter requires the Audit Cdtter to approve in advance all audit and non-aselivices to be provided by our independent regidtpublic accounting firm. All fees for audit, atitelated and te
services as well as all other fees presented utefaerl4 “Principal Accountant Fees and Servicesfenapproved by the Audit Committee in accordandé s charter.

Based on the foregoing review and discussions aal sther matters the Audit Committee deemed releaad appropriate, the Audit Committee recommeridéte Board that the audited consolidated finalrstatements
Holly Energy Partners, L.P. for the year ended Dewer 31, 2012 be included in Holly Energy Partner,'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yearesh@®ecember 31, 2012 for filing with the SEC.

Members of the Audit Committee:
Jerry W. Pinkerton, Chairman
Charles M. Darling, IV

P. Dean Ridenour

Iltem 11. Executive Compensatio

Executive Officers

The following sets forth information regarding tieecutive officers of HLS:

Name Age Position with HLS
Matthew P. Clifton 61 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Bruce R. Shaw 45 President

Douglas S. Aron 39 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
Denise C. McWatters 53 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar
Mark T. Cunningham 53 Senior Vice President, Operations

Scott C. Surplus 53 Vice President and Controller

Information regarding Mr. Clifton is included abourder “Directors.”

Bruce R. Shawwas appointed President in November 2012. Mr. Sbamwed as Senior Vice President and Chief Finar@ifiter from December 2011 until November 2012niSe Vice President, Strategy and Corpo
Development from July 2011 until December 2011,i&e¥ice President and Chief Financial Officer fralanuary 2008 until July 2011, and Vice Presid€otporate Development from August 2004 to Janu@g72 Mr
Shaw served as Senior Vice President, StrategyCamgoration Development of HFC from July 2011 thgiostDecember 2012, Senior Vice President and Chiedrigial Officer of Holly Corporation from 2008 tinthe
effective time of the merger between Holly Corpmmatand Frontier Oil Corporation in July 2011, avide President, Special Projects for Holly Corpmnatfrom September 2007 to December 2007. Mr. Séewed on tF
Board of HLS from April 2007 to April 2008. Mr. Stvebriefly left Holly Corporation in June 2007 anerged as President of Standard Supply and Distnig@ompany, Inc. and Bartos Industries, Ltd., tempanies that a
affiliated with each other in the heating, ventdat and air conditioning industry. Mr. Shaw prewsty served Holly Corporation in various positiongh increasing seniority from 1997 to 2007. Priorjoining Holly
Corporation, Mr. Shaw was a consultant at McKinaeg Company, a global management consulting firm.

Douglas S. Aronwas appointed Executive Vice President and Chie&kgial Officer in November 2012. He previouslyveet in such position from July 2011 until Decem@t1. Mr. Aron currently also serves as Exect
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of HR@ce the merger of Holly Corporation and Frontigr @orporation in July 2011. Prior to joining HF®!r. Aron was Executive Vice President and Chiefdficial Officer o
Frontier Oil Corporation from 2009 until 2011. Atldhally, he served as Vice President-Corporateifde of Frontier Oil Corporation from 2005 to 20081 Directorinvestor Relations from 2001 to 2005. Prior to jog
Frontier Oil Corporation, Mr. Aron was a lendindioér for Amegy Bank.
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Denise C. McWatterswas appointed Senior Vice President, General Cdwamsk Secretary in January 2013. Ms. McWatters atsves in a similar capacity for HFC. Ms. McWetpreviously served as Vice Presid
General Counsel and Secretary from April 2008 ulaiiuary 2013. She joined Holly Corporation in ®eto2007 with more than 20 years of legal expeeearad served as Deputy General Counsel until 2068 and as Vic
President, General Counsel and Secretary from &£00B until January 2013. Ms. McWatters servethasGeneral Counsel of The Beck Group from 2006ugh 2007. Prior to joining The Beck Group, Ms.\WMatter:
practiced law in various capacities at the Law €2 of Denise McWatters, the predecessor firm toked.ord Bissell & Liddell LLP, the legal departrmest Citigroup, N.A., and the law firm of Cox SmiMatthew:
Incorporated.

Mark T. Cunningham was appointed Senior Vice President, Operatiodgituary 2013. He previously served as Vice Presi@gerations from July 2007 to January 2013. HeeskHolly Corporation as Senior Manage
Special Projects from December 2006 through Jud& 20id as Senior Manager of Integrity ManagemedtEvironmental, Health and Safety from July 20@®agh December 2006. Prior to joining Holly Comudon, Mr
Cunningham served Diamond Shamrock/Ultramar Diant8maimrock for 20 years in several engineering &pelipe operations capacities.

Scott C. Surpluswas appointed Vice President and Controller in 2OG8. Mr. Surplus also served in a similar caydcit HFC through June 2012. He served Holly Coation and HLS as Vice President, Risk Management
from 2007 to 2008, Vice President, Financial Repgrfrom 2005 to 2007 and Vice President and Cdletrérom 2004 to 2005. Prior to this, he servedrnany areas of accounting and finance during hige2s at Holly
Corporation (and HFC), including SEC and financgédorting, tax, treasury, and risk management.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This compensation discussion and analysis (“CD&g9vides information about our compensation obyestiand policies for the HLS executive officers wdte our “Named Executive Officerdr 2012, to the extent t
Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Comniljteetermines the compensation of these individualsush compensation is allocated to us pursuants@ &iles. In addition, the CD&A is intended to maic
perspective the information contained in the exgeutompensation tables that follow this discusshuiditionally, we describe our policies relatimgreimbursement to HFC for compensation expenses.

Overview

We are managed by HLS, the general partner of H&gdtstics, our general partner. HLS is a subsidairiiFC. The employees providing services to usemngloyed by HLS or HFC, as we do not have any eygas. As ¢
December 31, 2012, HLS had 232 employees thatgedweneral, administrative and operational sesvicais. Certain executive officers of HLS are alffizers of HFC.

For 2012, the “Named Executive Officers” of HLS asefollows:

Matthew P. Clifton, who served as Chief Executiviéd@r during 2012;

Douglas S. Aron and Bruce R. Shaw, the two indialdwho served as Chief Financial Officer during20and

Mark T. Cunningham, who served as Vice Presidepgr@tions during 2012 (Mr. Cunningham was promeéee8enior Vice President, Operations in January8p01
During 2012, Mr. Cunningham was the only Named Exge Officer who spent all of his professional érmanaging our business and affairs. The other Nafxecutive Officers split their professional timering 201:
between HFC and us and devoted only as much of phefessional time as was necessary to oversem#magement of our business and affairs. Mr. Skeawes as Senior Vice President and Chief Finar@ffiter of HLS
from January 1, 2012 until November 1, 2012, whenvas appointed as President of HLS. Beginning Riber 1, 2012, Mr. Aron served as Chief Financidi@@f of HLS. Due to his increased responsibilitessPresident
HLS, Mr. Shaw resigned as Senior Vice Presidemt&gy and Corporate Development of HFC, effecliaeuary 1, 2013. In addition, effective Januarg,3, Mr. Clifton retired from his position as Exg¢ige Chairman ¢
HFC but continues to serve as Chairman and Chietétive Officer of HLS. For 2013, Mr. Clifton, MBhaw and Mr. Cunningham each allocate 100% of {reifessional time to us, while Mr. Aron continuessplit his
professional time between HFC and us.

Under the terms of the Omnibus Agreement, we ctlyrgray an annual administrative fee to HFC of $8,800 for the provision of general and administeaservices for our benefit, which may be increbsedecreased
permitted under the Omnibus Agreement. The admatise services covered by the Omnibus Agreementtidte, without limitation, the costs of corporate
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services provided to us by HFC such as accounti#nginformation technology, human resourceshamse legal support and outside legal supportéoeal corporate and tax matters; office spacejshings and equipme
and limited transportation of HLS executive offisend employees on HFC airplanes for business pasp®one of the services covered by the admitiisréee is assigned any particular value indiviuaAlthough certail
Named Executive Officers provide services to boffCHand us, no portion of the administrative fespecifically allocated to services provided by Nemed Executive Officers to us; rather, the adriaiive fee general
covers services provided to us by HFC and, exceplescribed below, there is no reimbursement bfoushe specific costs of such services. See It@n“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,irettol
Independence” of this Annual Report on Form 10-Kddditional discussion of our relationships arahsactions with HFC.

Under the Omnibus Agreement, we also reimburse FtiF€ertain expenses incurred on our behalf, sucfomsalaries and employee benefits provided t& lemployees to the extent such individuals perfsemvices for u:
The partnership agreement provides that our gempena@her will determine the expenses that are alitecto us. With respect to equity compensationl fbgi us to the Named Executive Officers, HLS puselsathe uni
delivered pursuant to awards under our Long-Terrerttive Plan, and we reimburse HLS for the purcipaie of the units.

Mr. Cunningham is an employee of HLS, and the Cotte®imakes all decisions regarding his compensaliio#012, because Mr. Cunningham devoted all sfpnbfessional time to our business and affairsreimburse
HFC for 100% of the compensation expenses incuiyeHFC for salary, bonus, retirement and other benprovided to Mr. Cunningham. For the same prige also reimbursed HLS for 100% of the expeirsasred ir
providing Mr. Cunningham with awards under our LéFgrm Incentive Plan. All compensation provided te. Bunningham for 2012 is discussed and reportedccordance with SEC rules, in the narrativestahtgs the
follow.

As discussed above, the other Named Executive @§isplit their professional time between HFC asdluring 2012. During 2012, the only compensatian ®ifton received for the services he performedds was in tk
form of awards of equity-based compensation grapteduant to the Long-Term Incentive Plan, and eimbursed HLS for 100% of the expenses incurrgataviding Mr. Clifton with awards under our Lorigerm Incentiv:
Plan. None of the compensation paid, or other lisnefade available to, Mr. Clifton by HFC was alioed to the services he provided to us for 2012a Assult, for Mr. Clifton, only his Longerm Incentive Plan awards
disclosed in the narratives and tables that fol®he compensation paid by HFC to Mr. Clifton in 204ill be disclosed in HFC's 2013 Proxy Statement.

At its January 24, 2012 meeting, the Committeerddteed that, beginning in 2012, the other executffecers of HLS that split their time with HFC,dluding Mr. Shaw and Mr. Aron, would no longer rizeeawards ¢
equity-based compensation under the L@egm Incentive Plan for the services provided toRather, all compensation paid to such executifieens for 2012 was instead paid and determinetHB€, without input from tt
Committee. In deciding to discontinue awards urilerLong-Term Incentive Plan to these executivicef§, the Committee determined that, considerimg@lifton's focus in 2012 on determining our loregm business go:
and policies and the service coverage effectedufiraghe Omnibus Agreement, it was appropriate topensate Mr. Clifton for his services only throdghgterm equity incentive awards. On the other hane,tjipes c
services provided to us by the other executivecefi of HLS that split their time with HFC, incladi Mr. Shaw and Mr. Aron, were more akin to thevees provided by a number of other similarly siachemployees th
provide services to us under the Omnibus Agreeméhbut receiving equity awards under the Long-Téncentive Plan.

The compensation paid to Mr. Shaw and Mr. Aron §CHs covered by the administrative fee under thenbus Agreement (and therefore not subject to beirsement by us); however, in accordance with SHEsy fo
purposes of these disclosures, a portion of thepemsation paid by HFC to Mr. Shaw and Mr. Aron264.2 is allocated to the services they performedisoduring 2012. The allocation was made baseti@assumption th
(i) Mr. Shaw spent, in the aggregate, approxima2&§6 of his professional time in 2012 on our businand affairs, and (ii) Mr. Aron spent, in the i@ggte, approximately 5% of his professional tim&012 on our busine
and affairs since he did not perform any servieesuf during 2012 prior to his appointment as Exigewice President and Chief Financial OfficerHifS, which was effective November 1, 2012. As ailtegor Mr. Shav
and Mr. Aron, only 25% and 5%, respectively, of tb&al amount of compensation they received fronCH&r 2012 is disclosed in the tables that foll&er Mr. Shaw, for years prior to 2012, the Lohgrm Incentive Ple
awards granted to him are also disclosed hereica&e HFC made all decisions regarding the comfiengaaid to Mr. Shaw and Mr. Aron in 2012, thosidions are not discussed herein. The total cosgtiem paid b
HFC to Mr. Aron in 2012 will be disclosed in HF@813 Proxy Statement.

The Committee does not review or approve pensioretmement benefits for any of the Named Execu@féicers. Rather, all pension and retirement bigngirovided to the executives are the same peraignretiremel
benefits that are provided to HFC's employees gdigerand such benefits are sponsored and admiedstentirely by HFC without input from HLS or theo@mittee. The pension and retirement benefits plexvito Mr
Cunningham are described below. The costs of thesefits for Mr. Cunningham are charged monthlygdn accordance with the Omnibus Agreement.
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Objectives of Compensation Program

Our compensation program is designed to attractrefaih talented and productive executives whonaoéivated to protect and enhance our loeign value for the benefit of our unitholders. @bjective is to be competiti
with our industry and encourage high levels of perfance from our executives.

In supporting our objectives, the Committee balarntbe use of both cash and equity compensatioheiriatal direct compensation package provided to®dinningham; however, the Committee has not adopty forme
policies for allocating Mr. Cunningham's compersatamong his salary, bonus and ldegm equity compensation. In January 2012, the Cittexen with the assistance of the Chief Executifécer, reviewed the mix ar
level of cash and lonterm equity incentive compensation for Mr. Cunniaghwith a goal of providing sufficient current, cpetitive compensation to retain him, while at taene time providing him incentives to maxin
longterm value for us and our unitholders. After reviregvinternal evaluations, input by management, avaiket data provided by the Compensation Consultaet Committee believes that Mr. Cunningham's .
compensation reflects an appropriate allocatioconfipensation between salary, bonus and equity cosagien.

For Mr. Clifton in 2012, the Committee utilized Iptierm equity incentive compensation to provide ®lifton sufficient current compensation while piding incentive to build value both to us and to anitholders.
Role of the Compensation Committee Consultant ahd Committee in the Compensation Setting Proc

The Committee has engaged Frederic W. Cook & @@ {€ompensation Consultant”), an outside consgilfirm specializing in executive compensation, ttvise the Committee on matters related to execuiat non-
employee director compensation and ldegn equity incentive awards. The Compensation Glterst provides the Committee with relevant maudeta, updates on related trends and developmeiviseaon program desic
and input on compensation decisions for executifieers and noremployee directors. The Compensation Consultaittdspendent, retained directly by the Committeel provides no other services to HLS or us.
conflicts of interest exist between HLS, us or @@nmittee, on one hand, and the Compensation Cansubn the other hand.

The Compensation Consultant does not have authorifgtermine the ultimate compensation paid t@eteee officers or noremployee directors, and the Committee is underatigation to utilize the information provided
the Compensation Consultant when making compemsdggisions. The Compensation Consultant provictésrmal context and other input to the Committeierpio the Committee meetings at which salaries feed ar
approved, bonuses are awarded and equity compensatawards are established for the upcoming year.

Review of Market Dat:

Market pay levels are one of many factors consitiésethe Committee in setting compensation forNagned Executive Officers. The Committee regulaelyiews comparison data provided by the Compens&mmsultar
with respect to salary and annual incentive lewsl®ne point of reference in evaluating the redslenass and competitiveness of the compensatiahtpadur executive officers as compared to companigh which wi
compete for executive talent. In addition, the Cdttea reviews such data to evaluate whether oumpemsation reflects practices of comparable compasfigenerally similar size and scope of operatidie Compensatit
Consultant obtains market information from varisosirces, including published compensation surveysh(as theiquid Pipeline Roundtable Compensation Suryepnd information taken from SEC filings of pubyidtadec
companies, as compiled by the Compensation Comsutteat the Compensation Consultant and we consipieropriate peer group companies. The purposeeopeer group is to provide a frame of referenith vespect t
executive compensation at companies of generalfypevable size and scope of operations, rather tihvaet specific benchmarks for the compensatiowvigea to the Named Executive Officers. We selearpgrou;
companies that we believe provide relevant datatpdor our consideration.
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For 2012, our peer group included the following lpthp traded master limited partnerships, which emgresentative of the companies with which we cetefor executives:

Atlas Pipeline Partners, L.P. Magellan Midstream Partners, L.P.
Buckeye Partners, L.P. MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P.
Copano Energy, L.L.C. NuStar Energy L.P.

Crosstex Energy, L.P. Regency Energy Partners, L.P.
DCP Midstream Partners L.P. Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P.
Genesis Energy, L.P. Targa Resources Partners, L.P.
Inergy L.P.

Our objective generally is to position pay at levapproximately in the middle range of market peacttaking into account median levels derived froor peer group analysis. We consider our salady reamsalary
compensation components in comparison to the memtiarpensation levels within the peer group rathantto an exact percentile above or below the mediacompensation is generally within plus or mre0% of th
market median, it is considered to be in the middiege of the market.

In 2012, Mr. Cunningham's total direct compensationluding both cash and equity components) wathénmiddle range of the market. As noted, howetrés, market analysis is just one of many factamssidered whe
making overall compensation decisions for our etiges.

With respect to our other Named Executive Officéinge, market range of various compensation elenaits by HFC in 2012 will be discussed in furthetailewithin the “Compensation Discussion and Anaysection o
HFC's 2013 Proxy Statement.

Role of Named Executive Officers in Determining Exgtive Compensatiol

In making executive compensation decisions, the i@Gittee reviewed the total compensation providedaoh executive in 2011 in determining 2012 compé@rsand established compensation for 2012 thatceasister
with the compensation paid in 2011 after consideomerall performance and the other specific factdiscussed in this CD&A. The Committee consideembmmendations by the Chief Executive Officer éotthan as 1
himself) and other factors in determining the appiatte final compensation factors.

Various members of management facilitate the Coterli consideration of compensation for Named Brex©fficers by providing data for the Committeeéview. This data includes, but is not limited performanc
evaluations, performance-based compensation provméhe Named Executive Officers in previous yetas-related considerations and accountielgted considerations. Management provides therliiee with guidanc
as to how such data impacts performance goalsysttebCommittee during the previous year. When meaneent considers a discretionary bonus to be apptepit will suggest an amount and provide then@Guttee witt
management's rationale for such bonus. Given tlyetatday familiarity that management has with the woetfprmed, the Committee values management's recowtamiens, although no Named Executive Officer
authority to determine or comment on compensatemisibns directly related to himself. The Committezkes the final decision as to the compensatiatessribed in this CD&A.

Overview of 2012 Executive Compensation Componemts Decisions
The only component of compensation we providedMorClifton in 2012 was long-term equity incentigempensation.
The components of Mr. Cunningham's compensati@0ir2 were:

* base salar

« annual performanceased cash incentive compensal

+ longterm equity incentive compensati

« retirement and other postnployment benefits; a

« health and welfare benefi

Base Salan
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In January 2012, the Committee conducted its anrevaéw of base salaries. In reviewing Mr. Cunniaigi’s base salary, the Committee considered hisiguoshis level of responsibility and his perfornsanin 2011. Th
Committee also reviewed competitive market datevait to his position provided by the CompensaBonsultant. Following a review of these variougdes, the Committee determined that an increadérirCunningham'
base salary was warranted for 2012 and increaselobisie salary from $211,200 to $240,000, or 14féctxfe March 1, 2012.

Annual Incentive Cash Bonus Compensa

The Board adopted the HLS Annual Incentive Plae {#nnual Incentive Plan”jn August 2004 to motivate employees of HLS andhffiiates who perform services for HLS and ugptoduce outstanding results, encou
superior performance, increase productivity, ctute to the health and safety goals of HLS andind,aid in attracting and retaining key employdése Committee oversees the administration of theuahIncentive Pla
and any potential awards granted pursuant to e @le subject to final determination by the Corteribf achievement of the performance metricsterapplicable performance periods.

In January 2012, the Committee established thd bmaus pool under the Annual Incentive Plan fdrrain-hourly personnel of HLS after considering amountsigeted for the pool, operating results and eme
performance. In addition, consistent with historigeactice, the Committee determined that the applie performance period would be them@nth period beginning January 1, 2012 and endiagebhber 31, 2012, w
determination and payment of the cash bonus amaastsring in the first quarter of 2013. Subseqlyeim the fourth quarter of 2012, the Committe¢etimined to make a change to the timing of annoalis payments goil
forward. Specifically, the Committee decided tha performance period for cash bonus awards stenddon September 30 of the bonus year, so that gratyof the bonus awards could be made in the yewnhich the
bonuses were earned. As a result, for 2012 ondyCttmmittee shortened the applicable performanded#or the cash bonuses to the first three quad€2012. The Committee determined that this ghap the performan
period did not materially affect the achievementhef applicable performance metrics for the bonasekshence made no adjustments to those metric0A@8, the applicable performance period will Ipegi October 1, 201
and end on September 30, 2013, in order to allova foll 12-month performance period.

Generally, payment with respect to any 2012 castubavas contingent upon the satisfaction of thievohg metrics:

« Actual Distributable Cash Flow vs. Budg: A portion of the bonus is equal to a mstablished percentage of the employee's basey saidris earned based upon our actual distributedsdd flow during tt
performance period compared to the budgeted dis#ilde cash flow for the performance period, agjddor differences in estimated and actual PPIsadjants and differences in the timing of known asitjans. The
performance metric of distributable cash flow isdi®ecause it is a widely accepted financial irntdicesed to compare partnership performance. Weugethat this measure provides an enhanced penspect the
operating performance of our assets and the casbusiness is generating, and is therefore a usdfation in evaluating management's performamzelmking the payment of bonuses to our perforneanc

« Individual PerformanceA portion of the bonus is equal to a mstablished percentage of the employee's base saldris earned based on the employee's indivigerbrmance during the performance period.
employee's individual performance is evaluatedughoa performance review by the employee's immediapervisor, which is a subjective and discretipmaview of each applicable individual. The reviewlude:
a written assessment provided by the employee'sitiiate supervisor. The assessment reviews howtlreetmployee displays each of the following compeitss:

. Individual Performanc
. Integrity
. Interpersonal Effectivene

Each one of these performance dimensions has etyafi sub-categories that are separately revieWied.assessment also evaluates how well the engplmgormed his or her pestablished individual goals duri
the performance period.

In addition to the prelefined performance metrics, the Committee hagetisn to approve an increase or a decrease irCMmningham'’s bonus. Increases and decreases areihetd using the same factors used to est:
bonuses, and poor results on the indicated factmuid, in the discretion of the Committee, resnlaidecrease in a bonus. The Committee may consilder factors as well including, for example, eamimental, health a
safety. The Committee also considers whether camditoutside the control of the executive affedfesl factors. In cases where the performance medessribed above are achieved, yet the Committéevbs additione
compensation is warranted to reward an executivedtstanding performance, the
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Committee may increase the executive's bonus amiouiis discretion. In making the determination taswhether such discretion should be applied (eitbedecrease or increase a bonus), the Committeiew:
recommendations from management.

The following table shows, for 2012: (i) the preaddished percentage of Mr. Cunningtia annual base salary that is allocable to eadlorpeance metric, at target level, (i) Mr. Cunnivegn's total target bonus aw
opportunity, as a percentage of his annual baseysand (iii) Mr. Cunningham's total maximum boravgard opportunity, as a percentage of his annase Isalary. The target bonus award opportunitiesletermined by tf
Committee based on total cash compensation, inajuiiase salary and annual incentive payments.

Target Annual Incentive Compensation
Name Actual vs. Budgeted DCF Individual Target Maximum
Mark Cunningham 20% 20% 40% 80%

Following the end of the performance period, thee€Executive Officer evaluates the extent to whiblh applicable performance metrics have been @etliand recommends a bonus amount for Mr. Cunnimgioathe
Committee. The Committee then determines the aetonunt of the bonus award earned by and payabért&Cunningham. Pursuant to our Annual IncentivenPthe Committee determines actual achievemeweol
performance metric individually and the percentadgtermined with respect to the two performanceioseéare then added together and multiplied byinb&zidual's base salary to calculate the bonuswuarho

For the 2012 performance period, the budgetedilligable cash flow was $103.92 million and actusfributable cash flow during the period (as adjdsas a result of our acquisition of HFC's 75%rigein UNEV Pipeline
LLC in July 2012) was $112.76 million. This resdlie Mr. Cunningham receiving in excess of the ¢éatgpnus amount with respect to this performanceicn&he actual amount paid to Mr. CunninghamZ642 with respe
to this portion of his annual incentive bonus isfeeth in the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Comperisat column of the “Summary Compensation Table.”

With respect to the individual performance portadrthe bonus, the Committee determined Mr. Cunramgks bonus amount in recognition of the achieveroéhts individual performance targets, his impastour improve
financial results in 2012, the achievement of ereelsafety results, the decrease in recordabldenc rates and excellent system reliability, caenultiyear period, and his continued efforts toward iraégn of several rece
asset acquisitions. This resulted in Mr. Cunninghaoeiving in excess of the target bonus amourtt véspect to this performance metric. The actualuanpaid to Mr. Cunningham for 2012 with respecttte individuz
performance portion of his annual incentive borsuset forth in the “Bonus” column of the “Summargn@pensation Table.”

LongTerm Incentive Equity Compensation

The LongTerm Incentive Plan was adopted by the Board inusu@004 with the objective of promoting our insseby providing to management, employees and ¢tams$si of HLS and its affiliates who perform semsdo
us and our subsidiaries equity incentive compeosagiwards. The Longerm Incentive Plan also is intended to enhanceatility to attract and retain the services of wndiials who are essential for our growth
profitability, to encourage those individuals tordee their best efforts to advancing our businassl, to align the interests of those individualshwtite interests of our unitholders. The Lohgrm Incentive Plan was ament
and restated effective February 10, 2012.

The LongTerm Incentive Plan provides for the granting & fbllowing awards: unit options, unit appreciatioghts, restricted units, phantom units, unit a¥gaand substitute awards. The Committee may apes o
awards on terms that it determines appropriatéuditg the period during and the conditions on wahice award will vest. Since our inception, we hgvanted only awards of restricted units, fully teesunit awards, ai
phantom units with performance vesting (referredsdperformance units”).

In determining the appropriate amount and typeoofjterm equity incentive awards to be granted to oamid Executive Officers each year, the Committetsiders the amount of time devoted by each exezutivou
business, the executive's position, scope of respitity and base salary and available compensatiformation for executives in comparable positiamsimilar companies. Awards are granted annudlling the first quart
of the year. Our goal is to reward the creatiorvalfie and high performance with variable compensatiependent on that performance. The Committeevesl this analysis verifies that total equity cemgation to Mi
Clifton and Mr. Cunningham in 2012 is appropriate the level of responsibility that each of thefficers hold. In 2012, Mr. Cunningham received ries¢d units and Mr. Clifton received both reseittunits and performan
units under our Long-Term Incentive Plan.
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For purposes of administrative ease, the Commétezided in the fourth quarter of 2012 to changevéisting dates of outstanding restricted unit awaodDecember 15 of a given year (or the first hess day thereafter
December 15 is a Saturday or Sunday) rather thanadg of the following year. For additional infortitm on the vesting of outstanding equity awardeape see “Outstanding Equity at Fiscal Year Elgtause th
performance period for the performance units iiam a period of three-full calendar years, then@itee did not change the vesting dates applicabileose awards.

Restricted Unit Awards

A restricted unit award is an award of common uttits are subject to a risk of forfeiture. In 200, Clifton and Mr. Cunningham were the only exexe officers that were granted restricted unitse Tollowing table se
forth the number of restricted units awarded in2@i Messrs. Clifton and Cunningham (as adjusteeftect a two-for-one unit split that occurred danuary 16, 2013):

Name Number of Restricted Units
Matthew P. Clifton 34,308
Mark T. Cunningham 8,170

Restricted unitholders have all the rights of atholder with respect to the restricted units, inighg the right to receive all distributions paidtfvrespect to such restricted units (at the sareeas distributions paid on ¢
common units) and any right to vote with respedhmrestricted units, subject to limitations cansfer and disposition of the units during therretgtd period. The distributions are not subjectoideiture. The restricted un
granted in 2012 vest in three equal annual instiisas noted in the following table and will béyfwested and nonforfeitable after December 15,420

Restricted Unit Vesting Criteria

Vesting Date (1) Cumulative Amount of Restricted Units Vested
Immediately following December 15, 2012 1/3
Immediately following December 15, 2013 2/3
Immediately following December 15, 2014 All

(1) Vesting will occur on the first business dajidaing December 15 if December 15 falls on a Saayror a Sunday.

Other than due to a special involuntary terminatssociated with a defined changecomtrol event, death, disability or retirementaif employee's employment is terminated prior to@tée vesting dates specified abc
all unvested restricted units will be forfeited.thre event of the employee's death, total and peemtadisability or retirement, the employee wilkvevith respect to a pro rata number of unitstaitable to the period of serv
completed during the vesting period and will forfeny unvested units. In its sole discretion, ten@ittee may decide to vest all of the units imi laf the prorated number. In the event of a spegiadluntary termination, ¢
restricted units will automatically become fullysted. The termination and change-in-control provisiapplicable to these awards are described ategrdetail below in the section titleBdtential Payments upon Terminai
or Change in Control.”

Performance Unit Awards

A performance unit is a notational phantom unitjsabto certain performance conditions that ergitlee grantee to receive a common unit upon thengesf the unit. In 2012, Mr. Clifton was the orgxecutive officer thi
received performance units.

For 2012, Mr. Clifton was granted a target numbdguesformance units equal to 11,436 common unisagusted to reflect a two-f@me unit split that occurred on January 16, 20IBg target number of performance uni
determined by dividing a specified target dollaramt by the closing price of our common units oa date of grant of the award.

Performance units are settled only upon the attaitirof preestablished performance targets, which may incthéeachievement of specified financial objectivesedmined by the Committee. The Committee alsoam

the period over which the performance targets rbesittained in order for performance units to vi@sor to vesting, distributions are paid on eagtstanding performance unit, based on the targaten of performance un
subject to the award, at the same rate as disitmipaid on our common units. The distributiors rast subject to forfeiture.
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The Committee determined that the increase inibigable cash flow per common unit during the perfance period should be used as the performaneetolg for the performance unit awards granted 0622 The
performance period for the awards began on Jarua2912 and ends on December 31, 2014. Under thestef the performance units granted to Mr. Cliftor2012, Mr. Clifton may earn from 50% to 150%tbé targe
number of performance units. Following the compietdf the performance period, Mr. Clifton is emtitlto payment of a number of common units equ#idaesult of multiplying his target number of merhance units by tt
performance percentage set forth below, dependiniy@ actual distributable cash flow per commort farithe three years ended December 31, 2014dfastad to reflect a two-fosne unit split that occurred on January
2013):

Performance Unit Vesting Criteria

3-Year Total Increase in Distributable Cash Flow p€ommon Unit above $7.553 Performance Percentage (%) to be Multiplied by Rerhance Units
$0.00 50%
$0.621 100%
$1.274 or more 150%

In order to receive more than 50% of the units scthfo this award, the distributable cash flow g@mmon unit for the three years ended Decembe2@®14 must total greater than $7.553 per unit. theoto receive 100%
the units subject to this award, the distributataish flow per common unit in the three years erdlecember 31, 2014 must total $8.174 per unit. thepto receive 150% of the units subject to thismlythe distributable ca
flow per common unit for the three years ended Dy 31, 2014 must total $8.827 per unit. The peeges are interpolated between points.

In the event that the Mr. Clifton's services taemsninate prior to January 1, 2015, other thantduespecial involuntary termination associatedhwitdefined change-icentrol event, an involuntary termination, deattakanc
permanent disability or retirement, he will forfeis award. In the event of Mr. Clifton's involuntgermination, death, total and permanent disgbdi retirement, Mr. Clifton will remain eligible vest with respect to a
rata number of units attributable to the perioderfvice completed during the performance periodrded up to include the month of termination) arillifarfeit any unvested units. Any units that aret forfeited will becom
vested and payable based upon actual performanafthe end of the specified performance periodtdrsole discretion, the Committee may make a gatrassuming the maximum level of performance sexed. In th
event of a special involuntary termination, 150%hef performance units will be deemed earned atidedome immediately vested and payable. The teatitin and change-ieentrol provisions of this award are describe
greater detail below under the section titled “Rag Payments upon Termination or Change in Caritro

Acquisition of Common Units for Longerm Incentive Plan Awards

Common units delivered in connection with loegm incentive equity awards may be common unitgimed by HLS on the open market, common unitsaglyeowned by HLS, common units acquired by HLSallyefrom us
or any other person or any combination of the foieg. We currently do not hold treasury units. His&ntitled to reimbursement by us for the cosaajuiring the common units utilized for the grahtamg-term incentiv:
equity awards.

Retirement and Benefit Pla

The cost of retirement and welfare benefits for biamed Executive Officers who are employees of Hit& charged monthly to us in accordance with tiegeof the Omnibus Agreement. The terms of theseefit
arrangements are generally described below. Ouredaixecutive Officers who split their professiotiale between us and HFC generally participate énséme retirement and welfare benefit arrangemantsinformatio
regarding their participation in these arrangemeiiiisgyenerally be described in HFC's 2013 Proxgt&mnent.

Health and Welfare Benefits

All full- time employees of HLS, including our executive adfis employed by HLS, are eligible to participatevarious health and welfare benefit plans, inelgdinedical, dental, life insurance, and disabititpgrams. Mi
Cunningham was the only Named Executive Officer sehbealth and welfare benefits were charged to 2812 pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement.

Defined Contribution Plan

For 2012, all employees of HLS were eligible totjggwate in the HollyFrontier Corporation 401(k) tRement Savings Plan, a tax qualified defined dgbaotion plan (the “401(k) Plan”Employees may contribute amot
from 0% up to a maximum of 75% of their eligiblengpensation to the 401(k) Plan. Employee contrimgtithat were made on a tax-deferred basis were
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generally limited to $17,000 for 2012, with empleges0 years of age or over able to make additimxatleferred contributions of $5,500.

In 2012, employees not covered by collective bauiggi agreements with labor unions received emplagatching contributions of their employee contribos to the 401(k) Plan equal to 100% of the f&%b of the
employee's eligible compensation. These employéchiray contributions vest immediately. In additidar 2012, all nonanion employees received an employer retirementriartion to the 401(k) Plan ranging from 3%
8% of the participating employee's eligible compeios, subject to applicable Internal Revenue Aadigs, based on years of service. Employer reteattontributions are subject to a three-year-gkféting period

Mr. Cunningham was the only Named Executive Offivainse 401(k) Plan benefits were charged to u§i2pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement.

Deferred Compensation Plan

In 2012, certain employees of HLS and HFC, inclgdime Named Executive Officers, first became el@tb participate in the NQDC Plan. The NQDC Plaswpreviously named the Frontier Deferred Compés&an an
was assumed by HFC in connection with its mergeh Wrontier Oil Corporation in 2011. Beginning i012, HFC determined to expand participation in N@DC to certain management and other highly cometex
employees of HFC and HLS to provide them an oppmistio defer compensation in excess of qualifietiement plan limitations on a pre-tax basis armlienulate tax-deferred earnings to achieve thearitial goals.

Eligible employees may contribute between 1% an 50 their eligible earnings, which includes baséas/ and bonuses, to the NQDC Plan. Participanthée NQDC Plan may also receive certain empl@yexidec
contributions, including matching restoration cdmitions, retirement restoration contributions,nsition benefit contributions (pursuant to the ®iion Benefit Plan described below), and nongieifnonelectiv
contributions. Matching restoration contributiomslaetirement restoration contributions represemtribution amounts that could not be made underth 1(k) Plan due to Internal Revenue Code limoinaton taxgualifiec
plans. See the narrative preceding the “Nonquélifleferred Compensation Table” for additional infiation regarding these contributions and the diémens and conditions of the NQDC Plan.

Mr. Cunningham was the only Named Executive Offivtiose NQDC Plan benefits were charged to us ir2 Qtsuant to the Omnibus Agreement.
Retirement Pension Plans

HFC traditionally maintained the Holly Retiremera®, a tax-qualified defined benefit retirementrp{¢he “Retirement Plan”and the Holly Retirement Restoration Plan, an udéshplan that provides additional paymen
participating executives whose Retirement Plan fitsneere subject to certain Internal Revenue Clad#ations (the “Restoration Plan"No additional benefits accrued under the Retirenféan and Restoration Plan for
participants effective May 1, 2012, and the retieatrbenefits offered to employees going forwardsately provided through defined contribution retirent plans.

Employees hired prior to 2007 and not subject tolkective bargaining agreement, were, until Japdar2012, eligible to participate in and accruedfiés under the Retirement Plan. Employees pa#toig in the Retireme
Plan were also eligible to participate in the 4QRlan, but were generally not eligible to recedveetirement contribution under the 401(k) Planyfears prior to 2012. As of January 1, 2012, pigdicts in the Retirement Pl
and the Restoration Plan who are not subject tollaative bargaining agreement were no longer angradditional benefits under these plans, andf&8ay 1, 2012, all participants in these plans edasccruing addition
benefits. HFC has begun the process to liquidaéretirement Plan and the Restoration Plan.

In connection with the cessation of benefit acuaider the Retirement Plan and the Restoration, PI&C adopted a Transition Benefit Plan pursuarnwhich eligible participants in the RetirementrPire provided
transition benefit for each of 2012, 2013, and 20I4e amount of the transition benefit for eachryisaequal to the participant's eligible compermatas of December 31 of that year, multiplied biraasition benef
percentage determined based on the participaiglblelyears of service as of January 1, 2012K@dase of salaried employees). The participant beiemployed on the last day of the year (sulifecertain exceptions f
death or disability) in order to earn a transitlmemefit for that year. For executive officers, thansition benefit is paid in the form of a traiwit benefit contribution to the NQDC Plan. For aidial information regardir
these transition benefit contributions, see theatiae preceding the “Nonqualified Deferred Comptim Plan Table.”
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Mr. Cunningham was the only Named Executive Offistiose Retirement Plan and Transition Benefit Plamefits were charged to us in 2012 pursuant t@tmaibus Agreement. Mr. Cunningham ceased accrioémgfit:
under the Retirement Plan at the end of 2011, &ndt a participant in the Restoration Plan.

Change in Control Agreements

As of the date of this Annual Report on FormK.Oreither we nor HLS has entered into any emplaynagreements with any of the Named Executive @fficOn February 14, 2011, the Board adopted tHly Hoergy
Partners, L.P. Change in Control Policy (the “ChaimgControl Policy”)and the related form of Change in Control Agreenfentertain officers of HLS. The material terms afhd the quantification of, the potential amo
payable under the Change in Control Agreement®ntlyrin effect with our Named Executive Officene alescribed below in the section titled “PotenBalyments upon Termination or Change in Cont/dhé Change i
Control Agreements contain “double-trigggrdyment provisions that require not only a chamgeontrol of HFC, HLS or HEP, but also a qualifyitegmination of the executive within a specifiedipé of time following th:
change in control in order for an officer to beited to benefits. We believe the Change in Confrgteements provide for management continuity & ¢kent of a change in control and provide comipetivenefits for th
recruitment and retention of executives.

We entered into a Change in Control Agreement WithCunningham, effective as of February 14, 20dccordance with the Change in Control Policy. Méar all costs and expenses associated withghéement.

HFC has a Change in Control Policy and Change intt@bAgreements between HFC and Mr. Clifton, Mha® and Mr. Aron, the costs of which are fully betny HFC and which were in effect during 2012. HfeC
Change in Control Agreements are triggered onlynuwahange in control of HFC, and the terms oHRE€ Change in Control Agreements will be descrilmedFC's 2013 Proxy Statement.

Tax and Accounting Implications

We account for the equity compensation expensedoemployees and executive officers, includingdamed Executive Officers, under the rules of FASEC Topic 718, which requires us to estimate arcdneéan expen:
for each award of equity compensation over theinggteriod of the award. Accounting rules also iegjus to record cash compensation as an expertise t@ine the obligation is accrued. Because wegartnership, Secti
162(m) of the Code does not apply to compensatiod o our Named Executive Officers. Accordinglye tCommittee does not consider its impact in deteéng compensation levels. The Committee has takenaccour
the tax implications to us in its decision to grimg-term incentive compensation awards in thenfof restricted units and performance units as spgdo options or unit appreciation rights.

Recoupment of Compensatic

To date, the Board has not adopted a formal clakpaticy to recoup incentive based compensatiomupe occurrence of a financial restatement, midaon or other specified events. However, equitgrs granted
Named Executive Officers are subject to the terfrth® Lon¢-Term Incentive Plan, which states that such awarag be canceled, repurchased and/or recouped &xtaat required by applicable law or any clawbpakicy
that we adopt. The Committee will evaluate the ficat; administrative and other implications of ating, implementing and enforcing a clawback palicy

2013 Compensation Decisions

As a result of Mr. Clifton's retirement from HFCfedtive January 1, 2013 and Mr. Shaw's resignédtiom HFC effective January 1, 2013, the Committegermined that 100% of Mr. Clifton's and Mr. Shaedsnpensatic
would be determined by the Committee and paid b HEginning in 2013. In addition, the Committeeed®mined that all the equity awards granted to Miftdh and Mr. Shaw in 2013 would be granted byunsler the Long-
Term Incentive Plan. Beginning in 2013, the costetifement and welfare benefits for Mr. Cliftondar. Shaw are charged monthly to us in accordavittethe terms of the Omnibus Agreement.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee of the Holly Logisticvees, L.L.C. Board of Directors has reviewed amtussed the Compensation Discussion and Analygisred by Item 402(b) of RegulationkSwith management ar

based on such review and discussion, the Commmigtmmmmended to the Board that the CompensatioruBssen and Analysis be included in this Form 10-K.
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Members of the Compensation Committee:

Michael C. Jennings, Chairman
Charles M. Darling, IV

William J. Gray

William P. Stengel

James G. Townsend

Executive Compensation Tables

The following executive compensation tables andteel information are intended to be read togetligr thhe more detailed disclosure regarding our atiee compensation program presented under théocefffompensatic
Discussion and Analysis.” All unit and per unit am¢s in the following tables have been adjustegttiect the two-for-one unit split that occurred fanuary 16, 2013.

Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the total compensatith qr earned by each of the Named Executive Office2012, 2011 and 2010, to the extent such cosgi®mn is allocable to us pursuant to SEC rules.

Summary Compensation Table

Incentive Plan Compensation
®)

Change in
Pension

Value and Non-Qualified
Deferred Compensation

All Other Compensation
(O]

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus () Unit Awards (2) Earnings(4) Total
2012 = = 1,434,99! = = 1,434,99!
Matthew P. Clifton Chairman of the Board and C| g 0
Executive Officer (6) 2011 = = 588,50: = = 588,50:
2010 = = 844,05 = = 844,05
Douglas S. Aron 2012 $261,35( — — — — $261,35(
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (7) 2011 — — — — — —
2012 $400,70° — — — — $400,70°
Bruce R. Shaw
President (8) 2011 — — 93,77( — — 93,77
2010 — — 93,78 — — 93,78
2012 $236,160(9) $47,92C $250,04% $52,08C $31,211 $714,69¢
Mark T. Cunningham . ) . .
Senior Vice President - Operations 2011 210,34 71,25( 180,02 58,75( 64,67 597,64.
2010 201,78( 20,50( 150,00: 82,000 39,62( 502,39

(1) Amounts in this column reflect the discretionarynbe amount, if any, paid pursuant to the individumiformance metric under our Annual Incentive Rlad any other bonus paid outside our Annual IricerRlan. Othe

payments made under our Annual Incentive Planraiieded in the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compeits#tcolumn.

(2) Represents the aggregate grant date fair valugarfds of restricted units and performance unitserindhe year indicated computed in accordance RAtBB ASC Topic 718, determined without regardddditures, an
does not reflect the actual value that may be neiceg by the executive. See Notes 6, 7 and 7 toconsolidated financial statements for the fisazdrg ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, tashecfor &
discussion of the assumptions used in determiiad~ASB ASC Topic 718 grant date fair value of hawards.

With respect to performance units awarded in 2812 amounts in the table above were based on abpi®ipayout percentage of 110%. If it is assumadttre performance units granted in 2012 would d&d put at th
maximum payout level of 150%, the grant date faiue of Mr. Clifton's performance units would be2$598.

The terms of the 2012 performance unit awards &ed2012 restricted unit awards are described aboder “Compensation Discussion and Analys@verview of 2012 Executive Compensation Component

Decisions - Long-Term Incentive
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Equity Compensation.” For additional information amtstanding restricted unit and performance undrds, see below under “Outstanding Equity AwartdSiscal Year End.No forfeitures of equity awards held by
Named Executive Officers occurred in 2012.

(3) Amounts in this column reflect the bonus amoifrény, paid under our Annual Incentive Plan,estthan with respect to the individual performanegtric (which amounts are reported in the “Bonaslumn). The 201
bonus amounts under our Annual Incentive Plan eseribed above in greater detail under “Compensdiscussion and Analysis-Overview of 2012 ExeaifBompensation Components and Decisiédnstal Incentiv:
Cash Bonus Compensation.”

(4) Represents the aggregate change in the actymeaént value of a Named Executive Officer's aadatad benefits under all defined benefit pensitang in which he participates. During 2012, earsimgn Mr
Cunningham's account under the NQDC Plan did noeec 120% of the applicable loterm federal rate (2.63%). As a result, no abovekataor preferential earnings were paid to Mr. Gagham and, therefore, none
the earnings received by Mr. Cunningham during 2&®included in this table. The aggregate chandhe actuarial present value of Mr. Cunningharoieulated benefits under the Retirement Plan asedon tt
following assumptions:

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2012
Discount Rate: 5.65% 4.6% 3.95%

RP2000 White Collar

Projected to 2020 . " " . . .
2011 IRS Prescribed Mortality - Static Annuitanglmand 2012 IRS Prescribed Mortality - Static Annuitanglmand

Mortality Table: (50% Male/ 50% Female) female female
the later of current age the later of current age the later of current age
Retirement Age: or age 62 or age 62 or age 62

See “Pension Benefits Table” for additional infotioa.

(5) For 2012, includes the compensation as destimder “All Other Compensatiobélow

(6) Mr. Clifton also served as President of HLS untiiMeémber 2012. During 2012, Mr. Clifton split hiofessional time between HFC and us, and the onfypemsation he received for the services he perfdfioreus wa
in the form of awards of restricted units and perfance units under our Lonerm Incentive Plan. Nome of the compensation paidither benefits made available to Mr. Clifton#¥C was allocated to the service:
provided to us for 2012. As a result, only the gidate fair value of his 2012 LoriBerm Incentive Plan awards are disclosed as 20ffensation in this table. Information regarding ¢benpensation paid to Mr. Clifts
as consideration for the services he performetHfé€ during 2012 will be reported in HFC's 2013 Br&tatement.

(7) Mr. Aron served as Executive Vice President ance€Rinancial Officer of HLS from July 1, 2011 unlecember 31, 2011, when he was replaced by MwShad began serving as Executive Vice PresidetitGine’
Financial Officer of HLS again on November 1, 200&en Mr. Shaw was appointed as President of HL8inD 2012, Mr. Aron split his professional timeteen HFC and us, and all compensation paid tofair2012
was determined and paid by HFC. In accordance 8@ rules, a portion of the total compensation pgitHFC to Mr. Aron for 2012 is allocated to the\dees he performed for us during 2012. BecauseAvion serve:
as Executive Vice President and Chief Financialig®ff of HLS for only two months during 2012, thdoahtion was made based on the assumption thatAkém spent, in the aggregate, approximately 5% is
professional time in 2012 on our business andrafféis a result, for Mr. Aron, only 5% of the totahount of compensation he received from HFC fdr220as been reported in this table and the alldcateount has be
solely attributed to Mr. Aron's base salary in thble above since his HFC bonus and equity awarlied to HFC performance. This amount represtvgsggregate dollar value of total compensatiad aMr. Aror
by HFC (including base salary, nequity incentive compensation, equity awards ah@rotompensation) calculated pursuant to SEC ardsmultiplied by 5%. The total compensation paidH#-C to Mr. Aron in 201
(including the portion of his salary reported ifsttable) will be disclosed in HFC's 2013 Proxyt&taent.

(8) Mr. Shaw served as Senior Vice President and Gfiiefncial Officer until November 2012, when he vegpointed as President of HLS. During 2012, Mr.v@kalit his professional time between HFC and usl all
compensation paid to him for 2012 was determinetipaid by HFC. In accordance with SEC rules, aiporof the total compensation paid by HFC to Mra®tfor 2012 is allocated to the services he peréafifor u:
during 2012. The allocation was made based ongkenaption that Mr. Shaw spent, in the aggregatercapmately 25% of his professional time in 2012 business and affairs. As a result, for Mr.v@hanly 25% o
the total amount of compensation he received frdRCHor 2012 has been reported in this table andatioeated amount has been solely attributed toSiaw's base salary in the table above since h@ btfus an
equity awards are tied to HFC performance. Thisameepresents the aggregate dollar value of total
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compensation paid to Mr. Shaw by HFC (as set fartithe following sentence), calculated pursuanS&C rules, and multiplied by 25%. Because Mr. Slmwot a “named executive officedf HFC, his tote
compensation in 2012 is not required to be disddseour or HFC's public filings; however, for 201dr. Shaw generally received the following totahwpensation from HFC: (a) $415,000 in base salaghuding the
portion of his salary reported in this table), 18,000 in discretionary and nequity incentive bonus compensation, (c) $597,27@rant date fair value of HFC restricted stock aedormance share units, and
$172,551 in other compensation, including a changelue of defined benefit pension plan benefitd aontributions under defined contribution plads. Shaw ceased accruing benefits under the Regineflan in Ma
2007 and, as of December 31, 2012, he had 8.25 péaredited service under the Retirement Planthedrestoration Plan and the present value cddismulated benefits was $182,932 under the RetineRlan an

$9,386 under the Restoration Plan. HFC's compemsptlicies and programs for its executive officeils be described in HFC's 2013 Proxy Statement.

(9) As of January 1, 2012, Mr. Cunningham's annualrgalas $211,200. His annual salary was increas&24®,000 effective March 1, 2012. His actual piyrayments in 2012 for the 2012 fiscal year we28@%622 du
to our bi-weekly payroll system (the December 2, 2through December 31, 2012 payroll payment wadenon January 15, 2013). Similar adjustments werde for other mid-period pay adjustments in ppieniods.

All Other Compensation

The table below describes the components of Mrn@wham's compensation included in the “All Othen@ensation” column for 2012 in the Summary Comptas Table above.

Component

Amount

401(k) Plan Retirement Contribution

401(k) Plan Company Matching Contribution
NQDC Plan Retirement Contribution

NQDC Plan Company Matching Contributions
Transition Benefit Contribution

B A A B B

We reimbursed these amounts pursuant to the OmAireement.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

10,00(
15,00(

8,912
13,36¢
50,00(

The following table sets forth, for Mr. Clifton amdr. Cunningham, information about plan-based awandder our equity and nawguity incentive plans made during the year endiegember 31, 2012. In this table, awi
are abbreviated as “AICP” for the annual incentiash awards under our Annual Incentive Plan, asARidr restricted unit awards, and as “PUAGr performance unit awards. The 2012 awards ofop@ance units ar

restricted units were issued under our Long-Terceimtive Plan. Mr. Aron and Mr. Shaw did not receavy plan-based awards from us during 2012.

Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity IncentivePlan Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity Incentive Pla

Awards (1) Awards (2)
All other Grant
Equity Awards Date Fair Value
Name Type Committee Action Date Grant Date  Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maximum ®3) 4)
Matthew P. Clifton PUA 2/27/2012 3/1/2012 — — — 5,718 11,436 17,154 — $ 384,99¢
) RUA 2/27/2012 3/1/2012 — — — — — — 34,308 1,049,991
Douglas S. Aron — — — — — — — — — — —
Bruce R. Shaw = = = = = = = = = = =
. RUA 1/24/2012 3/1/2012 — — — — — — 8,170 250,04
Mark T. Cunningham
AICP — — — $48,000 $96,000 — — — — —

(1) Represents the potential payout for the award to ®mningham under our Annual Incentive Plan. Thvard was subject to the achievement of certainoperince metrics. The performance metrics and awane

described under “Compensation Discussion and AisdySverview of 2012 Executive Compensation Congmtsi and Decisions - Annual Incentive Cash
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Bonus CompensationAmounts reported do not include amounts potentiadlyable pursuant to the individual performanceipomof the award. The amount actually paid witspect to the individual performance por
of the award is reported in the “Bonus” column loé t Summary Compensation Table” for 2012, and thewnt actually paid with respect to the portiortled award reported in this table is reported in“then-Equity
Incentive Compensation” column of the “Summary Cemgation Table” for 2012.

2

=

Represents the potential number of performamits payable under the Lofigerm Incentive Plan. The number of units paid atehd of the performance period may vary from éinget amount, based on our achievel
of specified performance measures. The terms opénformance unit awards are described above uenpensation Discussion and Analysis - Overviev2®12 Executive Compensation Components and Desisio
Long-Term Incentive Equity Compensation - Perforoeb/nit Awards.”

3

N

Represents awards of restricted units. Thegeof the restricted unit awards are described albmer “Compensation Discussion and Analysis -r@e@ of 2012 Executive Compensation ComponentsRecdsions-
Long-Term Incentive Equity Compensation - Restddtiit Awards.”

4

=

Represents the grant date fair value determinesujnt to FASB ACS Topic 718, based on a closingepsf our common units of $30.61 on March 1, 20fi&,date of grant. The value of performance units wvalculate
using the $30.61 price based on the probable pgysreentage of 110%.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table sets forth, for Mr. Clifton, MBhaw and Mr. Cunningham, information regardingstanding restricted units and performance unis were held by each Named Executive Officer aBetember 3:
2012, including awards that were granted prior@@2 The value of these awards was calculated basedprice of $32.89 per unit, the closing pri€®ar common units on December 31, 2012. Mr. Aroesinot hold ar
outstanding equity awards under our Long-Term IticerPlan.

As described in greater detail above under “Ovevvid 2012 Executive Compensation Components andsies -Long-Term Incentive Equity Compensatiothe Committee decided at its last meeting in 2GaE

administrative ease, to change the vesting datesistanding restricted unit awards. As a resebricted unit awards that would otherwise haveaeden January of a specified year, instead vesDecember 15 of tt
preceding year (or the first business day there#ffdecember 15 is a Saturday or a Sunday). Tigiral vesting dates of outstanding performance awiards have not been modified.

Equity Awards (1)

Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market

Number of Units That Market Value of Units That Number of Unearned Units or Other or Payout Value of Unearned Units or
Name Have Not Vested Have Not Vested Rights That Have Not Vested Other Rights That Have Not Vested

Matthew P. Clifton 22,87 $752,26( 81,747 (2 $2,688,65¢
Douglas S. Aron — — — —
Bruce R. Shaw 1,04¢ 34,46¢ — —
Mark T. Cunningham 7,45¢ 245,29: — —

(1) All awards are more particularly describedhia harrative that immediately follows this chart.

(2) Under SEC rules, the number and value of performamits reported is based on the number of unitalle at the end of the performance period assuthiagnaximum level of performance is achieved. Enge
number of performance units held by Mr. CliftonDecember 31, 2012 equaled 54,498. For purposdsfable, the performance units reported refl& of the target number of performance units, Wligcthe
maximum performance percentage applicable to trerdsy

The following chart sets forth by year of grant thember of restricted units and performance unitarded to Mr. Clifton, Mr. Shaw and Mr. Cunninghanat remained outstanding as of December 31, 28i@ that ar
reported in the immediately preceding chart. Fafgrenance unit awards, the target number of peréoroe units is listed in the chart below.
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2010

Performance Units 2011 Restricted Units 2011 Performance Units 2012 Restricted Units 2012 Performance Units
Name Total
Matthew P. Clifton 25,124 — 17,938 22,872 11,436 717,370
Douglas S. Aron
Bruce R. Shaw = 1,048 = = = 1,048
Mark T. Cunningham — 2,012 —_ 5,446 — 7,458

(1) Mr. Clifton received an award of a target numbe25,124 performance units in March 2010. Unitherterms of the grant, Mr. Clifton may earn frof%&to 150% of the target number of performancesyhiased on tl
total increase in our distributable cash flow pemeon unit for the performance period. The perfarogaperiod for the award began on January 1, 2@d@iCeads on December 31, 2012. Following the corgpieif the
performance period, Mr. Clifton shall be entitledpayment of a number of common units equal tadisalt of multiplying the target number of perfommea units by the performance percentage set fefthib

Performance Unit Vesting Criteria
3-Year Total Increase in Distributable Cash Flow PEommon Unit above $6.246
1)

Performance Percentage (%) to be Multiplied by Rerhance Units

$0.00 50%
$0.513 100%
$1.054 or more 150%

(1) $6.246 represents ay8ar cumulative distributable cash flow per comrooit of $2.082 per annum, $2.082 being the annisatilblutable cash flow per common unit rate in effat the start of the performai
period.

In order to receive more than 50% of the units ectijo this award, the distributable cash flow g@nmon unit for the three years ended Decembe2@1ll2 must total greater than $6.246 per unit. teoto receive 100¢
the distributable cash flow per common unit for theee years ended December 31, 2012 must totab$@er unit. In order to receive 150%, the disttdble cash flow per common unit for the three yeamded Decemt
31, 2012 must total $7.300 per unit. The percerstage interpolated between points.

In its sole discretion, the Committee may make ynpnt assuming a performance percentage of up@&1Fhe termination and changedantrol provisions of this award are described Wwelmder the section titl¢
“Potential Payments upon Termination or Change ant@®I.” On February 5, 2013, the Committee determinedttimperformance percentage applicable to thesemeahce units was 120%, and Mr. Clifton was
30,149 common units in accordance with such deteatitin.

(2) In March 2011, Mr. Shaw received 3,144 restdatinits and Mr. Cunningham received 6,036 restlichits. Under the terms of the grants, except incéige of early termination, the restricted unitst e accordance wi
the following schedule:

Restricted Unit Vesting Criteria

Vesting Date Cumulative Amount of Restricted Units Vested
Immediately following December 31, 2011 1/3
Immediately following December 15, 2012 213
Immediately following December 15, 2013 All

The termination and change-in-control provisionshis award are described below in the sectioeditPotential Payments upon Termination or Changéantrol.”
(3) Mr. Clifton received an award of a target numbe 8938 performance units in March 2011. Undertéms of the grant, Mr. Clifton may earn from 5084160% of the target number of performance uniésghl on tt

total increase in our distributable cash flow pemenon unit for the performance period. The perfaragaperiod for the award began on January 1, 2@dileads on December 31, 2013. Following the cornupleatf the
performance period, Mr. Clifton shall be entitledpayment of a number of common units equal ta¢kelt of multiplying the target number of performea units by the
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performance percentage set forth below:

Performance Unit Vesting Criteria

3-Year Total Increase in Distributable Cash Flow p€ommon Unit above $6.432 Performance Percentage (%) to be Multiplied by Rerhance Units
$0.00 50%
$0.529 100%
$1.085 or more 150%

(1) $6.432 represents ayar cumulative distributable cash flow per comroait of $2.144 per annum, $2.144 being the annistfiblutable cash flow per common unit rate in effat the start of the performai
period.

In order to receive more than 50% of the unitsacthijo this award, the distributable cash flow g@nmon unit for the three years ended Decembe2(@®l3 must total greater than $6.432 per unit. tteoto receive 100
of the units subject to this award, the distriblgatash flow per common unit in the three yearsedridecember 31, 2013 must total $6.961 per unitrdier to receive 150%, the distributable cash ft@wvcommon unit fc
the three years ended December 31, 2013 mustibl7 per unit. The percentages are interpolagéddzn points.

In its sole discretion, the Committee may make wnpnt assuming a performance percentage of up @15 he termination and changeeantrol provisions of this award are described Welmder the section title
“Potential Payments upon Termination or Changeadnttl.”

(4) In March 2012, Mr. Clifton received 34,308treged units and Mr. Cunningham received 8,17@rieted units. The vesting dates for the restriataits granted in March 2012 are described in #utisn titled ‘Overview
of 2012 Executive Compensation Components and Besis Long-Term Incentive Equity Compensation sfReted Unit Awards.”

(5) Mr. Clifton received an award of a target nembf 11,436 performance units in March 2012. Tasting dates and conditions for this award arerdest in the section titledOverview of 2012 Executive Compensa
Components and Decisions - Long-Term Incentive gg@ompensation - Performance Unit Awards.”

Option Exercises and Units Vested

The following table provides information regardithg vesting in 2012 of restricted unit and perfanogunit awards held by Mr. Clifton, Mr. Shaw, aid Cunningham. To date, we have not granted arityotions.

As described in greater detail above under “Ovevvid 2012 Executive Compensation Components andsies -Long-Term Incentive Equity Compensatiothe Committee decided at its last meeting in 2GaE
administrative ease, to change the vesting datesitstanding restricted unit awards. As a resekiricted unit awards that would otherwise haveaeten January of a specified year, instead vesDecember 15 of tt
preceding year (or the first business day theredff2ecember 15 is a Saturday or a Sunday).

The value realized from the vesting of restricted and/or performance unit awards is equal toctbsing price of our common units on the vestingedar, if the vesting date is not a trading daytlee trading day

immediately prior to the vesting date, unless piledi otherwise by the applicable award agreemenit)phied by the number of units acquired on vestifige value is calculated before payment of anyiegiple withholding
or other income taxes.

Unit Awards
Named Executive Officer Number of Units Acquired on Vesting Value Realized on Vesting
Matthew P. Cliftor{? 58,21¢ $1,625,64¢
Douglas S. Aron — —
Bruce R. Shaw 7,25( $206,38¢
Mark T. Cunningham 13,44¢ $393,76(
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(1) Includes 46,782 performance units that became payatMr. Clifton on January 25, 2012 upon the Cdtter's determination that the performance pergengpplicable to the target number of 42,920 peréorct
units granted to Mr. Clifton in March 2009 was 109%

Pension Benefits Table

Certain of our Named Executive Officers are paticits in the Retirement Plan and the Restoratian.s of January 1, 2012, participants in theri@etent Plan and the Restoration Plan who are rigéstto a collectiv
bargaining agreement, including Named Executivec®f§, ceased accruing additional benefits undeptans, and as of May 1, 2012, all participantth@se plans ceased accruing additional benefitsomnection with tt
cessation of benefit accruals under the RetirerRént and the Restoration Plan, HFC adopted a Trandenefit Plan pursuant to which eligible pagants in the Retirement Plan are provided a ttemsbenefit for each
2012, 2013, and 2014. For executive officers, thasition benefit is paid in the form of a tranmitibenefit contribution to the NQDC Plan. For aidaial information regarding these transition benedintributions, see tl
narrative preceding the “Nonqualified Deferred Cemgation Table.” HFC has begun the process todajaithe Retirement Plan and the Restoration Plan.

Mr. Cunningham was the only Named Executive Offizbiose Retirement Plan benefits were charged to 2812 pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement. Theetbblow sets forth an estimate of the retiremenefits payabl
to Mr. Cunningham at normal retirement age underRitirement Plan. Mr. Cunningham does not pasteifn the Restoration Plan. Even though Mr. Qlifemd Mr. Shaw are also participants in the RegmnfPlan and/c
the Restoration Plan, we have not provided anylaisce with respect to their potential retiremeenéfits since those benefits are paid for by HF@dilonal information regarding the Retirement Péand the Restoratit
Plan will be provided in HFC's 2013 Proxy Statement

Pension Benefits

Number of Years Credited Present Value of Payments During Last Fiscal
Name Plan Name Service Accumulated Benefit Year
Matthew P. Clifton — — — —
Douglas S. Aron — — — —
Bruce R. Shaw — — — —
Mark T. Cunninghant’ Retirement Plan 7.5 $209,169 —

(1) Mr. Cunningham is not eligible to commence recejvamy benefit under the Retirement Plan as of Déeer8l1, 2012

The actuarial present value of the accumulated fiienmeflected in the above chart was determineidgishe same assumptions as used for financialrtiegopurposes (which are discussed further in Nideto HFC'
consolidated financial statements for the fiscalryended December 31, 2012), except the paymeetvaz assumed to be age 62 rather than age 6%aflest age at which a benefit can be paid witthewefit reductio
under the Retirement Plan is age 62. In additioa naterial assumptions used for these calculaimmhsde the following:

Discount Rate 3.95%
Mortality Table 2012 IRS Prescribed Mortalit@tatic Annuitant, male and fem

The amount of benefits accrued under the Retirefkamt is based upon a participant's compensatgmaad length of service. The compensation takenaocount under the Retirement Plan is a partitipaverage montt
compensation, which is based on an individual'® Isagary or base pay and any quarterly bonusesgithe highest consecutive &@nth period of employment. No quarterly bonusesevpeovided to executives in 2012,
quarterly bonuses were paid to some non-executii@employees.

The Retirement Plan provides for benefits upon r@bmetirement, early retirement, and late retiretnas well as providing accelerated deferred vebwefits, disability benefits, and death benefitse normal retireme
benefit under the plan may commence after an ereplagtires following his or her attainment of age Bhe normal form of payment is a monthly pendimnthe participant's life in an amount equal tp 186% of thi
participant's average monthly compensation muétgby his or her total years of credited benefitise, minus (b) 1.5% of the participant's primancial security benefit multiplied by his or hetaloyears of credited bene
service, such amount not to exceed 45% of thegipatit's primary social security benefit. Accruahéfits under the Retirement Plan were frozen basguhy and service as of the close of busine€3emember 31, 2011in
addition, a participant who (i) has attained agea0 completed at least 10 years of service, phéis attained age 55 and completed at least 3 péaervice may elect to terminate employment lzegin receiving benefi
under the Retirement Plan.
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An employee's benefit service is not deemed inpgeal if the employee performed services for HFC iaridter transitioned to work as an HLS employastead of the normal form of payment, participantsy also elect
receive their accrued benefits in the form of @ &finuity with a period certain, a contingent atyywr a lump sum.

Benefits up to limits set by the Internal Revenwel€are funded by HFC's contributions to the Retinet Plan, with the amounts determined on an defuzasis. In 2012, the Internal Revenue Code &thibenefits that cou
be covered by the Retirement Plan's assets to @20@er year (subject to increases for future ybased on price level changes) and limited the emsgtion that could be taken into account in compwuch benefits
$250,000 per year (subject to certain upward aufjests for future years).

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

In 2012, all of our Named Executive Officers papated in the NQDC Plan. The NQDC Plan functionsawill-over plan, allowing key employees to defer taxmeome in excess of Internal Revenue Code limitsapaly
under the 401(k) Plan. For 2012, the annual ddfeaatribution limit under the 401(k) Plan was $100, and the annual compensation limit was $250,D@ferral elections made by eligible employeeseuride NQDC Pla
apply to the total amount of eligible earnings ¢&meployees want to contribute across both the 4@id) and the NQDC Plan. Once eligible employeashrghe Internal Revenue Code limits on contrimgionder the 401(
Plan, contributions automatically begin being citmited to the NQDC Plan. Federal and state inc@xestare generally not payable on income defemeénthe NQDC Plan until funds are withdrawn.

Eligible employees may make salary deferral contiims between 1% and 50% of eligible earningsh®® NQDC Plan. Eligible earnings include base panuses and overtime, but exclude extraordinary uh a
severance, accrued vacation, equity compensatiwh¢certain other items. Eligible employees whoage 50 or older are required to make catphzontributions to the 401(k) Plan before any obations will be deposite
into the NQDC Plan. For 2012, the catgh-contribution limit was $5,500. Deferral electoare irrevocable for an entire plan year and rhasthade prior to December 31 immediately precetfiagplan year. Elections w
carry over to the next plan year unless changedharwise revoked.

Participants in the NQDC Plan are eligible to reeed matching restoration contribution with respgedheir elective deferrals made up to 6% of thetipipant's eligible earnings for the plan yeaextess of the limits unc
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Ttmeatching restoration contributions are fully vesgdall times. In addition, participants are ellgilior a retirement restoration contribution rargfnrom 3% to 8% of tr
participant's eligible earnings for the plan yeaekcess of the limits under Section 401(k) of ltiternal Revenue Code, based on years of serviegreRient restoration contributions are subjec tareeyear cliff vesting
period and will become fully vested in the eventha participant's death or a change in controbrtfer to receive a retirement restoration contidny an eligible employee must be an active pidict in the NQDC Plan «
the last day of the calendar year (subject to reeeceptions for death, disability or retiremef@rticipants may also receive nonqualified nortislecontributions under the NQDC Plan, which cimittions may be subject
a vesting schedule determined at the time the ibenimns are made.

Participants in the Retirement Plan whose benefituals ceased as of December 31, 2011 are atsiblelto receive a transition benefit contributiomder the NQDC Plan for plan years 2012, 2013 didi2The amount «

the transition benefit contribution for each yesequal to the participant's eligible compensaaetermined in accordance with the Transition Biridan) as of December 31 of that year, multiplisda transition bene
percentage determined based on the participaiglblelyears of service as of January 1, 2012H@dase of salaried employees) in accordance hetfiollowing table:

Transition Benefit

Years of Services (as percentage of eligible compensation)
Less than 5 years 10%

5to 15 years 20%

15 to 20 years 25%
20 years and over 35%

The participant must be employed on the last dathefyear (subject to certain exceptions for deattisability) in order to earn a transition benefntribution for that year. Transition benefitntdbutions are fully veste
immediately. Eligible compensation used to calaitae transition benefit contribution is subjecafiplicable Internal Revenue Code limits ($250,002012), except that if an employee participatethe Restoration Plan,
of his or her eligible compensation will be takatoiconsideration in determining the transitiondfércontribution.
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Participating employees have full discretion ovewttheir contributions to the NQDC Plan are invdsaenong the offered investment options, and easnimgamounts contributed to the NQDC Plan are &led in the san
manner and at the same rate as earnings on acteatments. Neither HLS nor HFC subsidizes direatlindirectly a participant's earnings under tH@DC Plan. During 2012, the investment options effieunder the NQD
Plan were the same as the investment options alaita participants in the tax-qualified 401(k) ®l@xcept that the tagualified 401(k) Plan offers the Principal Stablald Fund and the NQDC Plan instead offer:
Principal Money Market Fund. Earnings for 2012 wiéispect to NQDC Plan amounts invested in the R@ahdoney Market Fund did not exceed 120% of tppligable longterm federal rate (2.63%) and, as a resul
above market or preferential earnings were paiceuttte NQDC Plan for 2012. The following tabledigie investment options for the NQDC Plan in 2@ith the annual rate of return for each fund:

Investment Funds Rate of Return
Allianz NFJ Small Cap Value | Fund 10.79%
Buffalo Small Cap Fund 19.93%
Columbia Acorn International Z Fund 21.6%
Columbia Acorn Z Fund 17.93%
Fidelity Contrafund Fund 16.26%
Fidelity Low-Priced Stock Fund 18.5%
Harbor Capital Appreciation Instl Fund 15.69%
LargeCap S&P 500 Index Instl Fund 15.73%
Madcap S&P 400 Index Instl Fund 17.65%
Money Market Instl Fund —%
Perkins Mid Cap Value T Fund 10.32%
PIMCO Total Return Instl Fund 10.36%
PIMCO All Asset All Authority Instl Fund 17.66%
RS Emerging Markets A Fund 13.26%
SmallCap S&P 600 Index Instl Fund 16.1%
T. Rowe Price Retirement Income Fund 10.05%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2005 Fund 11.35%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2010 Fund 12.44%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2015 Fund 13.81%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2020 Fund 15.01%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2025 Fund 16%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2030 Fund 16.82%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2035 Fund 17.35%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2040 Fund 17.55%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2045 Fund 17.62%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2050 Fund 17.55%
T. Rowe Price Retirement 2055 Fund 17.6%
Thornburg International Value R5 Fund 15.74%
Vanguard Equity-Income Adm. Fund 13.58%
Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Signal Fund 4.15%
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Signal &un 18.21%

Benefits under the NQDC Plan may be distributednuihe earliest to occur of a separation from ser¢atibject to a six month payment delay for cersaiecified employees under Section 409A of theriateRevenue Cod¢
the participant's death, a change in control quexiéied date selected by the participant in acaocé with the terms of the NQDC Plan. Benefitsdiseributed from the NQDC Plan in the form of a jusum payment or,
certain circumstances if elected by the participemnthe form of annual installments for up toeefiyear period.
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Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table

Mr. Cunningham was the only Named Executive Offiveose NQDC Plan benefits were charged to us i2 2Qtsuant to the Omnibus Agreement. The followatge provides information regarding contributi@asand th
yearend balance of, Mr. Cunningham's NQDC Plan acctarr2012. Even though Mr. Clifton, Mr. Aron and MBhaw are also participants in the NQDC Plan, wee mot provided any disclosure with respect torth€pDC
Plan benefits since those benefits were paid fdiBE in 2012. Additional information regarding tNQDC Plan will be provided in HFC's 2013 Proxy 8taent.

Aggregate
Company Aggregate Withdrawals/ Aggregate Balance
Name Executive Contributions (1) Contributions (2) Earnings (3) Distributions at December 31, 2012 (4)

Matthew P. Clifton — — — = —
Douglas S. Aron — — —
Bruce R. Shaw — — — = —

Mark T. Cunningham $43,840 $72,280 $1,315 $117,435

1) The amount reported was deferred at the eleaf Mr. Cunningham and is also included in theoanis reported in the “Salary,” “Bonus” and/or “N&quity Incentive Plan Compensatioedlumns of the Summary Compensation Tabl
2012.

) The amount reported is also included in thé Gther Compensation” column of the “Summary Comgagion Table’for 2012

[©)] The amount reported represents the aggregatengs on the investments made in the NQDC Plah abcrued during 2012 on amounts of eligible camsption deferred at the election of Mr. Cunninghamd the employeprovidec
contributions made on his behalf.

()] The aggregate balance for Mr. Cunningham cefléhe cumulative value, as of December 31, 26fithe employee and employprevided contributions to the NQDC Plan for Mr. @imgham's account, and any earnings on these ast
since Mr. Cunningham began participating in the NGQ®lan in 2012.

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change In Cnotrol

We have Change in Control Agreements with certdiour Named Executive Officers and maintain the ¢-dierm Incentive Plan, each of which provide for samee compensation and/or accelerated vesting wify
compensation in the event of a termination of emyplent following a change in control or under othpecified circumstances. These arrangements amaatined below.

Change in Control Agreements

During 2012, the only Named Executive Officer whadhentered into a Change in Control Agreement wittwas Mr. Cunningham. We entered to a Change imtrGloAgreement with Mr. Cunningham, effective &
February 14, 2011, in accordance with our Changdeointrol Policy. We bear all costs and expensescésed with this agreement.

HFC has a Change in Control Policy and Change intt@bAgreements between HFC and Mr. Clifton, Mha® and Mr. Aron, which were in effect during 20The HFC Change in Control Agreements trigger amggn ¢
change in control of HFC. The terms of the HFC @aim Control Agreements, and a quantification ateptial benefits under the Change in Control Agreets with HFC and certain of its named executifieers, will be
disclosed in HFC's 2013 Proxy Statement.

The Change in Control Agreements terminate on Jarts 2014, and thereafter automatically renewsfarcessive one year terms (on each anniversagthieteafter) unless a cancellation notice is glwens 60 days prit

to the automatic extension date. The Change inrGbAgreements provide that if, in connection withwithin two years after a “Change in Control”ldFC, HLS or HEP (1) the executive is terminatedhwitt “Cause,”
leaves voluntarily for “Good Reason,” or is terntachas a condition of the occurrence of the traimmaconstituting the “Change in Controhd (2) the executive is not offered employmenhwif-C, HLS, HEP, HE

Logistics or any of their affiliates on substarfighe same terms in the aggregate as his predimysoyment with HLS within 30 days after the teration, then the executive will receive the follogicash severance amot

paid by us:

« acash payment equal to his accrued and unpaig/sat@eimbursed expenses and accrued vacatio
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+ alump sum amount equal to a designated mudtipiines (i) the executive's annual base salaf &gs date of termination or the date immediagiipr to the “Change in Controlyhichever is greater, and (ii) 1
executive's annual bonus amount, calculated aavisage annual bonus paid to him for the priorettyears. Mr. Cunningham's severance multiplierGs dnd

« continued participation by the executive and hisardependents in medical and dental benefith®number of years equal to the executive's daggmmultiplier
For purposes of the Change in Control Agreemerit€hange in Control” occurs if:

« aperson or group of persons (other than HF@ngrof its whollyowned subsidiaries or HLS, HEP, HEP Logistics or ahtheir subsidiaries) becomes the beneficial enaf more than 50% of the combined vo
power of the then outstanding securities of HFCSHHEP or HEP Logistics or more than 50% of thestautding common stock or membership interestspplicable or HFC or HLS;

« amajority of HFC's Board of Directors is remdaduring a 12nonth period by directors who were not endorsed hajority of the previous board memb

+ the consummation of a merger, consolidation orpiatzation of HFC, HLS, HEP or HEP Logistics résg in the holders of voting securities of HFCL.8{ HEP or HEP Logistics, as applicable, priortte merge
or consolidation owning less than 50% of the coraliimoting power of the voting securities of HFC,$JIHEP or HEP Logistics, as applicable, or a reefipation of HFC, HLS, HEP or HEP Logistics in whie
person or group becomes the beneficial owner afrgtezs of HFC, HLS, HEP or HEP Logistics, as applile, representing more than 50% of the combir¢hg power of the then outstanding securities &,
HLS, HEP or HEP Logistics, as applicable;

« the holders of voting securities of HFC or HEP appra plan of complete liquidation or dissolutidrH&C or HEP, as applicable;

« the holders of voting securities of HFC or HEP averthe sale or disposition of all or substantiallyof the assets of HFC or HEP, as applicableeiothan to an entity holding at least 60% of thmbined votin
power of the voting securities immediately priostach sale or disposition.

For purposes of the Change in Control Agreeme@ap$e” is defined as:

+ the engagement in any act of willful gross neglieor willful misconduct on a matter that is natonsequential; «
« conviction of a felony

For purposes of the Change in Control Agreeme@sptl Reason” is defined as, without the expresgemrconsent of the executive:

+ amaterial reduction in the executive's (or hisesujsor's) authority, duties or responsibilit

« amaterial reduction in the executive's base cosgiém; o

« the relocation of the executive to an office oratan more than 50 miles from the location at witiod executive normally performed the executivetsises, except for travel reasonably requiredhenpgerformance !
the executive's responsibilities.

All payments and benefits due under the Changeointi@l Agreements will be conditioned on the exemutind norrevocation by the executive of a release of cldonshe benefit of HFC, HLS, HEP and HEP Logistcs
their related entities and agents. The Change imrGoAgreements also contain confidentiality psiwns pursuant to which each executive agreesondistlose or otherwise use the confidential infation of HFC, HLS
HEP or HEP Logistics. Violation of the confidenifglprovisions entitles HFC, HLS, HEP or HEP Logistto complete relief, including injunctive reliéfurther, in the event of a breach of the confiddity covenants, tF
executive could be terminated for Cause (provithedbreach constituted willful gross negligence @saonduct on the executive's part that is not iseguential). The agreements do not prohibit therevaif a breach of the
covenants.

If amounts payable to an executive under a Changgontrol Agreement (together with any other amsuhat are payable by HFC, HLS, HEP or HEP Logsstis a result of a change in ownership or conexteed th
amount allowed under Section 280G of the Code doh £xecutive by 10% or more, we will pay the exiweuan amount necessary to allow the executivetiain a net amount equal to the total presentevafithe paymen
on the date they are to be paid. Conversely, ipgnents exceed the 280G limit for the executivéebs than 10%, the payments will be reducededetel at which no excise tax applies.

Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards
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The outstanding long-term equity incentive awardmted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan vest updBpecial Involuntary Termination”, which occushen, within 60 days prior to or at any time aféefChange i
Control™:

.

.

the executive is terminated, other than for “Sglor

the executive resigns within 90 days following“Adverse Change.”

All outstanding performance units will vest at 150%he event of a Special Involuntary Termination.

In the event of an executive's death, disabilityetirement, restricted units and performance ureést as follows:

Restricted Unit: The executive will vest with respect to a pro natianber of units attributable to the period of seeviompleted during the applicable vesting periudi\aill forfeit any unvested unit

Performance Unit: The executive will remain eligible to vest with pegt to a pro rata number of units attributabléhto period of service completed during the applieg®rformance period (rounded up to incl
the month of termination) and will forfeit any ursted units. The Committee will determine the numiferemaining performance units earned and the ainmube paid to the executive as soon as adméigety
possible after the end of the performance perickthaipon the performance actually attained foretfitee performance period. The foregoing also @&gpii the executive separates from employment rigr athe
reason other than a voluntary separation, Spewallintary Separation or for “Cause.”

For purposes of the long-term equity incentive asaa “Change in Control” occurs if:

a person or group of persons (other than HF&ngrof its whollyewned subsidiaries or HLS, HEP, HEP Logistics or ahtheir subsidiaries) becomes the beneficial emaf more than 40% of the combined vo
power of the then outstanding securities of HFCSHHEP or HEP Logistics;

a majority of HFC's Board of Directors is remdaduring a 12-month period by directors who wereemdorsed by twthirds of the previous board memb:

the consummation of a merger, consolidation orpitalization of HFC, HLS, HEP or HEP Logistics résg in the holders of voting securities of HFCL.${ HEP or HEP Logistics, as applicable, priortte merge
or consolidation owning less than 60% of the coratlimoting power of the voting securities of HFC, $IHEP or HEP Logistics, as applicable, or a reefipation of HFC, HLS, HEP, or HEP Logistics in ieh &
person or group becomes the beneficial owner afritees of HFC, HLS, HEP or HEP Logistics, as apglile, representing more than 40% of the combir¢ithy power of the then outstanding securities &,
HLS, HEP or HEP Logistics, as applicable;

the holders of voting securities of HFC, HLS, HERH&P Logistics approve a plan of complete liquiniabr dissolution of HFC, HLS, HEP or HEP Logisti@s applicable;

the holders of voting securities of HFC, HLS, HEPHEP Logistics approve the sale or dispositioralbor substantially all of the assets of HFC, HESEEP or HEP Logistics, as applicable, other thaarteentity
holding at least 60% of the combined voting powfethe voting securities immediately prior to suelesor disposition.

For purposes of the restricted unit awards, “Aded€Zange” is defined as:

a change in the city in which the executive is fegito work

a substantial increase in travel requirements gflepment

a substantial reduction in the duties of the typvipusly performed by the executive

a significant reduction in compensation or bendfither than bonuses and other discretionary itgheempensation) that does not apply generallyxazatives

For purposes of the performance unit awards, “Askvé€hange” is defined as, without the consentegttecutive:

.

a change in the executive's principal office of @gment of more than 25 miles from the executivek address at the time of grant of the an
a material increase (without adequate consideratipmaterial reduction in the duties to be perfednby the executive;
a material reduction in the executive's base cosgaean (other than bonuses and other discretioibemys of compensation or a general reduction agpléecgenerally to executive

For purposes of the long-term equity incentive alsatCause” is defined as:
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+ an act of dishonesty constituting a felony or saesimisdemeanor and resulting (or intended to résugiain or personal enrichment to the executivih@ expense of HL
« gross or willful and wanton negligence in the parfance of the executive's material and substaaidités; o
« conviction of a felony involving moral turpituc

The following table summarizes the compensationathdr benefits that would have been payable tdN#gmaed Executive Officers under the arrangemergsriteed above assuming their employment terminateter variou
scenarios, including in connection with a changedntrol, on December 31, 2012. For these purp@sgs;ommon unit price was assumed to be $32.8&hwhas the closing price per unit on December281,2 (as adjustt
to reflect the two-for-one common unit split thacarred on January 16, 2013).

In reviewing the tables, please note the following:
+ Accrued vacation for a specific year is not allovtede carried over to a subsequent year, so wemesball accrued vacation for the 2012 year wasrtgior to December 31, 20

+ Because vesting of the performance units uptermination due to death, disability, retirementother separation (other than a voluntary separat for “Cause’separation or a Special Involuntary Terminat
remains contingent upon the attainment of perfoeagoals at the end of the applicable performaec®gs, no amounts associated with accelerateéhgest performance units under those circumstahee® bee
included in the table below. Due to the changednting dates of outstanding restricted unit awand®ecember 15 of a given year, no amounts arertegpdor accelerated vesting of restricted unit @saupol
termination due to death, disability or retiremeatause units attributable to fiscal year 2012ecesn December 15, 2012.

* The amount shown for “Value of Welfare Benefitepresents amounts equal to the monthly premiuyalge pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus BudgebRciliation Act of 1985, as amended (“COBRAQy
medical and dental premiums, multiplied by 12 merftr Mr. Cunningham.

« In calculating whether any tax reimbursements veeved to the Named Executive Officers, we used dfleving assumptions: (a) the excise tax rate niS#etion 4999 of the Tax Code is 20%, the fedemme ta:
rate is 35%, the Medicare rate is 1.45%, the adfjest to reflect the phasmit of itemized deductions is 1.05%, and thererarestate or local income taxes, (b) no amounts belldiscounted as attributable
reasonable compensation, (c) all cash severanaegrdy are contingent upon a change in control,(dnthe presumption required under applicable r&iprs that the equity awards granted in 2012 wergingen
upon a change in control could be rebutted.
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Value of Vesting
Named Executive Officer Cash Payments Welfare Benefits of Equity Awards Tax Reimbursement Total

Matthew P. Clifton
Termination in connection with or following a Chanip Control — = $3,440,91¢
Termination due to Death, Disability or Retirement — —
Douglas S. Aron
Termination in connection with or following a Chanign Control —
Termination due to Death, Disability or Retirement —
Bruce R. Shaw
Termination in connection with or following a Chanijp Control — — $34,46¢
Termination due to Death, Disability or Retirement — —
Mark T. Cunningham
Termination in connection with or following a Chanig Control $364,29t $20,334 $245,29¢
Termination due to Death, Disability or Retirement —

— $3,440,91¢

= $34,46¢

$629,92¢

Compensation Practices as They Relate To Risk Manament

Although a significant portion of the compensatmovided to the Named Executive Officers is perfancebased, we believe our compensation programs demuaiurage excessive and unnecessary risk takimgduutive
officers (or other employees) because these prageaendesigned to encourage employees to remaisddmn both our short- and long-term operationdlfancial goals.

While annual caslvased incentive bonus awards play an appropritgerrdhe executive compensation program, the Cdtembelieves that payment should be determineeldbais an evaluation of our performance on a
variety of measures, as compared to our past peaiece and the performance of our peers, which atégyexcessive riglaking that could produce unsustainable gains mamea of performance at the expense of our o
long-term interests. In addition, we set performancdgytheat we believe are reasonable in light of astperformance and market conditions. For Nameztiixwe Officers performing all or a majority ofihservices for u
an appropriate part of total compensation is fixedile another portion is variable and linked tafpemance. A portion of the variable compensatianpgovide is comprised of long-term incentives. gktpn of the longterm
incentives we provide is in the form of restricteqits subject to timéased vesting conditions, which retains value emea depressed market, so executives are lesy likefake unreasonable risks. With respect tc
performance-based equity incentives, assuming eefrient of at least a minimum level of performanmayouts result in some compensation at levels bélitiwarget achievement, in lieu of an “all or histg” approact
Further, our unit ownership guidelines require @ierbf our executives to hold certain levels oftsifin addition to unvested and unsettled egbéged awards), which aligns an appropriate podfdheir personal wealth
our long-term performance and the interests ofumitholders.

Guidelines for Unit Ownership for Outside Directors
Pursuant to the unit ownership guidelines apprdwethe Board in 2009, each outside director is etggeto maintain an ownership level of our commbitsuwith a market value of $125,000. To the ex@mbutside direct:

does not meet these guidelines, he will be expeocteetain 25% of the units received upon settldnoémestricted units awarded to him, until thetwwwnership requirement is met. Units owned frory source count towa
meeting the guideline, but unvested restrictedsuhit not count. As of December 31, 2012, each pbatside directors complied with the unit ownepsuidelines.

Guidelines for Unit Ownership for Executives
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Executive

Pursuant to the unit ownership guidelines apprdwethe Board in 2009, each Named Executive Offgpercified below is expected to maintain an owneréhiel of our common units with the market valee ferth next t

Value of Units

Matthew P. Clifton
Bruce R. Shaw

$500,000
$250,000

To the extent each of the Named Executive Offitisted above does not meet these guidelines, hdevitxpected to retain 25% of the after-tax urgteived upon settlement of restricted unit andoperance unit awards.

Units owned from any source count toward meetirggghideline, but units relating to unvested rettdaunits and/or performance units do not countoABecember 31, 2012, each of the Named Exec@ffieers listec
above complied with the unit ownership guidelines.

Anti-Hedging and Anti-Pledging Policy
The employees and directors of HLS are subjediedHFC and HEP Insider Trading Policy, which, amotiter things, prohibits such employees and diredtom entering into short sales or hedging odgieg our common
units.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Unitholder Matters
The following table sets forth as of February 1612 the beneficial ownership of common units of HigRl by:
« each person known to us to be a beneficial own&febr more of the common un
« directors of HLS, the general partner of our geheaatner
« each named executive officer of HLS;
« all directors and executive officers of HLS as augr
The percentage of common units noted below is basesb, 782,048 common units outstanding as of Fefpri5, 2013. All unit amounts have been adjustesfiect a two-forne unit split that occurred on January 16, 2

Unless otherwise indicated, the address for eaithalder shall be c/o Holly Energy Partners, L2828 N. Harwood, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75200715

Percentage of Outstanding

Name of Beneficial Owner Common Units Common Units

HollyFrontier Corporation (1) 24,255,03 44%
Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. (2) 4,533,37. 8%
SteelPath Fund Advisors, LLC (3) 3,040,291 5.4%
Matthew P. Clifton (4) 250,95 *
Bruce R. Shaw (4) 19,24( &
Douglas S. Aron (5) 2,84( *
Mark T. Cunningham (4) 26,32: *
Michael C. Jennings 6,00( *
P. Dean Ridenour (6) 66,14( *
Charles M. Darling, IV (6)(7) 42,77 *
William J. Gray (6) 18,57( *
Jerry W. Pinkerton (6) 21,77: *
William P. Stengel (6)(8) 17,55¢ *
James G. Townsend (6) 15,75¢ *
All directors and executive officers as group (E3gons) (9) 508,78 &
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* Less than 1%

HollyFrontier Corporation directly holds 145,006nemon units over which it has sole voting and digpaspower and 24,110,024 common units over wliidtas shared voting and dispositive power. Tha Pa,02:
common units over which HollyFrontier Corporatioashshared voting and dispositive power are helidl&svs: Holly Logistics Limited LLC directly hold21,615,230 common units; HollyFrontier Holdings@
directly holds 2,059,800 common units; Navajo RipelCo., L.P. directly holds 254,880 common unésd other whollygwned subsidiaries of HollyFrontier Corporationedily own 180,114 common un
HollyFrontier Corporation is the ultimate parenngmany of each such entity and may therefore be ddem beneficially own the units held by each sentity. HollyFrontier Corporation files informatiomith or
furnishes information to, the Securities and ExgieaCommission pursuant to the information requinemef the Exchange Act. The percentage of outgtgndommon units owned includes a 2% general pe
interest held by HEP Logistics Holdings, L.P. whistHEP's general partner and an indirect whollyzed/ subsidiary of HollyFrontier Corporation. Thelezss of HollyFrontier Corporation is 2888 Harwood, Suit
1300, Dallas, Texas 75201-1507.

Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. filed with the SEa Schedule 13G/A on February 12, 2013. BasethisrSthedule 13G/A, Tortoise Capital Advisors, CLreported that as of December 31, 2012, it héel\sating
power and sole dispositive power with respect t@ zaeits, shared voting power with respect to 2,860 units, shared dispositive power with respec2,266,687 units and that the aggregate amounhio$ it
beneficially owns equals 8% of our common unitsstartding. We believe that the unit totals includethis Schedule 13G/A have not been adjustedfteateour two-forene unit split that occurred on January
2013, which we have given effect to in the tablewah The address of Tortoise Capital Advisors, C.lis 11550 Ash St., Suite 300, Leawood, KS 66211.

SteelPath Fund Advisors, LLC filed with the SEC @h&lule 13G, dated February 13, 2012. Based orStitiedule 13G, SteelPath Fund Advisors, LLC hasesheoting power and shared dispositive power
respect to 1,520,145 units. The units reportedéntable above for SteelPath Fund Advisors, LLG giffect to our two-for-one unit split that occutren January 16, 2013. Theldress of SteelPath Fund Advis
LLC is 2100 McKinney Ave., Suite 1401, Dallas, TEZ01.

The number reported includes restricted units foictv the executive has sole voting power but npakigive power, as follows: Mr. Clifton (22,872 t8)i Mr. Shaw (1,048 units), and Mr. Cunninghan#$B, units)
The number does not include performance units bglilr. Clifton.

Includes 420 common units held by Mr. Aron as adisto for his son in an account under the UniforrarBfer to Minors Act and 420 common units held by Afon as custodian for his daughter in an accounole
the Uniform Transfer to Minors Act. Mr. Aron disal@s beneficial ownership of these common units.

The number reported includes 2,252 restriateits for which the nomranagement director has sole voting power but spaditive powe

Mr. Darling is an owner and general manager of DE)dihgs, L.L.C. The number reported includes 22,46thmon units owned by DQ Holdings, L.L.C. for wiibir. Darling has shared voting and dispos
power. Mr. Darling disclaims beneficial ownershipta the common units held by DQ Holdings, L.L.&cept to the extent of his pecuniary interest timere

The number reported includes 1,000 common unitseovisy Mr. Stengel's spouse for which Mr. Stengefe$ voting and disposition power. Mr. Stengelldists beneficial ownership as to the common unitaex
by his spouse.

The number reported includes 32,382 restriateits held by executive officers for which theybaole voting power but no dispositive power aB¢b12 restricted units held by namanagement directors for wh
they have sole voting power but no dispositive powée number reported also includes 22,400 comarots as to which Mr. Darling disclaims benefictatnership, except to the extent of his pecuniatgres
therein, 1,000 common units for which Mr. Stengsttiims beneficial ownership, 840 common unitsvitxich Mr. Aron disclaims beneficial ownership, ah@00 common units for which Ms. Denise McWatter
executive officer of HLS, disclaims beneficial owsleip.
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Equity Compensation Plan Table

The following table summarizes information about equity compensation plans as of December 31,:2012

Number of securities to be issued  Weighted average exercise price of Number of securities remaining available

upon exercise of outstanding options, outstanding options, warrants and for future issuance under equity
Plan Category (1) warrants and rights rights compensation plans
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérsid — — —
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers (2) 81,747 (3 — 1,833,02:
Total 81,74 1,833,02
(1) All stockbased compensation plans are described in Notedrtoonsolidated financial statements for theafiyear ended December 31, 2(
(2) At the time the Long-erm Incentive Plan was adopted, it was not requicebe approved by the Partnership's securityersldOn April 25, 2012, at a Special Meeting of thatholders of the Partnership,

unitholders approved the Amended and Restated D@ngr Incentive Plan, which, among other thingsyjates for an increase in the maximum number of commmits reserved for delivery with respect to als

under the Long-Term Incentive Plan to 2,500,000 mom units (as adjusted to reflect the two-for-oammon unit split that occurred on January 16, 2013)

(3) Represents units subject to performance gnésted to Mr. Clifton under the LonEerm Incentive Plan in 2010, 2011 and 2012 assumingaximum payout level of 150% at the time of wegtlf the performanc

units granted to Mr. Clifton in 2010, 2011 and 2@t2 paid at the threshold payout level of 100%4%& units would be issued upon the vesting of serformance units.

For more information about our Long-Term Incent®ian, which did not, at the time of its initial guimn, require approval by our limited partnerderedo Item 11, “Executive Compensatio®verview of 2012 Executi

Compensation Components and Decisions - Long-Teoenitive Equity Compensation.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

Our general partner and its affiliates own 24,286,6f our common units representing a 42% limitadner interest in us. In addition, the generatqErowns a 2% general partner interest in us. Seretions with our gene

partner are discussed later in this section.

DISTRIBUTIONS AND PAYMENTS TO THE GENERAL PARTNER A ND ITS AFFILIATES

The following table summarizes the distributionsl @ayments to be made by us to our general paameits affiliates in connection with the ongoingecation and liquidation of HEP. These distribusi@nd payments we

determined by and among affiliated entities anaisegquently, are not the result of arm’s-length tiagons.

Operational stage
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Distributions of available cash to our general partand its affiliates We generally make cash distributions 98% to thehahders, including our general partner and itdliafés as the holders of
aggregate of 24,255,030 of the common units and®#te general partner. In addition, if distributsoexceed the minimum quarte
distribution and other higher target levels, oungyal partner is entitled to increasing percentajéke distributions, up to 50% of t
distributions above the highest target level.

Payments to our general partner and its affiliates We pay HFC or its affiliates an administrative femirrently $2.3 million per year, for the provisiaf various general ar
administrative services for our benefit. The adstiative fee may increase if we make an acquisttia requires an increase in
level of general and administrative services thatreceive from HFC or its affiliates. In additiche general partner is entitled
reimbursement for all expenses it incurs on ouralfelincluding other general and administrative exges. These reimbursa
expenses include the salaries and the cost of geploenefits of employees of HLS who provide sewim us. Please rea@fhnibus
Agreement” below. Our general partner determinesathount of these expenses.

Withdrawal or removal of our general partner If our general partner withdraws or is removedgiéseral partner interest and its incentive distidn rights will either be sold to tl
new general partner for cash or converted into commnits, in each case for an amount equal to &renfiarket value of thos
interests.

Liquidation stage

Upon our liquidation, the partners, including owngral partner, will b
entitled to receive liquidating distributions aodimg to their particule
Liquidation capital account balances.

OMNIBUS AGREEMENT
Our Omnibus Agreement with HFC and our generalnearthat addresses the following matters:

« our obligation to pay HFC an annual administrafee, currently in the amount of $2.3 million, faxetprovision by HFC of certain general and admiatiste service:

+« HFC’s and its affiliatesagreement not to compete with us under certainistances and our right to notice of, and rightrsf offer to purchase, certain logistics assetsstructed by HFC and acquired as part ¢
acquisition by HFC of refining assets;

+ an indemnity by HFC for certain potential envirom liabilities

« our obligation to indemnify HFC for environmentailHilities related to our assets existing on thee @d our initial public offering to the extent HREnot required to indemnify us; &

« HFC's right of first refusal to purchase ouretssthat serve HF@'refineries

Payment of general and administrative services
Under the Omnibus Agreement we pay HFC an annuualrastrative fee, currently in the amount of $2.8lion, for the provision of various general andhaidistrative services for our benefit. Our gengraltner may agree
further increases in connection with expansionsusfoperations through the acquisition or constomcdf new assets or businesses.

The $2.3 million fee includes expenses incurredHBC and its affiliates to perform centralized camte functions, such as legal, accounting, treasnfgrmation technology and other corporate sawjdncluding th
administration of employee benefit plans. The feesdnot include salaries of pipeline and termirakpnnel or other employees of HLS who performises/for us or the cost of their employee benefitssh as 401 (k
pension, and health insurance benefits, which gparstely charged to us by HFC. We also reimbufs@ kid its affiliates for direct general and adstiitive expenses they incur on our behalf.

Noncompetition
HFC and its affiliates have agreed, for so longi&E controls our general partner, not to engagehether by acquisition or otherwise, the busirefssperating crude oil pipelines or terminals, mefi product pipelines
terminals, intermediate pipelines or terminalsckreacks or crude oil gathering systems in theicental United States. This restriction will nojpépto:

* any business operated by HFC or any of its afifiat the time of the closing of our initial puldittering
* any business conducted by HFC with the approvaliofgeneral partne
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* any business or asset that HFC or any of its afffii acquires or constructs that has a fair maedae or construction cost of less than $5 milliang
« any business or asset that HFC or any of its afi§ acquires or constructs that has a fair maedee or construction cost of $5 million or morevié have been offered the opportunity to purchaséusiness or as
at fair market value, and we decline to do so.

The limitations on the ability of HFC and its aiffiles to compete with us will terminate if HFC cesmo control our general partner.

Indemnification

Under the Omnibus Agreement, certain transportagneements and purchase agreements with HFC, ldE@dreed to indemnify us, subject to certain &truns, for environmental noncompliance and rentegidiabilities
associated with certain assets transferred toams HFC and occurring or existing prior to the datteuch transfers. The Omnibus Agreement provigesr@nmental indemnification with respect to centéiansferred assets
up to $15 million through 2021, plus additional émdhification of $2.5 million through 2015 and up®®.5 million through 2023. HFC's indemnificatiobligations under the Omnibus Agreement do not appl§) the Tuls
west loading racks acquired in August 2009, (i§ t6inch intermediate pipeline acquired in June 20@D,the Roadrunner Pipeline, (iv) the Beeson Ripel (v) the logistics and storage assets acquied Sinclair ir
December 2009, (vi) the Tulsa east storage tanétdaatling racks acquired in March 2010 or (vii) thdEV Pipeline. For the Tulsa loading racks acquiifiem HFC in August 2009 and the Tulsa logistind atorage asst
acquired from Sinclair in December 2009, HFC agreeitidemnify us for environmental liabilities arig from our preswnership operations of these assets. AdditionelC agreed to indemnify us for any liabilitiessanc
from its operation of our loading racks locatedi&C's Tulsa refinery west facility.

We have indemnified HFC and its affiliates agagrstironmental liabilities related to events thatwoon our assets after the date we acquired ssgt.a

Right of first refusal to purchase our asse

The Omnibus Agreement also contains the terms untiesh HFC has a right of first refusal to purchase assets that serve its refineries. Before viereénto any contract to sell pipeline and termiassets serving HFE’
refineries, we must give written notice of the teraf such proposed sale to HFC. The notice mugbstt the name of the thirparty purchaser, the assets to be sold, the pugirace, all details of the payment terms an
other terms and conditions of the offer. To theeekthe thirdparty offer consists of consideration other thashcgor in addition to cash), the purchase pricdl fleadeemed equal to the amount of any such chshtipe fai
market value of such narash consideration, determined as set forth ifDimmibus Agreement. HFC will then have the sole exdusive option for a period of thirty days follow receipt of the notice, to purchase the su
assets on the terms specified in the notice.

PIPELINE AND TERMINAL, TANKAGE AND THROUGHPUT AGREE MENTS

We serve HFC's refineries under lotegm pipeline and terminal, tankage and througlaguéements expiring in 2019 to 2026. Under theseemgents, HFC agreed to transport, store and thpugolumes of refined prodt
and crude oil on our pipelines and terminal, tarkagd loading rack facilities that result in minimannual payments to us. These minimum annual patgnee revenues are subject to annual tariff rdjesaments on July
based on the Producer Price Index (“PPI”) or thdeff@l Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) indéxlditionally, such agreements require HFC to reimbuus for certain costs. As of December 31, 20ites
agreements with HFC will result in minimum annuatizpayments to us of $217.2 million .

HFC's obligations under these agreements will aontnate if HFC and its affiliates no longer owe theneral partner. These agreements may be asign¢fiC only with the consent of our conflicts coittae.

SUMMARY OF TRANSACTIONS WITH HFC

*« UNEV Pipeline Interest AcquisitionGn July 12, 2012, we acquired HFC's 75% interesNMEV. We paid consideration consisting of $260.@iom in cash and 2,059,806f our common units. As a result of
common units issued to HFC, HFC's ownership intenegs increased from 42% to 44% (including the @8feral partner interest).

* Legacy Frontier Tankage and Terminal Transact On November 9, 2011, we acquired from HFC certamkage, loading rack and crude receiving assetstéd at HFG El Dorado and Cheyenne refineries.
paid noneash consideration consisting of Promissory Notiés an aggregate principal amount of $150 millierd&,615,230 of our common units. We repaid $77illiom of outstanding principal using proce:
received in our December 2011 common unit offeeing existing cash. We repaid the remaining $72|Bomibalance in March 2012.
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« Tulsa East / Lovington Storage Asset TransactiGm-March 31, 2010, we acquired from HFC certaimegie assets for $88.6 million located at HECulsa refinery east facility and an asphalt logdiack facility
located at HFC'’s Navajo refinery Lovington facility

* See “2012 Acquisition,” “2011 Acquisition” and “2@ Acquisitions”under Item 1, “Business” of this Annual Report @t/ 10K for additional information on these acquisitidnesm HFC
« Revenues received from HFC were $245.6 milli$268.3 million and $146.4 million for the yearsled December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20féspectively

* HFC charged us for general and administrativeises under the Omnibus Agreement of $2.3 milfieneach of the years ended December 31, 2012, 20d 201Q respectively

«  We reimbursed HFC for costs of employees supmpdur operations of $31.1 million , $21.4 milliand $18.6 million for the years ended Decembe®812, 2011 and 201,0espectively
* HFC reimbursed us $13.4 million , $11.9 milliand $3.7 million for certain reimbursable costs eaglital projects for the years ended Decembe2@12, 2011 and 201Qespectively

*  We distributed $64.0 million , $40.6 million a885.9 million for the years ended December 3122@D11 and 2010respectively, to HFC as regular distributionsitsrcommon units, subordinated units and gel
partner interest, including general partner inaendistributions.

REVIEW, APPROVAL OR RATIFICATION OF TRANSACTIONS WI TH RELATED PERSONS

The disclosure, review and approval of any transastwith related persons is governed by our Cddgusiness Conduct and Ethics, which provides dinds for disclosure, review and approval of amngaction that creai
a conflict of interest between us and our employe#ficers or directors and members of their imnagglifamily. Conflict of interest transactions may duthorized if they are found to be in the betgrest of the Partnerst
based on all relevant facts. Pursuant to the Cé@aisiness Conduct and Ethics, conflicts of inteeee to be disclosed to and reviewed by a supmrwtio does not have a conflict of interest, arelshpervisor must report
writing on the action taken to the General CounGehflicts of interest involving directors or senixecutive officers are reviewed by the full BoafdDirectors or by a committee of the Board ofeiors on which the relat
person does not serve. Related party transactaansred to be disclosed in our SEC reports arerteggdhrough our disclosure controls and procedures

There are no transactions disclosed in this Itererit8red into since January 1, 2012 that wereetptired to be reviewed, ratified or approved punst@ our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics ¢ véispect to which o
policies and procedures with respect to confli¢tmtrest were not followed.

See Item 10 for a discussion of “Director Indepevuge”

Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service
The audit committee of the board of directors of3-Helected Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Regidténeblic Accounting Firm, to audit the books, retsoand accounts of the HEP for the 2012 calendar ye

Fees paid to Ernst & Young LLP for 2012 and 2014 as follows:

2012 2011
Audit Fees? $ 762,000 $ 662,00(
Tax Fees 117,00( 176,00(
Total $ 879,000 $ 838,00(

(1) Represents fees for professional services providetbnnection with the audit of our annual finahctatements and internal controls over financégarting, review of our quarterly financial statertse an
procedures performed as part of our securitiesgi
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The audit committee of our general partner’s bazrdirectors operates under a written audit conemittharter adopted by the board. A copy of theteh# available on our website at www.hollyenecom . The charte
requires the audit committee to approve in advaiceudit and non-audit services to be providedbhy independent registered public accounting fith.services reported in the audit, audifated, tax and all other 1
categories above were approved by the audit comenitt advance.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a) Documents filed as part of this rep
(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statem:

Page in
Form 10-K
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiiinm 56
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 201 2GiH 57
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@éecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 58
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomthéoyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 59
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yveraded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 60
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yearsgdridecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 61
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 62

(2) Index to Consolidated Financial Statement Sche
All schedules are omitted since the required infitiom is not present in or not present in amounffcéent to require submission of the schedulebecause the information required is included & ¢bnsolidated financi

statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
See Index to Exhibits on pages 132 to 138.
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HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be signedsobehbalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly autkedri

HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
(Registrant)

By: HEP LOGISTICS HOLDINGS, L.P.
its General Partner

By: HOLLY LOGISTIC SERVICES, L.L.C.
its General Partner

Date: February 27, 2013 /sl Matthew P. Clifton

Matthew P. Clifton
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief ExaeuOfficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptie following persons on behalf of the registrand in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Date: February 27, 2013 /sl Matthew P. Clifton

Matthew P. Clifton
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 27, 2013 /sl Bruce R. Shaw
Bruce R. Shaw
President

Date: February 27, 2013 /sl Douglas S. Aron

Douglas S. Aron
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 27, 2013 /sl Scott C. Surplus

Scott C. Surplus
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: February 27, 2013 /sl Charles M. Darling, IV

Charles M. Darling, IV
Director

Date: February 27, 2013 Is/ William J. Gray

William J. Gray
Director
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Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

: February 27, 2013

: February 27, 2013

: February 27, 2013

: February 27, 2013

: February 27, 2013

/sl Michael C. Jennings

Michael C. Jennings
Director

Is/ Jerry W. Pinkerton

Jerry W. Pinkerton
Director

/sl P. Dean Ridenour

P. Dean Ridenour
Director

/sl William P. Stengel

William P. Stengel
Director

/s/ James G. Townsend

James G. Townsend
Director
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Index

Description

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated February 28, B@@veen Holly Corporation, Navajo Pipeline QoR., Navajo Refining Company, L.L.C., Woods Créssfining Company, L.L.C., Holly Ener
Partners, L.P., Holly Energy Partners - Operating,, HEP Pipeline, L.L.C. and HEP Woods Cross,.C.l(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 ofR&ant's Form & Current Report dated Febru:
27, 2008, File No. 001-32225).

Asset Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated Octob20Q9, between Holly Refining & MarketingTulsa LLC, HEP Tulsa LLC and Sinclair Tulsa RefigiCompany (incorporated by reference to ExI
2.1 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report datetbBer 21, 2009, File No. 001-32225).

First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limitedreaship of Holly Energy Partners, L.P. (incorperhby reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Registrant's Qarér Report on Form 1@ for its quarterly perio
ended June 30, 2004, File No. 001-32225).

Amendment No. 1 to the First Amended and Restageément of Limited Partnership of Holly Energy tRers, L.P., dated February 28, 2005 (incorporatedeference to Exhibit 3.1 of Registral
Form 8-K Current Report dated February 28, 200, Ifo. 001-32225).

Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restatg@eément of Limited Partnership of Holly EnergytRars, L.P., dated July 6, 2005 (incorporated ligremce to Exhibit 3.1 of Registrant's Fornk8-
Current Report dated July 6, 2005, File No. 0012532

Amendment No. 3 to First Amended and Restated Ageee of Limited Partnership of Holly Energy Parsdr.P., dated April 11, 2008 (incorporated by refee to Exhibit 4.1 of Registrant's Fornk8-
Current Report dated April 15, 2008, File No. 0@235).

Limited Partial Waiver of Incentive Distribution tits under the First Amended and Restated Agreeofehimited Partnership of Holly Energy PartnersPL, dated July 12, 2012 (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Registrant's Form 8-#n@nt Report dated July 12, 2012, File No. 0012532

Amendment No. 4 to First Amended and Restated Ageee of Limited Partnership of Holly Energy Parsdr.P., dated January 16, 2013 (incorporated fgreace to Exhibit 3.1 of Registrant's Form 8-
K Current Report dated January 16, 2013, File Nd.-82225).

First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limitedrieaship of Holly Energy Partners - Operating Compa..P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8fRegistrant's Quarterly Report on FormQO-
for its quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, Rite 001-32225).

First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limitedreaship of HEP Logistics Holdings, L.P. (incorpi by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of Registrant's aryy Report on Form 1@ for its quarterl
period ended June 30, 2004, File No. 001-32225).

First Amended and Restated Limited Liability Compakgreement of Holly Logistic Services, L.L.C. (omporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 of RegisteaQuarterly Report on Form 1D-for its
quarterly period ended June 30, 2004, File No. 82225).

Amendment No. 1 to the First Amended and Restateitéd Liability Company Agreement of Holly LogistServices, L.L.C., dated April 27, 2011 (incorferhby reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Registra
Form 8-K Current Report dated May 3, 2011, File D@1-32225).

First Amended and Restated Limited Liability Compaxgreement of HEP Logistics GP, L.L.C. (incorpettby reference to Exhibit 3.6 of Registrant's Qaréyr Report on Form 1@ for its quarterl
period ended June 30, 2004, File No. 001-32225).

Indenture, dated February 28, 2005, among Hollyr@gn@artners, L.P., Holly Energy Finance Corp., Gwarantors and U.S. Bank National Associationyigiing for the issuance of 6.25% Senior N¢
due 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitof.Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dated Fakyr@8, 2005, File No. 001-32225).

Form of 6.25% Senior Note Due 2015 (included asilikhA to the Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.1 herg{mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Régint's Form & Current Report dated Februz
28, 2005, File No. 001-32225).

Form of Notation of Guarantee (included as ExHibtb the Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.1 heretoxérporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of RegistsaRorm 8K Current Report dated February 28, 2(
File No. 001-32225).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated March 10, 2@8ong HEP Fin-Tex/Trustiver, L.P., Holly Energy Partners, L.P., Holly Egg Finance Corp., the other Guarantors and U.$ikBdationa
Assaociation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit éf Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qittoquarterly period ended March 31, 2005, Fite B01-32225).

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated April 27, 286%ng Holly Energy Partners, L.P., Holly Energyafice Corp., the other Guarantors and U.S. Bartlohl Association (incorporated by referel
to Exhibit 4.6 of Registrant's Quarterly Reportform 10-Q for its quarterly period ended March 2105, File No. 001-32225).
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4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

101

10.2

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated June 11, 280fhng LovingtonArtesia, L.L.C., Holly Energy Partners, L.P., Holnergy Finance Corp., the other Guarantors and B8k National Associatic
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Rewgist's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its qudytperiod ended June 30, 2009, File No. 001-32225)

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated June 29, 286fhng HEP SLC, LLC, Holly Energy Partners, L.Pqll{ Energy Finance Corp., the other Guarantors Binfl. Bank National Associatit
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Rewgist's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its qudytperiod ended June 30, 2009, File No. 001-32225)

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated July 13, 2@G®8ong HEP Tulsa LLC, Holly Energy Partners, L.Ro|l{iEnergy Finance Corp., the other Guarantorslar®l Bank National Association (incorpora
by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Registrant's Qudyt&eport on Form 10-Q for its quarterly period eddlune 30, 2009, File No. 001-32225).

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated December 169,28mong Roadrunner Pipeline, L.L.C., Holly EneRprtners, L.P., Holly Energy Finance Corp., theeotGuarantors and U.S. Bank Natic
Assaociation (incorporated by reference to Exhib® df Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K fsrfiscal year ended December 31, 2009, File N&-3#P25).

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated April 1402@inong Holly Energy Storage- Tulsa LLC, Holly EgeStorage-ovington LLC, Holly Energy Partners, L.P., HollynErgy Finance Corp., the ott
Guarantors and U.S. Bank National Association (ipooated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Registe@tarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its quarteyipd ended June 30, 2010, File No. 001-32225).

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated June 4, 28dthng HEP Operations LLC, Holly Energy Partner®.LHolly Energy Finance Corp., the other Guarantrd U.S. Bank National Associat
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Rewist's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its qudytperiod ended June 30, 2010, File No. 001-32225)

Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated December 221 28mong Cheyenne Logistics LLC, El Dorado LogstiLC, Holly Energy Partners, L.P., Holly Energin&nce Corp., the other Guarantors
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefce to Exhibit 4.12 of Registrant's Annual ReparForm 10-K for its fiscal year ended Decemhkr211, File No. 001-32225).

Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated March 12, 2a8dfng Holly Energy Partners, L.P., Holly Energgpdfice Corp., the other Guarantors and U.S. BanioiNatAssociation (incorporated by referei
to Exhibit 4.2 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Replated March 12, 2012, File No. 001-32225).

Indenture, dated March 10, 2010, among Holly End?gytners, L.P., Holly Energy Finance Corp., theeptGuarantors and U.S. Bank National Associatimayiding for the issuance of 8.25% Set
Notes due 2018 (incorporated by reference to ExHilii of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dad#dch 11, 2010, File No. 001-32225).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated April 14, 20dfong Holly Energy Storage-Tulsa LLC, Holly Eneigtoragetovington LLC, Holly Energy Partners, L.P., HollynErgy Finance Corp., the ott
Guarantors and U.S. Bank National Association (ipooated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Registe@tarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its quarteyipd ended June 30, 2010, File No. 001-32225).

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated June 4, Z0m6ng HEP Operations LLC, Holly Energy Partner®.LHolly Energy Finance Corp., the other Guaranamd U.S. Bank National Associat
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of Rewist's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its qudytperiod ended June 30, 2010, File No. 001-32225)

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated December 221 28mong Cheyenne Logistics LLC, El Dorado LogsstiLC, Holly Energy Partners, L.P., Holly Energin&ce Corp., the other Guarantors
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerefice to Exhibit 4.16 of Registrant's Annual ReparForm 10-K for its fiscal year ended Decemhkr2011, File No. 001-32225)

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 6, 2@irfbng HEP UNEV Holdings LLC, HEP UNEV Pipeline CLHolly Energy Partners, L.P., Holly Energy Finartcorp., the other Guarantors :
U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated byerehce to Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant's Quarterly &epn Form 10-Q for its quarterly period endedt8eyber 30, 2012, File No. 001-32225).

Indenture, dated March 12, 2012, among Holly End?gytners, L.P., Holly Energy Finance Corp., theeptGuarantors and U.S. Bank National Associatimayiding for the issuance of 6.50% Set
Notes due 2020 (incorporated by reference to ExHilii of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dad#edch 12, 2012, File No. 001-32225).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated August 6, 2@iyng HEP UNEV Holdings LLC, HEP UNEV Pipeline LL Bolly Energy Partners, L.P., Holly Energy Finar@erp., the other Guarantors and L
Bank National Association (incorporated by refeeet Exhibit 4.2 of Registrant's Quarterly RepartFmrm 10-Q for its quarterly period ended Septen®e 2012, File No. 001-32225).

Option Agreement, dated January 31, 2008, amonty arporation, Holly Energy Partners, L.P. andtaier of their respective subsidiaries (incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.1 of Registrant's F
8-K Current Report dated February 5, 2008, File 001-32225).

First Amendment to Option Agreement, dated Febrddry2010, among Holly Corporation, Holly EnergytRars, L.P. and certain of their respective suhsies (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
of Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K forfisgal year ended December 31, 2010, File No. (A28).
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10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Termination of Option Agreement, dated July 12, 208etween HollyFrontier Corporation (as succegsdnterest to Holly Corporation), Holly Energy Pantsel.P. and certain of their respect
subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to ExHibiB of Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 1@®Qhe quarterly period ended June 30, 2012, Rde001-32225).

Mortgage, Line of Credit Mortgage and Deed of Trdsited February 29, 2008, by HEP Pipeline, L.lfa€the benefit of Holly Corporation (incorporatby reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant's F
8-K Current Report dated March 6, 2008, File Ndl-32225).

Mortgage, Line of Credit Mortgage and Deed of Trdsited February 29, 2008, by HEP Pipeline, L.lfa€the benefit of Holly Corporation (incorporatby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Registrant's F
8-K Current Report dated March 6, 2008, File Ndl-32225).

Mortgage, Line of Credit Mortgage and Deed of Trdsited February 29, 2008, by HEP Pipeline, L.lfa€the benefit of Holly Corporation (incorporatby reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Registrant's F
8-K Current Report dated March 6, 2008, File Ndl-32225).

Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated February 29, 2008{EP Pipeline, L.L.C. for the benefit of HolBorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhifit5lof Registrant's Form B-Current Report date
March 6, 2008, File No. 001-32225).

Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated February 29, 2008{EP Pipeline, L.L.C. for the benefit of HolBorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhiiit6lof Registrant's Form B-Current Report date
March 6, 2008, File No. 001-32225).

Fee and Leasehold Deed of Trust, dated Februarg@®, by HEP Woods Cross, L.L.C. for the benefiHolly Corporation (incorporated by reference teohibit 10.7 of Registrant's Form 8-Current
Report dated March 6, 2008, File No. 001-32225).

Second Amended and Second Amended and Restated Sgeeement, dated February 14, 2011, among Hehergy Partners ©Operating, L.P., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as adstmative agent ar
issuing bank, Union Bank, N.A., as syndication ag&BVA Compass Bank and U.S. Bank N.A., asdomumentation agents and certain other lendersrficated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dated Febra&2011, File No. 001-32225).

Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to Second AmendedRasiated Credit Agreement, dated February 3, 28i®ng Holly Energy PartnersQperating, L.P., certain of its subsidiaries agtae
guarantors, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administeatigent, an issuing bank and a lender and cesthér lenders party thereto (incorporated by refegeto Exhibit 10.1 of Registrant's FornK8Zurrent
Report dated February 9, 2012, File No. 001-32225).

Agreement and Amendment No. 2 to Second AmendedRasthted Credit Agreement, dated June 29, 201@n@molly Energy PartnersGperating, L.P., certain of its subsidiaries agt#ts guarantor
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as administrative agentisaming bank and lender and certain other lenpery thereto (incorporated by reference to ExHiBitl of Registrant's Form#-Current Report date
June 29, 2012, File No. 001-32225).

Pipelines and Terminals Agreement, dated Februgr2@05, among the Holly Energy Partners, L.P. Aloth USA, LP (incorporated by reference to Exhibit1 of Registrant's Form B-Current Repor
dated February 28, 2005, File No. 001-32225).

First Amendment of Pipelines and Terminals Agreenimiween Holly Energy Partners, L.P. and ALON U$R, dated September 1, 2008 (incorporated byreate to Exhibit 10.4 of Registrar
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its quarterlyipérended June 30, 2011, File No. 00001-32225).

Second Amendment to Pipelines and Terminals Agreemetween Holly Energy Partners, L.P. and ALON U$R, dated March 1, 2011 (incorporated by refeeettc Exhibit 10.5 of Registran
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its quarterlyipérended June 30, 2011, File No. 00001-32225).

Third Amendment to Pipelines and Terminals Agreenbetween Holly Energy Partners, L.P. and ALON U8R, dated June 6, 2011 (incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.6 of Registrant's Quarte
Report on Form 10-Q for its quarterly period endede 30, 2011, File No. 00001-32225).

First Letter Agreement with respect to Pipelined @erminals Agreement between Holly Energy Partref®. and ALON USA, LP, dated January 25, 2008diporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fogitarterly period ended June 30, 2011, File No. QE8RR25).

Second Letter Agreement with respect to Pipelimes Berminals Agreement between Holly Energy PastnerP. and ALON USA, LP, dated June 29, 2007 (ipomated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fogitarterly period ended June 30, 2011, File No. QEBRR25).

Third Letter Agreement with respect to Pipelinesl &ierminals Agreement between Holly Energy Parinef8. and ALON USA, LP, dated April 1, 2011 (inporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fogitarterly period ended June 30, 2011, File No. QE8RR25).

Corrected Version dated October 10, 2007 of Amemdrard Supplement to Pipeline Lease Agreementtafiedugust 31, 2007 between HEP Pipeline Assdtsjted Partnership and Alon USA, LP
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Ragist's Form 8-K Current Report dated October 08,72 File No. 001-32225)
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LLC Interest Purchase Agreement, dated June 1,,28@®ng Holly Corporation, Navajo Pipeline Co., Lahd Holly Energy PartnersGperating, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Bithl0.1 of
Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dated Jurg989, File No. 001-32225).

Amended and Restated Intermediate Pipelines Agreemated June 1, 2009, among Holly CorporatiornydjaRefining Company, L.L.C., Holly Energy Partsek.P., Holly Energy Partner{Operating
L.P., HEP Pipeline, L.L.C., LovingtoAstesia, L.L.C., HEP Logistics Holdings, L.P., Hpllogistic Services, L.L.C. and HEP Logistics GR.,..C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.Refgistrant’
Form 8-K Current Report dated June 5, 2009, File004.-32225).

Amendment to Amended and Restated IntermediatelidseAgreement, dated December 9, 2010, among jdlaRefining Company, L.L.C., Holly Energy PartnetsP., Holly Energy Partners -
Operating, L.P., HEP Pipeline, L.L.C., Lovingtémtesia, L.L.C., HEP Logistics Holdings, L.P., Hpllogistic Services, L.L.C. and HEP Logistics GR.,.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2:
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for itgéisyear ended December 31, 2010, File No. 001-8R22

Assignment and Assumption Agreement (Amended arsiafRel Intermediate Pipelines Agreement), effeciareuary 1, 2011, between Navajo Refining ComphryC. and Holly Refining & Marketini
Company LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhildit2é of Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-Kifefiscal year ended December 31, 2010, File00d-32225).

Mortgage, Line of Credit Mortgage and Deed of Trdstted June 1, 2009, by LovingtAmtesia, L.L.C. for the benefit of Holly Corporatiqincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Regnt's Forn
8-K Current Report dated June 5, 2009, File No-82225).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated August 1, 2008eketHolly Refining & Marketing - Tulsa LLC and HHRilsa LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit116f Registrant's Form B-Current Repor
dated August 6, 2009, File No. 001-32225).

Tulsa Equipment and Throughput Agreement, datedusuidj, 2009, between Holly Refining & Marketingulsa LLC and HEP Tulsa LLC (incorporated by refeze to Exhibit 10.3 of Registrant's Fc
8-K Current Report dated August 6, 2009, File Na1-32225).

Amendment to Tulsa Equipment and Throughput Agreenuated December 9, 2010, among Holly Refininiflérketing - Tulsa LLC and HEP Tulsa LLC (incorporated by refeze to Exhibit 10.28 «
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for itgéisyear ended December 31, 2010, File No. 001-8R22

Assignment and Assumption Agreement (Tulsa Equigraed Throughput Agreement), effective Januaryll,12 between Holly Refining & MarketingFulsa, LLC and Holly Refining & Marketin
Company LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhildit2B of Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-Kifeffiscal year ended December 31, 2010, File00d-32225).

Tulsa Purchase Option Agreement, dated August@9,2tetween Holly Refining & Marketing - Tulsa LLahd HEP Tulsa LLC (incorporated by reference toikixi0.4 of Registrant's Form 8-Current
Report dated August 6, 2009, File No. 001-32225).

LLC Interest Purchase Agreement, dated Decemb20d9, among Holly Corporation, Navajo Pipeline @QoR. and Holly Energy PartnerOperating, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Biti0.1 of
Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dated Decerib009, File No. 001-32225).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 1, 2@88¢én Holly Corporation, Navajo Pipeline Co., Laid HEP Pipeline, L.L.C. (incorporated by refeeete Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant's Formk8-
Current Report dated December 7, 2009, File No-ZEP25).

Pipeline Throughput Agreement, dated December @92bBetween Navajo Refining Company, L.L.C. andl{iBhergy Partners ©perating, L.P. (incorporated by reference to BiHi0.4 of Registrant
Form 8-K Current Report dated December 7, 2009, IRd. 001-32225).

Assignment and Assumption Agreement (Pipeline Tohput Agreement (Roadrunner)), effective Januarg0L1, between Navajo Refining Company, L.L.C. atudly Refining & Marketing Compan
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34R¥gistrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for itedisyear ended December 31, 2010, File No. 001-8p22

Form of Mortgage, Line of Credit Mortgage and Deédrust, to be entered into by HEP Pipeline L.LaBd Holly Energy Partners, L.P. for the benefitimily Corporation (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.5 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Reptated December 7, 2009, File No. 001-32225).

Form of Mortgage and Deed of Trust, to be entenéd by Roadrunner Pipeline, L.L.C for the benefitHolly Corporation (incorporated by reference thibit 10.6 of Registrant's Form B-Current
Report dated December 7, 2009, File No. 001-32225).

Form of Mortgage, Line of Credit Mortgage and DesfdTrust, to be entered into by Roadrunner Pipellné.C. for the benefit of Holly Corporation (ingmrated by reference to Exhibit 10.7
Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dated Decerib2009, File No. 001-32225).
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Amended and Restated Crude Pipelines and Tankagee/gnt, entered into on December 1, 2009, efiectanuary 1, 2009, among Navajo Refining Comparly.CL, Holly Refining & Marketing
Company - Woods Cross, Holly Refining & Marketingr@pany, Holly Energy PartnerOperating, L.P., HEP Pipeline, LLC and HEP WoodssS, L.L.C. (incorporated by reference to Exhilit8 of
Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dated Decerib2009, File No. 001-32225).

Letter Agreement, dated October 14, 2011, regartisgAmended and Restated Crude Pipelines and §ankgreement, dated December 1, 2009 (incorpotateeference to Exhibit 10.3 of Registra
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its quarterlyipérended September 30, 2011, File No. 001-32225)

Amended and Restated Refined Product PipelinesTanalinals Agreement, entered into on December 09 26ffective February 1, 2009, among Navajo Re§nCompany, L.L.C., Holly Refining .
Marketing Company - Woods Cross, Holly Energy Remdn Operating, L.P., HEP Pipeline Assets, Limited Rership, HEP Pipeline, LLC, HEP Refining Assets?.. HEP Refining, L.L.C., HE
Mountain Home, L.L.C. and HEP Woods Cross, L.Li@cqrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Regists Form 8-K Current Report dated December @92Bile No. 001-32225).

Assignment and Assumption Agreement (Amended arsflafRel Refined Product Pipelines and Terminals ément), effective January 1, 2011, among Navajonikef Company, L.L.C., Holly Refinin
& Marketing-Woods Cross and Holly Refining & Markeg Company LLC (incorporated by reference to Eithil0.40 of Registrant's Annual Report on FormKL@r its fiscal year ended December
2010, File No. 001-32225).

Indemnification Proceeds and Payments Allocationeggent, dated December 1, 2009, between HollynRefi& Marketing -Tulsa, LLC and HEP Tulsa LLC (incorporated by refee to Exhibit 10.
of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dated Ddman?, 2009, File No. 001-32225).

LLC Interest Purchase Agreement, dated March 3102@mong Holly Corporation, Holly Refining & Markeg-Tulsa, LLC, Lea Refining Company, HEP Tulsa LLC ad&P Refining, L.L.C
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Regist's Form 8-K Current Report dated April 6, 20Ele No. 001-32225).

Second Amended and Restated Pipelines, Tankageaating Rack Throughput Agreement, dated Augus281]1, between Holly Refining and Marketifigisa LLC, HEP Tulsa LLC and Holly Ener
Storage - Tulsa LLC (incorporated by referencetbiBit 10.1 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Reptated September 1, 2011, File No. 001-32225).

Amendment to First Amended and Restated Pipelifi@skage and Loading Rack Throughput Agreement @rbsst), dated June 11, 2010, between Holly RefigiMarketing-Tulsa LLC, HEP Tulsa
LLC and Holly Energy Storage-Tulsa LLC (incorportgy reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Registrant's @erdy Report on Form 10-Q for its quarterly periatled June 30, 2010, File No. 001-32225).
Assignment and Assumption Agreement (First Ameraiedi Restated Pipelines, Tankage and Loading Radughput Agreement (Tulsa East)), effective Janda011, between Holly Refining &
Marketing-Tulsa, LLC and Holly Refining & Marketingompany LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhiifit45 of Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-Kit®fiscal year ended December 31, 2010,
File No. 001-32225).

Loading Rack Throughput Agreement (Lovington), datéarch 31, 2010, between Navajo Refining Compauly.C. and Holly Energy Storage-Lovington LLC (inporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Report dated A§yi2010, File No. 001-32225).

First Amended and Restated Lease and Access AgredBest Tulsa), dated March 31, 2010, betweenyHéfining & Marketing-Tulsa, LLC, HEP Tulsa LLC dmolly Energy Storage-Tulsa LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Regist's Form 8-K Current Report dated April 6, 20EQe No. 001-32225).

Pipeline Systems Operating Agreement, dated Fep®)&010, among Navajo Refining Company, L.L.GealRefining Company, Woods Cross Refining ComphryC., Holly Refining & Marketing -
Tulsa LLC and Holly Energy Partners-Operating, l(iRcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Régint's Form 8-K Current Report dated FebruaB030, File No. 001-32225).

First Amendment to Pipeline Systems Operating Ages#, dated March 31, 2010, among Navajo Refiniomg@any, L.L.C., Lea Refining Company, Woods Crosfiing Company, L.L.C., Holly
Refining & Marketing-Tulsa, LLC and Holly Energy faers-Operating, L.P. (incorporated by referemcEsthibit 10.6 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Bemlated April 6, 2010, File No. 001-32225).
Tulsa Refinery Interconnects Term Sha&dlAugust 9, 2010 (incorporated by referencextuliit 10.1 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Reptated August 11, 2010, File No. 001-32225).
Amendment to Tulsa Refinery Interconnects Term Stlated December 31, 2010 (incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.1 of Registrant's Form 8-K Curraport dated January 6, 2011, File No. 001-
32225).

Second Amendment to Tulsa Refinery InterconnectmT@heet dated March 31, 2011 (incorporated byeafse to Exhibit 10.1 of Registrant's Form 8-K @utrReport dated March 31, 2011, File No.
001-32225).

LLC Interest Purchase Agreement, dated Novemb28®1, among HollyFrontier Corporation, Frontier iRiefg LLC, Frontier El Dorado Refining LLC, Hollyriergy Partners - Operating, L.P. and Holly
Energy Partners, L.P. (incorporated by referendextuibit 10.1 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Regtated November 10, 2011, File No. 001-32225).
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First Amended and Restated Tankage, Loading RagiCande Oil Receiving Throughput Agreement (Cheggndated January 11, 2012, effective November 11 2between Frontier Refining LLC a
Cheyenne Logistics LLC (incorporated by referemcexhibit 10.54 of Registrant's Annual Report omrfrd.0-K for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2@tk No. 001-32225).

First Amended and Restated Pipeline Delivery, Tgekand Loading Rack Throughput Agreement (El Doyadated January 11, 2012 effective November 1126&tween Frontier El Dorado Refini
LLC and El Dorado Logistics LLC (incorporated byerence to Exhibit 10.55 of Registrant's Annual &¢pn Form 10-K for its fiscal year ended Decentier2011, File No. 001-32225).

Seventh Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreemerd dafy 12, 2012, among HollyFrontier Corporatiéfolly Energy Partners, L.P. and certain of thespective subsidiaries (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Registrant's Quart&gport on Form 10-Q for its quarterly period endede 30, 2012, File No. 001-32225).

Lease and Access Agreement (Cheyenne), dated N&rednl2011, between Frontier Refining LLC and Chmeye Logistics LLC (incorporated by reference to #Bith10.5 of Registrant's Form 18-
Current Report dated November 10, 2011, File NG-82225).

Lease and Access Agreement (El Dorado), dated Nbee@ 2011, between Frontier El Dorado Refining_Land El Dorado Logistics LLC (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.6 of Registrant's Fc
8-K Current Report dated November 10, 2011, File 001-32225).

Form of Senior Unsecured Note in favoFatier Refining LLC (incorporated by referenoeBxhibit 10.7 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current BReglated November 10, 2011, File No. 001-32225).

Form of Senior Unsecured Note in favor of Fron&#iDorado Refining LLC (incorporated by referenceBxhibit 10.8 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Beplated November 10, 2011, File No. 001-
32225).

Mortgage, dated January 31, 2012, by Cheyenne ticgjisLC for the benefit of HollyFrontier Corporati (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.61 efjRtrant's Annual Report on Form KOfor its
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, File No. (@428) .

Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated January 31, 200 Z| Dorado Logistics LLC for the benefit of Hgfirontier Corporation (incorporated by referenc&ibit 10.2 of Registrant's Quarterly Repori
Form 10-Q for its quarterly period ended March 2112, File No. 001-32225).

Purchase Agreement, dated February 28, 2012, atolg Energy Partners, L.P., Holly Energy Finanaert, each of the guarantors party thereto andy®itip Global Markets, Inc., UBS Securities L
and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as representatéke initial purchasers named therein (incorpemtady reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Registrant'snF8K Current Report dated March 5, 2012, File
001-32225).

LLC Interest Purchase Agreement, dated July 1222@iong HollyFrontier Corporation, Holly Energyrd@rs, L.P and HEP UNEV Holdings LLC (incorporatey reference to Exhibit 10.5
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgberterly period ended June 30, 2012, File No. 82225).

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agnent of HEP UNEV Holdings LLC, dated July 12, 20athong HEP UNEV Holdings LLC, Holly Energy Partsiet.P. and HollyFrontie
Holdings LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit7 of Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 1fhe quarterly period ended June 30, 2012, Rde001-32225).

Holly Energy Partners, L.P. Long-Term IncentiverP(as amended and restated effective FebruaryQli®)Zincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. Refjistrant's Form & Current Report dated Api
30, 2012, File No. 001-32225).

First Amendment to the Holly Energy tRars, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan, effectiveulay 16, 2013.

Form of Director Restricted Unit Agreerh@ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 ofR&ant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Noveanie 2004, File No. 001-32225).

Form of Employee Restricted Unit Agreatr(ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 ofjR&ant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novenie 2004, File No. 001-32225).

Form of Restricted Unit Agreement (withBerformance Vesting) (incorporated by referendexhibit 10.2 of Registrant's Form 8-K Currenipe dated August 4, 2005, File No. 001-32225).

Form of Holly Energy Partners, L.P. Indemnificatidgreement to be entered into with officers anediors of Holly Logistic Services, L.L.C. (incorpded by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Registre
Form 8-K Current Report dated February 18, 201l&, IRo. 001-32225).

HollyFrontier Corporation Executive Npralified Deferred Compensation Plan.

Holly Energy Partners, L.P. Change imt@x Agreement Policy (incorporated by refererm&xkhibit 10.3 of Registrant's Form 8-K Current Bemlated February 18, 2011, File No. 001-32225).
Form of Change in Control Agreementdiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of RegigtsalRorm 8-K Current Report dated February 18, 2@1& No. 001-32225).

Form of Performance Unit Agreement (ipooated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of RegisteaQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for its quartgréyiod ended June 30, 2010, File No. 001-32225).
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10.77+* Amended and Restated Annual Incentiea.P

21.1* Subsidiaries of Registrant.

23.1* Consent of Independent Registered Pulgimounting Firm.

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officender Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officender Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1% Certification of Chief Executive Officemder Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02200

32.2% Certification of Chief Financial Officamder Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 02200

101++ The following financial information from Holly Engy Partners, L.P.’s Annual Report on FormK@er the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, &ted in XBRL (Extensible Business Report

Language): (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ijgdtidated Statements of Income, (iii) ConsolidaB¢atements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Conswiti&tatements of Cash Flows, (v) Consolid
Statement of Partners’ Equity, and (vi) Notes tm&widated Financial Statements.

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith.

+ Constitutes management contracts or compensplang or arrangements.
++ Furnished electronically herewith.
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE
HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
(As Amended and Restated Effective February 10, 2Q)

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (the “First Amendment”) to the Holly Energy Partners, L.P. Lofigrm Incentive Plan (As Amended :
Restated Effective February 10, 2012) (tHl&n ") is adopted as of January 16, 2013 (tHgffective Date”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS , the Plan was previously adopted to promote tterésts of Holly Energy Partners, L.P., a Delavianéed partnership (the “
Partnership ), by providing equity-based incentive awards toptoyees, consultants and directors of Holly LdgsstServices, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liabiligpmpany (the “
Company”), and its affiliates, who perform services forar behalf of the Partnership and its subsidiaries;

WHEREAS , the Plan is administered by the Board of Directof the Company (the Board ”) or a committee of the Board tha
appointed to administer the Plan (referred to as' thdministrator”);

WHEREAS , Section 4(c) of the Plan provides that, in thergvof any unit split with respect to which the Adistrator determine
adjustment is appropriate in order to prevent ilubr enlargement of benefits or potential besefitended to be made available under the Planidmeinistrator shall, in the manne
deems equitable, adjust, among other things, thebetuand type of units available for grant underRfen and the number and type of units subjestitstanding awards, and Section
of the Plan provides that the Administrator may adthe Plan from time to time; and

WHEREAS , the Administrator has determined that it is dddi to amend the Plan to revise the share limitatet forth in the Plan
reflect the Partnership’s two for one stock spi#ttoccurred on January 16, 2013.

NOW, THEREFORE , the Plan shall be amended as of the Effective Batset forth below:

1. Section 4(a) of the Plan is hereby deletetiraplaced in its entirety with the following:

(a) _Limits on Units Deliverable Subject to adjustment as provided in Section, 4@ maximum number of Units that may
delivered with respect to Awards granted undeRtlaa is 2,500,000. No Award (other than any tan@4¥tRs granted with respect to a Phantom Unit) maydié or settled in cas
If any Award terminates or is canceled prior to aithout the delivery of Units or if an Award isrfeited (including the forfeiture of Restricted th)i then the Units covered
such Award, to the extent of such termination, efiation, or forfeiture, shall again be Units witsspect to which Awards may be granted.

2. Except as set forth above, the Plan shalimoa to read in its current state.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , this First Amendment has been executed by aalutlyorized officer, effective as of the Effectivatb.
HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.F

By: HEP LOGISTICS HOLDINGS, L.F
Its General Partn

By: HOLLY LOGISTICS SERVICES, L.L.C
Its General Partn

By: /s/ Bruce R. Sha
Bruce R. Sha
Presider

Date: February 15, 20



THE EXECUTIVE NONQUALIFIED EXCESS PLAN
PLAN DOCUMENT




THE EXECUTIVE NONQUALIFIED EXCESS PLAN

Section 1.Purpose:

By execution of the Adoption Agreement, the Empldyas adopted the Plan set forth herein, and id\theption Agreement, to provide a means by whiatiaie management Employees
or Independent Contractors of the Employer maytétedefer receipt of current Compensation fromEneployer in order to provide retirement and othenefits on behalf of such Employees or
Independent Contractors of the Employer, as seléntéhe Adoption Agreement. The Plan is intendete a nonqualified deferred compensation plandbatplies with the provisions of Section
409A of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code"). Pl is also intended to be an unfunded plan miaied primarily for the purpose of providing deéztrcompensation benefits for a select
group of management or highly compensated emplayeesr Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3) and 401(a)({hefEmployee Retirement Income Security Act of 10ERISA”) and independent

contractors. Notwithstanding any other provisiorito$ Plan, this Plan shall be interpreted, opérated administered in a manner consistent withetirgentions.

Section 2.Definitions:

As used in the Plan, including this Section 2, nexfiees to one gender shall include the other, smltrgerwise indicated by the context:
2.1 "Active Participant” means, with respect to any day or date, a Partitiwho is in Service on such day or date; providedt a Participant shall cease to be an Activéiddzant (i)

immediately upon a determination by the Committest the Participant has ceased to be an




Employee or Independent Contractor, or (ii) atehd of the Plan Year that the Committee deterntine$articipant no longer meets the eligibilityuggments of the Plan.

2.2 "Adoption Agreement" means the written agreement pursuant to which thpl&er adopts the Plan. The Adoption Agreemeatpsurt of the Plan as applied to the Employer.

2.3 "Beneficiary" means the person, persons, entity or entities datd or determined pursuant to the provisionseatin 13 of the Plan.

2.4 "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company, if@eenpany is a corporation. If the Company is nobigporation, "Board" shall mean the Company.

2.5 "Change in Control Event" means an event described in Section 409A(a)(2)j/{the Code (or any successor provision therata) the regulations thereunder.

2.6 "Committee" means the persons or entity designated in the Aglopigreement to administer the Plan. If the Coneeitdesignated in the Adoption Agreement is unebierve, the
Employer shall satisfy the duties of the Commifteavided for in Section 9.

2.7 "Company" means the company designated in the Adoption Ageeéirs such.

2.8 "Compensation” shall have the meaning designated in the Adoptigreément.

2.9 "Crediting Date" means the date designated in the Adoption Agreefoectediting the amount of any Participant Dedéredits or Employer Credits to the Deferred Cengation

Account of a Participant.




2.10 "Deferred Compensation Account'means the account maintained with respect to eadfcipant under the Plan. The Deferred Compensatitcount shall be credited with
Participant Deferral Credits and Employer Creditedited or debited for deemed investment gailesses, and adjusted for payments in accordandetheétrules and elections in effect under

Section 8. The Deferred Compensation Account ddréid?pant shall include any In-Service or Educaticcount of the Participant, if applicable.

2.11 "Disabled" means Disabled within the meaning of Section 408the Code and the regulations thereunder. Gegethls means that the Participant is unable tagegn any
substantial gainful activity by reason of any matlicdeterminable physical or mental impairmentaethéan be expected to result in death or can beoteg to last for a continuous period of not
less than 12 months, or is, by reason of any méylidaterminable physical or mental impairment whéan be expected to result in death or can becéegbéo last for a continuous period of not

less than 12 months, receiving income replacememefits for a period of not less than three momntider an accident and health plan covering Empkgééhe Employer.

2.12 “Education Account” is an In-Service Account which will be used by Regticipant for educational purposes.

2.13 "Effective Date" shall be the date designated in the Adoption Agergm

2.14 "Employee" means an individual in the Service of the Emplaf/ére relationship between the individual and Brmaployer is the legal relationship of employer angployee. An

individual shall cease to be an Employee upon thelByee's Separation from Service.




2.15 "Employer" means the Company, as identified in the Adoptione&gient, and any Participating Employer which asitiiis Plan. An Employer may be a corporationpatéd

liability company, a partnership or sole propristop.

2.16 "Employer Credits" means the amounts credited to the Participant'srBef Compensation Account by the Employer pursteatite provisions of Section 4.2.

2.17 "Grandfathered Amounts" means, if applicable, the amounts that were defarneler the Plan and were earned and vested wvifittimeaning of Section 409A of the Code and

regulations thereunder as of December 31, 200hdathered Amounts shall be subject to the ternsigdated in the Adoption Agreement.

2.18 "Independent Contractor" means an individual in the Service of the Emplaf/ére relationship between the individual and Bmaployer is not the legal relationship of emplogad
employee. An individual shall cease to be an Inddpat Contractor upon the termination of the Indeleat Contractor's Service. An Independent Cordrasttall include a director of the

Employer who is not an Employee.

2.19 "In-Service Account” means a separate account to be kept for eachiPantithat has elected to take in-service distiins as described in Section 5.4. The In-Serviceofnt shall

be adjusted in the same manner and at the samasinie Deferred Compensation Account under Se8tamd in accordance with the rules and electioresfect under Section 8.

2.20 "Normal Retirement Age" of a Participant means the age designated in tlopthah Agreement.




2.21 "Participant” means with respect to any Plan Year an Employéedapendent Contractor who has been designatedeb@ammittee as a Participant and who has entkeesBIlan or
who has a Deferred Compensation Account under lée Provided that if the Participant is an Empleythe individual must be a highly compensated anagement employee of the Employer

within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3) 401(a)(1) of ERISA.

2.22 "Participant Deferral Credits" means the amounts credited to the Participant'sraf Compensation Account by the Employer pursteatite provisions of Section 4.1.

2.23 "Participating Employer" means any trade or business (whether or not incatgd) which adopts this Plan with the consenhef@ompany identified in the Adoption Agreement.

2.24 "Participation Agreement” means a written agreement entered into betweenti@ipant and the Employer pursuant to the provisiof Section 4.1

2.25 "Performance-Based Compensationfneans compensation where the amount of, or engtieio, the compensation is contingent on thefaatisn of preestablished organizational
or individual performance criteria relating to afpemance period of at least twelve months. Orgational or individual performance criteria are ddesed preestablished if established in writing
within 90 days after the commencement of the peoioservice to which the criteria relates, providiedt the outcome is substantially uncertain atithe the criteria are established. Performance-

based compensation may include payments basedsubjective performance criteria as provided in letipns and administrative guidance promulgateceur@ction 409A of the Code.




2.26 "Plan" means The Executive Nonqualified Excess Plan, esrheet out and as set out in the Adoption Agregn as duly amended. The name of the Plan dgedpp the

Employer shall be designated in the Adoption Agreetn

2.27 "Plan-Approved Domestic Relations Order"shall mean a judgment, decree, or order (inclutiegapproval of a settlement agreement) which is:

2.27.1 Issued pursuant to a State's domesticarfataw;

2.27.2 Relates to the provision of child suppditnany payments or marital property rights to a Gg® former Spouse, child or other dependent oP#récipant;

2.27.3 Creates or recognizes the right of a Spdasmger Spouse, child or other dependent of théidhgent to receive all or a portion of the Pagiannt's benefits under the Plan;

2.27.4 Requires payment to such person of thedreést in the Participant's benefits in a lump saynpent at a specific time; and

2.27.5 Meets such other requirements establishededb@ommittee.

2.28 "Plan Year" means the twelve-month period ending on the lagbithe month designated in the Adoption Agreempravided that the initial Plan Year may have fewhan twelve

months.

2.29 "Quialifying Distribution Event" means (i) the Separation from Service of the Fps#it, (ii) the date the Participant becomes Disab({iii) the death of the Participant, (iv) theé
specified by the Participant for an In-Service duBation Distribution, (v) a Change in Control Eyer (vi) an Unforeseeable Emergency, each t@tent provided in Section 5.

2.30 "Seniority Date" shall have the meaning designated in the AdoptigreAment.

2.31 "Separation from Service"means dseparation from service" within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code.




2.32 "Service" means employment by the Employer as an Employaepidrposes of the Plan, the employment relationshigeated as continuing intact while the Emploigeen military
leave, sick leave, or other bona fide leave of abséf the period of such leave does not exceedsinths, or if longer, so long as the Employegjlktrio reemployment is provided either by
statute or contract. If the Participant is an Iretegent Contractor, "Service" shall mean the pediathg which the contractual relationship existsamen the Employer and the Participant. The

contractual relationship is not terminated if tretRipant anticipates a renewal of the contradiewomes an Employee.

2.33 "Service Bonus"means any bonus paid to a Participant by the Eneplayich is not Performance-Based Compensation.

2.34 "Specified Employee"means an Employee who meets the requirements yoerk@loyee treatment under Section 416(i)(1)(A)ii),or (iii) of the Code (applied in accordancéhv
the regulations thereunder and without regard tii@e 416(i)(5) of the Code) at any time during thelve month period ending on December 31 of ga&er (the "identification date"). Unless
binding corporate action is taken to establishedéit rules for determining Specified Employeesalbplans of the Company and its controlled grougmbers that are subject to Section 409A of
the Code, the foregoing rules and the other defalés under the regulations of Section 409A of@oele shall apply. If the person is a key empla®ef any identification date, the person is

treated as a Specified Employee for the twelve-mmgetiod beginning on the first day of the fourtbnth following the identification date.




2.35 "Spouse"or ''Surviving Spouse"” means, except as otherwise provided in the Plaerson who is the legally married spouse or sungispouse of a Participant.

2.36 "Unforeseeable Emergency'means an "unforeseeable emergency" within the mganfiSection 409A of the Code.
2.37 "Years of Service"means each Plan Year of Service completed by thiipant. For vesting purposes, Years of Serviwle calculated from the date designated irAttheption

Agreement and Service shall be based on servitetigt Company and all Participating Employers.

Section 3.Patrticipation:

The Committee in its discretion shall designatéhdamployee or Independent Contractor who is elegtblparticipate in the Plan. A Participant who &afes from Service with the
Employer and who later returns to Service will hetan Active Participant under the Plan except wgatisfaction of such terms and conditions as the@ittee shall establish upon the

Participant's return to Service, whether or notRhaeticipant shall have a balance remaining indteferred Compensation Account under the Plan ownldte of the return to Service.

Section 4.Credits to Deferred Compensation Account:

4.1 Participant Deferral Credits. To the extent provided in the Adoption AgreementheActive Participant may elect, by entering iatBarticipation Agreement with the Employer, to
defer the receipt of Compensation from the Empldyyea dollar amount or percentage specified inRtagicipation Agreement. The amount of CompensatierParticipant elects to defer, the

Participant




Deferral Credit, shall be credited by the Emplayethe Deferred Compensation Account maintainedferParticipant pursuant to Section 8. The follgyspecial provisions shall apply with

respect to the Participant Deferral Credits of gi€lpant:

4.1.1 The Employer shall credit to the Participabeferred Compensation Account on each Creditiag Bn amount equal to the total Participant Def&redit for the period ending on
such Crediting Date.

4.1.2 An election pursuant to this Section 4.1Idbemimade by the Participant by executing and deling a Participation Agreement to the Committeedpt as otherwise provided in this
Section 4.1, the Participation Agreement shall bezeffective with respect to such Participant atheffirst day of January following the date sueitigipation Agreement is received by the
Committee. A Participant's election may be charegeghy time prior to the last permissible datenfiaking the election as permitted in this Sectidn d4nd shall thereafter be irrevocable. The
election of a Participant shall continue in effistsubsequent years until modified by the Paréinipas permitted in this Section 4.1.

4.1.3 A Participant may execute and deliver a Bigettion Agreement to the Committee within 30 dafter the date the Participant first becomes dkgiib participate in the Plan to be
effective as of the first payroll period next falling the date the Participation Agreement is fatkecuted by the Participant. Whether a Particiatieated as newly eligible for participation ur
this Section shall be determined in accordance &&ttion 409A of the Code and the regulations theter, including (i) rules that treat all electokeferral account balance plans as one plan, and
(ii) rules that treat a previously eligible Empleyas newly eligible if his benefits had been presip distributed or if he has been ineligible fdrr@onths. For Compensation that is earned based
upon a specified performance period (for example@raual bonus), where a deferral election is madier this Section but after the beginning of taggrmance period, the election will only
apply to the portion of the Compensation equah#otbtal amount of the Compensation for the serpéréod multiplied by the ratio of the number ofydaemaining in the performance period after
the election over the total number of days in tadggmance period.

4.1.4 A Participant may unilaterally modify a Peigiation Agreement (either to terminate, increaséezrease the portion of his future Compensatibitiwis subject to deferral within the
percentage limits set forth in Section 4.1 of ttdoption Agreement) by providing a written modificat of the Participation Agreement to the CommitfBlee modification shall become effective
as of the first day of January following the datetswritten modification is received by the Comutt

4.1.5 If the Participant performed services cordimly from the later of the beginning of the pemiance period or the date upon which the performariteria are established through the




date upon which the Participant makes an initi&idtel election, a Participation Agreement relatioghe deferral of Performance-Based Compensatiaybe executed and delivered to the
Committee no later than the date which is 6 moptit to the end of the performance period, progiitieat in no event may an election to defer Perforce-Based Compensation be made after
such Compensation has become readily ascertainable.

4.1.6 If the Employer has a fiscal year other tti@ncalendar year, Compensation relating to Seiwitiee fiscal year of the Employer (such as a lsdmsed on the fiscal year of the
Employer), of which no amount is paid or payablermythe fiscal year, may be deferred at the Pggitt's election if the election to defer is made later than the close of the Employer's fiscal
year next preceding the first fiscal year in whill Participant performs any services for whicthsGompensation is payable.

4.1.7 Compensation payable after the last dayeoPtirticipant's taxable year solely for servicewigied during the final payroll period containirigetlast day of the Participant's taxable
year (i.e., December 31) is treated for purposehisfSection 4.1 as Compensation for serviceopeed in the subsequent taxable year.

4.1.8 The Committee may from time to time estabtisticies or rules consistent with the requiremaitSection 409A of the Code to govern the mannevhich Participant Deferral
Credits may be made.

4.1.9 If a Participant becomes Disabled all cutyesffective deferral elections for such Participahall be canceled. At the time the participamddonger Disabled, subsequent elections
to defer future compensation will be permitted urtties Section 4.

4.1.10 If a Participant applies for and receivelistribution on account of an Unforeseeable Emergeall currently effective deferral elections rch Participant shall be canceled.
Subsequent elections to defer future compensatitbbbevpermitted under this Section 4.

4.1.11 If a Participant receives a hardship distidn under Section 1.401(k)1(d)(3) of the Codeuy other similar provision, all currently effeaideferral elections shall be canceled.
Subsequent elections to defer future compensatidenthis Section 4 will not be effective until tlager of the beginning of the next calendar yeasio months after the date of the hardship
distribution.

4.2 Employer Credits.If designated by the Employer in the Adoption

Agreement, the Employer shall cause the Committeeeddit to the Deferred Compensation Account ahelctive Participant an Employer Credit as deteediin accordance with the Adoption
Agreement. A Participant must make distributiorcttss with respect to any Employer Credits cretitehis Deferred Compensation Account by the deadhat would apply under Section 4.1
for distribution elections with respect to Partaip Deferral Credits credited at the same




time, on a Participation Agreement that is timetg@uted and delivered to the Committee pursuaSetdion 4.1.

4.3 Deferred Compensation AccountAll Participant Deferral Credits and Employer Ctedihall be credited to the Deferred CompensaticecoAnt of the Participant as provided in

Section 8.

Section 5.Qualifying Distribution Events:

5.1 Separation from Servicelf the Participant Separates from Service withEneployer, the vested balance in the Deferred Cosgtéan Account shall be paid to the Participanttzy
Employer as provided in Section 7. Notwithstandimg foregoing, no distribution shall be made eathan six months after the date of Separation fBevice (or, if earlier, the date of death) \
respect to a Participant who as of the date of Bé&pa from Service is a Specified Employee of gpogation the stock in which is traded on an eshbtl securities market or otherwise. Any
payments to which such Specified Employee woulértéled during the first six months following tdate of Separation from Service shall be accumdilate paid on the first day of the seventh

month following the date of Separation from Seryaed shall be adjusted for deemed investmentaadnoss incurred during the six month period.

5.2 Disability. If the Employer designates in the Adoption Agreetrtbat distributions are permitted under the Pldremwa Participant becomes Disabled, and the Rmatitibecome
Disabled while in Service, the vested balance énDeferred Compensation Account shall be paideédPtarticipant by the Employer as provided in Sectio




5.3 Death.If the Participant dies while in Service, the Enygloshall pay a benefit to the Participant's Beaxiafy in the amount designated in the Adoption Agnent. Payment of such

benefit shall be made by the Employer as provideSection 7.

5.4 In-Service or Education Distributions.If the Employer designates in the Adoption Agreetibat in-service or education distributions arenpiged under the Plan, a Participant may
designate in the Participation Agreement to haspezified amount credited to the Participant'sénvige or Education Account for in-service or edigradistributions at the date specified by the
Participant. In no event may an in-service or etdanalistribution of an amount be made before thdhat is two years after the first day of tharjie which any deferral election to such In-
Service or Education Account became effective. Ntbstanding the foregoing, if a Participant incarQualifying Distribution Event prior to the date which the entire balance in the In-Service
or Education Account has been distributed, therb#iance in the In-Service or Education Accounttendate of the Qualifying Distribution Event shadl paid as provided under Section 7.1 for

payments on such Qualifying Distribution Event.

5.5 Change in Control Eventlf the Employer designates in the Adoption

Agreement that distributions are permitted underRfan upon the occurrence of a
Change in Control Event, the Participant may destigm the Participation Agreement to
have the vested balance in the Deferred Compensatioount paid to the Participant
upon a Change in Control Event by the Employerrasiged in Section 7.
5.6 Unforeseeable Emergencyt the Employer designates in the Adoption
Agreement that distributions are permitted underRfan upon the occurrence of an

Unforeseeable Emergency event, a distribution fiteenDeferred Compensation Account




may be made to a Participant in the event of arotéiseeable Emergency, subject to the
following provisions:

5.6.1 A Participant may, at any time prior to hep8&ration from Service for any reason, make appicao the Committee to receive a distributiormitump sum of all or a portion of the
vested balance in the Deferred Compensation Acdaletérmined as of the date the distribution, if,aa made under this Section 5.6) because of dorbseeable Emergency. A distribution
because of an Unforeseeable Emergency shall needxtie amount required to satisfy the Unforesedatriergency plus amounts necessary to pay taxesnalaly anticipated as a result of such
distribution, after taking into account the extemtvhich the Unforeseeable Emergency may be reli¢ivough reimbursement or compensation by inseranotherwise or by liquidation of the
Participant's assets (to the extent the liquidatibsuch assets would not itself cause severe dimbhardship) or by stopping current deferralsamttie Plan pursuant to Section 4.1.10.

5.6.2 The Participant's request for a distributaraccount of Unforeseeable Emergency must be inaaeting to the Committee. The request must sfyettie nature of the financial
hardship, the total amount requested to be digeribfrom the Deferred Compensation Account, anddte amount of the actual expense incurred dretincurred on account of the Unforesee
Emergency.

5.6.3 If a distribution under this Section 5.6 jioeoved by the Committee, such distribution willrbede as soon as practicable following the daseapproved. The processing of the
request shall be completed as soon as practicaptethe date on which the Committee receives thpgnty completed written request for a distribut@naccount of an Unforeseeable Emerge
If a Participant's Separation from Service occtier @ request is approved in accordance withSkistion 5.6.3, but prior to distribution of thelfamount approved, the approval of the request
shall be automatically null and void and the basefihich the Participant is entitled to receive emtthe Plan shall be distributed in accordance thi¢happlicable distribution provisions of the
Plan.

5.6.4 The Committee may from time to time adopti@althl policies or rules consistent with the reganents of Section 409A of the Code to govern taemer in which such distributions
may be made so that the Plan may be conveniemtiyrestered.

Section 6.Vesting:
A Participant shall be fully vested in the portioinhis Deferred Compensation Account attributabl@articipant Deferral Credits, and all incomengand losses attributable thereto. A

Participant shall become fully vested in the partid his Deferred Compensation Account attributablEmployer Credits, and income, gains and loasteibutable thereto, in accordance




with the vesting schedule and provisions designbyetthe Employer in the Adoption Agreement. If atRégpant's Deferred Compensation Account is ndlyfuested upon Separation from Service,

the portion of the Deferred Compensation Accouat i not fully vested shall thereupon be forfeited

Section 7.Distribution Rules:

7.1 Payment OptionsThe Employer shall designate in the Adoption Agreenhthe payment options which may be elected by#récipant (lump sum, annual installments, or a
combination of both). Different payment options nieymade available for each Qualifying Distributiewent, and different payment options may be abbeléor different types of Separations
from Service, all as designated in the Adoptioneéggnent. The Participant shall elect in the Pariogm Agreement the method under which the vestdahice in the Deferred Compensation
Account will be distributed from among the desighpayment options. The Participant may at such &hact a different method of payment for each g Distribution Event as specified in
the Adoption Agreement. If the Participant is peted by the Employer in the Adoption Agreementlexcedifferent payment options and does not makelid election, the vested balance in the
Deferred Compensation Account will be distributecadump sum. Notwithstanding the foregoing, itaer Qualifying Distribution Events occur prior tiee date on which the vested balance of a

Participant's Deferred Compensation Account is detely paid pursuant to this Section 7.1 followthg occurrence of certain initial Qualifying Didtition Events, the following rules apply:

7.1.1 If the initial Qualifying Distribution Everig a Separation from Service or Disability, and Rtaeticipant subsequently dies, the remaining uhpested balance of a Participant's
Deferred Compensation Account shall be paid asmg lsum.




7.1.2 If the initial Qualifying Distribution Everig a Change in Control Event, and any subsequealif@ng Distribution Event occurs (except an Inree or Education Distribution
described in Section 2.29(iv)), the remaining udpagsted balance of a Participant's Deferred Cosgigm Account shall be paid as provided underi@eat1 for payments on such subsequent
Qualifying Distribution Event.

7.2 Timing of PaymentsPayment shall be made in the manner elected bpatticipant and shall commence as soon as pralgiefler (but no later than 60 days after) theritistion
date elected for the Qualifying Distribution Evelmtthe event the Participant fails to make a valittion of the payment method, the distributial ke made in a single lump sum payment as

soon as practicable after (but no later than 66 dédier) the Qualifying Distribution Event. A payntenay be further delayed to the extent permitteddcordance with regulations and guidance

under Section 409A of the Code.

7.3 Installment Paymentslf the Participant elects to receive installmengmpants upon a Qualifying Distribution Event, the/ment of each installment shall be made on thevensary
of the date of the first installment payment, amelamount of the installment shall be adjustedumh nniversary for credits or debits to the Pgpdiot's account pursuant to Section 8 of the Plan.
Such adjustment shall be made by dividing the lzaam the Deferred Compensation Account on suck bathe number of installments remaining to bel paireunder; provided that the last

installment due under the Plan shall be the eatimeunt credited to the Participant's account ord#te of payment.

7.4 De Minimis Amounts.Notwithstanding any payment election made by theéi¢hgant, if the Employer designates a pre-detagdide minimis amount in the Adoption Agreemerg, th

vested balance in the Deferred Compensation Acanfuthie Participant will be distributed in a




single lump sum payment if at the time of a pemxitQualifying Distribution Event the vested baladoes not exceed such pre-determined de minimisiamprovided, however, that such
distribution will be made only where the QualifyiBgstribution Event is a Separation from Serviceatth, Disability (if applicable) or Change in CahtEvent (if applicable). Such payment shall
be made on or before the later of (i) Decemberf3hecalendar year in which the Qualifying Distrilon Event occurs, or (i) the date that is 2-h@nths after the Qualifying Distribution Event
occurs. In addition, the Employer may distributeaaticipant's vested balance at any time if tharx@ does not exceed the limit in Section 402(¢B(19f the Code and results in the terminatio

the Participant's entire interest in the Plan asiped under Section 409A of the Code.

7.5 Subsequent Electiondlith the consent of the Committee, a Participany nhelay or change the method of payment of the lPedeCompensation Account subject to the following
requirements:

7.5.1 The new election may not take effect untieast 12 months after the date on which the neeatieh is made.

7.5.2 If the new election relates to a paymengfQualifying Distribution Event other than the deaf the Participant, the Participant becoming blied, or an Unforeseeable Emergency,
the new election must provide for the deferralhef payment for a period of at least five years ftbendate such payment would otherwise have beele ma

7.5.3 If the new election relates to a payment fthenin-Service or Education Account, the new é&ectnust be made at least 12 months prior to the alethe first scheduled payment
from such account.




For purposes of this Section 7.5 and Section 7p@yanent is each separately identified amount telwvthe Participant is entitled under the Planyjted, that entitlement to a series of installment

payments is treated as the entitlement to a sppayenent.

7.6 Acceleration Prohibited.The acceleration of the time or schedule of anynEayt due under the Plan is prohibited except asessfy provided in regulations and administrative
guidance promulgated under Section 409A of the Gedeh as accelerations for domestic relationsrerdied employment taxes). It is not an acceleratfdhe time or schedule of payment if the

Employer waives or accelerates the vesting requaresniapplicable to a benefit under the Plan.

Section 8.Accounts; Deemed Investment; Adjustments to Account

8.1 Accounts.The Committee shall establish a book reserve adceutitled the "Deferred Compensation Account,'behalf of each Participant. The Committee shal @stablish an In-
Service or Education Account as a part of the Defe€Compensation Account of each Participant, fiapble. The amount credited to the Deferred Campgon Account shall be adjusted

pursuant to the provisions of Section 8.3.

8.2 Deemed InvestmentsThe Deferred Compensation Account of a Particighatl be credited with an investment return deteeuias if the account were invested in one or more
investment funds made available by the Committeée. Farticipant shall elect the investment fundstiich his Deferred Compensation Account shall bentied to be invested. Such election shall
be made in the manner prescribed by the Committdeshall take effect upon the entry of the Paréinipinto the Plan. The investment election of thgiBipant shall remain in effect until a new

election is made by the Participant. In the eveatRarticipant fails for any reason to make an




effective election of the investment return to bed@ted to his account, the investment return dimliletermined by the Committee.

8.3 Adjustments to Deferred Compensation AccountVith respect to each Participant who has a DefeB@uipensation Account under the Plan, the amowlited to such account st
be adjusted by the following debits and credit¢hattimes and in the order stated:

8.3.1 The Deferred Compensation Account shall tétele each business day with the total amount gfpmyments made from such account since the laseping business day to him or
for his benefit. Unless otherwise specified by Employer, each deemed investment fund will be eéehitro-rata based on the value of the investmerisfas of the end of the preceding business
day.

8.3.2 The Deferred Compensation Account shall bditzd on each Crediting Date with the total amaidreny Participant Deferral Credits and Employeedits to such account since the
last preceding Crediting Date.

8.3.3 The Deferred Compensation Account shall bditzd or debited on each day securities are tradeainational stock exchange with the amount efras investment gain or loss
resulting from the performance of the deemed imaest funds elected by the Participant in accordavitteSection 8.2. The amount of such deemed imvest gain or loss shall be determined by
the Committee and such determination shall be findl conclusive upon all concerned.

Section 9. Administration by Committee:

9.1 Membership of Committeelf the Committee consists of individuals appoinbgtthe Board, they will serve at the pleasure efBoard. Any member of the Committee may resigd

his successor, if any, shall be appointed by theré&o

9.2 General Administration. The Committee shall be responsible for the opmratnd administration of the Plan and for carryang its provisions. The Committee shall have thie f

authority and discretion to make, amend, intergmet, enforce all appropriate rules and regulationthe administration of this Plan and decideesoive any and all questions, including




interpretations of this Plan, as may arise in catiog with this Plan. Any such action taken by @@mmittee shall be final and conclusive on anyydro the extent the Committee has been
granted discretionary authority under the PlanGbenmittee’s prior exercise of such authority shall obligate it to exercise its authority in aglifashion thereafter. The Committee shall be
entitled to rely conclusively upon all tables, \ations, certificates, opinions and reports furnishg any actuary, accountant, controller, counsekloer person employed or engaged by the
Employer with respect to the Plan. The Committeg,rfram time to time, employ agents and delegatsuth agents, including Employees of the Emplayeeh administrative or other duties as it

sees fit.

9.3 Indemnification . To the extent not covered by insurance, the Eysplshall indemnify the Committee, each Employé#cer, director, and agent of the Employer, arlchatsons
formerly serving in such capacities, against arg @hliabilities or expenses, including all ledeés relating thereto, arising in connection with exercise of their duties and responsibilitieth wi

respect to the Plan, provided however that the Bygplshall not indemnify any person for liabilitiesexpenses due to that person’s own gross neglger willful misconduct.

Section 10Contractual Liability, Trust:

10.1 Contractual Liability. Unless otherwise elected in the Adoption Agreemtiiet,Company shall be obligated to make all paymbateunder. This obligation shall constitute a
contractual liability of the Company to the Pagignts, and such payments shall be made from trergeinds of the Company. The Company shall naeheired to establish or maintain any
special or separate fund, or otherwise to segreggatets to assure that such payments shall be aradighe Participants shall not have any intereany particular assets of the Company by reason

of




its obligations hereunder. To the extent that amg@n acquires a right to receive payment fromQbepany, such right shall be no greater than tite of an unsecured creditor of the Company.

10.2 Trust. The Employer may establish a trust to assistiih@eting its obligations under the Plan. Any suakttshall conform to the requirements of a gramitest under Revenue
Procedures 92-64 and 92-65 and at all times duhiegontinuance of the trust the principal and me®f the trust shall be subject to claims of gahereditors of the Employer under federal and

state law. The establishment of such a trust woatde intended to cause Participants to realizentiincome on amounts contributed thereto, aadrist would be so interpreted and

administered.

Section 11 Allocation of Responsibilities:

The persons responsible for the Plan and the daitidsesponsibilities allocated to each are asvial

11.1Board.
(i) To amend the Plan;
(ii) To appoint and remove members of the Committee; and

(iii) To terminate the Plan as permitted in Section 14.
11.2Committee.

(i) To designate Participants;

(ii) To interpret the provisions of the Plan and to deiee the rights of the Participants under the Péaacept to the extent otherwise provided in Sectié
relating to claims procedure;

(iii) To administer the Plan in accordance with its teemsept to the extent powers to administer the Bta specifically delegated to another person or
persons as provided in the Plan;

(iv) To account for the amount credited to the Defe@ethpensation Account of a Participant;
(v) To direct the Employer in the payment of benéefits;

(vi) To file such reports as may be required with th&edhStates Department of Labor, the Internal Reee®ervice and any other government agency to
which reports may be required to be submitted ftione to time; and

(vii) To administer the claims procedure to the exteowiged in Section 16.




Section 12 Benefits Not Assignable; Facility of Payments:

12.1 Benefits Not AssignableNo portion of any benefit credited or paid under Blan with respect to any Participant shall bgesitin any manner to anticipation, alienationgesal
transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance or changeany attempt so to anticipate, alienate, satsfer, assign, pledge, encumber or chargestine shall be void, nor shall any portion of such

benefit be in any manner payable to any assigeeejver or any one trustee, or be liable for histglecontracts, liabilities, engagements or torts.

12.2 Plan-Approved Domestic Relations OrdersThe Committee shall establish procedures for deteng whether an order directed to the Plan issmfApproved Domestic Relations
Order. If the Committee determines that an order®$an-Approved Domestic Relations Order, the Catemshall cause the payment of amounts pursoast segregate a separate account as

provided by (and to prevent any payment or act tvhigght be inconsistent with) the Plan-Approved Rstic Relations Order.

12.3 Payments to Minors and Otherslf any individual entitled to receive a payment anthe Plan shall be physically, mentally or legaicapable of receiving or acknowledging receipt
of such payment, the Committee, upon the receipati$factory evidence of his incapacity and satisfry evidence that another person or institusamaintaining him and that no guardian or
committee has been appointed for him, may caus@ayment otherwise payable to him to be made th pecson or institution so maintaining him. Paynterguch person or institution shall be

in full satisfaction of all claims by or throughettParticipant to the extent of the amount thereof.




Section 13 Beneficiary:

The Participant's beneficiary shall be the perpensons, entity or entities designated by the &pant on the beneficiary designation form provithgdand filed with the Committee or its
designee. If the Participant does not designanafiriary, the beneficiary shall be his SurvivlBgouse. If the Participant does not designate eftegary and has no Surviving Spouse, the
beneficiary shall be the Participant's estate. ddmgnation of a beneficiary may be changed orkeg@nly by filing a new beneficiary designatiomrfowith the Committee or its designee. If a
beneficiary (the "primary beneficiary") is receigior is entitled to receive payments under the Blahdies before receiving all of the paymentstdoe the balance to which he is entitled shall be
paid to the contingent beneficiary, if any, namedhie Participant's current beneficiary designat@m. If there is no contingent beneficiary, thednce shall be paid to the estate of the primary
beneficiary. Any beneficiary may disclaim all orygpart of any benefit to which such beneficiarylsha entitled hereunder by filing a written disober with the Committee before payment of
such benefit is to be made. Such a disclaimer Sleathade in a form satisfactory to the Committe drall be irrevocable when filed. Any benefit tesmed shall be payable from the Plan in the

same manner as if the beneficiary who filed theldimer had predeceased the Participant.

Section 14 Amendment and Termination of Plan:

The Company may amend any provision of the Plaeroninate the Plan at any time; provided, thatdrement shall such amendment or termination rethedalance in any Participant's

Deferred Compensation Account as of the date di smeendment or termination, nor




shall any such amendment affect the terms of the Rlating to the payment of such Deferred Comgtéms Account. Notwithstanding the foregoing, tb#dwing special provisions shall apply:

14.1 Termination in the Discretion of the Employer Except as otherwise provided in Sections 14.2Ctpany in its discretion may terminate the Plath distribute benefits to

Participants subject to the following requiremeantsl any others specified under Section 409A of0beée:

14.1.1 All arrangements sponsored by the Empldyerwould be aggregated with the Plan under Sedtié®9A-I(c) of the Treasury Regulations are teiated.

14.1.2 No payments other than payments that woailpldyable under the terms of the Plan if the teation had not occurred are made within 12 montitee@termination date.

14.1.3 All benefits under the Plan are paid wittdhmonths of the termination date.

14.1.4 The Employer does not adopt a new arrangetima@rwould be aggregated with the Plan underi@edt409A-1(c) of the Treasury Regulations provigfor the deferral of
compensation at any time within 3 years followihg tate of termination of the Plan.

14.1.5 The termination does not occur proximate dmwnturn in the financial health of the Employer.

14.2 Termination Upon Change in Control Eventlf the Company terminates the Plan within thirtysli@receding or twelve months following a Chang€amtrol Event, the Deferred

Compensation Account of each Participant shall brecfully vested and payable to the Participantimnap sum within twelve months following the dafe@rmination, subject to the requireme

of Section 409A of the Code.

Section 15 Communication to Participants:




The Employer shall make a copy of the Plan avadlébt inspection by Participants and their benefies during reasonable hours at the principateftif the Employer.

Section 16 Claims Procedure:

The following claims procedure shall apply withpest to the Plan:

16.1 Filing of a Claim for Benefits.If a Participant or Beneficiary (the "claimant”)lieees that he is entitled to benefits under ttenRihich are not being paid to him or which are not

being accrued for his benefit, he shall file a teritclaim therefore with the Committee.

16.2 Notification to Claimant of DecisionWithin 90 days after receipt of a claim by the Coittee (or within 180 days if special circumstanoeguire an extension of time), the
Committee shall notify the claimant of the deciswith regard to the claim. In the event of suchcgglecircumstances requiring an extension of tithere shall be furnished to the claimant prior to
expiration of the initial 90-day period written fa# of the extension, which notice shall set fahté special circumstances and the date by whicdebision shall be furnished. If such claim shall
be wholly or partially denied, notice thereof shzglin writing and worded in a manner calculatedgainderstood by the claimant, and shall set f@ijtthe specific reason or reasons for the
denial; (ii) specific reference to pertinent praers of the Plan on which the denial is based), &iilescription of any additional material or imf@tion necessary for the claimant to perfect the
claim and an explanation of why such material érimation is necessary; and (iv) an explanatiothefprocedure for review of the denial and the tiimés applicable to such procedures,

including a statement of the claimant's right tmdpra civil action under ERISA following an advetsenefit




determination on review. Notwithstanding the foriegoif the claim relates to a disability deterntina, the Committee shall notify the claimant o tthecision within 45 days (which may be

extended for an additional 30 days if required jpgcsal circumstances).

16.3 Procedure for ReviewWithin 60 days following receipt by the claimantraftice denying his claim, in whole or in part, ibisuch notice shall not be given, within 60 déyiowing
the latest date on which such notice could have kieeely given, the claimant may appeal deniahef tlaim by filing a written application for reviemith the Committee. Following such request
for review, the Committee shall fully and fairlyview the decision denying the claim. Prior to tleeidion of the Committee, the claimant shall beegian opportunity to review pertinent

documents and to submit issues and comments imgurit

16.4 Decision on ReviewTl he decision on review of a claim denied in whole
or in part by the Committee shall be made in tHiefding manner:

16.4.1 Within 60 days following receipt by the Coittee of the request for review (or within 120 d#yspecial circumstances require an extensiomaé), the Committee shall notify the
claimant in writing of its decision with regardttee claim. In the event of such special circumstanequiring an extension of time, written noti€¢he extension shall be furnished to the claimant
prior to the commencement of the extension. Nostéthding the foregoing, if the claim relates tasability determination, the Committee shall notifie claimant of the decision within 45 days
(which may be extended for an additional 45 dayedtired by special circumstances).

16.4.2 With respect to a claim that is denied imletor in part, the decision on review shall setfepecific reasons for the decision, shall betemiin a manner calculated to be unders
by the claimant, and shall set forth:

(i) the specific reason or reasons for the adveesermination;

(i) specific reference to pertinent Plan provisam which the adverse determination is based;

(iii) a statement that the claimant is entitlede¢oeive, upon request and free of charge, reaseabkss to, and copies of, all documents, recandspther information relevant to the
claimant’s claim for benefits; and




(iv) a statement describing any voluntary appeatedures offered by the Plan and the claimants tig obtain the information about such proceduassyell as a statement of the
claimant’s right to bring an action under ERISAtgmt 502(a).

16.4.3 The decision of the Committee shall be faral conclusive.

16.5 Action by Authorized Representative of Claiman All actions set forth
in this Section 16 to be taken by the claimant filewise be taken by a representative

of the claimant duly authorized by him to act is behalf on such matters. The Committee may reguich evidence as either may reasonably deem regessadvisable of the authority to act of
any such representative.

Section 17 Miscellaneous Provisions:

17.1 Set off The Employer may at any time offset a ParticipaDégerral Compensation Account by an amount upbt0®0 to collect the amount of any loan, cash adeaextension of

other credit or other obligation of the Participtmthe Employer that is then due and payable @o@zance with the requirements of Section 409AefCode.

17.2 NoticesEach Participant who is not in Service and eacheBeiary shall be responsible for furnishing then@oittee or its designee with his current addresshie mailing of notices
and benefit payments. Any notice required or pegadito be given to such Participant or Beneficggll be deemed given if directed to such addnedsrailed by regular United States mail, first
class, postage prepaid. If any check mailed to sdchess is returned as undeliverable to the askeleesnailing of checks will be suspended untilRaeticipant or Beneficiary furnishes the proper

address. This provision shall not be construeeasiring the mailing of any notice or notificatiotherwise permitted to be given by posting or byeotpublication.




17.3 Lost Distributees A benefit shall be deemed forfeited if the Comneitie unable to locate the Participant or Benefictarwhom payment is due by the fifth anniversdrthe date
payment is to be made or commence; provided, tigatiéemed investment rate of return pursuant tod®e8.2 shall cease to be applied to the Partidipaccount following the first anniversary

of such date; provided further, however, that suehefit shall be reinstated if a valid claim is @y or on behalf of the Participant or Beneficifoyall or part of the forfeited benefit.

17.4 Reliance on DataThe Employer and the Committee shall have the tigihtly on any data provided by the Participanityany Beneficiary. Representations of such daadl be
binding upon any party seeking to claim a bengfioagh a Participant, and the Employer and the Citteenshall have no obligation to inquire into #reeuracy of any representation made at any

time by a Participant or Beneficiary.

17.5 HeadingsThe headings and subheadings of the Plan haveihssmed for convenience of reference and are igro@ed in any construction of the provisions loére

17.6 Continuation of Employment.The establishment of the Plan shall not be condtaseconferring any legal or other rights upon Bmployee or any persons for continuation of

employment, nor shall it interfere with the riglitiee Employer to discharge any Employee or to dédi him without regard to the effect thereof untee Plan.

17.7 Merger or Consolidation; Assumption of PlanNo Employer shall consolidate or merge into or véittother corporation or entity, or transfer alabstantially all of its assets to

another corporation, partnership, trust or otheitye(a "Successor Entity") unless such SuccesstityEshall assume the rights, obligations andiliiéds of the Employer under the Plan and upon




such assumption, the Successor Entity shall beadnigated to perform the terms and conditions efftan. Nothing herein shall prohibit the assummptibthe obligations and liabilities of the

Employer under the Plan by any Successor Entity.

17.8 Construction.The Employer shall designate in the Adoption Agreefithe state according to whose laws the prowsadithe Plan shall be construed and enforced péxoghe

extent that such laws are superseded by ERISArandpplicable requirements of the Code.

17.9 TaxesThe Employer or other payor may withhold a bengdigment under the Plan or a Participant's wagekedEmployer may reduce a Participant's Accoulgrizz, in order to
meet any federal, state, or local or employmentiaxholding obligations with respect to Plan bétsefas permitted under Section 409A of the Codie Employer or other payor shall report Plan

payments and other Plan-related information toafiygropriate governmental agencies as required wapjgicable laws.

Section 18 Transition Rules:

This Section 18 does not apply to plans newly distad on or after January 1, 2009.

18.1 2005 Election TerminationNotwithstanding Section 4.1.4, at any time durif§2, a Participant may terminate a Participatione&gient, or modify a Participation Agreement to
reduce the amount of Compensation subject to tfegrdéelection, so long as the Compensation stibjethe terminated or modified Participation Agremt is includable in the income of the

Participant in 2005 or, if later, in the taxableyé which the amounts are earned and vested.




18.2 2005 Deferral ElectionThe requirements of Section 4.1.2 relating to iménig of the Participation Agreement shall not apial any deferral elections made on or before Magsh
2005, provided that (a) the amounts to which tHerdal election relate have not been paid or becpayable at the time of the election, (b) the Rias in existence on or before December 31,
2004, (c) the election to defer compensation iseriadiccordance with the terms of the Plan asfecebn December 31, 2005 (other than a requiretoemtake a deferral election after March 15,

2005), and (d) the Plan is otherwise operated tora@nce with the requirements of Section 409/efCode.

18.3 2005 Termination of Participation; Distribution. Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrat any time during 2005, a Participant may ieate his or her participation in
the Plan and receive a distribution of his Defei@amnpensation Account balance on account of thatitation, so long as the full amount of such dbsttion is includable in the Participant's

income in 2005 or, if later, in the taxable yeaths Participant in which the amount is earnedasded.

18.4 Payment ElectionsNotwithstanding the provisions of Sections 7.1 & af the Plan, a Participant may elect on or lefdecember 31, 2008, the time or form of paymeminobunts subject
to Section 409A of the Code provided that suchtele@pplies only to amounts that would not otheenbe payable in the year of the election and doesause an amount to paid in the year of

the election that would not otherwise be payableuich year.




NOTE: Execution of this Adoption Agreement creates legal liability of the Employer with significant tax consequences to the Employer and Participant®rincipal Life Insurance Company disclaims all liaklity
for the legal and tax consequences which result fno the elections made by the Employer in this Adoptin Agreement.

Principal Life Insurance Company, Raleigh, NC 27

A member of the Principal Financial Gro®

THE EXECUTIVE NONQUALIFIED "EXCESS" PLAN

ADOPTION AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT is the adoption kiyollyFrontier Corporation (the "Company") of the Executive Nonqualified Exe&an ("Plan").

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, the Company desires to adopt the Plamamfunded, nonqualified deferred compensation;@ad
WHEREAS, the provisions of the Plan are intendedaimply with the requirements of Section 409A @& @ode and the regulations thereunder and shdlf &mpmounts subject to section 409A; and
WHEREAS, the Company has been advised by Printif@lnsurance Company to obtain legal and tax eglfiom its professional advisors before adoptirgRlan,
NOW, THEREFORE, the Company hereby adopts the iRlascordance with the terms and conditions seh fiorthis Adoption Agreement:
ARTICLE |

Terms used in this Adoption Agreement shall haegesdéime meaning as in the Plan, unless some otlerimges expressly herein set forth. The Employ®ehy represents and warrants that the Plan hasdoepted

by the Employer upon proper authorization and ttnpleyer hereby elects to adopt the Plan for theshieaof its Participants as referred to in the PIBy the execution of this Adoption Agreement, Braployer hereby agrees
to be bound by the terms of the Plan.

ARTICLE Il
The Employer hereby makes the following designationelections for the purpose of the Plan:
2.6 Committee: The duties of the Committee set forth in the Rlaall be satisfied by:
_ (a) Company
XX (b) The administrative committee appointed byBloard to serve at the pleasure
of the Board.
o (c) Board.

_ (d) Other (specify):




2.8 CompensationThe "Compensation"” of a Participant shall meam&# Participant's:

o (a) Base salary.

_ (b) Service bonus.

_ (c) Performance-Based Compensation (Bonuggdan a period of 12 months or more.
_ (d) Commissions.

XX (e) Compensation received as an Independent @ootn@portable on Form 1099.

XX

) Other:Eligible Earnings including base pay. bonuses, anavertime and excluding extraordinary pay such as tavel allowances, moving expenses or the transitidienefit. Eligible earnings

are determined without taking into account any salay reduction contributions you make to the Companys 401(k) plan and/or section 125 cafeteria plan. F¢he complete definition see the
definition of Compensation under the HollyFrontier Corporation 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan.

2.9 Crediting Date: The Deferred Compensation Account of a Particisaall be credited as follows:
Participant Deferral Credits at the time designdteldw:

__(a) The last business day of each Plan Year.

__(b) The last business day of each calendar euduring the Plan Year.

__(c) The last business day of each month duhiedPfan Year.

__(d) The last business day of each payroll petliaihg the Plan Year.

__(e) Each pay day as reported by the Employer.

XX (f) On any business day as specified by the Employe

__(g) Other:
Employer Credits at the time designated below:

XX (a) On any business day as specified by the Employe

__ (b) Other:

2.13 Effective Date:
__(a) This is a newly-established Plan, and tHedfif/e Date of the Plan is

XX (b) This is an amendment of a plan narfeantier Deferred Compensation PlandatedDecember 1, 200&nd governing all contributions to the plan throlgrember 31, 2011 The Effective Date of this amended F
isJanuary 1, 2012,




2.20 Normal Retirement Age:The Normal Retirement Age of a Participant shail be
__(a)Age ___.

__(b) The later of age ___ or the annargref the participation commencement date. Thégyjpation commencement date is the first day effirst Plan Year in which the Participant commehpatrticipation in th
Plan.

XX (c) Other:Not Applicable .

2.23 Participating Employer(s):As of the Effective Date, the following Participagi Employer(s) are parties to the Plan:

Name of Employer Address Telephone No. EIN
Holly Frontier Corporation 2828 N. Harwood, Suite 1300 214871-3848 751056913

Dallas, TX 75201

2.26 Plan:The name of the Plan iollyFrontier Corporation Executive Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan.
2.28 Plan Year:The Plan Year shall end each year on the last fihyeanonth oDecember.
2.30 Seniority Date:

The date on which a Participant has:

__ (a) Attained age __.

__(b) Completed

__Years of Service from First Date of Service.

__(c) Attained age __ and completed __ Years ofi&=from First Date of Service.
__(d) Attained an age as elected by the Partitipan

XX (e) Not applicable — distribution elections for Segtion from Service are not based on SeniorityeDat




4.1 Participant Deferral Credits: Subject to the limitations in Section 4.1 of tharRla Participant may elect to have his Compensétis selected in Section 2.8 of this Adoption Agnent) deferred within the annual limits
below by the following percentage or amount asgiested in writing to the Committee:

_ (a) Base salary:
minimum deferral: %
maximum deferral: $ or %
_ (b) Service Bonus:
minimum deferral: %
maximum deferral: $ or %
_ (c) Performance Based Compensation:
minimum deferral: %
maximum deferral: $ or %
. (c) Performance Based Compensation:
minimum deferral: %
maximum deferral: $ or %
. (d) Performance Based Compensation:
minimum deferral: %
maximum deferral: $ or %
XX (e) Form 1099 Compensation:
minimum deferral: %
maximum deferral: $ or_100 %
XX ®

Other: Eligible Earnings including base pay, bonusg, and overtime and excluding extraordinary pay sut as travel allowances,
moving expenses or the transition benefit. Eligiblearnings are determined without taking into accounhany salary reduction
contributions you make to the Companys 401(k) plan and/or section 125 cafeteria plan. 8&xhibit D.

minimum deferral: %
maximum deferral: $ or _50 %

o (9) Participant deferrals not allowed.




4.2 Employer Credits:
Employer Credits will be made in the following mann
__ (a)Employer Discretionary Credits : The Employer may make discretionary credits s@eferred Compensation Account of each Activei€lpant in an amount determined as follows:
__ (i) An amount determined each Plan Year by timplgyer.
__(iiy Other:
__(b)Other Employer Credits : The Employer may make other credits to the Defe€ompensation Account of each Active Participa@in amount determined as follows:
__ (i) An amount determined each Plan Year by timplgyer.
__ (i) Other:
__(c) Employer Credits not allowed.
XX (d) Other:See Exhibit A.

5.2 Disability of a Participant:
__(a) A Participant's becoming Disabled shall legualifying Distribution Event and the Deferred Quensation Account shall be paid by the Employegrasided in Section 7.1.

XX (b) A Participant becoming Disabled shall beta Qualifying Distribution Event.

5.3 Death of a Participant:If the Participant dies while in Service, the Enygioshall pay a benefit to the Beneficiary in aroant equal to the vested balance in the Deferredg@nsation Account of the Participant
determined as of the date payments to the Bensfic@mmence, plus:

__(a) An amount to be determined by the Committee.

__(b) Other:

XX (c) No additional benefits.




5.4 In-Service or Education Distributions:In-Service and Education Accounts are permitteceuitite Plan:

5.5 Change in Control Event:

(€Y

(b)

In-Service Accounts are allowed with respect t

XX Participant Deferral Credits only.
Employer Credits only.

_ Participant Deferral and Employer Credits
In-service distributions may be made in th#ofving manner:

XX Single lump sum payment.

XX Annual installments over a term certain not toeext 5_years.
Education Accounts are allowed with respect t

XX Participant Deferral Credits only.

Employer Credits only.

Participant Deferral and Employer Credits
ucation Accounts distributions may be miadiée following manner:

Single lump sum payment.

Annual installments over a term certain not toeext 5_years.
If applicable, amounts not vested at the fragments due under this Section
cease will be:

E

o

B

Forfeited
_ Distributed at Separation from Serviceei$ted at that time
No In-Service or Education Distributions petexl.

XX _(a) Participants may elect upon initial enrollmemhave accounts distributed upon a Change in GbEtrent.

__(b) A Change in Control shall nle¢ a Qualifying Distribution Event.

5.6 Unforeseeable Emergency Event:

__(a) Participants may apply to have accountsibliged upon an Unforeseeable Emergency event.

XX (b) An Unforeseeable Emergency shall beta Qualifying Distribution Event




6. Vesting: An Active Participant shall be fully vested in tBenployer Credits made to the
Deferred Compensation Account upon the first tauoad the following events:

o (a) Normal Retirement Age.
XX (b) Death.
_ (c) Disability.
XX (d) Change in Control Event
XX (e) OtherSee Exhibit B.
_ f) Satisfaction of the vesting requirement ascifer below:

Employer Discretionary Credits:
__ (i) Immediate 100% vesting.
__ (i) 100% vesting after __ Years of Seevic
__ (iii) 100% vesting at age __.

_ (iv) Number of Years of Service Vested Percentage
Less tharl %
2 _ %
3 _ %
4 %
5 %
6 %
7 %
8 %
9 %
10 or more %

For this purpose, Years of Service of a Particigsdall be calculated from the date designated helow
__ (1) First Day of Service.

__(2) Effective Date of Plan Participation.

__(3) Each Crediting Date. Under this option €ch Employer Credit shall vest based on the Yefa®ervice of a Participant from the Crediting Datewhich each Employer Discretionary Credit is &l his or her
Deferred Compensation Account.




__Other Employer Credits:
__ (i) Immediate 100% vesting.
__ (i) 100% vesting after __ Years of Service.
__ (i) 100% vesting at age __.
__(iv) Number of Years Vested of Service Percemtag

Lessthan1l _ %

1_%
2_%
3_%
4_ %
5_%
6_ %
7_%
8_%
9_ %

10 or more _ %
For this purpose, Years of Service of a Particisdatl be calculated from the date designated helow
__ (1) First Day of Service.
__(2) Effective Date of Plan Participation.

__(3) Each Crediting Date. Under this option éjch Employer Credit shall vest based on the Yefa8ervice of a Participant from the Crediting Datewhich each Employer Discretionary Credit is méalhis or
her Deferred Compensation Account.




7.1 Payment Options:Any benefit payable under the Plan upon a permifedlifying Distribution Event may be made to tratiipant or his Beneficiary (as applicable) iry ar the following payment forms, as selected by
the Participant in the Participation Agreement:

(a) Separation from Service prior to Seniority DateSeparation from Service if Seniority Date istMpplicableXX (i) A lump sum.

XX (ii) Annual installments over a term certain asedd by the Participant not

to exceed 5_years.

__(iii) Other:
(b) Separation from Service on or After Senioritst® If Applicable

_ (i) Alump sum.

__ (i) Annual installments over a term certairetected by the Participant not

to exceed __years.

XX (iii) Other: Not applicable.
(c) Separation from Service Upon a Change in Coiivent

XX (i) A lump sum.

XX (ii) Annual installments over a term certain asedd by the Participant not

to exceed 5_years.

__ (iii) Other:
__(d)Death

XX (i) A lump sum.

__ (i) Annual installments over a term certairetected by the Participant not to exceed ____ years.

__(iii) Other:
(e) Disability

_ (i) Alump sum.

__ (i) Annual installments over a term certairefected by the Participant not to exceed ___ years.

__(iii) Other: .

XX (iv) Not applicable. If applicable, amounts not teekat the time payments due under this Sectiosecedl be:

__ Forfeited

__Distributed at Separation from Service if vesiethat time

(f) Change in Control Event

XX (i) A lump sum.
__ (i) Annual installments over a term certairetected by the Participant not to exceed ____ years.

__(iii) Other:

__ (iv) Not applicable.

If applicable, amounts not vested at the time paymdue under this Section cease will be:
__ Forfeited
__Distributed at Separation from Service if vestethat time

7.4 De Minimis Amounts.

__(a) Notwithstanding any payment election madénleyParticipant, the vested balance in the Dede@@mpensation Account of the Participant will ligributed in a single lump sum payment at the time
designated under the Plan if at the time of a pgenhiQualifying Distribution Event that is eitheSaparation from Service, death, Disability (if Bggble) or Change in Control Event (if
applicable) the vested balance does not exceed $ . In addition, the Employer may distribute atiegpant's vested balance at any time if the bedatoes not exceed the limit in Section
402(g)(1)(B) of the Code and results in the terriaraof the Participant's entire interest in tharP|




XX (b) There shall be no pre-determined de minimisw@mander the Plan; however, the Employer may ibiste a Participant's vested balance at any tirtteeibalance does not exceed the limit in Section
402(g)(1)(B) of the Code and results in the terriaraof the Participant's entire interest in tharP|

10.1 Contractual Liability: Liability for payments under the Plan shall be tésponsibility of the:
XX (a) Company.

__(b) Employer or Participating Employer who enygld the Participant when amounts were deferred.

14. Amendment and Termination of Plan:Notwithstanding any provision in this Adoption Agreent or the Plan to the contraBgctions 4.2, 5.4 & ®f the Plan shall be supplemented as to the tyftegiloyer
Contributions, In-Service or Education Distributipmnd Vesting as provided in attacliednibits A, B, & C . Section 4of the Plan shall be supplemented as providegkinibit D .




17.9 Construction: The provisions of the Plan shall be construed aridreed according to the laws of the State of Terasept to the extent that such laws are supedseylERISA and the applicable provisions of the €od
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been exetageof the day and year stated be

HollyFrontier Corporation
Name of Employe

By: /sl Nancy Hartma
Authorized Person: Nancy Hartmz
Date: 1102-2011




XX

XX

XX

XX

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

EXHIBIT A

4.2 Employer Credits: Employer Credits will be made in the following mann

Matching Restoration : The Employer may make discretionary credits ®oBreferred Compensation Account of each Activei€lpant in an amount
determined as follows:

XX (i) An amount determined each Plan Year by theBger.

_ (ii) Other: .

Retirement Restoration Contribution : The Employer may make other credits to the Def@ompensation Account of each Active Participauen amoun
determined as follows:

XX (i) An amount determined each Plan Year by theByer.

_ (i) Other: .
Transition Benefit : The Employer may make discretionary credits soBreferred Compensation Account of each Activei€lpent in an amount determined
as follows:

XX (i) An amount determined each Plan Year by theBger.

_ (i) Other: .

NQ Nonelective Contributions: The Employer may make other credits to the Defe@ompensation Account of each Active Participasatn amount
determined as follows:

XX (i) An amount determined each Plan Year by theByer.

_ (i) Other:




EXHIBIT B Section 5.4 of the Plan Document shall beeplaced with the following:

5.4 In-Service or Education Distributions.If the Employer designates in the Adoption Agreenikat in-service or education distributions arengited under the Plan, a Participant may desigimatiee Participation
Agreement to have a specified amount of Compensatiedited to the Participant's In-Service or EdiocaAccount for in-service or education distritmuts at the date specified by the Participant. levent may an in-service
or education distribution of a Compensation amdugninade before the date that is two years aftefirStelay of the year during which the services performed that give rise to the Compensation aniube credited to the
In-Service or Education Account (e.g., for Compeieseearned with respect to services performedit2? the earliest distribution date with respeany amount of such Compensation would be Janya2914).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Participantuns a Qualifying Distribution Event prior to thetdan which the entire balance in th-Service or Education Account has been distributeeh the balance in the Bervice o

Education Account on the date of the QualifyingtBiimition Event shall be paid as provided underti®ac.1 for payments on such Qualifying DistrilmttiEvent.




EXHIBIT C
6. Vesting:An Active Participant shall be fully vested in tBenployer Credits made to the Deferred Compensamount upon satisfaction of the vesting requiren@anspecified below:
Matching Restoration:
Immediate 100% vesting.
Retirement Restoration Contribution:
100% vesting after 3 Years of Service.
Years of Service will be determined in the samemeams the HollyFrontier Corporation 401(k) RetieshSavings Plan.
Transition Benefit:
Immediate 100% vesting.
NQ Nonelective Contributions:

TBD Vesting - as indicated by the Employer priottie time of contribution and subject to approvedministration capability by Principal.




EXHIBIT D

Each Participant may make a separate deferrali@hesiith respect to that portion of his Compengsatioat consists of base pay and overtim€¢mpensation Deferral Credits”) and that portion of his Compensation
consists of bonus Bonus Deferral Credits”). Compensation Deferral Credits will be effectivelwiespect to base pay and overtime earned forcearygierformed during the Plan Year for which thiedal election is mac
(i.e., an election to defer Compensation Defern@dis made in December of 2011 will apply to bpag and overtime earned and payable in 2012) amiB8®eferral Credits will be effective with respéztbonus earne
during the Plan Year for which the services giviisg to the bonus are performed and paid durinddahewing year (i.e., an election to defer Bonusférral Credits made in December 2011 will applyp¢mus earned duri
2012 that is paid during 2013).

Further, no Compensation Deferral Credits and Bdpeferral Credits may be deferred under the Pldil the Participant has made the maximum amourtosfipensation deferrals to the HollyFrontier Corfiora401(k
Retirement Savings Plan (thet01(k) Plan”) permitted under the Internal Revenue Code of6l@% amended (theCode"”) and the Compensation Deferral Credit percentaggiefemade under this Plan will also appl'
compensation and bonus deferrals under the 4014k) flér the for services performed during the PYaar for which the deferral election is made (itee percentage election for Compensation Defe&reflits made i
December of 2011 will apply under the 401(k) Plabase pay and overtime earned and payable in 204if) respect to those Participants who are dkgib make a catcbp contribution election under section 414(v) a
Code, a separate catch-up contribution election beaynade under the 401(k) Plan, but no Compensatiderral Credits or Bonus Deferral Credits maynieede to this Plan until the section 402(g) limi;luding catchap
contributions, is reached.

The following example illustrates the operatiortteé Plan and the 401(k) Plan under these rulesrihdescenario where the Participant reaches thie Gection 402(g) limit:
Assumptions: Salary is $130,000 and bonus is $200,000 for B6t2 and 2013. The Code section 402(g) limit i8,800 for both 2012 and 2013 and the Participanbt<eligible for catch up contributions. There five
bi-weekly pay periods before the bonus is paid. Théidjaant defers 7% of salary and bonus for 201@ &% for 2013 (i.e., her percentage election fah@ompensation Deferral Credits and Bonus Def&rablits ar
7% and 8% respectively for 2012 and 2013). Thei¢haaint did not make a bonus deferral election,(d& not defer Bonus Deferral Credits) in 2010.
2012

7% of salary and bonus are deferred to the 401lé¢) &ntil the $17,000 limit is reached and theragatieferrals in the amount of 7% continue to tlPNo bonus may be deferred to the Plan for 2048 year since t
2010 election is in effect.

The salary deferrals would be $350 per pay peiied $5,000 x 7%), so:

. assuming there are 5 bi-weekly pay periods timéilbonus is paid, the Participant would defer 5.6 the 401(k) Plan before the bonus is paid;
. for the payroll with the bonus, 7% of salary (§B%ould be deferred to the 401(k) Plan and 7%aofus ($14,000) would be deferred to the 401(k) Plan
. salary for the next few pay periods would be def to the 401(k) Plan, until such salary deferejual $1,000 in order to reach the $17,000 liamit

. for each pay period after the $17,000 limit isateed, 7% of the Participant’s salary would be detkto the Plan for the remainder of the year.




2013

8% of salary and bonus are deferred to the 401¢k) &ntil the $17,000 limit is reached, then 7%bofus is deferred to the Plan and 8% of salaryimoes to be deferred to the Plan for the remainéiéne year.
The salary deferrals would be $400 per pay peiied $5,000 x 8%) so:

. assuming there are 5 bi-weekly pay periods timéilbonus is paid, the Participant would defer @2, the 401(k) Plan before the bonus is paid;

. for the payroll with the bonus, 8% of salary wibble deferred to the 401(k) Plan and although dmeub deferral to the 401(k) Plan is $16,000 (200,000 x 8%) only $14,600 can be contributedéo401(k) Plan
due to the $17,000 limit so the extra $1,400 ofusowould be paid to the Participant;

. since the $17,000 limit is reached for the pagyquakin which the bonus is paid, an additional $D, of bonus 7% (based on the election made in 2011) x $200,00@)dvoe deferred to the Plan; and

. for each subsequent pay period after the $17j600is reached, 8% of the Participant’s salaryulebbe deferred to the Plan for the remainder efytbar.



HOLLY LOGISTIC SERVICES, L.L.C.
ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN

(As Amended and Restated Effective November 272p01
1. INTENT.

The purpose of this Annual Incentive Plan (fR&n") is to motivate management and the emplopéé4olly Logistic Services, L.L.C. (the "Companydhd its affiliates who perform services for
Company and for Holly Energy Partners, L.P., a al@ limited partnership, and its subsidiaries (fPartnership”) to collectively produce outstandiegults, encourage superior performance, inc
productivity, and aid in attracting and retainirgylemployees.

2. PLAN GUIDELINES.

The administration of the Plan and any potérgigards granted pursuant to the Plan is subje¢héodetermination by the Compensation Committe¢hef Company's Board of Directors (
"Compensation Committee") that the performancegml the applicable periods have been achieved.Plan is an additional compensation program desigm encourage Plan participants (desigr
by the Compensation Committee) to exceed spedifigective performance targets for the designatemgeThe Compensation Committee will review pemiance results for the designated perform
period, and thereafter will determine whether drtoapprove awards under the Plan.

3. PERFORMANCE TARGETS.

3.1 DESIGNATION OF PERFORMANCE TARGETS. The Qmmy's Chief Executive Officer shall recommend jecthto the Compensation Committee's approvalpréormance measul
and performance targets to be used for each peafwenperiod (a "Performance Period") in determitirggbonus amounts to be paid as a result of gme Fhe length of each Performance Period sh
established by the Committee in its sole discrefR@rformance targets may be based on Partnetsfsmess unit and/or individual achievements, grambination of these, or on such other factorthe
Company's Chief Executive Officer, subject to tppraval of the Compensation Committee, may deteenidifferent performance targets may be establi$bedifferent participants for any Performa
Period. Satisfactory results, as determined byCimpensation Committee in its sole discretion, rbesachieved in order for an award to be made patgo the Plan.

3.2 EQUITABLE ADJUSTMENT TO PERFORMANCE TARGETS\ its discretion, the Compensation Committee naaljust performance measure results for extraorgieaents c
accounting adjustments resulting from significasged purchases or dispositions or other eventsardemplated or otherwise considered by the CongtiemsCommittee when the performance mea:
and targets were set.

4. PARTICIPANTS.

The Compensation Committee, in consultatiorhwite Company's Chief Executive Officer, will desige members of management and employees of thep&ymand its affiliates as eligible
participate in the Plan. Employees so designatetll lsé referred to as "Participants.”




5. PARTICIPATION LEVELS.

A Participant's designated level of participatin the Plan, or target bonus, will be determineder criteria established or approved by the Garsgtion Committee for that Performance Periodels
of participation in the Plan may vary accordingtParticipant's position and the relative impachsRarticipant can have on the Company's and/diatgt' operations. Care will be used in commutirigy
to any participant his performance targets andriateperformance amount for a Performance Pefib@. amount of target bonus a participant may recfiv any Performance Period, if any, will deg
upon the performance level achieved (unless waif@dhat Performance Period, as determined byGbmpensation Committee. No Participant shall haweaaim to be granted any award undel
Plan, and there is no obligation for uniformityt@fatment of Participants. The terms and conditafresvards need not be the same respecting eatbifzart.

6. AWARD PAYOUT.

Awards typically will be determined after thedeof the Performance Period. Awards will be paic¢cash annually, unless otherwise determined byCtrapensation Committee; provided, that, il
event will awards be paid to Participants latenthaarch 15 of the calendar year following the cetemyear to which such award relates; provided,ittihe Compensation Committee's determinatiomoi
complete by such day, such that calculation ofatmeunt of such award is not administratively piaatile as of March 15, the award shall still bete@as being paid no later than March 15 if paynoé
the award is made during the first taxable yeathef Participant in which calculation of the awardoaint is administratively practicable. The CompénsaCommittee will have the discretion,
Participant and by grant, to reduce (but not teease) some or all of the amount of any awarddtrarwise would be payable by reason of the satisfa of the applicable performance targets. In img
any such determination, the Compensation Commisterithorized to take into account any such factofactors it determines are appropriate, includig not limited to Company, business unit
individual performance; provided, however, that éxercise of such negative discretion with respeaine Participant may not be used to increaseautheunt of any award otherwise payable to an
Participant.

7. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT.

Termination of a Participant's employment foy aeason prior to payout of an award under the Rid result in the Participant's forfeiture ofyaright, title or interest in any such award, uslesd t
the extent waived by the Compensation Committetsisole discretion.

8. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION.

The Compensation Committee, at its sole digmretmay amend the Plan or terminate the Planyatiare.
9. ADMINISTRATION.

The Compensation Committee may delegate ttponsibility for the administration and operationtbé Plan to the Chief Executive Officer (or desighof the Company or any participating affili
The Compensation Committee (or the person(s) tehlwhdministrative authority has been delegated) sla@e the authority to interpret and construe ang all provisions of the Plan, including
performance targets and whether and to what eatdmieved. Any determination made by the Compens&immmittee (or the

2




person(s) to which administrative authority hasnbéelegated) shall be final and conclusive andibidn all persons.
10. INDEMNIFICATION.

Neither the Company, nor any participating liaf¢, nor the Board of Directors of the Companyaoy participating affiliate, nor any member of argmmittee of the Board of Directors or .
participating affiliate, nor any employee of then@many or any participating affiliate shall be lialibr any act, omission, interpretation, constarcior determination made in connection with thenfh
good faith; and the members of the Company's Bo&fdirectors, the Compensation Committee and/oretngloyees of the Company or any participatindiafé shall be entitled to indemnification ¢
reimbursement by the Company to the maximum exgeritted by law in respect of any claim, loss, dgmor expense (including counsel's fees) arisimm their acts, omission and conduct in t
official capacity with respect to the Plan.

11. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

11.1 NONGUARANTEE OF EMPLOYMENT. Nothing contained in thRlan shall be construed as a contract of employrhetween the Company and/or a participating afféiliand
Participant, and nothing in this Plan shall confpon any Participant any right to continued emplegtrwith the Company or a participating affiliate, to interfere with the right of the Company ¢
participating affiliate to terminate a Participargmployment, with or without cause.

11.2 INTERESTS NOT TRANSFERABLE. No benefitsden the Plan shall be subject in any manner toafien, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, attaohmor other legal process,
encumbrance of any kind, and any attempt to ddabh se void.

11.3 FACILITY PAYMENT. Any amounts payable hergler to any person under legal disability or wihahe judgment of the Compensation Committee ©désignee, is unable to prop:
manage his or her financial affairs, may be paithélegal representative of such person, or magpipéied for the benefit of such person in any nearwhich the Compensation Committee or its desi
may select, and each participating affiliate shaltelieved of any further liability for paymentaich amounts.

11.4 CONTROLLING LAW. To the extent not supetsd by federal law, the law of the State of DELAWRARwithout regard to its choice of law principleball be controlling in all matte
relating to the Plan.

11.5 NO RIGHTS TO AWARD. No person shall have @laim to be granted any award under the Plad,there is no obligation for uniformity of treatntesf Participants. The terms ¢
conditions of awards need not be the same witherdp each recipient.




11.6 SEVERABILITY. If any Plan provision or amyvard is or becomes or is deemed to be inval&hal, or unenforceable in any jurisdiction or ashy person or award, or would disqus
the Plan or any award under the law deemed apjidgbthe Compensation Committee, such provisiail §ie construed or deemed amended to conformetayplicable laws, or if it cannot be consti
or deemed amended without, in the determinatioth@fCompensation Committee, materially alteringititent of the Plan or the award, such provisioalldhe stricken as to such jurisdiction, perso
award and the remainder of the Plan and any suehdashall remain in full force and effect.

11.7 NO TRUST OR FUND CREATED. Neither the Ptam any award shall create or be construed tdee&ust or separate fund of any kind or a fidncrelationship between the Comp
or any participating affiliate and a Participantamy other person. To the extent that any persquires a right to receive payments from the Compangny participating affiliate pursuant to an asly
such right shall be no greater than the right gfgeneral unsecured creditor of the Company orpamticipating affiliate.

11.8 HEADINGS. Headings are given to the sestiof the Plan solely as a convenience to fadlitaference. Such headings shall not be deemedyirway material or relevant to 1
construction or interpretation of the Plan or anyjsion of it.

11.9 TAX WITHHOLDING. The Company and/or anyrpepating affiliate may deduct from any paymetherwise due under this Plan to a Participant émeficiary) amounts required by |
to be withheld for purposes of federal, state oaldaxes.

11.10 COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 409A OF THE CODIhis Plan is intended to comply with or be exemptrf and shall be administered in a manner thattended to comply wi
Section 409A of the Code and shall be construedrercpreted in accordance with such intent. Payraader this Plan shall be made in a manner thatainply with or be exempt from Section 409/
the Code, including regulations or other guidars=uéd with respect thereto, except as otherwiserrdited by the Committee. The applicable provisiohsSection 409A of the Code are her
incorporated by reference and shall control ovgramtrary provisions herein that conflict therdwit



Exhibit 21.1

Name of Entity _Organization

HEP Fin-Tex/Trust-River, L.P. Texas
HEP Logistics GP, L.L.C Delaware
HEP Mountain Home, L.L.C. Delaware
HEP Navajo Southern, L.P. Delaware
HEP Pipeline Assets, Limited Partnership dDelre
HEP Pipeline GP, L.L.C. Delaware
HEP Pipeline, L.L.C. Delaware

HEP Refining GP, L.L.C. Delaware
HEP Refining Assets, L.P. Delaware
HEP Refining, L.L.C. Delaware
HEP SLC, LLC Delaware

HEP Tulsa LLC Delaware

HEP Woods Cross, L.L.C. Delaware

HEP UNEV Holdings, LLC Delaware

HEP UNEYV Pipeline, LLC Delaware

Holly Energy Finance Corp. Delaware

Holly Energy Partners — Operating, L.P. Dwelee
Holly Energy Storage — Lovington LLC  Delaware
Cheyenne Logistics LLC Delaware

El Dorado Logistics LLC Delaware
Lovington-Artesia, L.L.C Delaware

Roadrunner Pipeline, L.L.C. Delaware

UNEYV Pipeline, LLC Delaware

HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT

State of
Incorporation or



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irfdlewing Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 338304) of Holly Energy Partners, L.
(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 338+784) of Holly Energy Partners, L.P.,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 3®2865) of Holly Energy Partners, L.

of our reports dated February 27, 2013, with resfiethe consolidated financial statements of Héhergy Partners, L.P., and the effectivenesstefrial control over financial reporting of Hc
Energy Partners, L.P., included in this Annual Reffeorm 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2012

/s/Ernst & Young LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 27, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Matthew P. Clifton, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornK1®F Holly Energy Partners, L.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to make #ttersents made, in light of the circumstances undéch such
statements were made, not misleading with respetbiet period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects financial condition, results of operations andhcisws of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this itepor

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintairmiisglosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) andriateontrol over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Acté®ul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our supervision, to ensatenaterial information relating to the registraneluding

its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known tbyusthers within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

b. designed such internal control over finanaéglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our supemisio provide reasonable assurance regarding liabitity of

financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadiisclosure controls and procedures and presémtais report our conclusions about the effectegnof the disclosure controls and proceduresf, tae @nd of thi

period covered by this report based on such evatyaand

d. disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant's most redsnaf quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal gemim the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, aeasonably likely to materially affect, the registr's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers drtthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,tte registrant’'s auditors and the audit committeesgistrant’'s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiam):

all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are reasonabllikto adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrézord, process,

summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslvnanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrastinternal control over financial reportil

a.

a.

/sl Matthew P. Clifton
Matthew P. Clifton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 27, 2013



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Douglas S. Aron, certify that:

5.

Date:

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl®fHolly Energy Partners, L.

Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorany untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to make #ttersents made, in light of the circumstances undiézh such
statements were made, not misleading with respetbiet period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfinancial condition, results of operations andhcisws of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this rtepor

The registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) andnateontrol over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Acté®ul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

a.

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedoree designed under our supervision, to ensatenaterial information relating to the registrantluding
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known tbyusthers within those entities, particularly dgrithe period in which this report is being prepared

designed such internal control over finanaéplarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our supemigio provide reasonable assurance regarding taditity of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadiisclosure controls and procedures and presémtbis report our conclusions about the effectegnof the disclosure controls and proceduresf, e @nd of thi
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrant's most redenaf quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal gemim the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, aeasonably likely to materially affect, the regastr's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officers arfthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant’s auditors and the audit committeeegistrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiam):

all significant deficiencies and material weedses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are reasonablylikto adversely affect the registrant’s abilityrézord, process,

a.
summarize and report financial information; and
b. any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslvnanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrastinternal control over financial reportil
February 27, 2013 /s/ Douglas S. Aron

Douglas S. Aron

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER OF HOLLY ENERGY PARTNERS, L.P.
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the accompanying report on FAi®rK for the annual period ended December 31, 201 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin the date hereof (the “Reportl)Matthew P. Cliftor

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive OfficeHolly Logistic Services, L.L.C., the general peet of HEP Logistics Holdings, L.P., the generattiper of Holly Energy Partners, L.P (the “Companyigreby certify
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremesitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 27, 2013 s/ Matthew P. Clifton

Matthew P. Clifton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER OF HOLLYFRONTIER CORPORATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the accompanying report on FA®sK for the annual period ended December 31, 242 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin the date hereof (the “Reportl),Douglas S. Aror

executive Vice President and Chief Financial OffisEHolly Logistic Services, L.L.C., the generarmer of HEP Logistics Holdings, L.P., the gengraitner of Holly Energy Partners, L.P (the “Comyanhereby certify
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SgearExchange Act of 1934; a

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctdadiand results of operations of the Comp

Date: February 27, 2013 Is/ Douglas S. Aron

Douglas S. Aron

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer




